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HomeServe's purpose is to make
home repairs and improvements easy.
Easy for homeowners and easy for trades.

In our Membership business, customers buy a policy from HomeServe. Our growing Heating, Ventilation and Air
Conditioning (HVAC) installations and Home Experts businesses connect homeowners with trustworthy local trades
(tradespeople) who can help them fix, maintain and improve their homes.

Our vision is to be the world’s most trusted
provider of home repairs and improvements.

We employ ¢.7,000 people worldwide, to serve our custormers principally in the UK, () Read more about our business modet

North America, France, Spain and Japan. The HomeServe Way is to operate with on page 12
CD Read more about The HomeServe Way
on page 20.

Courage, persistence and integrity in the service of our customers.

North America is our a
targest market place.

Our policy retention

rate is 82%. Total
customers
. (m)
i
|
8.3m
f customers
‘ QIObauy @ UK @ France

@ North Amenca @ Spain

: We signed our first affinity
i partnership in Japan in
January 2020.
c.1,000
Affinity partners
HomeServe globally 2015 2020
R—Ltr—2
In November 2019 we
acquired 79% of eLocal to
enter the Home Experts
market in North America.
In April 2019 we launched a best-in-class
eLocal com whole home warranty plan in North
America with spokesman Mike Rowe




Performance highlights

Another year of strong
growth, investment and
customer service

£1,132.3m

Revenue +13% from £1,003.6m

£158.6m

Statutory operating profit +4%
from £152.6m

31.7p

Basic earnings per share -3% from 32.7p
reflecting exceptional items

23.6p

Ordinary dividend per share +10%
from 21.4p

Awards

HormeServe uses a number of alternative perfarmance measures [APMs} 10 assess the

performance of the Group and its Indwmdual segments These are used in headline
finangial results and throughout the Strategic report APMs are non- GAAP measures

which address profitabiuty, leverage and liguidity and together with operational KPIs give
an indication of the current health and future prospects of the Group Detintions of APMs
and the rationale for their usage are included in the Glossary at the end of this report with

reconciliations, where applicable, back to the equivalent statutary rmeasure
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At a glance ‘Q )
HomeServe

Our purpose is to make home repairs and improvements easy,
and our ambition is to be able to do every job, in every home.

We reach homeowners through two globat business lines.
1 |

N

Membership and HVAC

(Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning) Home Experts

To give homeowners the peace of mind of a policy, of knowing An online marketplace to help homeowners find local
they have one number to call if they need assistance with trades (tradespeople) on-demand, to help with a broad range of
plumbing, heating, electrical, locks, glazing, pest control home repairs and improvements, from landscape gardening to
and technology. carpet cleaning.

(D) See more on page 14, (D See more on page 15.
l _ T
3
By offering Membership, HYAC and Home Experts, we can help out all around the home. We are creating a large network

of skilled trades, and are committed to helping our trades make a good living, whether they are self-employed or
part of our workforce. This is what we mean by making home repairs and improvermnents easy, for homeowners and trades.

We run our business by geography and by business line

North
America

Quir largest and fastest
growing Membership business

UK

Qur most mature
Membership business.

is driving the Group’s near term The keys to growth are New
growth and has potential to keep offering more value to existing Markets
expanding. North Ametica also has customers and harnessing New business

the Group's most established HVAC

business and in FY20 acquired a

further 3 businesses to support
our buy-and-build strategy.

technology like intelligent
call routing to revolutionise
customer service.

development and
innovation activities inctude
our jeint venture with
Mitsubishi Corporation

in Japan.

(> See more on
(1) See more on page 33.

page 35. (D Seemoreon

page 41

France

A well established
Membership business
with the highest customer
retention rates and operating
margins in the Group. FY20 saw the
most new custormers ever, thanks to
strong partnerships with large water
companies and new relationships
with online aggregators.

Home
Experts

Home Experts is
HomeServe's most exciting
medium to long-term opportunity.
‘We are investing to build a unique
business model, through Checkatrade
inthe UK and Habitissimo in Spain.
Qur fnvestment in eLocal gives us a
profitable entry in North America.

Spain
The market-leading
Clairms business works
with a growing number of
B2B bancassurer partners. The
Membership business is focused
on establishing new partnerships,
after our partnership with Endesa
ended in 2018,

(D See moreon
page 37.

(D See mare on
page 39.

@ See mare on

page 38.

Since FY18, Home Experts has been reported as a separate segment, reflecting the size of the opporiunity and the way we
allocate resources and review performance.
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FY20 achievements

We are investing in cur exciing growth plans for HVAC and Home Experts and expect them to support Membership in
delivering growth in the medium to long-term.

Membership e
Qur biggest growth opportunity is in 4 4

North America. Our key growth driver is to . m
sign more affinity partners and grow our customers in
customer base North America

We signed ¢.250 new affinity partnerships
iN FY20 to take the total to ¢ 1,000,

HVAC @

Every home has a heating and/or an air
conditioning unit. Our buy-and-build strategy

Every Job is creating an HVAC instaliations capability in
- all of our established Membership markets.
In Every Home.

15

acquisitions completed

N

£19m Home Experts .

net proﬁt and loss Cur Home Experts business
. complements our Membership
investment across

business by giving access to more
Home EXP?rts and trades cn an on-demand basis.
New Markets in FY20.

Our primary reporting segmentation is by geography

Revenue Adjusted operating profit

Emillion FY20 FY19 % change FY20 FY19 % change
UK 3729 3917 (5%) 810 66.0 23%
North America 4295 3334 29% 85.4 67.6 26%
France 111.8 104.6 7% 338 333 1%
Spain 154.1 140.8 9% 20.1 177 13%
New Markets - - - 4.7 2.4 89%
Home Experts 718 404 78% (13.9) {7.4) 86%
Inter-segment (7.8} (7.3) 7% - - —
Group 11323 1003.6 13% 2017 174.8 15%

1
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®
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Chairman’s statement
JM Barry Gibson

With the new requirement this year to report on

the Board's actions to promote the success of the
company for all of our stakeholders, we were given a
timely reminder of the breadth and seriousness of our
corporate responsioility.

Throughout my long career, it has never been more
important for companies to play their part in wider society.
I'would like to start my report by thanking the whole team
at HomeServe, Checkatrade, Habitissimo, eLocal and our
associated companies for everything they have done to
safeguard key stakeholders during the coronavirus cnsis,
including our people, customers, trades (tradespeople) and
partner networks. The Board's rnost significant decision at
the onset of the pandemic was to support our executive
colleagues’ recommendation not to furlough or make
any redundancies as a result of the current lockdown. This
was great for staff morale, and will help us come out of
lockdown ready to serve our customers better than ever.

FY20 was another record year for HomeServe, where
continued strong performance n our Membership business
gave us scope toinvest in Hame Experts, HVAC (Heating,
Ventilation and Alr Conditioning) and New Markets, The
Board advocated a disciplined approach to investing for
growth, guided by our overarching purpose of making
hore repairs and improverments easy

Here are some of the areas of strategy where the Board's
involvernent was most significant:

« Every fifteen years or so, each home néeds a new boller
or air-conditioning unit. This makes HVAC installations an
attractive additon to our Membership business, because
it means we can replace HVAC units for our customers as
well as service them. The Board scrutinised our buy-and-
buitd HVAC strategy to sausfy ourselves that it will deliver
long-term value.

« There is clear potential to take HomeServe's successful
business maodel into new countries. We challenged our
nternational developrment team to create profitable

entry strategies for new territories as
well as farging strong new
parinerships, ke our relabonship with
Mitsubishi Corporation in Japan.

+ We took a careful look at our expansion plans for Home
Experts, for example to make sure we understood
the value of owning 100% of Habttissimo. Even more
significantly, with the acquisition of eLocal, we needed
to be confident that it would give us the right platform to
build an onting, on-demand Home Experts business in
North America.

+  We also analysed strategic course corrections such as our
withdrawal from ltaly to ensure that they were consistent
with our strategy.

The diversity of expertise and expenence we have in our
Non-Executive tearm makes these discussions constructive
and valuable for all involved.

Throughout my time at HomeServe, | have championed
the devetloprnent of talent and diversity, and it is great to see
such good progress on the People Committee agenda:

» Cur global senior leadership team 1s now one third
fernale, but we have more work to do specifically with
the Executive Committee and Board. This work is now
accelerating, and we have set a target of one third fermale
representation across our Board, Executive Committee
and their direct reports by March 2021, moving us
lWowards the targets set out in the Hampton Alexender
repart.

= We keep a close eye on overall employee engagement,
and ! would like to congratulate our Membership
businesses in France, North America and the UK for
achieving Great Place to Work status in the past year.

HomeServe is a business staffed by dedicated, Creative,
customer-focused people who constantly demonstrate The
HomeServe Way's key behaviours of courage, persistence
and integrity. Never has the strength of our corporate
culture been clearer than during the coronavirus crisis.
Richard Harpin talks in detail about our response in his Chief
Executive’s review, but | just wanted to formally record how
impressed } have been with the speed and clarity of thinking
which governed our response, the resilience of the whole
business and the compassion our employees have shown to
our customers.

Given our strong performance in FY20 and expectation
of resilience in the year ahead, the Board proposes a final
dividend of 17.8p, 10 take the total dividend for the year to
23.5p, up 10%.

JM Barry Gibson
Chairman
19 May 2020
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Putting our customers first
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José Luis Olmedo
Locksmith

‘ ! went to the home of an ICU doctor
at a hospital in Jaén who was locked
out and had ieft her keys inside. When
she finally got access, after a hard
day’'s work fighting against COVID-18
she was so filled with exciternent that
she almost hugged rme. She walked
me out just as the applause for the
hiealth workers started and said "this
applause is for you toc” [ ended the
day happy to have been able to heip
one of the superheroes without a
cape who works tirelessly to defeat
this virus. ,,
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Chief Executive's review
Richard Harpin

tam writing my review of the year to March 2020

at a moment when the coronavirus pandemic is
dominating our personal lives, our business decisions
and the international agenda. To create a balanced
review, | have started by describing the financial year as
a whole, then addressed our response to coronavirus
and current business performance, and finished with
some thoughts on the future.

The current crisis has reinforced my belief in the importance
of a clear sense of corporate purpose. HomeServe's
purpase - to make home repairs and improvernents

easy for homeowners and trades (tradespeople) — drives
everything we do. Te achieve our ambition of being able to
do every job in every horne, we need to see growth across
both of cur business lines — Membership & HVAC {Heating,
Ventilation and Air Conditioning) and Home Experts - and
in our internatiocnal development activities. We made good
progress on all fronts this year.

FY20

FY20 was another successful year for HomeServe, inwhich
we continued to serve our customers with passion and
commitment, delivered double digit revenue and profit
growth, and invested for the future.

Continued strong growth in Membership & HVAC

Our Membership and HVAC business line delivered revenue
growth of 10%, together with 18% growth in adjiisted
operating profits, North America remains the outstanding
growth driver, and we also saw efficiency gains in the UK,
record new customers N France and a good performance in
Spain, particularly 1n the Claims business.

Membership rermains attractive, predictable and highly
cash generative and has significant further potential. In
North America, we now wark with over 950 utilities (FY19:
€.700) and have access to 64m households (FY15. 60m)
New partner signings continue, and after the year end we
were particularly pleased to sign Alabama Power with 1.3m
households and a large partner in Canada, the Municipality
of Ottawa, with 0.4m households. The customer count
grew to 4.4m{up 9%), and North America deliverad revenue
growth of 25% to 5546 1m and topped $100m of adjusted
operating profit for the first time, reaching $108.6m (FY1S:
$88 1m). The acquisition of ServLine opened an interesting
new channel with rural water agsociations as well as new
product potential, and we entered the Whaole Home

Warranty market with an initial product launch and two small

acquisttions to give us expertise in the real estate channel.

Our Continental European Membership businesses also
performed well France added its most new customers
ever, driven by strong relationships with the top three water
utilities and new partners such as JeChange and Papernest.
In Spain, strong performance in the Claims business drove
revenue up 11%, and we continue to seek new partners in
Membership to replace Endesa, which ended in May 2018

UK Membership also had a good year, delivering efficiency
gains which drove strong profit growth, and is at the
forefront of innovations to revolutionise the way we serve
customers in the future. HomeServe Now connects
customers directly to an avallable, local engineer, and has
the potential to attract new customers to HormeServe and
further reduce our cost to serve.

In HVAC, we made 15 acquisitions acrass North America,
France and Spain for a cash outflow in the year of c.£25m.
Our buy-and-build strategy drove total HVAC revenue up
83% to £80.9m and HVAC instailations are becorming a
significant contributor to our customer value proposition

in all four of cur Membership businesses. With HVAC
acqguisitions adding ¢.0.1m policies through cross-sell and
existing policy books it is also a solid contributor to custormer
growth.

First utility partnership in Japan

Beyond our established businesses in the UK, Nerth
America, France and Spain, we achieved a signficant
milestone in Japan in January 2020, when we signed our
first utility partner, Chugoku Electric. Our first marketing
campaign yielded encouraging results, with take-up rates
approaching those achieved in North America. Strong
relationships between Japanese utilities and our joint
venture partner, Mitsubishi Corporation, have driven rapid
progress, and we look forward to seeing this partnership
develop further in FY21 and beyond.

Productive investment in Home Experts

We estimate that our core Membership business in its
current form appeals to about a third of homeowners — an
older, insurance-minded demographic who want to avoid
the financial shock and disruption of an unexpected home
emergency. Home Experts gives us the opportunity to
broaden our target audience and to make home repairs and
improverments easy for homeowners whaose instinct is to
search for reputable trades online when something needs
repairing of improwng in their homes

Total revenue in Horme Experts grew by 78% 1o £71.8m (FY19
F40.4m) driven principally by a 30% increase at Checkatrade
to £38.5m and four months of revenue following the
acquisition of 79% of eLocal at the end of November 2019.
The agjusted operating loss of £13.9m (FY19: £7.4m) reflects
increased marketing and advertising to both homeowners
and trades as we look to expand both sides of our Home
Experts platform.




At our Invester Day in June 2019, we invited shareholders
and analysts to wisit Checkatrade's new offices in
Pcrtsmouth so that they could see our expansion plans
first hand. During the year, we made excellent progress
strengthening the management tearmn at Checkatrade,

and investing in technology and marketing. We saw good
growth on the demand side of the website, with consumer
visits up 32% to ¢.24m, and made good progress on building
supply, reaching 39,000 trades. Trades are an increasingly
important stakeholder cormmunity for the Group, and we
want to make home repairs and improvements easy for
themn too to help them grow their business,

Our purchase of the remaining 30% of Habrtissimo and

the appointment of Sarah Harmon to lead the business
has brought fresh ambition and ideas to our Home Experts
business planin Spain and Latin America. Habitissimo has
started working with HomeServe Spain to test the potential
to sell a policy after a successful on-dernand repair. We

are also applying sharper focus and have decided to exit
Argenting, Columbia and Peru, our three smallest LATAM
operations.

In Novermnber 2019, we acquired 79% of eLocal, which gave
us a profitable entry into the Home Experts market in North
America. Unique aspects of eLocal's business model, such
as their use of affiliates to generate high volumes of lead
calls and relationships with national accounts to satisfy these
at scale, are already proving informative to our other Home
Experts businesses.

In May 2020 in France, foliowing a successful test of the
Home Experts model in the Lyon area, we entered nto a
new structure to scale the business. The management team
will own 80% with HomeServe taking a 20% stake with an
option for us to INCrease this In the future, once the business
has achieved national scale.

Discipline and focus

We maintain a disciplined approach to capital atlocation and
constantly review our investment priorities. In the course

of this year, we sold our stake in our ltalian associate. |
constantly challenge my management team and myself to
be bold in the pursuit of our highest potential opportunities,
but also in testing, learning and exiting projects if necessary.
As our business expands and opportunities multiply, this
discipline will become more and more iImportant.

Censumers and Insurance partners have been slower than
expected to adopt smart leak detection technology and we
have conseguently impaired our existing LeakBot assets.

We will continue to run trials with insurers and our revised
business plan frees up management resource and reduces
investrment as we preserve the intellectual property and look
to use LeakBot as a cross sell opportunity to accelerate other
initiatives e.g. HomeServe Now.
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COVID-19 response

Responding to the developing coronavirus pandemic
dominated the last three weeks of our financial year. Our
top priority was to do the right thing for our staff, in the
knowledge that they would look after our custorners, Within
two weeks, all of our ¢.6,000 office-based staff, including
contact centre agents, were working successfully from
home, thanks to a monumental effort by operations staff
and recent technology investments. In the field, we put
additional social distancing procedures in place to safequard
our engineers, contracters and customers, and continued
to respond to emergency repair requests in all the countries
where we operate, in line with government guidance. We
took the decision not to furtough or make redundant any
staff as a result of the current ¢risis.

At Checkatrade, we acted fast to support our trades
community — another vitally important stakeholder group.
Trades were proactively offered a 50% membership
discount for April and May if they wanted to continue to
feature in consumer searches. If they wished to maintain
their presence on the platferm but, for now, not appear

in searches, they were offered free-of-charge affiliate
membership. This is also being offered t¢ new trades that
wish to join and start creating an online presence.

I have always known that HomeServe 1s full of dedicated,
talented people. | could not have been more impressed by
their response to the coronavirus crisis, which epromised
The HomeServe Way — our key leadership behaviours

and skills. We adapted guickly and efficiently to new ways
of working, and went beyond the call of duty to help our
customers. The actions by cur UK tearn merit a special
mention, where the team launched a special offer of free
ermergency plumbing and heating repairs for NHS and
social care workers, aiming to do around 10,000 free jobs
for them during the lockdown period. The response has
been phenomenal, with well over 2,000 jobs completed to
date, and we were all delighted to be able to help the front
line healthcare staff who continue to demonstrate such
enormaous bravery and dedication.

T our NH g vy
You're taking care of us,
let us take care of your homes.

!

We'll ;'epau; it for FREE

la)
=
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Chief Executive's review
Continued

Current trading

In Membership, we expect our business model to refmain
resilient. Policy retention — the key top line driver — rermained
in line with historic trends through April and early May (FY20
82%), there nas been no noticeable ncrease in cancellation
attemipts and our internal measures for customer satisfacuon
returned some of their best ever scores in April. Response
rates to marketing carmpaigns held up well through

March and online new customer sign-ups continue. The
Membership cost base is approximately one third variable,
with marketing spend discretionary and affinity partner
commissions linked directly to new sales and renewals. April
to September is In any case a quieter period for marketing.
We have decided to pause most large scale campaigns and
will test regularly on a small scale to assess response rates.
This action will affect new customer additions, but also
reduce costs.

Checkatrade, Habitissimo and el.ocal experienced falling
demand from consumers from mid March in light of
government directives to minimise unnecessary contact. At
Checkatrade, 78% of trades have moved to the 50% discount
offer, while 22% have moved to free affiliate membership.
We have had an encouraging response from new trades
Joiming P as they focus on how they wilt rebuild ther
business post-crisis. Around half of new trades signing up
are chogsing paid rather than free affiliate membership.
Consgurner marketing has been substantially reduced at
Checkatrade, while in Habitissimo and eLocal, there is a
natural offset between reduced traffic on the platforms and
the expense involved in generating leads. The performance
of these businesses is currently much less maternal to the
Group's overall financial performance, accounting for less
than 10% of revenue and are ali still in thelr investment phase.

We are continuing to work on key innovations — notably
HomeServe Now and at Checkatrade -~ in anticipation of
supstantial demand for home repairs and improverments
when the period of lockdown ends. Some of the new ways
of working we have learnt during the crisis — telefixes over
the phone and video quotes at Checkatrade - will continue
to play a valuable role when the crisis is over.

Mergers and acguisitions activity is largely on hold for the
time being, but HomeServe 1s ready to act quickly as quality
future opportunities arise.

To complete the Viability staterment {page 47}, the Directors
assessed the viabity of the Group over a three year penod
1o 31 March 2023. We have modelled additional stress test
scenarios iinked to the COVID-19 pandemic. Stress tests
indicated that na single scenario would impact the viability
of the Group over the next three years and HomeServe's
swift response to the crisis means it is well placed to face the
ongaoing challenges the crisis presents. Trading metrics have
remained stable since the onset of the pandemic; the Group

has demonstrated its ability to continue to provide a good
level of service and its funding positicn remains healthy.

As might be expected the impact increases If different risks
were to materialise simultaneously or continue for longer.
However, given the nature and retative diversification of the
business in terms of both geography and the Group's global
business lines, it is considered untikely that such scenarios

in sufficient number would occur. (it such scenarios
HomeServe would be able to take decisions to protect the
profitability of its business.

Outlook

The situation with COVID-15 is unprecedented and
continually evolving, and it has never been more difficult to
predict the year anead. In light of this we are taking action
ta preserve profitability and reduce discretionary spend and
capital expenditure, while at the same time preparing to
meet pent-up demand for home repairs and improverments
as our customers come out of lockdown.

Our current working assumpton is that the world will
gradually come out of lockdown over the summer months
of 2020. In this scenano, we will continue to work towards
our stated medium to long-term targets for growtt in North
American Membership & HVAC, and Checkatrade, with
breakeven at Checkatrade likely to be delayed from FY22
until FY23, Adjusted operating profit at el ncalin FY21is now
expected to be In excess of $10m.

Given the resibence of our business model, we expect {0
deliver a solid performance in FY21, with our prospects for
growth thereafter unchanged.

Dividend

Given our strong performance in FY20 and expectation
of resilience in the year ahead, the Board proposes a final
dividend of 17.8p, to take the total dividend for the year ©
23.6p, up 10% and in tine with earnings growth.

Conclusion

| expect the coronavirus pandemic to permanently change
the way we think about our homes. Many of us have learnt
that we can work successfully from home, and may be
considering how to work from home maore In the future.
Cur appreciation of a safe, agreeable home environment
has never been greater. Which means that HorneServe's
purpose of making home repairs and improvements easy
has never been more relevant

I would like to finish by expressing my heartfelt thanks to my
colleagues for all they have done to support our business
and our customers this year. | look forward with confidence
to many more successful years ahead

Richard Harpin
Founder and Chief Executive
19 May 2020




Putting our customers first
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Contractors engaged in HomeServe Cares
work to bring relief to our most vulnerable
customers.

Ms Johnson, a resident of Mount Vernon, NY, was
referred to HomeServe Cares by one of HomeServe's
network contractors, O'Grady Plumbing. O'Grady went
to Ms Johnson's home on behalf of the city to investigate
a water service line leak. Ms Johnson had lived in the
home less than a year and is the sole provider for a family
of six. She was anxious about the situation because she
feared the city would turn off her water unless the leak
was repaired gquickly, and also that she would be unable
to afford the repairs given her situation. Josephine
O'Grady, the co-owner of O'Grady Plumbing, suggested
that Ms Johnson apply for help with HomeServe Cares.

BIUBLLIBADY)

This is when Sara Parris, a HomeServe Customer
Advocate, tock over. After gathering all the facts and
job costs, Sara called Ms Johnson with good news. Ms
Johnson was overcome with joy that HomeServe was
willing to help with this desperately needed repair at no
cost to her and texted:

‘ {want to thank you a million times for your
kindness and support. We really appreciate your
love and effort ,,

SIUBLIBIENS [BIDUBUIY
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Market overview
Our target market: homeowners

Based on our experience worldwide, we segment hormeowners into three groups.

= Wantto avoid the disruption of
dealing with a problem in their
home.

* Like to budget carefully and
avoid unexpected repair bills

* Tendto be an older
dermographic; often on fixed
Nncomes.

What's changing?

There may be a demographic
shiftin this segment with younger
homeowners accustomed to
subscriptions in other areas of their
ives e g Spotify, Netflix,

HomeServe offer

« Have the knowledge, skills
and motivatien to
carry out repair work
themselves

= These homeowners may
call on a third party for
jobs requiring specialist
skills, equipment or
qualfications e.q. in the
UK, needing a qualified
(as Safe Registered
engineer for a boler
nstaliation,

What's changing?

In most countnes, there are
fewer confident DiYers and
younger homeowners are

+  Find a trade when needed - by word of mouth, paper
directories and increasingly enline.

« Finding a high quality trade, without hassle, 1s often just as
important as financial considerations

 Typically appeals 1o a younger demographic whose
instincts are to search online

What's changing?

Thrs segrnent is increasingly moving cnling, intially to “onbine
word of mouth” like community Facebook groups, but
eventually to platforms which match consumers and trades

HomeServe offer

Home Experts

Cheekatrade.m habitissimo ﬂELocaI.mm

@ Membership less tikely to live closer o the A segment ready to move online
support network provided by There 15 big growth potential when we ook to where
their parents consumersin other industries spend therr time and money
HVAC today comparad to what we see in home services
HomeServe offer .
% online
O v
100
80
E Home Experts
60
40
20
. TN
H 1
Market size

Home
repairs and

Improvements
E4500n

Home
assistance
£14bn

E Home Experts

This is a much broader market, covering trades from plumbing to kitchen
fitting, carpet cleaning to garden design. It is an expanding market, as more:
and more trades categories are invented to serve the needs of modern-day
homeowners. Professional flat pack furniture assermblers and home WiFi
gurus did not exist ten years ago! We expect it eventually to follow property,
car purchases and travel, all of which are now over 60% online.

Membership and HVAC

This is a stable market In the gecgraphies where we are currently

establshed, and essentially covers plumbing, heating and electrics. The key
to market growth is to expand into new territories with high quality housing
stock, an established utility landscape and an insurance-minded population.

Membership 1s HomeServe's traditional business, which we have been
operating since 1993, We are now adding to cur HVAC installation
capabilities in the UK, North America, France and Spain, 1o be able o
replace equipment for customers as well as repair and service it.

T Market size estimates incorporate the UK, US, France and Spain and are based on national statistics where available, supplemented by HormeServe estimates
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Home assistance market penetration

There is a marked difference in penetration between cur most mature market, the UK, and our highest growth market in
North America. Our experience shows that with most affinity partners, maximum uptake amongst their customer base is
around 30% worldwide. This defines our addressable market.

3y

~

i

UK: 27m households North America: 144m households

Unserviced

HomeServe Unserviced

Addressable Whole Home

Addressable

Warranty
market market
Other Acquirable utility
43m policy books
homes
British Gas American Water
The UK market is nearing maturity. The UK is the only North America remains a significantly under-penetrated
market where HomeServe has a bigger competiter, but the market. The key to growth is to sign more affinity partners to
competitive dynamic is stable. There may be opportunities reach the over 50% of homeowners who have yetto see a
over time tc buy small policy baoks or work with challenger HomeServe offer from their utility. There are various whole I}
energy companies as they disrupt the status quo. home warranty providers including Frontdoor. HomeServe is %
building a total home warranty offer. 3
=1
0
(D See more on page 33. (D See more on page 35. ®
HomeServe competitive positioning
: HomeServe .
1 e m—— - -
1 : ] 1
) 1 ] 1
)
_ ! » : : !
Insurance minded : ¥ Se . : American Water frentdoor : British Gas :
Home Aguataroe ' ' 1 1
' (] ] ]
) L] ] )
) [ ] 1 )
1 [] 1 [}
[] 1 1 [
1 ] 1 1
1 1
DlYers : Electrogaz : enercare ARS Rescue Rooter : Local Heroes :
- 1
On-derrar 1 : 1 ]
1 1
E : Cropp Metcalfe : 1 1 -
. . [ a ]
1 1 &
'Cheekatrade.com ' 2
o
] 1 2
Home im provers : ha bItISS | mo : Angl Home Services My Bullder.com Travaux com %
Find me arade ' qemalm ' 3
! 3
1 1 @

HomeServe is in a unique competitive position. There is very little competition in Home Assistance, and the directory-led
model being picneered at Cheackatrade is unigue. HomeServe is the company best placed to serve all three homeowner
segments, and there is significant potertial to create economies of scale and synergies.

Qur key sources of advantage are set out in our business model [page 12). For example, in Home Assistance, HomeServe is
the only company which forms partnerships with utility companies, giving us a unique opportunity to grow market share.
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Business model

Whatwe do

How wedo it

Al HomeServe, our key stakeholders are employees, nomeowners, trades, affinity partners, underwriters and requlators, as
well 3s our shareholders. We have five key sources of value for them which are distinct to us and crucial to the success of our
business. These sources of value are relevant acrass both of our business lines - Membership, HVAC and Home Experts —

HomeServe's purpose is to make home repairs and improverments easy,

and our vision is to be the world’s maost trusted provider of home repairs and
improvements. We achieve this principally in two ways. To insurance-minded
homeowners, we sell policies to cover 3 range of home emergencies via
subscription-based Membership services. For people who prefer to deal

with issues as they arise 'Home improvers’), or DIYers who need specialist
help, we have online, cn-demand Home Experts platforms that match
homeowners with local trades. Gur Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioring
(HVAC}installations business appeals to all types of homeowner.

in Membership, our established route to market is via partnerships with utibty
companies, for whom we are an important source of added value. Our
data-nch marketing approach and careful product design help us to grow
our customer base, Qur customers stay with us because of the excellence of
our customer service and the dedication of our people. Qur local networks
of employed and subcontracted trades ensure consistently high service
standards whenever we visit @ customer’'s home.

In Home Experts, trades (tradespeople) are our customers, and our job is to
match them with consumers in their local area, who need their services.
This prowides our trades with an income stream and we also provide systems
and processes to help them run their businesses more efficiently.

Together, our Membership, HVAC installations and Home Experts business
will enable us to fulfil our aspiration of being able to do every job, inevery
home.

meaning that we can share learnings and resources to compound our growth prospects.

(0 See page 18 for our Key stakeholder map. (D See page 10 for Market overview.
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Five sources of value

@ Partnerships

We have a strong track record of developing productive partnerships with firms whose skills and
assets complement ours. In our Membership & HVAC business, our most established route to

market 1s through long-term, exclusive partnerships with utitities, heating manufacturers, insurance
companies and specialist service providers We have a substantial network of ¢ 1,000 utility partners,
and considerable expertise in managing these partnerships for mutual benefit Our utility parthers
earn commission on every policy we secure through them and benefit from our long-term approach
to delivermg value HomeServe acts as an Insurance intermediary, and does not take any material
insurance risk Our Membership products are underwritten by independent third party underwriters,
In Home Experts, we work in partnership with trades — sole traders, small and large firms — as well as
specialists such as web develcpers

Principal risks;

= Partner loss

+ Underwriting capacity
& concentration

« Information security
& cyber resilience

» Regulation

« Competition

o Marketing

Cur three key areas of expertise resonate across both our Membership & HVAC and Home Experts
busmnesses

¢ Innovative product design, where our experuise 1s focused on adapting to the needs of individual
markets to provide products that customers value and use; respanding efficiently t© market or
regulatory change; and creating, developing, testing, launching and assessing the performance of
our products in a streamlined fashion

¢ Data-nch marketing, optimised across a range of channels including direct mail, contact centres
and online, with sophisticated monitoring of campaign paybacks

= Anincreasingly powerful HomeServe brand, which s starting to resonate with consumers as well
as partner businesses, as well as leading Home Experts and HVAC brands, such as Checkatrade and
Cropp Metcalfe

Principal risks:

+ Digital transformation

« Technology
investment

» Regulation

@ Customer service

Putting the customer at the heart of everything we do 1s the most important of our corporate values.
Thus shires through in the way that our local contact centres operate to handle customer claims and
enquiries, and also in the way cur engineers behave in customers’ homes We engage the best people
right across cur business and provide them with the tools and technology they need to do & great))ob.
We have internal measures for customer satisfaction in each of our businesses and we are proud of the
external awards we win across the world.

Principal risks:

+ People
+ Digital transformation

+ Technology
investment

o Local networks

We rely on our local networks to deliver consistently high service in our customers” homes and we have
many years of expenence and expertise in managing these networks We devote considerable time

to recruiting and maintaining our networks and providing the infrastructure and technology required

for them to operate efficiently. In our Membership business we optimise our mix of directly employed
engineers and sub-contractors and in our Home Experts business we are focused on delivering rapid
growth in the number of trades we work with to deliver on-demand repairs and improvements

Principal risks:

+ People

» Technology
investment

+« Competition

@ Financial resources and expertise

Our business is predictable, sustainable and cash generative. Our revenue streams are largely
subscription based and we invest in our people, cur network, our brand, our partnershups and cur
technology systems and processes to generate growth We have opportunities to grow organically
and through acquisition in all of our markets and have a strong track record of successful acquisition
and integration We have stringent investment criteria which we apply to organic and acquisition
opportunities

Principal risks:

» Financial risks

+ People

Cur principal risks, and in particular our Group enterprise risks, each impact elements of our business model, and thereby
on our growth and future profitability. The impact of some but not all risks could lead to upside potential as well as
downside threat. For example, market disruption in the digital world may also accelerate customer take-up; or in respect of

partnerships, we may conceivably sign more partners than we expect in North America.

(D See page 26 for our Principal risk and uncertainties (D See page 18 for Resources, relationships and responsibilities.
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Strategy

HomeServe's vision is to be the world's most trusted
provider of home repairs and improvements. We will
achieve this by developing the capabilites and services to
be able to do every job, in every home. This is the core of
our Group strategy. To achieve this vision, we need to grow
both of our global business lines to be able to serve every
customer segment, and to expand into new geographies

businesses is our unerring focus on custormer service.

We are disciplined in the way we deploy capital, and
currently see the highest return potential from investing in
Membership in North America and in Home Experts. We
are also disciplined about where we will not mvest and
since last year, we have decided to seek a strategic partner
for our principat Smart Home initiative, LeakBot

There are material similarities in our business maodel in
both of our global business lines, namely our expertise

in forming partnerships, marketing and managing local
networks of trades (tradespeople), and at the heart of both

Below, we describe the key initiatives for each business line
and show how they make use of the key sources of value
set outin our business model.

@ See page 10 Market overview. (D) Page 12 Business model. Page 18 for Resources, relationships and responsibilities.
S

Overview
Our Membership bustess appeals to Insurance-minded homeowners, and currently delivers all of our profits. We have establshed
Membership businesses in the UK, France and Spain and a high growth business in North America

Sustain and grow our Membership businesses

We drive growth in our Membership businesses by

* developing new partnerships to give us access to more homeowners,

*  marketing effectively to turn homeowners INto customers;

¢ adding value to our products to increase net income per customer; and

= providing excellent custormer service to encourage our customers to stay with us

We have significant opportunities to deploy new technology. systems and processes to provide state of the art customer service and
increase the efficiency of our operations

Developing the capability to Instatl and replace heating, ventilation and air condrrening (HVAC) units completes the circle of service we
already provide for our Membership customers [t also gives Us new opportunities 1o sell Membership policies Our strategy is 1o acquire and
integrate high quality local businesses, waork with thewr rmanagerment teams and apply our marketing expertise to help them grow

Our tiggest growth opportunity iIn Membership and HVAC 1s in North America.
Targets for North American Membership

FY20 Medium to long-term target
Customers (KPI) 4 4m 6m - 7m
Income per customer 5102 5120 - 5125 o
Margin (policies) 20% 24% - 26%
HVAC profit Not currently disclosed ) $30m - $45m
Adjusted operating profit $109m §230m -

FY20 progress

In North America, we continued to sign new utility partners at the rate of atmost three a week, and saw our customer base rise to 4.4m
{(FY19 4.0m). We launched a new product to serve the whoie home warranty market and acquired Servline, which brings a new product
and a new distribution channel

In the UK, we focused on the customers who value our services moest, and on efficiency gains and nnovations such as Momebserve Now

In France, we continued to grow our partnerships with the three largest water companies, and created partnerships with challenger energy
brands.

In Spain, we signed new partnershups in our Claims and Membership businesses, as we continue to ook for new partnershups following the
end of our Endesa partnership in May 2018.

In HVAC, we continued our buy-and-build strategy with 15 acquisitions three in North America, five in France and seven in Spain We track a
range of metrics to assess the performance of our HVAC businesses, including the nurmber of completed installations As this business line
matures and the number of HVAC acquisitions increase we will report installations as a KPl in each of our segments. Total installatrons across
the Group in FY20 were 27k {FY19 18k)

At some stage almost every home will need an HVAC unit replaced, so HVAC installation s 3 core capability for our business

KPis @ Affinity partner homeowners €@ Custorners @@ Policies @) Retention rate @) Income per customer

Principal risks € Competition @ Partnerloss ) HVAC Integration € Information security
& cyber resilience
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B Build an online, on-demand
v~ Home Experts platform

@ Expand into new
A\/a, geographies

QOverview
Home Experts enables HomeServe to serve the Home Improvers customer segment homeowners
who go online to find a locat trade to help them with home repairs and improvements

We have three online platforms, Checkatrade, the UK's leading online directory of checked and
vetted trades; Habitissimo, the market leader in Spain; and elLocal, where we acquired a 79% stake in
November 2019

Each platform s currently pursuing its own growth path, and we are learning from each opportunity.
Over time, we expect to move towards a single winning model - Directory Extra Homeowners will
be able to choose from a directory of checked and vetted trades for substantial home improvement
projects such as fitting a new kitchen — essentially using the current Checkatrade model The lead
generation model currently used at Habtissimo and eLocal 1§ better suited for smaller, time cnitical
Jobs (such as replacing a dishwasher), so will also feature in Directory Extra.

We have a multi-year investment project under way to build out our network of trades and generate
consumer demand through effective marketing, 1o help trades grow and manage their businesses.
The most advanced investrment plan is at Checkatrade

Targets for Checkatrade FY20 Medium to long-term target
Trades (KPI) 35,000 150,000 - 200,000
Average revenue per trade/customer £1,023 £1,200-£1,300
Margin - 25% - 35%

Adjusted operating profit — E£45m - ESOm

There s petential to expand cur
business into well developed new
territories with a stable economy
and good quality housing stock,
provided that we can find a
committed utility partner We have
identified 15 countries where we
see expansion potential,

In February 2019 we formed

a joint venture with Mitsubish)
Corporation in Japan, who wilt
help us develop appropnate utiity
partnerships for the Japanese
market.

FY20 progress
At Checkatrade, we invested i people, marketing and technology. Trades {tradespeople) on the
platform reached 39,000, up 9% and consumer web visits rose to 24m {(FY19 18m).

At Habitissimo, we strengthened our managernent tearm in preparation for launching a more
ambitious growth plan.

In November 2019 we acquired 79% of elLocal, which gave us a profitable entry into Home Experts
N North America.

In France, following the successful test of a commercial model, we entered Into a new associate
relationship with the local management team to scale the business

In January 2020 we signed our first

utilty partnership inJapan, with
Chugoku Electric, giving us access
to 2.9m homeowners.

KPis @ Traces @ web visits

Principal risks @ Competition @ Informationsecurity @ Technology ® People
& cyber resilience investment

Over time as new markets are
develcped we will introduce
relevant KPls i.e. Affinity partner
homeowners, customers, etc
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KPls

At HomeServe we measure progress against the key strategic initiatives of our global business lines by tracking

eight key performance indicators.

Directors' remuneration is structured to support the Group's strategy and its financial and operational performance. As such,
certain of the KPIs below form part of the performance measures to which Executive Directors’ remuneration is linked. This is
discussed rnore fully in the Directors’ remuneration policy on page 85.

o Affinity Partner

Households 111m 6%

Definition

Tracks the growth in Membership's addressable market,
delivered through existing and new partnerships with utilities
and munigipats

Strategy

%

GE'; Sustain and grow our Membership businesses

Performance
Good growth dnven by signing over 2 new partners a week In
North America.

Households

e Customers 8.3m 1%

Definition

Tracks our success in converting our addressable market into
revenue-generating customers by delivering great products and
services

Strategy

=

Performance

Continued strong growth in North Amenca with customers up
from 4 Om to 4.4m, qiving further confidence in the medium to
long-term target of 6-7m customers in this territory Offset by
Spain where the Endesa book is in run-off and a reductionin
the UK.

Sustain and grow our Membership businesses

Customers
3

@
3

7.8m

70m

15.9mM < 0%

© rolicies

Definition
Nlustrates our ability to grow our product line through customer
focus and innovation and o market those policies to customers

Strategy

=

Performance

Existing customers are continuing to choose more products
and benefit from increased cover, 12% increase In North
America, partially offset by spain where the Endesa book 15 in
run off, a reduchon in the UK and the sale of ltalian JV.

Sustain and grow our Membership businesses

Policies

82% < 0%

o Retention rate

Definition

The percentage of policies which are renewed after 12 months
for a further term. This reflects our ability to deliver fit-for-
pUrpose products and great serace to our customers

Strategy

g_‘\;}; Sustain and grow our Membership businesses

Performance
Retention rate stable year on year with France continuing to be
the highest performer at 89%

Retention rate

2017 2019
2016 2018

82%
2020

' Reduction reflects sale of share in Ralian JV with © 2m custorners 1IN August 201%
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Definitions for each KPI are given below, in addition to the strategic intiative to which they correspond.

The KPIs, and factors driving movements on the prior year, are discussed 1n more detail at the country level in the Operating

review.

HomeServe's use of adjusted figures and a reconciliation back to the statutory equivalents is included in the the Glossary,

beginning on page 193

Measures cur ability to design and market increasingly valuable
products, and sell them efficiently. Due to currency difference,
we track this measure at a geographic level.

Strategy

*

53._; Sustain and grow our Membership businesses

Performance

A record number of new customer wins saw INcome per
customer dip slightly in France, with all other businesses
growing this measure

Income per Customer
North

UK France

Income per
Customgr e Trades 66k ~3%
Definition Definition

The number of paying customers in our Home Experts
business, being tradespeople Tracks our progress in building
the supply of a large online community of trades. For
Checkatrade i particular this KPRl measures progress to our
stated long-term goal of 150-200k trades

Strategy

Build an online, on-demand
==

Home Experts platform

Performance
Total trades at Checkatrade grew 9% tc 39k, whilst trades at
Habitissimao fell by 4k to 24k.

m -
. 3
E a
. . g
o
= o
=)
=

@ e visits 110.9m ~10%

Adjusted Profit
Ocdioretax - £181.0m ~12%

Definition

Total web visits to our Home Experts platforms Checkatrade &
Habitissimo. Tracks our success N driving CoNsumer awareness
of our online community of trades. This currently excludes
elocal, which was acquired part way through the yearin
November 2012

Strategy

B Buitd an online, on-demand
1

Home Experts platform
Performance
We continue to drive higher consumer awareness of the

availability of locat trades through our Home Experts
businesses.

Web visits
110.9m

101.1m
97.4m

71.4m

Definition

Our key profit measure by which we monitor business growth,
efficiency and sustainability.

Strategy

g%; Sustain and grow our Membership businesses

Buitd an oenline, on-demand

r— Home Experts platform

Expa“d into new geographies

Performance
Double digit profit growth, driven by strong performance in
North Amenca and the UK

Adjusted PBT

£161.7m

£141.7m
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Resources, relationships and responsibilities

A home is the most significant investment many of we need to stimulate greater interest and resolved to apply
us will ever make, and everyone feels passionately resources accordingly.

about where they live. We are trusted to enter HomeServe ermploys a vanety of channels to engage with its
people’s homes, and play an important role in home stakeholders. Dedicated account managers and scheduled
maintenance and improvement. To do this well, we meetings are in place for the rmajority of our affinity partners
have to be skilled in the managernent of our resources,  consulting on such iterns as marketing campaign volumes
relationships and responsipilities. and performance and customer satisfaction. Customers
Resources thoughtful and disciplined management of can choose from a number of digital, print and telephony
people, systerns and finances, with our most valuable channels and we encourage and respond o feedback teft
rescource being our people. con social media or review sites such as TrustPilot in the UK.

We regularly meet face to face with all underwriters not
only to discuss financial performance but also topics such
as customer value and contract renewals (such as occurred
in FY20 with Aviva). Our ‘Members Board' is just oneg of the
ways we invite the views of our trades at Checkatrade, with
representatives from our trades base attending face to face
discussions with the management team to discuss new

Relationships strong bonds with utilities, underwriters,
suppliers, trades (tradespeople), the financial markets and
critically, our customers.

Responsibilities to all of our stakeholders, upheld through
robust policies and governance, our commitments to the
communities in which we operate and to protecting our

environmen initiatives such as website and search function changes and
This year, HomeServe's Board reviewed Its stakeholder the roll out of 'managed contacts' (Checkatrade-owned
relationships, considered which stakeholders will become telephone numkbers used to provide insight into call volumes),

more influentiat as our business grows, thought about where

The table summatises our current stakeholder engagement, and how we see this changing over time.

Homeowners

Homeowners are the key consumers of our services, and making home repairs and improvements easy for them
is at the core of our business. It is essential that we remain abreast of their changing needs and requirements
through market research and custormer feedback. We want homeowners' interest in HomeServe to increase, and
are working to build brand awareness to achieve this goal

=

Trades {tradespeople) including directly employed engineers and contractors

We want to make home repairs and Improvements easy for rades as well as homeowners. For our business to
grow, the network of trades we work with must expand — be they directly employed engineers, the sub-contractor
rnetwork that powers cur Membership business, or the trades who find work via Checkatrade, Habitissimo and
elocal. We are working te deliver value to our trades, wherever they sit in our netwaork, and expect their influence
Gn our business to iNcrease as we grow.

y7,
7

Affinity partners and the communities they serve

Affinity partnerships with utilities provide our most important marketing channels in Membership. We continue
o expand our range of partnerships, but recognise the importance of maintaining our existing relationships,
understanding the pressures and opportunities in the utilities sector and delivering excellent customer service to
justify our partners’ faith in us. We work with our pariners (© add value (o the communities they serve.

Do
DBO>DO

Underwriters and other key suppliers

The firms who underwrite the short-term cost of our Membership repair network are key suppliers, protecting our
business fram short-term claims volatilty and enable us to always do the right thing for our customers. We will
continue © manage these and other key supplier relationships carefully and review them regularly.

Qur people, their representatives and the communities in which they live

We have a diverse international work force — technicians, contact centre teams, marketers, salespeople,
accountants, lawyers and HR specialists to name but a few. We are investing mcere than ever in developing our
pecple, focusing on key policy areas like diversity and ensuring that our people's voices are heard as we deliver our
plans for growth. We encourage our pecple to engage in the communities where they live and work, and support
them when they do so

Financial community

We mantain a regular diategue with current and prospective shareholders and the wider investment community
to make sure they have sufficient information and contact to drive investment decisions. We invest time in our
banking relationships and with our financial markets advisors

Regulators, government, opinion formers and influencers
We maintain active relationships with our regulators and will build our relationships with govermment, opinion
formers and influencers as our business grows.

2 @ B2l Y
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Resources

Tnroughout the Strategic report, we highlight the

key resources required to drive our business model,
such as our investments in innovation and 1T and our
knowledge-based marketing operation. Herg, we focus
on our most important resource - cur people.

Our people

HomeServe employs ¢.7000 people globally, with about
45% of these being based in the UK, 25% in the US and 30%
in Continental Europe. Over 6,200 people are employed in
our Membership and HVAC businesses and around 800 in
our Home Experts businesses - Checkatrade, Habitissimo
and elLocal We directly employ ¢.1,000 engineers.

We are passionate about the opportunities ahead of us for
HomeServe, and we are fulfiling our people strategy by
creating a high-performance culture in which a talented,
engaged, diverse and inclusive workforce can thrive This
year our Group-wide people prionties were:

= Fnabling a high-performance culture and environment
by enhancing our global leadership capability, and the
performance & reward plans which enable them to
deliver.

» Continuing to build bench strength at all levels in
the organisation, from extending cur successful
apprenticeship programmes to hirnng and developing
new skitls and capabilities on our frontline.

« Building an inclusive culture, by valuing diversity at every
stage of the employee lifecycle, and establishing &
clear tone from the top’ with regard to our maore senior
executive populations.

+ Continuing to evolve our employee engagement
strategy, as it provides vital insights into how we can make
HomeServe an even better place to work.

Performance and reward

This year we undertook a review of the way we define

and then reward performance, starting with our Senior
Leadership Team. Key to this was ensuring that we are
building the high performance culture that will enable us
to achieve our growth ambitions. We have evolved both
our annual and long-term performance plans to achieve
much clearer alignment between our KPIs and our reward
strateqy by defining a more precise and focused leadership
performance model,

We have also reviewed our performance management
process and The HomeServe Way (the essential behaviours
and skills that outline leadership effectiveness at HomeServe}
to ensure they align fully with our high performance
principtes, as well as ensuring an equal focus on ‘what' is
delivered and "how' these outcomes are achieved - through
the right behaviours and collaboration across the Group.

Moving forward we want to take a more agile approach to
performance management, with leaders, managers and
tearns assessing their performance on an ongoing basis.

HomeServe plc Annual Report & Accounts 2020

Our people make the difference for our customers, so a
shared bonus scheme reminds us that we are warking
towards a common goal and means we can all share in
cour successes. For those of our people who are not part

of the Management Bonus schernes {or any other tocal
arrangement), the Colteague Bonus schemes provides this.
It is clearly aligned to the same business objectives and is
our way of saying Thank You' to all of our people for their
contribution to our achievernents each year.

Apart from contributions to legally required social security
state schernes, HomeServe offers market aligned and
competitive retirement provisions across the Group.

Additionally, our Global Share Incentive Plan, One Plan, offers
our people the opportunity to invest iIn HomeServe shares.
QOur people can contribute between £10 and £150 per
month (or local currency equivalent} to become owners in
the Company.

Engagement — A Great Place to Work

This year, 86% of our people shared their views in our
Global People Survey (GPS) and, once again, the results
were encouraging. For the past two years, our overall
engagerment remains at 71%. We ran a ‘check in’ Pulse
Survey in December and were very pleased to see a 6%
increase in the number of cur people who believe action
has been taken based on the results of the GPS.

Glabal Engagement Survey
2019 2018

Engagement Score 71% 71%

In addition to participation in the globail engagement survey,
all businesses within the Group have the opportunity to
enter Into the 'Best Workplaces' recognition programme,
operated by our engagement partner — ‘Great Place to
Work' In 2019, cur Membership businesses in North
America, France and the UK were all accredited as a ‘Best
Workplace’ within their marketplace, with the UK and France
going on to be ranked as 2020 Best Workplaces. We expect
additional markets and business units to receive this local
accreditation in the next 12 months. Over time we aspire to
be recognised as a "World's Best’ workplace at HomeServe
Group level.

HomeServe is committed to employee involvement
throughout the business. The Group (s intent on motivating
our people, keeping them informed on matters that concern
them i the context of their employment, and involving
them through local consultative processes. Where there are
recognition and bargaining agreements with trade unions,
the consultation process is established through national

and tocal trade union representatives and through joint
consultation committees.
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Resources, relationships and responsibilities

Resources continued

Talent and development

Qur Group-wide Talent Programmes are designed to
accelerate the development of high potential talent across
the business, reflecting cur ongoing commitment o
develop and promaote talent from within. The programmes
are aligned with principles of The HomeServe Way. Our
strategy aims to intervene at pivotal points in the leadership
careers of our most promising peopte, upskilling them with
the readiness and mindset to do more at the next level of
leadership.

Ata more local level, we put a ¢lear focus on developing
emerging leaders as they transition inte their first role as a
line manager. In HomeServe North America, HomeServe
University has developed the LEAD Pathway, a selection of
courses designed to build essentiat leadership skills. Courses
are curated into programs targeted to Aspiring, Newily Hired
or Promoted First-Time, Frontline, Mid-Level, and Senior-
Level Leaders.

'n the UK, we are continuing to Cross-train our customer
service agents in multiple areas, adding not only to their
knowledge base to serve our customers, but also increasing
their hkelihood of taking on more responsibility in next

level roles.

We continue to review the critical talent imperatives for

the business, including leadership succession planning,

a minimurmn of twice yearly through the HomeServe
Executive Committee and the Board People Committee.

A set of global talent measures are in place so progress

can be measured and reported bi-annually. One of these
rmeasures focuses on using global mobility as a targeted
way of meeting both strategic business and individual talent
development needs.

To ensure we are hiring the best leadership talent across

the Group, this year we transformed cur talent acquisition
proposition to ensure we consistently attract and select the
right peogle to drive our growth aspirations. A new four stage

The Q
HomeServe Way

I lead with Courage:

| believe in our strategy, keep things simple and strive
for great results and continuous improvement, | am
decisive, speak my mind and confront challenges;
Ivalue innovation, “falling fast” and learning from
experiences

I'lead with Persistence:

i work hard, do my best, take responsibility and am
accountable for delivering results; | am optimistic,
have a ‘can do attitude’, choose action and make
things happen; | am resilient when faced with
setbacks, collaborate, and find solutions

I'lead with Integrity:

I 'am honest, act wath integrity and seek the truth, |
value open comrmuricainon and debate ard listen
respectfully to challenges and opmnions; | act with
humility and openness and embrace diversity to
build great teams

hiring process has been embedded across the Group for

all sentor leader recruitment. This ensures that we are being
consistent In the way that we assess the capabilities of future
talent and test the petential candidates have to develop intc
bigger roles

Acguiring the skills we need to operate the business both
now and in the future requires a particular focus on building
our supply of tatented and well trained technicians and
other skill sets. In our UK business, 175 people have been
engaged n apprenticeships, covering 23 subject areas. The
Apprenticeship Academy is based cut of our Nottingham
training facilities. Our purpose is to support trades
(tradespecple) - whether we have a relationship with them
or not — to unlock the Apprentice Levy and in doing so,
help create the next generation of tradespeople. Ultimately,

Since 2018, 63 emerging leaders have completed the Edge Talent Acceleration Programme with 37%

promoted to larger roles.

-

Summit

GROUP

LOCAL

Leadership Development for our highest potential Leaders
- Successors to the Executive Committee,

High potential Senior Leaders preparing for expanded
responsibiity and larger roles

Emerging mid-level leaders preparng for more responsibility in

® Senior Leader roles

o Group-wide development for our frontline Supervisors.

Local Leadership Development for all People Managers;
customised ta current priorities at the business or country level.
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our aim is to help consumers find the very best trades
whomever they choose to use.

Diversity and Inclusion

At HomeServe, we take a progressive approach to inclusion
and diversity because we want everyone to be themselves
and bring their own perspectives to our business. We do
not tolerate discrimination in any form and our people are
always considered for employment, development and
promaetion solely on the basis of their ability. Releasing the
talent of every employee is the ultimate aim of our approach
to diversity & inclusion, as itis only by achieving this that we
benefit from the many different and unigue perspectives
that our pecple bring to our business.

In the UK, Fermi Bamisaiye, Chief Information Officer of
HomeServe Membership Ltd., was recognised as a Top

50 ethnic minority leader by Involve, the London based

D&l consultancy. Under Femi's sponsorship, four diversity
networks have been established for BAME, LGBTH, Disability,
and Gender, appointing volunteer senior leaders and
deputies to head these steering groups, and devising & new
inclusion agenda.

In France, the Talent Acguisition team devised a new way

of screening potential contact centre agents who possess
the right skills to provide the best customer service. This was
done through ‘job dating’ sessicns, 10 minute conversations
where hirng managers and recruiters initially screened
candidates based on their interpersonat skills alone, not their
CV. This eliminated any personal or experiential identifiers
that could contribute to unconscious bias. The process
resulted in several second interviews and ultimately 19

new hires.

Itis especially important to us that we have the right level of
dwversity of talent at the senior levels that are responsible for
our strategic thinking and decision making. We are especially
focused on achieving an ongoing annual increase In female
representation across our most senior and executive
populations. As at March 2020, wormen made up 33% of our
senior leadership roles globally, whilst representing 42% of
our global workforce.

Our performance in the 2019 Hampton Alexander report
was as follows:

Benchmark Board ExCo  ExCof Directs
FTSE 250 2019 29.4% 18.6% 279%
HomeServe 2019 22.2% 111% 26.2%
HomeServe 2018 20.0% 0.0% 21.4%

Whilst we made solid pregress in 2019, the rest of the FTSE
250 made more progress, particularly at the Board and
Executive team level. We are pleased that our broader global
senior leadership team has 32% female representation, but
there is clearly more to do at the executive level. We are now
committed to accelerating our focus on this key agenda and
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have agreed to work towards 33% fermale representation on
a combined basis across our Board, Executive Committee
and their direct reports by March 2021, mowving us towards
the targets set out in the Hampton Alexander report.

Male Female Total

Total employees 31 March 2020 4,197 3004 7201
Total employees 31 March 2019 331 2990 6,301
Fy20 58% 42% 100%
FY19 53% 47%  100%
Plc Beoard (Executive &

Non-Executive Directors) 7 2 22%
Executive Committee 9 1 10%
Global Senior Leaders 11 53 32%

Since publishing our first mandatory Gender Pay Gap report
for UK employees in 2017 we have seen a year on year
increase to the mean hourly rate pay gap.

Mean pay gap
Entity 2019 2018 2017
HomeServe Membership 21.1% 19.2% 157%
Help-Link* N/A 356% 35.3%
Checkatrade 39.6% 27% 22.2%
HomeServe ‘UK’ 22.3% 20.8% 20.5%

'Help-Link has <250 employees The business s being integrated nto Membership with
employees transferning across included within HomeServe Membership above)
There are two key drivers of our pay gap - the balance of
women in eur senior leadership roles and the low volume
of fermale water and gas engineers, which 1s in line with the
national average. In HomeServe Membership for example,
a large number of higher paid male engineers occupy the
upper middle and upper quartiles pay bands (upper micdle
quartile for our 2019 report starts at £26k).

We are confident despite the widening of our gender pay
gap that we reward jobs of equal value equitably and fairly.
The measures that we have put in place to ensure that
women have the opportunity to progress their careers and
reach the highest level are having a positive effect. Progress
has been made in the number of women cccupying
sentor roles in the last 12 months which will have a positive
impact next year. Likewise in HomeServe Membership

98 management hires were made in 2019 - 50% of those
recruited were female, This shiftin the number of female
managers has been delivered through balanced shortlists,
provision of mentoring schemes and development
opportunities, as well as a drive to promote internally.
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Resources, relationships and responsibilities

Relationships

Qur business model depends on cur ability to create,
develop and maintain high quality relationships with all
of our stakeholders. With groups such as underwriters,
the financial community (considered in more detail on
page 60), government and requlators, our relationships
are well-established and generally stable. Below, we
discuss the relationships which will evolve most as we
deliver our growth strategy.

Homeowners

In our Membership businesses, our fundamental
relationships are with our customers — hormeowners

In each gecgraphy, we have a set of customer promises
which are embraced at every level, from the front line to
senior management and the Board. Customer satisfaction
features promnently in our management bonus schemes
and we have fostered a culture which places the customer
at the heart of our business. We have a strong reputation
for custormer service and we continue to win avwards for
high levels of customer service in all of our established
Membership businesses.

Affinity Partners

We continue to develop our relationships with our affinity
partniers — mainly utility companies. For these partners,

the main benefits of working with HomeServe are a new
revenue stream from commission payments, but much
more importantly, an opportunity to deliver a valuable
service 1o their own customers. In some cases, a public
service utility prefers not to accept commission from us,
and will ask us instead to sponsor community projects in
therr location, which we gladly do. Key developments with
affinity partners in this financial year included continuing to
sign new utility partnerships in North America; deepening
our relationship with our biggest partner in France, Veolia;
continuing to work with Endesa in Spain on billing and re-
activation marketing, even though the partnership came to
an end in 2018; and signing our first utitity partner, Chugoku
Electric, in Japan.

Affinity partner testimonial - Liann Walborsky, Director
of Corporate Communications at San Jose Water.

(Yo partnership with HomeServe has been highly
beneficial to our customers as well as to San Jose Water. Their
collaborative approach affowed us to quickly and efficiently
launch the partnershup after the contract was executed. This
included devetoping educational materials that reflect our
brand and values, and providing training for our customer
service staff HorneServe continues to be great to work with
and remains highly attentive to our needs. They have a true
commitment o customer service and satisfaction Additionally,
our customers appreciate that San Jose Water is inforrming
them about these protection plans. ,,

Contractors

As our business grows, we are also expanding our sub-
contractor network of engineers to complete repairs for

our customers. A key benefit for our sub-contractors Is that
we provide them with a reliable source of work, as well as
tools to improve the efficiency of their business like job
scheduling technology. We monitor customer satisfaction
for contractors rigorously and, because we are a key supplier
to them, are able to call for more resources when we see a
surge IN jobs.

Contractor testimonial ~ Jonathan Brickley, Quner,

Sunflower Services, El Dorado, Kansas

“ We've been very happy with our relationship with

HomeServe | don't believe 've ever worked with a company

where the management tearm are as quick to respond 1o

a contractor’s request or question, Were a family-based

business and repulation is very wmportant (o us i the

commurily and the surrounding area 5o fo be able to work

with a company that has those same vaiues really atlows

us o partner in 3 way that is very beneficial to customers.

Custormers are not only working with HomeServe, that does

what they say theyre going to do, they are also working with )
3 cortractor that has the sarne principles and will provide a '
goad service P

Trades {tradespeople)}

In our Home Experts businesses, cur key relationships

are with trades, who are our customers, either paying a
subscription {the directory model, used in Checkatradel or
per lead (in Habitissimo and eLocal). We are working hard to
create a trades community, to make sure trades value their
participation and continue to benefit fror being on our
platforms for many years to come.

Trades testimonial - Dave Baker, B&W Plastering,

Bishops Stertford

K& oo peen part of Checkatrade for the last 3 vears

now and we have not looked back t's been enincredible
platfarm for us to not only generate more work but to meet
the fantastic people that make up the local community, and

beyond L1}
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Responsibilities

HomeServe's robust Corporate Governance, which
is covered in detail from page 52, is underpinned by
a comprehensive policy framework which governs

and is fully embedded across all of cur Membership
businesses in the Group.

Membership businesses are requested on an annual basis
to self-certify their compliance with the key governance
policies which form part of that framework. A similar policy
framework is being developed for all other businesses

and will be rolled cut during FYZ21. in the meantime, the
Group's key governance policies have been communicated
widely. In relation to newly acquired businesses, where

due diligence enguiries during the acquisition process

have highlighted any significant gaps against the Group's
standards steps have been taken to address these in a timely
manner.

Compliance with policies is monitored and reviewed over
the course of the year, Example monitoring includes, but
is not imited to, sample testing of self-certification, formal
reviews by the Group Legal team and inclusion in Group
Audit & Assurance plans. All policies were deemed to be
operating effectively in 2020.

All of our policies below can be found on our corporate
website. https://www.homeserveplc.com/about-us/
corporate-governance/policies

Financial Crime and Sanctions policy

HomeServe conducts its business with honesty and integrity
and as a result promotes an organisational culture from

the top down that does not tolerate any act of financial
crime, inclugding fraud or bribery, in any area of our business.
HomeServe is also committed to compliance with the
sanctions laws of every country in which we operate and

of the United Nations. These commitments are reflected in
cur Financial Crime and Sanctions policy, compliance with
which is audited on a regular basis

Human Rights
HomeServe does not currently have a standalone human
rights policy but all businesses are expected to comply with
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our key governance policies which address such matters
as employment rights, equal opportunites, the privacy of
personal data and dignity at work.

Code of Business Conduct

HomeServe operates a comprehensive Code of Business
Conduct which applies across the Group. The Code sets out
the standards of behaviour expected of all employees and
workers, and includes guidance on conflicts of interest, use
of company property, political and charitable contributions
as well as some of the key governance policies described in
the section above.

Whistleblowing

HomeServe is committed to the highest standards of quality,
honesty, openness and accountability, and our employees
have an important part to play in ensuring that we deliver
on this commitrment. Employees are often the first to notice
when someoneg in a company is doing something illegal

or improper but they may feel worried about voicing their
concerns. Our whistleblowing poticy makes it clear that
anybody may raise any concern about itlegal or improper
behaviour without fear of victimisation, discrimination or
disadvantage. We have a confidential online and telephone
service in place, run by an independent third party, which all
employees may contact.

People

Cur people are considered for employment, training, career
development and promotion on the basis of their abilities
and aptitudes, regardless of physical ability, age, gender,
sexual orientation, religion or ethnic ongin.

We actively promote the career development of our people.
Full and fair consideration (having regard for a person’s
particular aptitudes and abilities) is given to applications

for employment and the career development of disabled
persons We take all practicable steps to ensure that if one
of cur people becomes disabled during the time they are
employed, their employment can continue, We continue to
review both performance and potential as a key part of our
annual talent management and development processes
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Resources, relationships and responsibilities

Responsibilities continued

Health & Safety

With ¢.7000 employees globally, the health, safety and
wellbeing of HomeServe's people is central to what we

do and we strive to provide safe working environments
and support for all our pecple whether they are routinely
office-based or completing work in our customers’ homes.
HomeServe targets zero work-related injuries and illnesses.

David Bower, Chief Financial Officer, is the director
responsible for environment, health and safety matters
Local HR directors lead health and safety matters in each
business and are responsible for executing environmental
and health and safety policies, except in the UK where
responsibility rests with the heatth and safety director. Any
new businesses acquired are expected to apply the same
focus to comply with the Group's policies.

During FY20, HomeServe saw a reduction in both accident
frequency rates and lost time injury rates across all of cur
businesses with the exception of North America, where

an increased level of HVAC acquisitions created new
chalienges. The rates reported demonstrate a positive
improvement 1o the comparable period and should be
indicative of the pro-active work that continues across the
Group with improved awareness and an increased accuracy
of incident reporting. Each business continues to monitor
rates and take a practical approach to performance by
identifying actions to improve which are monitored throtigh
annual health and safety improvements plans.

PwC was engaged to conduct health and safety audits and
health and safety remains as an annual item on the (nternal
Aucdit agenda.

In the UK, health and safety culture has improved greatly
over the past two years with an upturn in reparted accident
volumes.

France continued to see low accident rates even with the
integration of newly acquired HVAC businesses Electrogaz
and VBGaz, with the key driver being mandatory training and
employee awareness campaigns.

MNorth America has seen an increase in both accident rates
and lost time injury rates, which is to be expected with the
increased acguisition activity and awareness campaigns to
support with incident reporting. Initiatives such as a triage
hotline have also proven to be a success in managing injury
severity. The implermentation of a new environment, health
and safety enterprise system continues to be a key focus

for the business which will further improve the control,
oversight and management of safety incidents and activities
mote efficiently through FY21.

Spair's accident and lost time ncident rates continue to be
stable. The key health and safety focus for the business this
year has been to increase awareness, to support a robust
reporting process and a positive health and safety cuiture.

The Home Experts businesses Checkatrade and Habitissimo
have both seen a reduction in accident and lost time

rates. Both businesses have made significant progress in
developing and iImplementing health and safety specific
training, prompting healthy habits and engaging with the
business with regards to mental and physical wellbeing.

Carbon ernissions continue to be measured across all Group
companies and there has been no prosecution or other
enforcement action taken in respect of our business by any
of the health, safety or environmental regulators.

Communities

HorneServe's cornmunity activities are organised business
by business, to enable us to focus on causes our pecple are
passionate about and make a positive impact on the local
areas in which we operate. Across our business, the skills of
our people and our trades {tradespeople) networks enable
us to help less privileged members of our communities
with home repairs and improvements. Particularly in North
America, we engage in community activities alongside our
affinity partners

In Spain, 62% of our workforce participated in volunteernng
activities last year. Charities supported included the Spanish
Cancer Association and Down Madrnd foundation, and
around fifty employee volunteers jained with their families
and franchisees i building renovation projects. | hirty

of our people cooked and helped to prepare a charity
Christmas lunch for 1,000 homeless people.

In France, we renewed our partnership with Habitat &
Hurmanisme for the fifth year. Qur engineers carried cut
43 repairs to social housing, and our people raised over
€6,000 from sponsored running and cycling events. The
"BOOST!" programme ran for its second year, and funded
eight ernpioyee-proposed projects for between €500 and
€2 500 As part of our "Best Custormer Service of the Year
20207 contest, during which we organised sport events, we
also made a donation of €4.700 to the "Sport dans la Ville/
Sport in the City” association which helps youth in their
social and professional integration through sport.

In North America, FY20 saw the launch of the HomeServe
Cares Foundation (HSCF), whose mission is "Spreading
Hope and Supporting Communities One Home ata Time”.
The HSCF 1s built on four pillars,

Caring for People

The Caring for Pecople pillar is the banner under
which we support vulnerable people, whether in
the communities we serve or in our company.
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Caring for Community

Through the Caring for Community pillar, the
HSCF awards grants of varying amounts to
municipality and non-profit arganisations. In
FY20, awards were made to eight crganisations.

Caring for Veterans

The Caring for Veterans pillar 1s designed to
help us support transitioning military perscnnel,
veterans and veterans’ organisations throughout
the LS. A core focus for the HSCF is partnering
with our nationwide contractor network to help
them identify, recrutt, train and retain veterans in
the trades.

Caring for Good

The Caring for Good pillar was designed to
engage and inspire our people to be part of our
social responsibility efforts. In FY20, our pecple
participated in six volunteer events coordinated
by the HSCF where they helped demolish, buitd
and refurbish houses for Habitat for Hurmanity,
clean up and revive a small community park, and
prepare meals in a community food pantry.

In UK Membership, we continued to invest in the
communities where our people and their families live and
support the charities our people care about. All staff benefit
from two days volunteer leave, matched fundraising for
team chosen charities, our programme to purchase an extra
day holiday with funds going to team charities and support
of local schools with skills develecpment and mentoring

At Checkatrade, our workforce continues to take charity
leave to support individual causes which are close to them.
Cur employee-elected company charity of the past year
was Dementia Support, and we fundraised for them in a
variety of ways including a spooky sweet treats bake sale at
Halloween and wear a Christmas jumper day. We supported
International Women's Day in March by hosting an inaugural
inclusive event at Checkatrade HQ.

HomeServe plc Annual Report & Accounts 2020

Environment

HomeServe's environmental impact has moved up the
Board agenda this year. The services we provide to our
customers deliver environmental benefits such as reducing
water leakage and replacing boilers with more energy
efficient models. We want to build on these benefits and
ook to reduce the environmental impact of our operating
model.

We started a programme of pragmatic actions across our
global business and witl continue to focus on these activities
next year. These activities are enabled through a global
group of employee green champions and driven through

a programme of ongoing internal communication and
education:

= Improved recycling provision in all office locations

+ Reduction of single use plastic

+ New policies to reduce business travel

+ Move to renewable energy across office sites

» Replace office and outside lighting with LED alternatives

« Encourage paper free meetings and reguce printing and
paper usage

+  Discussions with current and potential suppliers to
establish common environmentat goals.

In the course of the coming year, we will give further
consideration to whether our global business should unite
around a bigger, more impactful environmental goal to
benefit the communities in which we operate.

Meanwhile, this year, our business units have made progress
on individual environmental initiatives, including the
following highlights:

« UK Membership are testing a customer proposition to
install domestic electric vehicle charger points Their
catering facilities have removed all single use plastic
iterns, replaced with compostable Vegware alternatives.

+ Checkatrade employees are able to lease an electric
vehicle through salary sacrifice and are the benchmark
for HomeServe Group in thelr new Portsmouth office
design with paper-free environment as standard,
sustainable catering and recycling provision.

= Spain have achieved ISO 14001 certification in
recognition of their environmental management system

(D For information on our greenhouse gas emissions,
please see Directors’ report on page 107
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Principal risk and uncertainties
Risk framework

HomeServe has a robust risk management framewaork which encompasses the Group's risk policy and cverall
risk appetiie. The framework utilises the three lines of defence model which is recognised as best practice across
the industry. It provides a disciplined and consistent approach across all of HomeServe, ensuring a structured
response at all levels throughout the Group and across all businesses and geographies, to capture, monitor and
mitigate risk.

This structured approach is aimed not only at monitoring and mitigating identified risks but also aims to capture and escalate
emerging risks and opportunities and 1s best illustrated by HomeServe's response to COVID-19, the rapid move ta home

working for all office based staff and initiatives in the field to ensure a safe continuity of service for HomeServe's customers.

Plc Board

Audit & Risk Committee

Executive Committee

Three scheduled risk discussions per annum
e Risk discussion chaired by the CFO

« Composed of Executive Directors and representatives from each Group business
« Discussions are reported on at the Audit & Risk Committee

Linel

Business Unit Operations

All front line and support
functions

¢ Lead day-to-day nsk
management

« Maintain local Risk
Registers

= Own and operate
processes and mitigating
controls

+ Undertake quality
assurance activities and
provide appropriate
training.

Line 2
Risk, Control & Compliance
Functions

Including Financial Control,
Information Security, Risk
Management, Legal and
Compliance

s Oversee & challenge risk
rmanagement

»  Monitor and test risk
systermns & controls in the
st line

¢ Review B challenge
incident management in
the 1st ine & develop Risk
Management framewaork

«  Provide risk M! to
governance comrmittees.

Line 3
Independent

Internal Audit & Assurance
»  Review lst and 2nd lines

» Independent testing &
challenge & oversight of
Lines1&2.
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Changesin FY20

Group Enterprise Risks are considered to represent the most
significant threats to HomeServe's ongoing strategy and
operations. Risk registers continue to be maintained at a
local level in every business and are formally reviewed by the
Audit & Risk Committee at each of its meetings together with
Group Enterprise Risks.

In previous years ail businesses had separately considered the
effects of climate change within the context of other risks.
With increasing interest in this area amongst our staff, as well
as other stakeholder Groups, all businesses commenced

a more coherent approach this year to implement actions
which improve HomeServe's ervironmental impact. With
discussions also occurring at Board and Exec level, the
potential iImpacts of climate change and other environmental
considerations on HormeServe's business model have been
considered more formally and Sustainability is now reported
separately as a Group Enterprise Risk,

Whilst climate change affects all of our business lines,
Membership continues to dominate the rest of our Principal
risks - understandably so, given its current size relative to
other business lines. However as Home Experts continues
to grow and with the acguisition of eLocal, there have been
movements in certain other risks and new emerging risks in
Home Experts may become elevated to Group Enterprise
Risks in the future.

The following table sets out what the Board believes to be
the principal risk and uncertainties facing the Group, the
mitigating actions for each, and where applicable, updates
on any change in the profile of each risk during the past
year. All risks carry equal importance and weighting for the
Board, however additional focus and priority may be given
to specific risks for a period of time In certain circumstances
eg following a matenal acguisition or to implement plans to
reduce any risk which exceeds the appetite threshold.

Some additional, presentational, changes have been made
this year to align risk labels to those reviewed internally by
HomeServe's Committees and Board. Where there has been
an update, the previous name is denoted below the risk label
in the principat risks table.

The principal risk and uncertainties should be read in
conjunction with the Operating review and the Financial
review. Additional risks and uncertainties of which
HomeServe is not currently aware or which are believed not
to be significant may also adversely affect strategy, business
performance or financial condition in the future.

Risk Appetite

In accordance with the Group's Risk Managerment policy,
the Group risk appetite is subject to an annual review of its
definition, content and criteria for assessment scores.

The Board's assessment of risk appetite is guided by our
vision to become the world's most trusted provider of home
repairs and improvements and by our purpose to make
home repairs and improvements easy. HomeServe's values
reflect our commitment to our customers, our people, o
innovation and integrity and being the best at what we do.
HorneServe's risk appetite is comparatively low, recognising;
firstly our status as a plc which requires strong governance
and reputation, together with delivering returns for our
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shareholders and; secondly our regulated status which
requires compliance with tocal laws, rules and guidance.

Risks are assessed at a iocal level on a gross basis using a
matrix approach, 1o score likelinood and impact, and on a
net basis after considenng any mitigations which have been
applied.

Brexit

Brexit has never featured as one of HomeServe's enterprise
risks but it continues to be monitored at a local and a Group
level following the UK's formal exit on 31 January 2020

Brexat retains the potential to be one of the most significant
economic events for the UK and the full range, scale and
timing of potential outcomes and impacts are not yet certain.
However, HomeServe continues to believe the impact on the
underlying performance of the Group will be limited.

HomeServe's businesses trade exclusively within their own
borders and HomeServe I1s not exposed to any cross border
transactional currency risk. The Group remains subject

to translation risk on the presentation of results in Sterling
however this is within the ordinary course of business.

COVID-19

The COVID-19 crisis ts still an evelving situatton which all
businesses are actively tackling in a number of different
respects. For example in ensuring technology 1s available to
support staff working from home, ensuring that engineers
on the front line can complete repairs whilst protecting
themselves and our customers and ensuring that supplier
relationships are maintained safely and appropriately to
deliver the necessary protective equipment and parts and
materials.

As a risk which has crystallised, COVID-19 is categorised
neither as an enterprise level risk Nor as an emerging nsk.
However consideration is being given to a wider emerging
nsk of the potential for other pandemics in the future. The
work undertaken to switch to home working and maintain
emergency repairs is being reviewed as is the impact on sales
volumes, claims volumes, cancellation rates and a number of
other KPls and metrics. The results of this analysis will inform
not only short-term return to work plans but also longer term
risk monitoring approaches and mitigations.

Having demonstrated in the short-term that we were

able to respond quickly and effectively to keep operations
functioning and maintain good levels of service in all
businesses, key to the longer term prospects of the Group
will be the resilience of the model and consumer behaviour.
In previous periods of consumer uncertainty and economic
downturn, for example during the financial crisis in c.2008
to 2009, little negative impact on business performance was
observed and the model remained resilient.

Impacts have so far been more pronounced on the Home
Experts businesses but the portfolio effect of different
business lines, and four main Membership businesses
situated in different countries affords a good degree of
protection for the Group as a whole and the longer term
prospects for Home Experts, including Checkatrade'’s
milestone targets remain unchanged. Underpinning the
resilience of the Membership model is the type of customer
it attracts; policy buyers like to protect themselves from
unforeseen expenses and the difficulty of getting a good
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Principal risk and uncertainties

Continued

tradesman out quickly. The additional reguirernent to find a
provider who can perform repairs whilst adhering to strict
health and hygiene guidance is an extra factor customers
now need to consider,

The Group has & strong balance sheet and retaing a range

of financing facilities with medium to long-term maturities,
which provide access to additional resources across a range
of currencies. With over £330m of headroom agairst 1ts debt
facilities, iquidity is healthy and the Group is well positioned
to face the ongoing challenges of COVID-19.

For further detailed actions and initiatives being taken
as a resuit of COVID-19, please see page 7 of the Chief
Executive's review

Enterprise risks

Moverments In risks shown below are largely ‘business as
usual’ but all risks are now in sharper focus as a result of the
circumstances concerning COVID-19 and wider economic

Overview Mitigations

uncertainty. However some risks have increased as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 e.g. Cyber, as a result of €.6,000
new homewaorkers.

The COVID-19 situation is unprecedented and will likely
have a number of other unforeseen cutcomes on the

risks below potentially both positive and negative e.q.

MEA activity was paused as the Group exercised additional
caution due to the widespread uncertainty but there is
every possibility that more MEA opportunities may now
arise and at more favourable multiples. For exarmple a utility
could revisit its current stance and opt to sell its policy bock
in order to fully focus on its core operations. Additionally
there may be further upside opportunities as HomeServe
advances its current product initiatives e.g. HomeServe
Now and looks to meet the possibility of increased gemand
when sitlations ease across the countries in which
HomeServe operates.

Movement

Update in year & Strategy

© Competition (FY19 Market Disruption)

In all of our business lines a successful new
entrant or an existing competitor acapting
more guickly to changing customer
demands and needs could adversely Impact
Qur business and our financial results with
lower customers, retention rates, revenue
and profitabiity

We demonstrate to utlities
that they can benefit
more by partnering with
HomeServe due to aur
long-term mvestment
horzon

Regular market reviews

in each business identify
rew gntranis and increases
N compettor activity e g
aggressive pricing mitiatives

Competitars with active M&A programmes
couid also show iInterest in HomeServe's
targets. leading to nissed opportunifies or
over-paying.

Aglle product development
responds 1o changing
consurner needs

Shared learning between
our markets, analysing
censumer rends and
developmng leading products
and services

Home Experts businesses
all currently employ
different models, we are
adapting and learring from
each of them and liaising
rnore frequently with our
Membership businesses

to develop the range of
services that customers
want and the best means of
accessing them.

Competitive threats today include, but are
notlimited to,

*  Unliies running Membership

programmes in-house

Adjacent products e g Whole Home
Warranty

Existing competitors mowving inte other
geQagraphies

New entrants ¢ g Amazon or Google
Investing heavily to enter the home
services space with new products or
technolages

Incurnbent competitors to Home Experts
inthe UK e g Rated People, MyBuilder

No material change in existing businesses but acguisition
of eLocal in November 2019 provided an entry for Home
Experts in North America, a market where the current
nurmber one provider, ANGI Home Services is located

s

5=

O

elocal management team retained as part of the deal 1o
provide local market knowledge. elLocal s already shanng
best practice with our other Home Experts teams

1y
I

© Information security & cyber resilience (FY19 Cyber secunty)

HomeServe has a number
of defensive and proactive
mitigrations across the
Group There 1s & detalled
information securnity pobicy.
which is communicated
across the Group and
fraining is provided

as required Regular
penetration testing 1sin
place to assess defences and
HomeServe continues to
nvest in 1T security, ensunng
a secure configuration,
access controls, data centre
security and effective
communication of policies
and procedures to all
employees.

In line with other businesses. HomeServe

15 subject to the increased prevalence and
sophistication of cyber-attacks, which could
result IN unauthorised access to customer
and other data or cause business disruption
to services.

A syccesstul cyber attack might have a
signiicant Impact on reputation, reducing
the trust that customers place n HormeServe
and could lead to tegal hability, regulatory
action and increased costs to rectify. A lapse
ininternai controls and a subsequent data
breach or toss would have a similar impact
Total customer numbers and policy retention
rates may reduce and partners may terminate
affinity relationships if they percewe customer
data 1o be at rigk,

Cyber continues to be a key area of focus for the Group
wilth emphasis on both maintaining and Increasing

the matunty and capabilities of our controls and
countermeasures A single team has been created
bring:ng together those people with a pnmary cyber
security responsibility, who until recently operated with

a degree of Independence within individual Group
businesses. The change witl further enhance consistency
and matunty of sk management and miigation, as

well as irmprove efficiency in the delivery of our strategic
rcadmap. A comprehensive suite of Pohoes and
Starndards remans in force. Cyber audits were completed
a5 part of the annual assurance plan in FY20, vath more
visits scheduled for FY21

A/
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Increased risk

e No change
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N Reduced rsk

Strategy % Sustan and grow our [% ] Buldanonlne cn-dermand ) Expandinte new
Mernbership businesses T Home Experts plat‘orm geographues
Risks o Strateqic; risks e Operatonal nisks o Financial rsks
Movement
Overview Mitigations Update in year & Strategy
© MeA Strategy

HormeServe has an active MBA strategy focussed
ontwo pnmary areas, Membership pelicy books
and a buy-and-bulld strategy to grow the HVAC
business ine

There s a risk HomeServe could overpay for
transactions or underestimate the ume and
resource required to integrate new pusinesses,
paotentially leading to lower than anticipated cash
inflows and revenue, Increasea costs, reduced
profitability and an increased likellhood of
nmpairment

By contrast, a successful MEA strategy should
diversify risk by, for example, introducing new
partners and channels, Increasing profitability and
should lead to increases in KPIs such as customers
and pobcies.

Strict enteria when building
a prospects pipeline

Independent advisers
engaged ndue dilgence
processes

Strong track record ang
experence of acquinng and
growing pclicy books

Local management
experlise with oversight
fraom central plc function

Clear investment hurdles
and completion of post-
Investment reviews

All investments require
local and, where applicable,
plc Board approval.

There has been ncreased MEA expenditure

this year (see note 16 for details of Business e
Combrnations inthe year) but No change 1o the

underlying risk, with all acquisitions approprately

appraised by dedicated MEBA teams and transacticns

approved by local and/or Group Board. %
M&A was paused postyear end as a result g?_ﬁ
of COVID-18 When itrestarts there witl be a
requirernent far an even sharper focus o ensure we
do not overpay.

@® Underwriting capacity & concentration

The Membership business ine markets and
admiristers policies that are underwritten by
independent third party underwriters. HomeServe
acts as an insurance intermediary and does not
take on any material msurance rsk.

These arrangements are a core part of the
Membership model and help protect HomeServe
from short-term nsk e.g. of nsing claims costs or
frequencies

Seeking new underwriters and obtaining relevant
requlatery approvals may take time, leading tc
business disruption

tack of sutable underwriters could farce
HomeServe to underwrite policies in-house,
exposing 1110 matenal insurance nsk.

A material change in the operating madel would
also drve a change in accounting policy that
could affect short-term profitability Custormer
numbers and retention rates may fall if customers
experence reduced service levels or are not
covered throughout any period of disruption

With the exception of
the UK, at least two
underwriters share the
policy books i each
country

In the UK, HomeServe
mantains relationships
with a number of other
underwriters who are
willing and able to
underwrite the business.

Regular (at least &
months) reviews with all
underwriters to ensure
that current product
performance and trends
are understood

HomeServe's agreement with Aviva in the UK

was renewed for a further 5 years and all other 9
relationships rermain strong with regular meetings

cenducted over the course of FY20

We have remained in regular contact with our
underwriters to discuss the potential iImpacts of %
COVID-18. Our two biggest underwriters across
the Group (Aviva and Amtrust] are in a strong
financial position and we do not anticipate any
1ssues with regards to cur underwrting retationships
as a result of the current crisis

@ Regulation (FY19 Regulation & customer focus)

HomeServe is subject to regulatory reguirements
relating to e.g. product design, marketung materials,
sales processes and data protectiorn.

HomeServe believes that reguiation has a positive
Impact and encourages a culture that promotes
customers’ interests and will improve HomeServe's
prospects aver both the short and fong-term

Like many cempanies HomeServe 15 also subject
to wider regulation concerrming e.g anticarruption,
anti-fraud and bribery, modern stavery etc. For
more details see page 23,

Failure to comply with regulatory reguirements in
any of its countries could result in the suspension,
either temporarily or permanently, of certain
actwvities

Much regulation i1s intended to protect customers
and fallure to adhere to the high expectations
custemers have for HomeServe could lead to
reduced retention and higher customer losses. In
addition, legisiative changes relating lo partners
may change their obligations with regard to the
infrastructure they currently manage and hence
the products and services HomeServe can offer to
customers, Itis possible such legislative changes
could reduce, or even remove, the need for some
of HomeServe products and services.

Compliance wuih local
reqguiation as a mirnimum
to ensure products are
designed, marketed and
sold in accordance with
all relevant legal and
regulatary requirements
and that the terms and
conditions are appropriate
and meet the needs of
customers

Best practice shared across
the Group

Regulatory specialists,
compbance teams and
Non-Executive Directors in
each business,

HameServe mamntans
reqular dislogue with the
FCA in the UK. In North
Amernca, there s regular
contact with the Attorneys
General

In 2019 the FCA released its Interim Review of

Pricing Practices in General Insurance inwhich it ﬁ
stated a number of possible intervention measures

It may consider with regards to pricing journeys,

payment methods and disclosure reguirements for

all insurance providers, %

The scrutiny of the wider UK insurance industry 1s
seemingly increasing, but HomeServe maintains
a robust approach ta regulatory matters and we
cantinue to monitor and awalt the publication of
the FCA's full report.

The FCA has also published additional guidance
for insurance providers throughout the carcnavirus
pandemic stating their expectation that firms
display increased awareness and respond flexibly
to changing consumer circumstances. HomeServe
is keeping Its customers regularly informed wa its
many channels, including letters and telephony as
well as online and continues to closely moniter the
FCA's updates.

There has been no change In the regulatory
environments in which our other businesses
operate.
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Principal risk and uncertainties

Continued

Overview

Mitigations

Movement

Update in year & Strategy

® Digital transformation (FY19 Digital & innovation)

As distinct frorm Technology Investment (below) Digital
Transformation relates principally to interactions with
customers (be they homecowners or trades), ensuring we
offer a mult-channel, multi-media approach to interact
with thern and that we do so in an efficient and cost
effective manner

If HomeServe 1s not flexible enough to respond to
changing needs, customers ray explore cormpetitor
products and choose not to renew There 1s alsc a
reputatronal nisk as compiaints logged via social media
can quickly escalate if not dealt with In an appropriate and
tmely méanner,

HomeServe continues

to review and respond to
customer comments and
needs and customers are
offered a number of channets
through which they can
engage with HomeServe
telephone, website, Digital Live
Chat, papet. email and social
media.

Recruitment 1s increased in
areas shorton the required
expertise

The impartance of providing a flexible
appraach became very clear in March

2020 as restricticns ch mavement came

into force, bimiting the ‘normal’ day to day
operations The ability for customers to claim
online or use a Srnart VR made the transition
to ¢ 6,000 employees working from home a
much smoocther process.

We continue to make investment in the
develapment of HomeServe Now, a new
way for custorners to gain a fast response
fram anavallable enginger

] B ¢

@ HVAC Integration

The higher volume of HVAC acquisitions reguires
disciplined and often standardised processes to ensure
successful integration into HomeServe, creating strong
links (o the Merrbersmp business and achieving synergies
with e g the engineer network.

Failure 10 Integrate acquistions quickly and effectively
could result m farure W deliver synergies, and increase
costs, resulting in faiture to achieve predicted revenues
and potentially lead to impairment,

Integration plans form part of
all business case approvals

Post-investment reviews
provide learning back for
future acquisitions

Dedicated teams and
resources and retention of key
management personnel in the
acquired busmesses.

HVAC managed locally but
with a central global team

to coordinate and ensure
consistent application of best
pracuce.

A lotal of 15 HVAC acquisitions were made in
FY20 across the US, France and Spain.

® Partner loss (FY19 Partnerships

Underpinning HomeServa's 5uccess in s chosen
markets are close commercial relationships (affinity
partner relationships) principally with utility companies,
and municipal utility providers The 1oss of one of these
reiationships could impact HomeServe's firtire customer
and policy growth plans and retention rates Growth
plans, particularly in Narth Armerica, focus on signing
new partrers to extend reach and provide new marketing
opportunitres o grow the business

HomeSeérve has benefitted from government policy
changes In certain regions O form new partnerships eg
liberalisation of energy markets in Spain. Any reversal e.g
to renationalise utilities could have an adverse Impact
albeit HomeServe does have strong experence working
wath public sector municipals in North Armenca.

With ¢ 1,000 partners across the Group it 15 inevitable
that a few partners each year may choose not to renew a
contract as priortiés or cormmercial pressures change. In
the UK and North America where partner bases are more
diversified the impact 1s considerad small. In France the
loss of ey Veola wauld have a bigger impact similar to
that of Endesa in Spain where the back book 18 now in run
off. Any partner loss or failure 1o sign new partners could
Impact homeowners, customers and also retention rates,
without use of the partner brand.

A portfolio of partners in eacn
business diversifies nisk

Partners signed on long-term
contracts with beneficial
financial terms for each party

HomeServe seeks to renew
contracts early, ahead of any
expiration date

Regular dialogue with
all partners, parucularly
1N mMarkets with more
cancentrated partner
relationships e.g France

We are signing partners at a rate of over two
aweek in North America and continue to
renew partnerships in our other businesses

In January 2020 we announced our first
partnershp — with Chugeku Electric - for
our Japanese joint venture

® Sustainability

Chsruption in operations within our Membership and
Harme Experts businesses as & direct result of iIncreased
frequency and Intensity of extreme weather events could
impact on both customers and the network due to a
potential change in demand e g as temperatures rise,
dermand for neating wilt dechine potentally impacting our
core business model and unpredictable weather patterns
make running the network less cost effectve

Reputabonal impact as all stakeholders become (ess
accepting of businesses that do not work proactively to
reduce their erwirgnmental impact

Increased costs to the business such as nsurance,
regulatory restnctions on goods linked to climate change,
health and safety costs due to potentially harsher working
conditions etc, disruption to supply chains creating a
bigger chatlenge for the business with regard to Materials
and resources

Environmental 1ssues
discussed at Exec and Baard
level.

In FY21, the business

will focus on pragmatic,
achievable actons to reduce
Its emvironmental impact,
such as improved recycling
and reduced business travel
A carbon offset scheme

wilt pe putin place. Going
forward, the Group will look
for apportunities to lead on
environmental issues close
o the care of our business
and the Board wall turn its
discussions towards agreeing a
formal Emvironmental policy

New for FY20

For more detail on our current Intiatives
please see page 25.
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Mitigations
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Update in year

Movement
& Strategy

@ People

HomeServe's abilty to meet growlth expectations
and compete eftectvely s, in part, dependent

on the skills, experience and performance of its
personnel.

Retention of pecple In established businesses s
key as 1s recruitment of talented people in growth
businesses e ¢ Home Experts

The inab:dity to attract, motwvate or retain key talert
could impact overall business performance.

HormeServe has a lot of growth opparturities and
ensurng appropriate bandwidth atthe top of the
organisation Is key 1o maintairning effective control
and gversight

Gender Pay disclosures in the UK and reviews such
as Hampton Alexander also play an increasing

role inforrming HomeServe's People agenda and
ensurnng we have the appropnate aversity of

peaple, experence and ideas to move the business

forward

Employment policies,
remuneration and benefits
packages and long-term
Incentives are reqularly reviewed
and designed to be competitive
with other companies
Employee surveys, performance
reviews and regular
communication of business
activities are used to understand
and respond to employee views
and needs

Processes exist to identify high
performing indwiduals and
ensure that they have fulfilling
careers, and HomeServe 1§
mManaging succession planning
effectively

HomeServe now employs ¢ 7000 people globally
86% of those people completed our Global
People Survey, returning an engagement score
which remaned in line with tne prior year at 71%

In 2019, cur businesses in North America,

France and the UK were all accredned as a Best
Workplace within ther marketplace. We expect
additional markets and business units to receive
this local accreaitation in the next 12 months. Over
time we aspire to be recognised as a "World's Best’
waorkpiace at HomeServe Group level

Annual and long-term performance plans
have been reviewed and changes are being
implemented to achieve clearer alignment
between cur KPls and our reward strategy.

Qur performance management process and The
HomeServe Way, our leadership 'DNA have also
been reviewed 10 ensure they align fully with our
growth strategy and to ensure that consideration
15 given not only 10 what is achieved but alsc how
it 15 achieved through the right behaviours and
collaboration across the Group

L x4

=

© International

HomeServe has enjoyed success with its
Membership modelin markets cutside of the UK
and Intends 1o expand to other regiens

HomeServe has enjoyed success in France, Span
and North America but has been unsuccessful

N past attempts to enter Australia, Belgium and
Germany.

Failure to succeed could divert investrent and
management time Incurring not only losses in
the new country but also reduced performance
{including, for examgple, l0ss of custormers, lower
profitability}in the core markets.

Strict criteria to identfy attractive
markets

Joint venture structure such
as that employed with Japan
diversifies risk and minimises
investrment

JV partner brings local market
knowledge and contacts

HomeServe brings membershp
model systems and process
experuse.

Signed first utility partnership in Japan and initial
marketing results are encouraging

International development team continues (¢
prospect other markets

O‘@)Qo$
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@ Technology Investment (F Y19 Investment in technology)

As distinct from Digital Transformation (above),
this nisk principally relates to investment in the key
systemns the Group relies on to manage its daily
operabons,

Appropriate and timely maintenance and
investment 1s required to ensure systems continue

to meet the changing needs of the business and its

customers

Home Experts, particularly Checkatrade, 1s
embarking on a programme of transformation to
ready the business for its ambitious growth plans.

Failure in back office systerns may lead to business
interruption and lack of investment to provide
urmely and appropriate data could jeopardise the
ability to analyse performance indicators and react
to any trends.

Over iInvestment In any new initiatives could see
Investment outweigh future benefits and lead to
impairment.

Alldecisions are subject to

the Group's strict iInvestment
criteria and hurdles Major IT
programmes are allocated
specific governance structures
and gversight with members

of senicr management siting
on the Programme Board.
HomeServe engages a number
of external advisers on large
software projects to provide
appropriate breadth and depth
of experience and expertise to
ensure there 1S No over-reliance
onany one supplier and to
support management in project
delivery

The UK's new caore customer management
system went live in 2019, ¢ 75% cf all new
customer acguisition activity 1Is now managed
through this system and migration of existing
custorners from the legacy systerm has
commenced Completing the migration inan
efficient and cost effective way 1S a critical next
step to the full deployment of the new system

France and Spain are also conducting CRM
impternentations, Checkatrade 1s introducing a
new billing engine and the Group continues to
appraise the systems and processes in place at
each business 1o ensure it 15 efficiently using the
functionatity and processes available from leading
software providers.

Technology Investments in recent years helped
faciitate the mobilisation of 6 000 office based
ermployees to working frorn home in support of
the restrictions on movement during COVID-19

e Ve ¢

@ Financial

Key financial nsks include the avaitability of short-term and tong-term funding to meet
husmness needs and take advantage of strategic priorities such as M&A oppartunities,
the nsk of policyholders not paying monies owed, and fluctuations in interest rates and
exchange rates

Interest rate risk

HomeServe's policy 1S to rmanage Nterest cost using a mix of fiked and variable rate
borrowings. Where necessary, this 1$ achieved by entenng into interest rate swaps for
certain periods, in which HomeServe agrees 1o exchange, at specified intervals, the
difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference
to an agreed notional principal amount. These swaps are designated to economically
hedge underlying debt obligations

Credit risk

The risk asscciated with cash and cash eguivalerts 1s managed by eonly depasiting
funds with reputable and creditworthy banking institutions. The risk of a pobcyholder
defaulting 15 ritigated as any policy cover will cease as and when any prermium fails to
be paid

Liquidity risk

HomeServe manages iiguidity hsk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking
facilities and continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.,

Foreign exchange risk

Short-term forsign exchange nsk 15 mitigated with the natural hedging provided by
the geographical spread of the businesses. While this will protect against some of the
transaction exposure, HomeServe's reported results would stlt be impacted by the
translation of non-UK operations

A treasury management system implemented 1o
improve global cash visibility, bank connectivity
and process efficiency went [ive this year

On 30 March 2020, HomeServe arranged an
additional £50m of RCF funding At the year
end HomeServe had over £330m of headrcom
against its total debt facilities and only E36m of
the c.£780m of facilities is due within the next
12 manths,

kO W O
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Operating review

Financial performance for the year ended 31 March

Statutory operating Adjusted operating
Revenue profit/{loss) profit/(ioss)
Emillion 2020 2015 2020 2019 2020 2019
UK 372.9 3917 62.8 68.4 81.0 66.0
North America 4295 3334 67.6 547 854 676
France 1118 1046 26.9 26.8 33.8 333
Spain 1541 140.8 19.6 175 201 177
New Markets - — (0.9 (2.4) @7 2.4]
Total Mermbership & HVAC 1,068.3 9705 176.0 165.0 2156 1822
Home Experts 71.8 40.4 17.4) {12.4) {13.9) (74)
Inter-segment * (7.8) (7.3) - — - —
Group 1,132.3 10036 158.6 1526 2017 174.8

* Inter-segment fevenues ncludes transaclions with ather Group comparues removed on consolidation and pnincipally compnse royaity and other similar charges

Membership KPls
Customer Income per Policy retention
numbers (m) customer rate

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
UK 1.8 20 £140 £122 78% 79%
North Armerica 44 4.0 $102 596 83% 83%
France 11 11 €108 €109 89% 89%
Spain 10 11 €61 €57 83% 0%
New Markets - 0.2 — — - -
Group 8.3 8.4 N/A N/A 82% 82%

Home Experts KPis

Trades (tradespeople)

Website visits (m)

{000)
2020 2019 2020 2019
Checkatrade 39 36 236 175
Habitissimo 24 28 87.3 83.2
elLocal! 3 N/A N/A N/A
Group 66 64 110.9 101.0

‘Annual web visits not reported

- elocal acquired part way through the year on 26 November 2019
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UK

1.8m

Customers -11% from 2.0m

£140

Income per customer +15% from £122

49m

Policies -9% from 5.4m
]

Affinity partner
households

78%

Retention
rate

2019 2020 FY19:79%
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Financial performance

Net policy Income increased by 2% with lower customer
numers more than offset by a 15% increase in ncome per
custcmer, as retained customers continued to deepen their
product coverage.

Repair network revenue decreased by 18% as HomeServe
completed 0.9m jobs (FY19. 1.2m) for its customers. Lower
Job volumes were driven principally by a lower customer
count year on year and changes in policy rmix as well as

a small reduction resulting from the cessation of non-
emergency work [2.g. maintenance and boiler servicing) in
March owing to COVID-15.

HVAC revenue fell by 16%, driven by lower installation
volumes. In FY20 the business increased its focus on
providing installations for Membership customers and
reduced the number of sales outside of this Approximately
100,000 customers from the 1.8m UK customer base will
require a new boiler installation each year. Accessing these
should require less marketing, provide a profitable revenue
stream and help strengthen relationships with existing
customers.

Other revenue of £12.8m (FY19: £13.3m) principally included
transactions with other Group companies and income for
non-insured, on-demand jobs.

Adjusted operating costs fell by 10% to £291.9m, due to
reduced direct costs as a result of lower job volumes and
customer acquisition as well as reduced overheads as a
result of decisions taken 12 months ago on changes to the
organisational design of the UK business.

As a consequence of these changes, adjusted operating
profit rose by 23% to £81.0m, with adjusted operating margin
up by five percentage points to 22%. The business will retain
its focus on efficiency in FY21 with a margin of ¢.20% seen as
sustainable over the lcnger term.

Ermilhen 2020 2019 Change
Revenue

Net policy income 249.4 2440 2%

Repair network 89.5 1089 (18%}
Membership 338.9 3529 (4%}
HVAC 21.2 255 {16%)
Other 12.8 133 (4%}
Total revem]e - 3729 3917 {5%)
Adjusted operating costs (291.9) (3257) (10%)
Adjusted operating profit 81.0 660 23%
Adjusted operating margin 22% 17% +5ppts
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Operating review
UK continued

On a statutory basis the UK segment recorded an
exceptional charge of £15.0m in relation to an impairment
of LeakBot reflecting slower uptake of the device from
consumers and insurance partners. The financial impact of
the exceptional charge is not shown in the adjusted results
but is discussed in further detait in the financial review.

Operational performance

UK customers were 1. 8m (FY19: 2.0m) with retention at
78% (FY19: 78%). The UK business continued its focus on
serving its core customer base, for whom the HomeServe
proposition of a reliable and easy way to deal with home
repairs and emergencies remains as valued as ever. There
continues to be less emphasis on attracting and retaining
marginal customers through deep discounts. This approach,
cornbined with lower customer acquisition year on year,
drove a 15% rise in income per customer with the retention
rate remaining broadly in line with the prior year.

Customer satisfaction rermains high with an

"Excellent” rating of 4.4 from 39k reviews on
Trustpilot (FY19: 4.3) and a Reevoo score of

96% (FY19; 96%).

The UK netwaork of 8OO directly employed engineers and
446 subcontractors completed 0.9m jobs (FY19-1.2m} The
directly employed netwaork fulfilled in excess of 90% of water
jobs and over half of gas jobs, with the remamnder completed
by the subcontract network.

The UK business continues to pursue initatives to transform
both the customer experience and operational efficiency.
HomeServe Now, HomeServe's app-based technology to
swiftly identify a customer's need and connect them directly
with an available engineer in close proximity to their home,
was trialled in further UK regions during the second half.
HomeServe Now has the potential to transform customer

service and reduce costs to serve. By combining the App
with 8 subscription-based consumer offer there ig also an
opportunity to access homeowners that typically woutd not
consider the core Mernbership product but who frequently
huy other products and services on maobile devices and via
a subscription.

HomeServe has worked with the majority of UK water
utilities for a nurber of years. In February 2020 the UK
signed an agreement with one of the remaining providers,
Portsmouth Water, which will see HormeServe initially
offering plumbing and drainage products to Portsmouth’'s
customer base of ¢.0.3m households. The first custormer
policies have since been written, a pleasing result coming as
it does against the backdrop of the COVID-19 restrictions

The UK continued to integrate its HVAC business. Help-Link,
the HVAC business acquired in 2017, was one of only a few
national HVAC providers in the UK and HomeServe UK is
now assessing larger regional providers in order to puild a
pipeline of buy-and-build opportunities as it looks to follow
the wider Group's HVAC growth strategy. Acquiring well
run, profitable HVAC companies with great local brands
where there I5 existing high policy density also creates the
opportunity to cormpete for the installations that the UK's
1.8m customers require each year but that they currently
source elsewhere.

The Financial Conduct Authonty's (FCA) market study into
pricing practices across the General Insurance industry

was due to be published in the first quarter of 2020 but has
been delayed armidst the COVID-19 outbreak. HomeServe's
focus remains, as ever, on providing products which
customers value and use and providing a transparent and
fair pricing journey. The business continues to provide all the
information necessary to ensure custormers are able 10 make
well-informed decisions when choosing their products.
HomeServe continues to monitor the situation and remains
well positioned to address any recommendations the study
makes to the insurance industry.

The FCA has also published additional guidance for
insurance providers throughout the coronavirus pandemic
stating their expectation that firms display increased
awareness and respond flexibly to changing consumer
circumstances. HomeServe is keeping its customers
regularly informed via its rmany channels, including letters
and telephony as well as online and continues to closety
monitor the FCA's updates.
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North America

44m

Customers +9% from 4.0m

$102

Income per customer +6% from $96

7.5m

Policies +12% from 6.7m
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Financial performance

Total revenue increased by 25% to $546.1m and total
adjusted operating profit increased by 23% to $108.6m as
North America continued its strong growth trajectory.

North America alone accounts for over a third of the Group's
revenue and total adjusted operating profit.

Net policy iIncome increased by 14% to over $450m as
Income per customer passed the $100 mark, increasing by
6% to $102 and as the business added 0.4m customers.

Repair network revenue includes jobs performed by
HomeServe's growing number of directly employed
engineers, incluging those employed by acquired HVAC
companies completing jobs for Membership custormers, and
almost doubled to $39.5m (FY19: $20.5m).

HVAC revenue tnpled to $53.3m (FY19: $17.6m) due to a full
year run rate of prior year HVAC acquisitions such as Cropp
Metcalfe and an additional three acquisitions in the period
for total consideration of $20.7m, the largest of which was
Crawford Services, HomeServe's first acguisition in Texas.

Acquisitions in the year contributed just $15.9m of revenue
and $1.6m profit, with North Amencan progress still very
much driven by organic growth.

The North America margin remained stable at 20% as total

adjusted operating profit exceeded $100m for the first time,
growing by 23% to $108.6m. HomeServe remains on track

to achieve its previously stated medium to long-term profit

milestone for its North America business of 5230m.

2019 2020 FY19: 83%

USD millicn 2020 2019 Change  E£million 2020 2015 Change
Reverue Revenue

Net policy income 451.2 396.8 14% Net policy income 3549 3033 17%

Repair network 395 205 Q3% Repair network 306 157 195%
Membership 490.7 4173 18% Membership 3855 319.0 21%
HVAC 533 176 203% HVAC 42.4 134 217%
Other 21 13 58% Other 16 10 60%
Total revenue 546.1 436.2 25% Total revenue 429.5 3334 29%
Adjusted operating costs (4375) {3481 26%  Adjusted operating costs {344.1) (265.8) 29%
Adjusted operating profit 108.6 88.1 23%  Adjusted operating profit 85.4 676 26%
Adjusted operating margin 20% 20% — Adjusted operating margin 20% 20% —
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Operating review
North America continued

Operational performance

Total customers increased by 9% tc 4.4m driven principally
by crganic growth and the continued success of
HomeServe's utility-branded marketing campaigns which
added 1.2m (FY19 1.2m) gross new customers in the year.
Supporting this custormer growth is a core base of renewing
custorners and the retention rate remained strong at 83%
{(FY19: 83%). Customers are also opting for more cover, with
policies increasing by 12% to 7.5m and helping drive income
per custorner over $100 to §102 (FY19: $96)

HomeServe continues to deliver high levels of service when
its customers need it most and in FY20 its network of 205
engineers and ¢ 5k contractors completed 0.5m jobs (FY19
185 engineers and ¢.5k contractors, 0.5m jobs). The business
retains its A+ Better Business Bureau rating and in March
2020 was once again honoured at the annual Stevie Awards
for Sales and Customer Service with 30 awards including

a gold award for “Innovatien in Customer Service”. Recent
investments in technology and innovation such as Srmart

IVR have proven invaluable in recent months, delivering
additional scale and flexibility to serve customers throughout
the challenges presented by COVID-19 in March and April.

in March 2020 HomeServe was once again
honoured at the annual Stevie Awards for
Sales and Customer Service with 30 awards
including a gold award for "Innovation in
Customer Service”

Providing great customer service 1s one of the key reasons
utilities trust HomeServe to provide products to their
customer base and HomeServe now works with over 950
dtility and municipal partners (FY19: ¢.700) providing access
10 64m North Amencan households under & utility brand
(FY19: 60m). Although the situation with COVID-19 inevitably
paused some utility partner discussicns, HomeServe
continues to sign new partnerships and in Apnl 2020 signed
Alabama Power for an additional 1.3m households and the
Municipality of Ottawa in Canada with 0.4m households.

Both are great indications of the continuing appeal of
HommeServe's services to utilities, even during the COVID-19
pandemic.

In December 2019 HomeServe acquired Servline for total
consideration of $24.1m. ServlLine works with over 150

rural water utilities across 18 states through an exclusive
partnership with the Naticnal Rural Water Association and
28 State Rural Water Associations. Servline offers a unigue
leak adjustment product to participating utilities protecting
both homeowner and utility from the cost of water lost
from leaking pipes. The leak product increases the range of
solutions HomeServe can offer homeowners and utilities,
providing further opportunities to increase the custemer and
partner count as HomeServe looks to achieve its ambitions
in North America.

Two further acquistions in the year were made in the
Whole Home Warranty space. American Home Guardian
and Nations were added for total consideration of $8.0m.
Both acquisitions contributed to HomeServe's launch of

its TotalHorme Warranty product, a cover-alt approach to
the main systems and appliances in the haome. The launch
has used TV and online channels to attract consumers
who are typically younger and more digitally minded than
HomeServe's current custcmer dermographic. Asa much
broader product the TotalHome ofter attracts a higher price
point and over time should provide 3 further opportunity to
increase INncome per customer

The HVAC market in North America is highly fragmented
with tens of thousands of providers in a market estimated to
be worth $29bn annually. HomeServe is building a pipeline
of high guality HVAC businesses that can generate synergies
with Membership. HomeServe's 4 4m customer base
generates hundreds of thousands of installation requests
every year which would usually go to competitors but which
marketing efforts can now direct to HomeServe's own
HVAC businesses, By acquiring HVAC businesses in areas of
high policy density HomeServe can also use the acquired
workforces to complete repairs for the Membership business
and over time reduce its underwriting cost and contribute to
future margin growth.

37



France

1.1m

Customers +5% from 1.1m

€108

Income per customer -1% from €109m

2.4m

Policies +27% from 2.3m

Affinity partner
households
18m § 18m o
Retention
rate
2019 2020 FY19: 89%

Eure milion 2020 2019 Change
Revenue

Net policy Income 120.1 1i56 4%

Repair network 04 05 {12%)
Membership 120.5 1161 4%
HVAC 78 17 355%
Other 01 0% (90%)
Total revenue 128.4 1187 8%
Adjusted operating costs (89.4) {809) 11%
Adjusted operating profit 39.0 378 3%
Adjusted operating margin 30% 32% {2ppts)
Ermilion 2020 2039 Change
Revenue

Net policy income 104.5 1019 3%

Repair network 04 04 {13%)
Membership 1049 102.3 3%
HVAC 6.8 15 248%
Other 0.1 0.8 (89%)
Total revenue 111.8 104.6 7%
Adjusted operating costs {78.0} (71.3) 9%
Adjusted operating profit 338 333 1%
Adjusted operating margin 30% 32%  (2ppts)
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Financial performance

2020 was ancther successful year for France, returning its
highest ever revenue of €128 4m (FY19 €118./m) and highest
profit of €39.0m (FY19: €37.8m} whilst continuing to invest in
Membership and HVAC growth initiatives.

Net policy income increased by 4% to €120.1m driven
principally by a higher customer count and HVAC revenue
rose significantly to €7.8m (FY1S. €1.7m) due to the full year
run rate of prior year HVAC acquisiions and five additicnal
acguisitons made during the year.

At 30% the French margin was lower than the prior year,

as expected, due to increased marketing to grow the
customer boak but it remains the highest in the Croup and is
sustainable in the long-term.

Operational performance

A 5% increase in customers to 1.1m was the strongest
percentage growth in France for five years and total gross
new customers of 0.2m was the highest ever. The business
prospered from a number of new relationships with non-
utility partners, e.g. JeChange and Papernest, as an active
business development team added six new energy retailers
in total and continues to grow the prospects pipeline.

HomeServe continued to generate new customers from
Its existing water partnerships and Veolia, Suez and Saur alt
added more custamers this year than last but new partners
generated ¢.20% of new customer joins. Veolia is offering
HomeServe's products in its call centres via its Homefriend
initiative, Suez has agreed to further direct mail campaigns
and all 15 Saur regions are now transferring prospect sales
calls to HomeServe.

The retention rate was strong at 89% (FY19: 89%) and remains
a good indication of the high levels of customer satisfaction
in French Membership. The business was awarded Elu
Service Client de l'Année for the fourth year in succession
and internally measured complaints statistics are close to all
time lows.

In HVAC the buy-and-build strategy added a further
five small acquisitions for total combined consideration
of c€3.3m. The HVAC team is focussed on successful
ntegration of these businesses ensuring strong links are
made to enable the best cross-selling opportunities for
installations and Membership cover.

In November HomeServe France was awarded status as
a Great Place to Work, and in March 2020 ranked 23rd
amongst companies with 250 to 1,000 employees within
Best Place To Work 2020.
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Operating review
Spain

1.0m

Customers -13% from 1.1m

€61

Income per custormer +8% from €57

1.1m

Policies -16% from 1.3m

83%

Retention rate +3ppts frorm 80%

Financial performance

Total revenue in Spain increased by 11% to €176.6m as new
contracts drove an 18% increase in repair revenue in the
Claims business, acquisitions contributed to a 143% uplift in
HVAC revenue and Membership reveniie was mnre resihent
than anticipated as initiatives were implemented to preserve
its back book of custocmers, and income per customer rose
by 8% to €61,

Adjusted operating costs grew by 10% to €153.5m as a result
of costs directly attnbutable to the increased repair revenue
and growing HVAC business line. The adjusted operating
margin rose slightly to 13% principally reflecting the benefit of
additional scale in the Claims business.

Operational performance

The Membership business had a good year and total
customers were 1.0m (FY19: 1.1m) as HomeServe continued
to explore opportunities for new partnerships 1o replace

the relationship with Endesa, which ended in May 2018 In
the absence of a major new partner the customer book will
continue to decline but the relationship with Endesa remains
positive with an extended billing agreement and continued
re-activation marketing. The retention rate increased to 83%
(FY19- 80%) and income per customer increased to €61
(FY19: €57) reflecting the increasing maturity of the book.

The customer number was also boosted by the addition
of a small policy book of ©.30k from Sareteknika, an HVAC
provider, and a further 15k acquired with various smaller
HVAC acquisitions in the year.

The Clairmns business had its most successful year ever,
compteting 1.0m jobs (FY19: 0.8Bm), a year on year increase of
17% despite a marked reduction in March due 1o the effects
of COVID-19. The increase in job volumes was driven by
successful business development activities and a number of
new partnerships including Bansabadell Seguros Generales
The business is also working closely with Hapiissimo to buy
leads which can be deployed to its existing network of 266
franchisees and ¢.2 2k subcontractors (FY19: 190 franchisees
a2nd ¢.1 Yk subcontractors).

HomeServe Spain made seven HVAC acquisitions in

the year including three policy books and four business
combinations (Somagas, Linacal, Tecno Arasat and Sate) for &
total cash outflow of £9.4m. The business continues to build
a pipeline of further potential acquisitions and in line with
the wider Group's HVAC strateqy, sl acquisitions to date are
being integrated in order {0 generate maximum synergies
with the Membership business - cross-selling Mermbership
cover following an installation and marketing instatlations of
new HVAC appliances to the Membership customer base.

Euro million o 2020 2019 Change Emitlion 2020 2019 Change
Revenue Revenue

Net policy income 56.3 627 {10%) Net policy income 49.2 55.3 11%)

Repalr network 108.2 92.0 18% Repair network 94.4 811 16%
Membership 164.5 154.7 6% Membership - 1436 136.4 5%
HVAC 12.1 50 143% HVAC 10.5 44 138%
Total revenue 176.6 1597 11% Total revenue 154.1 140.8 9%
Adjusted operating costs {153.5) (139.9) 10%  Adjusted operaung costs {134.0) (1231} 9%
Adjusted operating profit 23.1 198 16% Adjusted operating profit 201 177 13%
Adjusted operating margin 13% 12% +lppt Adjusted cperating margin 13% 13% -
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Home Experts

Financial performance

39 0 0 0 Total Home Experts revenue increased by 78% to £71 8m f
F J principally as a result of a 30% increase at Checkatrade to 2
Checkatrade trades +9% from 36,000 £38.5m and the addition of £22.1m revenue from elocal, §

which was acquired in November 2019. Habitissimo revenue
grew 4% to £11.1m despite a 4k reduction in trades as the

24 00 0 business increased its focus on serving and growing its larger
[ trades.

e . °

Habitissimo trades -13% from 28,000 The total adjusted operating loss of £13.9m increased by 86%
due to increased marketing activity at Checkatrade, structural
changes at Habitissimo and the cost of an crganic test of

3 000 Home Experts in France, eLocal generated an adjusted

’ . ‘ e
. operating profit for the four months post-acquisition
Paying eLocal trades of $2.5m, below the anticipated $5m, due to increased

. headcount to strengthen the team for 1its future growth

plans and the effects of COVID-19 that significantly reduced
demand in March.

On a statutory basis an exceptional gain of £3.0m was
recorded in relation to the acquisition of the remaining
30% of Habitissimo. This is discussed in further detail in the
Financial review.

g
Checkatrade 3
Checkatrade is making good progress to grow both sides a
of its platform as it strives to achieve its milestone targets of
150k to 200k trades, average revenue per trade of £1,200 to
£1,300 and an adjusted operating margin of 25% to 35%.
Visitors to Checkatrade's newly refreshed website grew by
32% and now benefit from additional functionality when
selecting and contacting trades such as ‘'shortlist” and ‘call
back’. Average revenue per trade grew by 10% to £1,023, total
trades grew by 9% to 39k and Checkatrade was on track for
slightly higher growth until the impacts of COVID-19 caused
numbers to fall in March.
Website visits*®
5
Emilbon 2020 2019 Change é
Revenue §
Checkatrade 385 29.8 20% 3
Habitissimo 111 10.6 4% 3
France 0.1 - -
elocal 221 - —
2019 2020 2019 2020 Total revenue 71.8 404 78%
Checkatrade Habitissimo Adjusted operating costs {85.7) {47.8) 79%
Adjusted operating loss (13.9) (7.4) 86%

‘Excludes elLocal, acquired part way through the year in Novernber 2019
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Operating review
Home Experts continued

Matching increased consumer web visits with high trades
growth has been a key focus of the business throughout
FY20. Gross trade acquisition of 16k was very successful but
a higher level of cancellations amongst rmembers within
their first year slowed overall progress. Key to retaining these
trades is ensuring a fair distribution of work generated by
the increased visitor traffic amongst all trades. Initiatives to
achieve this, such as inserting new trades higher up the
search results pages for a period of time, had begun to take
effect and showed encouraging improvements early in the
final quarter.

Directory leaflets also play a crucial role in driving brand
awareness amongst consumers and generating work

that provides value for trades’ membership. Calls to leaflet
members in FY20 were up 42% year on year reflecting the
roll out to new geographies and an mcreased frequency of
leaflet ‘drops’ in some areas.

Back office changes to improve the platform and its
supporting systerns to ensure the business scales effectively
and efficiently to meet its growth plans continue apace with
projects to automate the vetting process and implement a
new customer management system and billing engine well
underway.

The impact of COVID-1S has been particularly pronounced
in Checkatrade but proactive decisions taken to support
trades and offer options to pause or alter Memberships have
beenwell receved and should serve to underline the value
of the platform to its trades in the future.

Habitissimo

In June 2019 HomeServe acquired the rermaining 30%

of Habitissimo and appointed Sarah Harmon, previously
Country Manager of LinkedIn Spain and Portugal, as its new
CEQ. Sarah spent the second half of the year building a2 new
commercial plan for the business and determining its future
priorities.

Learnings from other successful lead generation businesses,
including elocal, show the benefit of offering a solution

for national accounts and larger trades companies. These
companies want a greater volume cf leads and have

the support functicns to enable them to maximise lead
conversion. HomeServe Spain's Claims operation is a good
example of such a business and Habitissimo has been
working closely with them to develop its offer

By focussing its efforts on increasing the volume and quality
of leads it generates, Habitissimo intends to grow its lead
generation business whilst also launching the directory

model under the HomeServe brand in Spain later in 2020.
To provide additional bandwidth and oversight, the decision
has also been taken to exit Argentina, Columbia and Peru,
Habitissimo's three smallest LATAM territories.

elocal

On 26 November 2019 HomeServe acquired 79% of eLocal
for £98.8rm. eLocalis a fast growing Home Experts business
based in Philadelphia, in North America, with annualised
revenue of ¢ $90m, a netwaork of 3k paying trades and a
directory of ¢.8.5m free listings. The key management team
has been retained with Bruce Aronow, one of the founders,
continuing as CEQ.

elocal’s business model most closely resembles lead
generation with a number of unique aspects that can be
applied in HomeServe's other Home Experts businesses.

As well as using its own SEQ and SEM (Search Engine
Optimisation and paid Search Engine Marketing), elocal
utilises a wide network of affiliates to generate leads
principally via calls from consumers. These are then
monetised by matching to a network of trades, many of
whom are larger national accounts buying hundreds or
even thousands of leads a year. The focus on calls and
larger national accounts means that today eLocal generates
fewer web visits and has fewer paying trades than both
Checkalrade and Habilissimo so all business are already
waorking closely together to share best practice and inttiatives
to drive future growth. elLocal is also looking at ways to work
rmore closely with the North America Membersnip business.

Financial performance for FY20 was lower than cnginally
anticipated with additional costs incurred to integrate the
business inte a Plc environment and to introduce headcount
to prepare the business for its future growth plans. The
business was also impacted by COVID-19 with significantly
reduced demand in March. HomeServe now expects elocal
to add in excess of $10m of adjusted operating profit in FY21
VS, previous guidance of $16m.

France

Durning the year Home Experts in France launched a test
with free basic website listings, upselling trades to enriched,
fuller profites. Following the successful test, in May 2020
HomeServe entered intc a new structure to scale the
business. The management team will now own 80%%

with HomeServe taking a 20% stake with an opticn to
increase this in the future, once the business has achieved
national scale.
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New Markets

Ernulion

2020

2019

Change

Adjusted operating loss

4.7}

(2.4}

91%
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In January 2020 HomeServe announced that its Japanese
joint venture with Mitsubishi Cerporation had signed its
first utility partrership, with Chugoku Electric a utility in
Western Japan serving 2.9m households. Responses to
intial marketing campaigns launched in January were

very encouraging with take-up rates approaching those
seen in North America. Marketing was paused as a result

of COVID-19 but the business continues to run tests and I1s
building a pipeline of other utility partnerships as it attempts
to grow its access to Japan’'s 53m households.

The £4.7m loss also Includes the cost of the international
business development team, which continues to prospect
and hold discussions in a number of other countries.

HomeServe saw limited cpportunities for Membership
growth in ltaly, so in line with its discipline of focusing
resources on the Group's largest opportunities, the decision
was taken to exit the ltalian operations. HomeServe sold

its 49% share in its Italian associate and 0.2m customers to
its partner and existing 51% shareholder Edison Energra for
cash consideration of £8.4m, giving rise to a £3.8m
exceptional gam.
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Financial review

These financial results have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs! as adopted for use by the European
Union.

Group statutory results
The headline statutory financial results for the Group are
presented below.

Profit before tax

A strong operational performance driven by profit growth
in all Membership businesses resulted in a 12% growthin
adjusted profit pefore tax to E181.0m.

Statutory profit before tax is reported after the amortisation
of acquisition intangibles and exceptional items, On this
basis profit before tax was £137.9m (FY19: £139.5m) as
underlying profit growth was offset by net exceptional
charges of £7.6m recorded principally in the UK in relation
to the Group's LeakBot asset.

Emitian 2020 2019
Total revenue 1,132.3 1,0036
Operating profit 158.6 1526
Net finance costs (20.7) (13.1)
Adjusted profit before tax 1810 1817
Amaortisation of acquisition (35.5) (26.8)
| intangibles
Exceptional items {7.6) 46 |
Statutrory profit before tax 1379 1395
Tax {32.1} (31‘2)7
Profit for the year 105.8 108.3
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 106.0 108.5
Non-controlling interests (0.2) (0.2)
105.8 108.3

Net finance costs

Net finance costs rose to £20.7m (FY19 £13 1m) due to the
unwinding of interest on deferred consideration in relation
to previous MEBA activity, the impact of IFRS 16 and the
higher average net debt balance year on year combined
with a higher weighted interest rate as a result of US Private
Placements agreed in the prior year.

Exceptional items

The Group incurred the following exceptional tems in the
year, amounting to a net charge of £76m (FY19. net gain
of £4.6m).

Consumers and insurance partners have been slower

than expected to adopt smart leak detection technology.
Following the Group's annual budgeting process and
subsequent updates in light of COVID-19 HomeServe
completed an impairment review of the Group's LeakBot
assets, concluding that the net assets of the business are
impaired, and incurring £15.0m of exceptional charges. This
conclusion has been reached based on a number of factors
affecting expected future cash flows including commercial
traction, access to investment and the pace of technalogy
change. Of the £15.0m, £12.9m related to the impairment
of development assets for the LeakBot device, £1.4m of
inventory and a £0.7m restructuring provision.

An exceptional gain of £3.8rm was recorded in relation to
the sale of HomeServe's Italian associate, Assistenza Casa,
principally representing the excess of the total £8.4m sale
proceeds over the carrying value of the investment in the
Group's balance sheet.

A further exceptional gain of £3.6m was recorded in relation
to the purchase of the remaining 30% stake in Habitissime,
principally representing the lower consideration paid of
E77m compared to the carrying value of the option liability
in the Group's balance sheet,

The prior year exceptional term of £4.6mincluded an .
exceptional cost of £5.5m, mostly related to redundancies
and other associated charges mncurred in respect of changes
to the organisational design of the UK business. Offselting
this charge was an exceptional gain of E10 Im relating to a
fair value movement on contingent consideration payable
to the previcus owners of Help-Link upon hitting certain
streteh target volumes of boiler installations. At 31 March
2019 the Group determined that the likelihood of hitting
these targets was remote and that the fair value of the
outstanding liabilties was Lnil

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles )
Acquisiticn amortisation relates to customer and other

contracts held by businesses, which were acquired by

HomeServe as part of business combinations and asset

purchases.
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The amortisation of acquisition intangibles of £35.5m {FY19:
£26.8m) increased principally due to charges relating to prior
year MBA activity.

Amortisation of acguisition intangibles is excluded from the
adjusted performance measures reported by the Group in
each specific reporting period, ensuring that these measures
only reflect the revenue attributable to, and costs incurred
by, the Group in managing and operating its businesses and
assets at that ime in each reporting period. A reconciligtion
between adjusted and statutory amounts is included with
the Glossary at the end of this anncuncement atong with
further commentary on HomeServe's use of adjusted items
as Alternative Performance Measures.

Tax strategy

The Group has continued © operate within the tax strategy
approved by the Board in May 201S. The tax strategy is
subject to annual review and reflects HomeServe's status as
a ple, and the regulated nature of its business which requires
strong governance and consideration of reputation as well
as compliance with local laws, regulations and guidance.
The UK elements of the tax strategy document are publicly
available on the HomeServe plc website as required by UK
legislation.

The Group tax strategy covers how HomeServe:

) applies tax governance on an ongoing basis and
maintains strong internal controls in order to substantially
reduce tax risk;

uy - will not engage in artificial transactions the sole purpose
of which s to reduce tax;

i) holds a strategic aim to retain its low tax risk rating as
determined by the UK Tax Authority's Business Risk
Review process; and

v} works with all tax authorities in an apen, honest and
transparent manner.

Tax charge and effective tax rate

The Group's tax charge in the financial year was £32.1m
(FY19 £31 2m). representing an effective tax rate of 23%
(FY19 22%) The corporate income tax rates in the overseas
ccountries in which the Group operates continue to be
higher than the UK corporate income tax rate of 19% (FY1S
19%), which results in a Group effective rate higher than the
headline UK rate. As the proportion of the Group's profits
earned overseas continues to grow, the effective tax rate is
expected to increase slightly

Other comprehensive income

At 31 March 2020 the fair value of the Group’s investrment
held in @ manufacturer of smart thermostat connected
home technology has been reassessed. In light of the
current market conditions and uncertainty associated with
the COVID-19 pandemic the Group has reduced the fair
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value of its investment by £3.7m. This movement, net of a
£0.8m reduction in the associated deferred tax liability, has
been recorded in the investrment revaluation reserve.

Cash flow and financing

HomeServe's business model continues to be highly cash
generative with free cash flow in FY20 of £93.4m (FY19:
£44.3m}.

Emition 2020 2019
Adjusted operating profit 201.7 174 8
Exceptional iterns (7.6) 46
Armortisation of acquisition

intangibles (35.5) {26.8)
Operating profit 158.6 1526
Impact of exceptional iterms 7.6 {(4.6)
Depreciation and amortisation 109.1 7359
Non-cash iterms 9.2 107
Increase in working capital (44.1) (30.4)
Cash generated by operations 2404 2022
Net interest and associated

borrowing costs (18.5) (9.9)
Repayment of lease principal (12.4) (0.6}
Taxation (30.2) (317)
Capital expenditure - ordinary {79.0) (669)
Capital expenditure - acquisitions

of policy books 6.9) (48.8)
Free cash flow 934 443
Acquisition of subsidiaries (140.6) {375)
Acquisition of non-controlling

nterest {7.7) -
Acquisition of investments - (5.4
Proceeds on disposal of equity 84 —

accounted investments
Equity dividends paid {73.5) (65.0
Purchase of own shares (3.0) —
Issue of shares (net of associated

issue costs) 0.1 2.2
Net movement in cash and bank

borrowings {122.9) {61.4}
Impact of foreign exchange and

other non-cash items (11.5) (5.4)
Net debt acquired (11.8) (0.1}
IFRS 16 lease liabilities acguired 3.4 -
Lease liabilities — adoption of IFRS 16 {52.6) —
Maovement in IFRS 16 lease liabilities (2.1) -

(304.7 (237.8)
{509.0) (304.7)

Opening net debt

Closing net debt
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Financial review
Continued

Working capital

Working capital absorption was E44.1m in FY20 (FY19
£30.4m} slightly higher than guided, reflecting the expected
growth in all businesses, in particular In North America and
the adverse timing of underwriting payments in the UK.

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure of £859m (FY13: £115 7m) included
£6.9m (FY19: £48.8m} for the acquisition of five small policy
books across France, Spamn and North America. Bolt-on
policy books continue to be a proven, comparatively low-
risk approach for acquiring additional customers. In FY19 the
cash outflow of £48.8m related principally to the second
tranche of the Dominion Products and Services pelicy book.

Ordinary capital expenditure of £79.0m included £21 0m
(FY19 £15.0m) of payments made to partners who
undertake marketing activity to acquire customers on
HomeServe's behalf with the largest increase in France due
to higher sales completed by Veolia which hetped drive
France's highest ever new customers acquired.

The balance of £58.0m (FY19: £51.9m) principally
comprised technology investments in customer and
network management systems in Membership and
platform developments at Checkatrade. With major capex
programmes such as the UK Customer Relationship
Management system coming to an end, capital expenditure
is expected to fall.

Acquisitions

MEA activity continued to support HomeServe's growth
ambitions, INcurnng a cash cutflow in the year of £140.6m.
There were three matenal acquisitions in the year, all in
North America,

»  79% of eLlocal Holdings LLC for a net cash outflow of
£93.4m, bringing Home Experts to North America

» agroup of assets constituting a business under IFRS
3 from Sunbelt Group LLC, "ServLine”, for an outflow
of £13.7m, expanding the product and partnership
opportunities of the North American Membership
pusiness

+ Crawford Services Inc., 8 BVAC service provider,
enhancing the scale and scope of HomeServe's HVAC
capabilites, for a net outflow of £10.5m.

The acquisition of 79% of elLocal also provided HomeServe
with opiions to acquire the rernaining 21% by FY26. Further
detail on the structure and operation of the different ‘put’
and ‘call’ opticns is disctosed in note 16. At 31 March 2020
the carrying value of obligations under these put options
was £31.3m.

HomeServe USA Holdings Corp. holds a cal! option which,
if exercised, requires certain non-coentrolling sharenolders to
sell their remaining interests, This option is only exercisable
if in scope shareholders leave the company and are

not considered 'Good Leavers as defined in the oplion
agreements. HomeServe currently assesses the likelihood
that any in scope shareholder would trigger this clause to be
remote and as such has determined that the fair value of this
call option is £nil.

An additional 14 businesses were acquired for an outflow of
£16.6m as the Group continued the pursuit of its HVAC buy-
and-huild strategy in North America, France and Spain and
Membership added two whole home warranty providers,
enabling the North America business to gain experience and
a foothold in this growing market to support the launch of its
own TotalHome Warranty product.

In addition to the total net cash outflow on the acquisitions
above of £134.2m, deferred and contingent consideration
was paid relating to previous business combinations of
£6.4m (FY19 £10.4m).

HomeServe continues to 1dentify and assess MEA
opportunities in all of its businesses, including further HVAC
investment as it expands its buy-and-bulld initiative. Policy
buok M&A remains a low risk approach to accelerating
growth and HomeServe continues to attempt to unlock
opportunities in all countries, particularly North America.

Purchase of own shares

During the year 245,975 (FY19: nil) shares were repurchased
ata cost of £3.0m (FY1S: £nil) te fulfil awards made under
share incentive schemes. No shares were transferred to
individuals to satisfy awards (FY19. nil).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the year decreased by 3%

to 31.7p from 32.7p due principally to the impact of the
exceptional itemns discussed above. On an adjusted basis,
earnings per share increased 10% from 375p to 41.3p. The
weighted average number of shares increased from 331.7m
t© 334.2m principally due to new shares 1ssued in fulfilment
of share schemes that vested in the year.

Dividends

Given the Group's good performance, the Board's
confidence in HomeServe's continued short-term resilience
and 1ts future prospects, the Board is proposing to increase
the final dividend to 17.8p per share (FY19: 16 2p) to be paid
on 3 August 2020 to shareholders on the register on 3 July
2020.

Together with the interim dividend declared in November
2013 of 5.8p (November 2018: 5.2p}, this represents a 10%
increase in the wtal ordinary dividend payrment for the year
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of 23.6p (FY13, 21.4p), which is 1.75x covered by the FY20
adjusted earnings per share (FY1S9: 1.75x).

Financing

in FY20 the Group continued to target net debt in the range
of 1.0-2.0x adjusted EBITDA, measured at 31 March each
year. With adjusted EBITDA of £275 3m and net debt of
£509.0m, including c.£60m of lease liabilities at 31 March
2020 following the adoption of IFRS 16 in this financial year,
the Group was inside its target range at 1.8x. Due to the
ordinary seasonality of the business, net debt 1s expected to
ncrease at the next half year before declining, absent any
future MGA,

Excluding lease liabilities, gross debt was ¢.£580m and cash
was ¢.£131m, giving the Group cver £330m of headrocom
against total available faciliies of £780m. Included within
the facilities is a new £E50m revolving credit facility added on
30 March 2020. With this headroom and with only E36m of
the facilities due within the next 12 months the Group is well
positioned to address the chatlenges posed by COVID-19,

Net interest and borrowing costs paid increased to £18.5m
{FY19: £9.9m) principally due to the higher net debt figure
year on year and a full year's fixed interest charge on the
c.£E175m US Private Placement agreed in October 2018

Ata Company only level HomeServe has replaced
intercompany receivables with an injection of capital into
its intermediary holding companies to better match their
funding requirements. There is no impact from this to the
consolidated Group financing position.

Foreign exchange impact

The impact of changes in the Euro and USD exchange rates
between FY19 and FY20 resulted in a £9.1m increase in the
reported revenue and a £1.3m increase in adjusted operating
profit of the international businesses as summarised in the
table below, largely as a result of a beneficial moverment in
the US dellar. The impact of foreign exchange on statutory
operating profit was in line with this.

With an increasing proportion of HorneServe's profits
generated overseas, the potential translation impact of
foreign exchange movements on reported profits may have

Foreign exchange impact
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a larger impact. A ten cent movement in the FY20 average
UsSD rate of 1.27 and the Euro rate of 115 would have had
approximately a £7.0m and £5 0m impact respectively on full
year adjusted operating profit.

The impact of future movements in the Yen in FY21
following HomeServe's new joint venture in Japan is not
expected to be material.

IFRS 16

HomeServe has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective ‘Asset = Liability’ approach with a date of
initial application of 1 April 2019, Comparative information
provided in this announcement has not been restated. The
effect of IFRS 16 on the income statement is to remove
operating lease charges previously shown within ‘operating
costs’, replacing them with depreciation and interest
charges that now result from the capitalisation of "Right of
Use Assets” and the recording of "Lease Liabilities” in the
consolidated balance sheet (see note 2 Accounting Policies).

There 15 no matenal impact on FY20 PBTA as a resuit of
adopting IFRS 16. The effect on adjusted operating profit at
a Group level 1s a reduction of £0.2m with the segmental
breakdown shown in the Glossary, at the end of this
announcement {see note 2).

Customers

HomeServe Membership's growth strategy aims for the
pusiness to provide its products to more homeowners.
It does this by successfully marketing its products to end
consumers and by delivering high standards of service.
HomeServe's customer KPI measures its success in
achieving this aim.

Under [FRS 15 a customer is defined as ‘a party that has
contracted with an entity to obtain goods or services' In
the Membership businesses where the Group acts as an
intermediary selling contracts and insurance policies to end
consumers, the 'IFRS 15 customer’ 1s considered t¢ be the
underwriter with which the Group has contracted to sell
pelicies, The Glossary at the end of this announcement
provides further detail on customer definitions and the
associated effect this has on revenue recognition.

Effect on (Em)

Average exchange rate Revenue Adj. operating profit

2020 2019 Change 2020 2020
North America ) 1.27 131 (3%} 121 22
France € 115 113 1% {1.4) (0.7)
Spain € 115 1.13 1% {1.5) (02
Home Experts * 3 115 113 1% (0.1) -
Total Internationat 91 13

*Home Expertsis reported in GBP due to the different currencies used by the operating businesses within the segment This table shows the impact of foreign exchange maovements in

the Euro for the results of Habitissimo
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Section 172(1) statement

This statement aligns to the Section 172(1) staternent
requirernents contained in Section 414C7A of the
Companies Act 2006 {'the Act’). it focuses on how the
Directors have had regard during the year to the matters set
out in Section 172(1) (a) to f) of the Act when performing
their duties by incerporating information from other areas of
the Annual Report to avold unnecessary duplication.

In the performance of its duty to promote the success

of the Company, the Board has regard to a number of
matters, including considering the views of shareholders
and the Company's other key stakeholders to ensure it fully
understands the potential impacts of the decisions it makes
for cur stakeholders, the environment and the communities
inwhich we operate,

The Board has had regard to the following matters:

Long-term results - the likely consequences of any decision in the
long-term

HomeServe's key stakeholders and the way in which we
Interact and engage with them are shown on page 18. Whilst
these relationships are generally managed on a day-to-day
basis by the tearns and Boards of our local businesses, certain
key decisions affecting our overall strategy or impacting our
principal risks will be escalated for discussion at Executive

and Plc Board Level. Key matters discussed in the year and
thelr impact on, arnongst others, employees, custormers

and sharehotders such as our COVID-19 response and the
acquisition of eLocal are detailed on page 59.

The governance and processes that the Company operates to
ensure that relevant matters are considered by the Board are
set out In the Governance report.

The table below identifies where, in the Annual Report,
information on the issues, factors and stakeholders the Board
has considered in respect of Section 172(1).

Qur workforce - the interests of our people

Our business relationships — the importarce of developing the
Group's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

The community and our environment — the impact of the Group's
operations on the commuriy and the environmment

Qur reputation — our desire to maintain our reputation for high
standards of business conduct

Cur shareholders — the need to act fairly as between members of
the Company

More information: Page
Strategic report

Chairman's statement ]
Chief Executive's review 6
Market overview 10
Business model 12
Strategy 14
KPls 1G
Principal nsk and uncertainties 26
Viability statement 47
Governance

Board leadership and company purpose 57
Strategic report

Business model 12
Resources, relationships and responsibitities 18
Governance

Board leadershup and company purpose 57
Nomination Committee report 70
People Comrmittee report 72
Strategic report

Market overview 10
Business model 12
Resources, relationships and responsibilities 18
Governance

Board leadership and company purpose 57
Strategic report

Resources, relationships and responsiilities 18
Strategic report

Chairman’s statement 4
Chief Executive's review 6
Resources, relationships and responsibiities 18
Strategic report

Chairmary's statement 4
Resources, relationships and responsibiiies 18
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Chairman's overview 52
Board leadership and company purpose 57
Directors’ report 106
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Viability statement

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Gaovernance Code July 2018, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Group over a three year
pericd to 31 March 2023. The Directors believe that a
three year forward looking period is appropriate as it

is aligned to the timeframe that management focus
upon, the performance period in respect of the long-
term incentive scheme for senior management, and
it is the period of assessment for recoverable values of
cash generating units.

The Group has a formalised process of budgeting, reporting
and review along with procedures to forecast its profitability,
capital posttion, funding requirements and cash flows. These
plans provide information to the Directors on a regular

and timely basis and are used tc ensure the adequacy

of resources avallable for the Group to meet its business
objectives, both on & short-term and strategic basis. The
plans for the period commencing on 1 April 2020 were
initially reviewed by the Executive Committee in February
2020 and subsequently approved by the Board in March
2020 prior to the potential impact of COVID-19 being fully
assessed.

As a result of the COVIC-19 pandemic all businesses have
subseguently modelled scenaros with varying levels of
severity; considering different tmelnes for emerging

from lockdowns and the resultant impacts on customer,
employee and supplier mobility and how this impacts profits
and cash flows. All businesses have also considered potential
upside factors such as increased demand as situations ease.
These scenarios have also been reviewed by members of the
Executive Committee and were approved by the Plc Board in
April 2020.

HomeServe's rapid response to dealing with the crisis
provides confidence in its ability to meet a variety of trading
and operational challenges. Around 6,000 office-based staff
were mobilised to work from home ahead of government
impesed lockdowns and front ine engineers have continued
to deliver high levels of service whilst completing emergency
repairs safely for customers. Key to maintaining a good

level of service in the UK has been the ability to keep the
supply chain open safely and effectively in order to provide
directly employed engineers with appropriate protective
equipment as well as the parts and materials necessary

to complete repairs. A Group COVID-19 taskforce was
assembled with representatives from all areas of the business,
meeting reqularly to discuss emerging issues, review Ml

{e.g. cancellation attempts, claims logged, completed jobs,
absence rates} and enact action plans.

The situation has been more difficull for the tracdes providing
non-emergency services in HomeServe's Home Experts
businesses Checkatrade, Habitissimo and eLocal but in
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Checkatrade, for example, the support provided to trades in
order to keep them on the platform will ensure Checkatrade
and its members will emerge from the lockdown in the
strongest position possible. In the year ended 31 March 2020
revenue from Home Experts represented less than 10% of
total Group revenue and the businesses incurred total losses
of £E13.9m as they are stll in an investment phase. The impact
of reduced Home Experts performance on the overall short-
terr results of the Group is therefore less significant whilst
over the longer term the expectation is that these businesses
return to growth once investment plans are restarted as the
crisis subsides and lockdowns are eased

Having demonstrated its ability to provide a continued

level of service, the response of HomeServe's customers
further supports confidence that the business model is well
equipped to deal with increased challenge. Group retention
remained stable at 82% through Apnl and early May 2020,
cancellation attempts remained in line with historic trends
and customer satisfaction remained strong.

In making this year's Viability statement, the Board alse
carried out a rchust assessment of the principal risks facing
the Group. The Principal risk and uncertainties set out the
principal strategic, operational and financial risks which could
threaten HomeServe's business model, future performance
and growth plans and its lguidity or solvency. HomeServe
has a robust risk management framework (see page 26)
which addresses its risk appetite and nsk policy and continues
to review both emerging risks and opportunities. In the
financial year ended 31 March 2020 HomeServe formally
docurmented Sustainability as a new risk. All major risks are
scored based on their potential impact and likelihood and are
reviewed regularly by the Audit & Risk Committee.

Various severe but plausible stress tests have been performed
both on individual and cambined scenarios which modelled;

« theimpact of the loss of a key partnership in the
Membership business

« theimpact of reduced customer focus across the Group

« market disruption from a new competitor, with particular
reference to Nerth America, the Group's largest current
opportunity

= the impact of new or amended regulation and legislation

= the impact of losing a key underwriting relationship in the
Membership business

» the impact of an extended lockdown period on consumer
demand and trade subscriptions at Checkatrade

« the impact of operational challenges resLilting from
COVID-18 including increased usage of subcontractors
over directly employed engineers,
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Viability statement

Continued

One new scenario has been introduced to Membership as
a result of COVID-19. The root cause of other reasonably
plausible impacts are the sarme under COVID-19 as under
HomeServe's normal viability assessments. However, in
recognition of the significance of the COVID-19 impact the
range of Impacts these assessments censider have been
maodelled with increased severity over both the short and
long-term.

The new scenarioin relation to requiring additional use of
subcontractors in the UK would result in addiional expense
incurred in the short-term as the business carries the largely
fixed payrolt costs of an under-utilised engineer network.
However the flexibility of being able to use subcontractors
ensures that customer claims continue to be serviced - a key
driver for strong retention rates which is one of Membership’s
key business drivers.

With specific reference to the Home Experts businesses,
scenarios have been modelled to refiect trades not buying
leads (at eLocal and Habitissimo) due to reduced consumer
demand/the inability of trades to carry out work due to social
distancing requirements, or trades being offered discounted
fees (at Checkatrade) for an extended period of time together
with a slower future growth in the number of trades on the
Checkatrade platform

Stress tests indicated that no singié scenario would impact
the viability of the Group over the next three years. As might
be expected the impact increases if different risks were to
materialise simultaneously or continue for longer. However,
given the nature and relative diversification of the business

in terms of both geography and the Group's global business
lines, it is considered unlikely that such scenarios in sufficient
number would occur. In such scenarios HomeServe would
also be able to take decisions to protect the profitability of the
business over a three year penod by, for example;

choosing t move where it gllocates its resources

» choosing o reduce its investment of resources
considered move discretionary I nature eg, scaling back

marketing investment to offset any reductions inincome

choosing to reduce the size and scale of back office
functions to match any reductions in income.

In addition to measures enacted in response to COVID-19
detailed above, the Directors’ assessment has been made
with reference to a number of factors which both individually
and collectively can help mitigate or reduce any threat to its
ongoing viability. These include, for example;

» the geographical spread of HomeServe's operations

a large and diverse portfolio of commercial partnerships

high customer retention

a strong financial position with over £330m of headroom
in its debt facilities at 31 March 2020

historic and ongoing compliance with all banking
covenants

a small, but increasing, contribution from other business
lines with Home Experts and HVAC each growing
revenues this financial year.

HomeServe's business model has demoenstrated resilience
during previous times of economic downturn e.g.
throughout the financial crisis of 2008 and 2009 when
retention rates rernained stable across the Group. In
particular, N Spain, where the financial crisis was particularly
pronounced, the business was also able to successfully grow
its customer count. Mere recently, Spain has demonstrated
the resilience of the model following the loss of a major
partner; the retention rate on the back book has increased
from 80% to 83% in FY20, and thanks to efficient cost control
and the diversification provided by the HVAC and Claims
businesses, both revenue and profits grew in FY20.

The business is gecgraphically spread across the UK,
Continental Eurcpe, North America and now with an early
stage presence irn Japan. In each established territory, the
business has long-term contractual relationships with utility
businesses providing access to 111m households under Utility
Partner brands. Retenticn rates are high across all established
businesses, resulting in stable and recurring cash flows from a
large, diverse base of 8.3m customers.

Considering the Group's current position, the principal

risks and the Board's assessment of the Group's future, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group wiil
be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over a period of at least three years to 31 March 2023.
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Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the
facters likely to affect its future development, including
the potential impact of COVID-19, on its performance
and position are set cut in the Strategic report. The
Directors have reviewed the Group's budget, forecast
and cash flows for FY21 and beyond, and concluded
that they are in line with their expectations with regards
to the Group’s strategy and future growth plans.

CovID-19
CCVID-19 is having a deep and pronounced effect on the
world economy and the repercussions for many aspects of

society including, but not imited to, future economic growth,

government policy and changmg consumer attitudes and
behaviour are likely to be felt for some time. The Directors
have assessed additional stress test scenarios which model
the potential impact of COVID-15 across the Group's
different businesses and have alsc considered possible wider
macro tmplications. There is a high degree of uncertainty

for many businesses but HormeServe's swift response to the
crisis means it 1s well placed to face the ongoing challenges
the crisis presents.

The business responded quickly and effectively to be able

tc continue operating and respond to customers’ home
emergencies throughout the height of the lockdowns in
March and April 2020. Trading metrics remained stable over
this period with, for example, Group retention remaining

at 82%, cancellation trends in line with histeric trends and
strong customer satisfaction scores. Having demonstrated
its ability to continue to provide a good level of service,

the resilience of the Group’s business model during times

of previous economic crisis provides confidence than
customers will continue to retain their cover and use the
service. The Group's healthy funding position with £330m of
headroom on existing debt facilities and ongoing covenant
compliance provide a further level of confidence for the
future. Further detail on HomeServe's response to COVID-1S9
and its potential impacts on the business can be found in the
Chief Executive's review and In the Viability statement.
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Having also reviewed the Group’s positicn in respect of other
material uncertainties, including Brexit, which is reviewed

IN more detail within the Principal risk and uncertainties on
page 26, the Directors have concluded that there are no
iterms that woutd affect going concern or that should be
separately disclosed. The Directors have concluded that they
have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

David Bower
Chief Financial Officer
19 May 2020
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Non-financial information statement

Continued

The Group seeks to comply with the Non-financial Reporting requirements as detailed in the Companies Act 2006. The
below table, and information it refers to, is iIntended to help stakeholders understand our position on key non-financial
matters. Copies of policies referred to in the tabie can be accessed here: homeserveple.com/about-us/corporate-

governance/policies

Requirement

Qur policies

Where you can find out more

Anti-bribery and
anti-corruption

Employees

Environment

Financial Crimes and Sanctions
Whistleblowing

Code of Business Conduct

HomeServe does not currently have a Group
wide policy on the environment. Individual
businesses engage in different activities for
the benefit of therr local envirocnments.

Human rights

HomeServe does not currently have a
human rights policy but all businesses

are expected to comply with key policies
regarding e.g. employment rights and equal
opportunities.

Social activities

Description of the principal
risks and impact of business
activity

HomeServe does nat have a Group wide policy for Social Matters. Qur individual

Resources, relaticnships and responsibilites
page 23.

Resources, relationships and responsibilities
page 23.

Resources, relationships and responsibilities
page 25.

Resources, relationships and responsibilities
page 23.

businesses engage in different activities and support charitable initiatives for the benefit
of their local communities — more detail on these can be found in the Resources,
relationships and responsibllities report on page 24

Description of the business
model

Non-financial KPIs

Strategic report 2020

For and on behalf of the Board

Richard Harpin

Founder and Chief Executive

19 May 2020

N/A Principal risk and uncertainties pages 26
to 31

N/A Business model pages 12 and 13.
KPIs pages 16 and 17.

N/A
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Putting our customers first

Safeguarding the elderly

Keeping the elderly safe is crucial, and all our
tradespeople are taking strict precautions when
visiting the homes of the mast vulnerable.

A 93-year-old customer from Londen praised
the considerate steps taken by Kevin from
Harrow, Wembley and Uxbridge-based Sirius
AV to fix her TV aerial. Not only did he carry out
all communication by telephone from his car
to adhere to social distancing, he was praised
highly for being "polite and hardworking ” The
customer couldn’t have praised him highly
encugh for his considerate approach to social
distancing and even gave a tip because of his
professicnal service.

Checkatrade.com

Hodai 16318408
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Chairman'’s overview
JM Barry Gibson

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to present this year's Corporate governance report. As a Board, we continue to believe that good corporate
governance underping good business performance. We are accountable to our shareholders for ensuring that governance
processes are In place and are effective and we are fully committed to meeting the reguired standards of corporate
governance. The application of the new UK Corporate Governance Code has provided an opportunity for us 1o review how
our governance framewaork operates and whilst there are always opportunities to learn and develop, | was pleased that no
significant changes were needed to our existing practices.

Purpese and Board focus
As explained in my introduction to the Strategic report, our purpose is to make home repairs and improvernents easy, and |
believe that clarty of purpose makes it easier for the Board to operate and make decisions.

During the year the Board focused on promoting a disciplined approach to investing for growth, guided by our purpose

and cur ambition to be abte do every job, in every home. As presented at our Investor Day in June 2019, we believe that the
patential for highest returns is from investing in North America and in Home Experts. Acguiring new partners is the key to
accelerating growth in North America and the Board had the benefit during the year of visiting the US to review and challenge
the team’s plans.

On Home Experts, { am pleased to welcome elLocal to the Group. The apportunity to enter the Home Experts market in
our largest territory was supported wholeheartedly by the Board and we will continue to keep close to developments as the
business settles into the Group.

Stakeholders

The new reporting requirements in respect of stakeholders led us to review how we consider the views of, and engage with,
our stakehaolders. We considered our activity in respect of each of the key stakehalders and where, as the business develops
and grows, future activity should be focused

Shareholder engagement

All resolutions were passed at the 2019 AGM but there was 31% oppaosition to the Directors’ remuneration report due to
concerns around payments to two Directors who left us in 2018 We reviewed our remuneration poticy as a result of the
feedback recerved and consulted with our major shareholders. As a result of that consultation process, we have updated the
policy on termination payments. Cur remuneration policy will be subject to a vote at the 2020 AGM and further information
on the updated policy ¢an be found on pages 85 to 92.
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Leadership and board effectiveness

As a Board, we need to ensure that we have the right people and leadership to deliver cur strategy and plans. Talentis an
ongoing challenge in a growing business and the Board, through the People Committee, has encouraged Management to
ensure that we have the right resource to support our stretching plans for growth. We are making good progress in identifying
new talent and in developing our internal talent.

| arm proud of how the business has reacted to the COVID-19 crisis. The way in which the leadership team and the workforce
rose to the multipte challenges presented by the crisis epitomised our three key cultural behaviours of courage, persistence
and integrity.

During the year, a questionnaire based review of the Board and its committees was facilitated by Lintstock Limited. Further
detail on the review is provided on page 68. Based on this review and my experience as Chairman, | am satisfied that the
Board and its Cormmittees are performing efficiently and that there is an appropriate balance of skitls, expenence, knowledge
and independence to enable the Board to discharge its duties effectively.

Board changes

Stella David reached the end of her third term of appeintment in November 2019. Having consulted with shareholders, we
have appointed her for one final term so that she can continue to lead the development of the People Committee. | am
delighted that we have been able to retain Stella. As she is no lenger considered to be independent, she was replaced as
Senior iIndependent Director by Katrina Cliffe,

Future outlook

The COVID-19 pandemic has created great uncertainty for businesses across the world and there will no doubt be difficult
times ahead for everyone. Qur appreciaton of our homes has never been greater which means our purpose of making
home repairs and improvements easy has never been more relevant. | feel sure that continued discipling and focus at Board
level will help us thrive despite the challenging envircnment,

JM Barry Gibson
Chairman
19 May 2020
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Compliance and other statements

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The principles set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code’) ermmphasise the value of good corporate
governance to the long-term sustainable success of listed companies. These principles, and the supporting provisions
cover five broad themes and the Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company has appropriate frameworks in place to

comply with the requirements of the Code.

The Board betieves that throughout FY20, the Company has applied the principles and comptied with the relevant provisions
of the Cede save that our Chairman has been in post for longer than nine years and we are continuing to work to align
the pension contributions for Executive Directors to those available to the workforce. Explanations of these two points are

provided on pages 61 and 83 respectively.
The Code is available at http://www.frc.org.uk

Application of UK Corporate Governance Code Principles

The Code has placed increased emphasis on "apply and explain” with regard to the Principles of the Code. Our explanations
about how we have applied the main principles of the Code can be found as follows:

Board leadership and company purpose

Principle A

A successful company is led by an effective and entrepreneurial board,
whose role 1s to promote the long-term sustainable success of the
company, generating value for shareholders and contributing to wider
society.

Strategic report pages 2 to 51
Governance pages 52 to 110
Directors’ remuneration report pages 82 to 105

Principle B

The board should establish the company’s purpose, values and strategy,
and satisfy itself that these and 1ts culture are aligned. All directors must
act with integrity, lead by example and promote the desired culture.

Strategic report pages 2 to 51

Board leadership and company purpose pages
57t 60

Dwviston of responsibilities pages 61 to 64
Directors’ remuneration report pages 82 to 105

Principle C

The board should ensure that the necessary resources are in place for
the company to meet its objectives and measure performance against
them. The board should also establish a framework of prudent and
effective controls, which enable risk to be assessed and managed.

Resources, relationships and respensibilities
pages 19to 25

Principal risks and uncertainties pages 26 t¢ 31
Section 172{1) Statement page 46

Audit, nisk and internal control pages 73 to 75
Audit & Risk Committee report pages 76 to 81

Principle D

In order for the company to meet its responsibilities to shareholders ancd
stakeholders, the board should ensure effective engagement with, and
encourage participation from, these parties.

Resources, relationships and responsibilities
pages 19to 25

Section 172(1) staterment page 46
Shareholder relations page 60

Principle E

The board should ensure that workforce policies and practices are
consistent with the company’s values and support its long-term
sustainable success. The workforce should be able to raise any matters
of concern

Rescurces, relationships and responsibilities
pages 19 to 25

Section 172{1) staternent page 46

Board leadership and company purpose pages
57t0 60

Directers’ remuneration report pages 82 to 105
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Division of responsibilities

Principle £

The chair leads the board and is responsible for its overall effectiveness in
directing the company. They should demaonstrate objective judgement
throughout their tenure and promeate a culture of openness and debate.
In addition, the chair facilitates constructive board relations and the
effective contribution of all non-executive directors, and ensures that
directors receive accurate, timely and clear information

Beard leadership and company purpose pages
5710 60
Division of responsibilities pages 61 1o 64

Principle G

The board should include an appropriate combination of executive and
non-executive [and, in particular, independent non-executive) directors,
such that no one individual or small group of individuals dominates

the board's decision-making. There should be a clear division of
responsibilities between the leadership of the board and the executive
leadership of the company's business.

Division of responsibilities pages 6110 64
Board bicgraphies pages 65 to 67

Frinciple H

Non-executive directors should have sufficient time to meet their board
responsibilities. They should provide constructive chalienge, strategic
guidance, offer specialist advice and hotd management to account

Board leadership and company purpose pages
5710 60

Divisicn of responsibilities pages 61 to 64
Audit & Risk Committee report pages 76 to 81

Principle |

The board, supported by the company secretary, should ensure that it
has the policies, processes, Information, time and resources it needs in
order to function effectively and efficiently.

Composition, succession and evaluation

Resources, relationships and responsibilities
pages 19 to 25

Board leadership and comipany purpose pages
57 tc 60

Division of responsibitities pages 61 to 64
Audit, risk and internal controt pages 731tc /5
Audit & Risk Committee report pages 76 to 81
Directors' remuneration report pages 82 to 105

Principle J

Appointments to the board shauld be subject to a formal, rigerous

and transparent procedure, and an effective succession plan should be
maintained for board and senior management. Both appointments and
succession plans should be based on merit and objective criteria and,
within this context, should promote diversity of gender, social and ethnic
backgrounds, cognitive and personal strengths.

Nomination Committee report pages 70 to 71
Compaosition, succession and evaluation
page 68

Principle K

The board and its committeas should have a combination of skills,
experience and knowledge. Censideration should be given to the length
of service of the board as a whole and membership regularly refreshed.

Board biographies pages 65 to 67

Principle L

Annual evaluation of the board should consider its composition, diversity
and how effectively members work together to achieve objectives.
Individual evaluation should demonstrate whether each director
continues to contribute effectively.

Nomination Committee report pages 70 to 71
Composition, successicn and evaluation pages
68 1c 69

Audit, risk and internal control

Principle M

The board should establish formal and transparent policies and
procedures to ensure the independence and effectiveness of internal
and external audit functions and satisfy itself on the integrity of financial
and narrative statements.

Audit, risk and internal control pages 73 tc 75
Audit & Risk Committee report pages 76 to 81
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Compliance and other statements
Continued

Audit, risk and internal control

Principle N

The board should present a fair, balanced and understandable Strateqgic report pages 2 to 51

assessment of the company’s position and prospects. Audit, risk and internal control pages 73 t¢ 75
Audit & Risk Committee report pages 76 to 81
Financial statements pages 122 to 191

Principle O

The board should establish procedures to manage risk, oversee the Principal risks and uncertainties pages 26 to 3t

internal control framework, and determine the nature and extent of the Viability staterent pages 47 to 49
principal risks the company is willing to take in order tc achieve its long- Audit, risk and intemal contrel pages 73 to 75

term strategic cbjectives, Audit & Risk Committee report pages 76 to 81
Principle P

Remuneration policies and practices shoutd be designed to support Strategic report pages 2 to 51

strategy and promote long-term sustainable success. Executive Board leadership and company purpose page
remuneration should be aligned to company purpose and values, and 57t0 60

be clearly linked to the successful delivery of the company's long-term Directors' remuneration report pages 82 to 105
strategy. )
Principle Q

A formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive Directors’ remuneration report pages 82 to 105
remuneration and determining director and senior management

remuneration should be established. No director should be involved in

deciding their own remuneration outcome.

Principle

Directors should exercise independent judgement and discretion when Directors’ remuneration report pages 82 to 105
authorising remuneration outcomes, taking account of company and
individual performance, and wider circumstances.

Viability and going concern
Statements in respect of viability and going concern are set out on pages 47 to 49.

Robust assessment of emerging and principal risks

The Board confirms that they have carried cut a robust assessment of emerging and principal risks facing the Group
{including those which would threaten the business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity), its appetite with
respect to those risks and the systemns required to mitigate and manage them. Details on the review process are set out on
pages 73 to 75. Further details on the emerging and principal risks and uncertainties can be found on pages 26 to 31

Annual review of systems of risk management and internal control

The Board monitored the Group's systemns of risk management and internal control and carried out a review of their
effectiveness. The Board concluded that overall, these systermns were effective. Details on the review process are set out on
pages /3to /5.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Directors consider that, taken as a whole, this Annual Report is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's position, performance, business model and strategy. Details on
the process for arriving at this conclusion are set out on page 79.

Section 172(1)
The Directors have performed their duty under Section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006. The staterment on how this duty
has been fulfilied is contained in the Strategic report on page 46.
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Board leadership and company purpose

The Board
The Board is responsible for the effective leadership and long-term success of the Group and cur purpose is at the heart of
Board discussions. As a Board we regularly discuss and review:

» Our business model and its sources of value that give us advantage

« Our business performance and our progress towards our strategic goals

= Qur customers and how we can ensure that they are at the heart of everything we do

= Qur people and how we can develop and support them to provide the service our customers expect
« Qur stakeholders and how we engage with them

+ Qur governance and controls.

HomeServe's business model is based on five key scurces of value — partnerships, marketing expertise, customer service,
local networks and financials. The Board discusses all of these, and their potential impacts, on a regular basis but the focus
changes depending on business priorities and where the biggest potential lies. Home Experts continues to be a key focus
and ongoing investrment in that business has been made possible by continued growth in Membership.

There has been continued focus on the plan to acquire HVYAC businesses in each of cur territories with the Board regularly
reviewing the performance of acquired businesses along with the development of the strategy.

We plan to continue to grow our business internaticnally and the Board has regularly discussed potential opportunities in
new territories. Regular updates have been received on the development of our joint venture in Japan, where the first utility
partnership was signed in January 2020.

As well as locking for new opportunities, the Board also reviews existing activity and considers whether there is anything that
the business should stop deing. During the year this led to the sate of our stake in our ltalian associate.

Our purpose, values and culture

Qur purpose is to make home repairs and improvements easy and this is underpinned by our values. The culture set by the
Board is intended to deliver performance and growth whilst maintaining high standards of business conduct. Central to our
focus on culture has been the development of the HomeServe Way (see page 20} which sets cut the essential behaviours,
skills and knowledge needed to be effective at HomeServe, based on the fundamentals of courage, persistence and integrity.

The People Committee of the Board (see page 72) reviews the results of the regular employee engagement surveys and uses
these reviews as the principal means of assessing the culture across the Group. Questionnaires are completed by emptoyees
on an ancnymous basis and the process is facilitated by an external provider.

The Board gains valuable insight anc feedback from the Executive Directors in respect of the culture and behaviour across
the Group and the internal audit function also considers culture as part of its reviews.
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Board leadership and company purpose

Continued

Board Activity in FY20

Strategy, operations and finance

» Received regular updates from the Executives on trading

performance

»  Approved the annual budget and business plan

= Reviewed and approved the Group's FY19 and haif year
FY20 results (including dividends)

= Approved the FY19 Annual Report inciuding a fair,
balanced and understandable assessment) and 2019
AGM Notice

« Reviewed the Group’s debt, capital and funding
arrangemenits

« Received updates on business plans and strategic
initiatives (Checkatrade, Whole Home Warranty,
HomeServe Now, On Demand to Policy}

Reviewed the Group’s brand strategy

Considered a number of internationat development
opportunities

Receved regular updates on M&A activity
Received updates on technology related developments

Discussed and input into the content for the Investor Day
held in June 2019

Considered and approved a proposal to accelerate the
purchase of management’s shares in Habitissimo

Approved the acquisition of a majority holding in elocal
Discussed and evaluated the HVAC strategy

Discussed envircnmental strategy and approved a
number of actions

« Reviewed the succession glan for the Board and
Executive team

« Considered organisational design and approved
changes required to deliver the Group's strategy

«  Discussed the talent pipeline and in particular, how
diversity could be improved

» Received regular updates from the Chair of the People
Committee

+ Received updates on social responsibility activity in
each of the businesses

Leadership and people

Internal controt and risk management

Reviewed the principal risks and uncertainties

Reviewed and confirmed the Group’s viability
statement and going concern status

Rewviewed and validated the effectiveness of the
Group's systems of internal controls and risk
management

Received updates on health and safety
Considered and approved the Group's tax strategy

Governance and legal

Governance Code

the new Code

+ Received updates on corporate governance developments, in particular, compliance with the new UK Corporate
= Reviewed the matters reserved for the Board and the terms of reference of its committees to ensure compliance with

« Received reports on engagement with investors and other stakeholders
« Conducted an externally facilitated evaluation of the Board's effectiveness and discussed the outcome
* Received reqular reports from the Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee
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Qur stakeholders
Engagement with our main stakehalders is summarised on page 18 of the Strategic report.

Cur business environment presents us with cpportunities and challenges and it is vital for the Board to respond to these while
continuing to grow our business and maintain our reputation. The Board seeks to understand the views of our stakeholders
and engage with many of therm to ensure that stakeheolder interests can be considered during our discussions and decision
making.

The importance and influence of stakeholder groups differs depending on the matter being discussed. Itis possible for
stakeholder interests to conflict and when this happens, the Board uses its jJudgement to reach a final decision.

The Board is advised of stakeholder views in a number of different ways:
+  The monthly Business Review

» Business updates

+ Presentations on strategic developments

= Updates on international development

» People Committee updates

+ Succession plans

+ Employee engagement survey results

+ Annual General Meeting

« Corporate governance and regulatory developrnent updates
» Presentations from external advisers and internal experts.

Stella David has been appointed as the designated workforce engagement Director and this activity is covered in the People
Commitiee report on page 72.

Detailed below are some examples of matters discussed during the year ang how the Board considered our stakeholder
groups.

Matter discussed Decisions How the Board or Committee had regard to stakeholders Stakeholder groups considered
COVID-19 response  Decision taken not Consideration was given to: Shareholders, employees,
to furlough staff and +  how we could maintain our services custormers, community,
to launch services to customers (particularly vulnerable government
to support health customers) during the crisis
workers in the UK + how we could keep cur workforce safe
during the crisis + how our core skills coutd be leveraged to

support key workers

« the impact of these decisicns on our
ability to deliver our strategic plans and
returns for shareholders.

Acquisition of Decision taken to Consideration was given to: Shareholders, customers,
elocal acquire a majority - extending the range of services available  employees

shareholding in o our customers

elocal « use of our capital and the impact on

returns for shareholders

« the cultural fit of the business with
HomeServe and how it would be
managed.
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Board leadership and company purpose
Continued

Relations with shareholders

The Board, on the Company’s behalf, recegnises the need to maintain an active dialogue with its shareholders. The Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer meet reqularly with institutional investors and analysts to discuss the Company's
performance and all shareholders have access to the Chairman and the other Directors, who are available to discuss any
questions which they may have in relation to the running of the Cempany. All major shareholders were given the opportunity
to meet with the Chairman during the year but only one chose to do so.

We ensure that all Directors are fully aware of the views of major shareholders. Copies of all analysts’ research relating to
the Company are circulated to Directors upon publication. The Board receives a monthly tnvestor Relations report which
inctudes an analysis of the Company’s shareholder register as well as any feedback received from sharehclders and analysts.
Feedback is actively sought following the Interim and Preliminary Results presentations and presented to the Board.

All resolutions were passed at the 2019 AGM but there was 31% opposition to the Directors’ remuneration report due to
concerns around payments to two Directors whe left us in 2018, We reviewed cur remuneration policy as a result of the
feedback received and consulted with our major shareholders. As a result of that consuliation process, we have updated the
policy on termination payments. Further details are set out on page 83.

The Board encourages shareholders to attend the Annual General Meeting and is always willing to answer questions, either
in the meeting itself or, more informally, afterwards. In addition, shareholders may contact HomeServe direct, either through
the website or by telephone.

Whistleblowing

A whistleblowing policy is in place and allows employees, franchisees and sub-contractors who wish to raise any issues
of concern relating to the Group’s activities to do so on a confidential basis by contacting an external hotline. The pelicy is
available on our website http:/fwww.homeserveplc.com/fabout-us/corporate-governance/policies

All reports are formally investigated by the Assurance & Risk Director with support from relevant functions within the business.
Incidents and their outcomes are reported to the Audit & Risk Committee and the Board. A number of calls were made 1o the
external hotline during the year and management action was taken where appropriate. N issues were raised that required
any direct action from the Board.
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Division of responsibilities

The Chairman of the Beard, Barry Gibson, is responsitle for the effectiveness of the Board. He was independent on
appointrment but has now served as Chairman since 2010 . As reported last year, we consulted with shareholders and gained
support to appomnt Barry for one final term {from Apnl 2019 to Apnil 2022) during which we would start a process to recruit his
successor. That process IS now underway.

The roles of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior Independent Director are clearly defined and written specifications are
avallable on our website: http:.//www.homeserveplc.com/about-us/corporate-governance/

At least haif of the Board, excluding the Chairman, are independent Non-Executive Directors; there are five Non-Executive
Directors {excluding the Chairman} and three Executive Directors. Four of the Non-Executive Directors are considered to
be independent. Stella Dawvid is no longer considered to be independent as she has served on the Board for more than nine
years. Shareholders were consulted before her appointment was renewed for one final term.

Stella David acted as Senior Independent Director until she reached the end of her third term of appointment in November
2019 Katrina Cliffe replaced Stella as Senior Independent Director.

The Board
The Board has a Schedule of Matters specifically reserved to it for decision and has approved the written terms of reference of
the various Committees to which it has delegated its authority in certain matters.

Matters reserved to the Board include:

» the Company's future strategy

+ the approval of major financial commitments

* the acquisition of significant companies or businesses

« the Company's internal controls

« the recommendation or approval of dividends

« the approval of preliminary and interim financial statements
« appointments to the Board and its Cormnmittees.

The full schedule is available on our website http:.//'www.homeserveplc.com/about-us/corporate-governance/our-board

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Committees of the Board. Further detail on the work of the
Committees is provided later in the Annual Report. The terms of reference of each of the Board's Committees are available
on our website http://www.homeserveplc.com/about-us/corporate-governance/committees

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Senior Independent Director
Key responsibilities
» The effective running of the Beard = Management of the Group = Supporting the Chairman on

« Direction and focus

= Guardian of the decisicn making
process

» Provide challenge

* Ensures the Board receives accurate
timely and clear information

-

*  Maintaining relationships with
Executive and Non-Executive
Directors.

+ Developing and proposing strategy

« Implementing Board decisions

+ Maintaining an active dialogue with
the Chairman

+ Leading shareholder
communication.

governance issues

Acting as a sounding board for the
Charman and a trusted intermediary
for other Directers

Leading the annual review of the
Chairman’s performance
Leading the process to find a new
Chairman

61

Juoda. 2ibzEng

o
5

o
3

o
=4
=
=
®
2
iy
=
2
wi



Corporate governance statement | HomeServe pic Annual Report & Accounts 2020

Division of responsibilities

Continued

Shareholders

Chairman

Responsible for the effective running of the Board and guardian of the Board's decision making process.

!

The Board
Responsibie for providing leadershup to the Group

The Board sets strategic pricrities and oversees delivery in a way that supports sustainable long-term growth, takes stakeholders into
account and maintains a balanced approach to risk within a framework of effective controls

L

Board Committees

The terms of reference for each Committee are agreed by the Board. They are available in the Corporate Governance section
of the website. http://www.homeserveplc.com/fabout-us/corporate-governance/committees

» Makes recommendations
to the Board on the
appointment of Directors

* Reviews the size, structure
and composition of the
Board

« Considers succession
planning arrangements for
Directors and other semor
managers

Committee report on pages
70w 71.

= Deterrmines, agrees and
oversees the people
strategy for the Group

* Reviews the ongoing
appropriateness and
relevance of the people
strategy

= Reviews znd makes
recommendations in
respect of the resourcing
of the people strategy

Committee report on page
72.

»  Monitors, on behalf of the
Board, compliance with
and the effectiveness of,
the Group's accounting
and mternal cantrol
systems

* Reviewsthe ndependence
and effectiveness of the
internal and external
auditors.

Committee report on pages
76 to 81.

+ Determines the Group's
overallremuneration
strategy

«  Determines the
remuneration packages
of the Executive Directors
and other senior
management

+ Approves the grant and
exercise of executive
long-term incentive
arrangements and
oversees the operation of
other share-based plans
across the Group

Directors’ remuneration
report on pages 82 to 105.
The element on the activities
of the Remuneration
Committee on pages 93 to
105 are incorporated into
this statement by reference.

J

!

!

I}

Chief Executive

Responsible for the day to day running of the Group’s business and performance and the development and implementation of strategy.

L

Executive Committee
Assists the Chief Executive in the performance of his duties including.

= the development and implementation of strategy, operational plans, policies, procedures and budgets

* the monitoring of operating and financial performance

« the pniontisation and allocation of resource

= overseeing Group wide Initiatives and investments.
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Time commitment
Time cormmitment 1s discussed with prospective Non-Executive Directors as part of the recrutment process. The Board is
satisfied that all Non-Executive Directors have sufficent time to meet their commitment 1o the Company.

During the year, Barry Gibson was appointed as Chairman of GVC Holdings plc. He discussed this with the Board during the
recruitment process and it was agreed that given Barry's tenure and experience at HomeServe, coupled with the fact that he
was In his final term as Chairman, he had sufficient bandwidth to take on another Chairman role

Executive Directors may serve as a Non-Executive Director on one other board so long as this does not interfere with their
time commitment to the Company. If they do, they may retain the fees. Richard Harpin is the founder and Director of Growth
Partner LLP which invests in entrepreneurs and nurtures promising businesses. The business 1s run on a day to day basisby a
Managing Fartner.

Board and other meetings

Eight regular meetings are usually held each year to review and monitor current and forecast performance. Regular reports
on monthly financial and operational performance and other matters of importance to the Group ensure that the Board is
supplied in a timely manner with the inforrmation necessary to make informed judgements. In addition, the Board has an
annual strategy meeting to devise and discuss the Company's medium and long-term strategic focus and management
development strategy.

Regular formal and informal presentations are given in order to inform Directors of issues of importance affecting the Group.
Qccasionally, meetings of the Board are held at the Company's operating sites other than Walsall, in order to afford the
Board, particularly the Non-Executive Directors, the opportunity to meet with local management.

During FY20, the Board held its annual strategy meeting in the US where it was able to meet with the management team
as well as spend time with the wider workforce. An additional meeting was also arranged so that the Board could visit
Checkatrade's new location in Portsmouth m order to benefit from more detailed insight into that business.

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors meet at least annually without the Executives. In addition, the Senior
Independent Director held a private meeting of the Non-Executive Directors without the Chairman being present to assess
his performance. It was concluded that Barry Gibson's performance and contribution were strong and he continues to
demonstrate effective leadership and commitment to the business.

Attendance at meetings

All Directors are expected to attend ail Board and relevant Committee meetings. Details of attendance by Directors at
meetings during the year are set out in the table below. Directors who were unable to attend specific meetings reviewed
the relevant papers and provided their comments to the Chairman of the Board or Committee. Any Director who misses a
meeting will, as a matter of course, receive the minutes of that meeting for reference.

Board Audit & Risk Commitiee Remuneration Committes Peopie Cormmittee

D Bower 9/9 3/3
R Harpin 9/9 3/3
T Rusin 9/9 3/3
K Cliffe 9/9 3/3 5/5 3/3
S David - 9/9 475 373
JM B Gibson 9/9 5/5 3/3
E Fitzmaurice 9/9 3/3 1/1

O Greémillon 9/9 171

R McMillan 919 3/3 5/5 171

Stella David was unable to attend one meenng of the Rermuneranon Committee as she was appeaning as a witness in legal proceedings unrelated o the Company

Nomination Committee meetings are held on an ad hoc basis as required. In FY20, succession was considered by the
Board and diversity was considered by the Peopte Committee. As such, the standing committee did not meet during the
year. Specific sub-committees are established for new appointments to the Board and a sub-committee was established
during the year to progress the search for a new Chairman. The activities of the Nomination Committee and related sub-
committees are described on pages 70 to 71.
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Division of responsibilities
Continued

Executive Committee
Members

Richard Harpin (Chairman)
David Bower

Deb Dulsky

Mike Fairman
Guillaume Huser

John Kitzie

H Stephen Philliog
fFernando Prieto

Greg Reed

Tom Rusin

Responsibilities
The day to day running of the business rests with the Group Chief Executive, Richard Harpin. The Executive Comimittee
assists the Chief Executive in the performance of his duties including:

¢+ the development and implementation of strategy, aperational plans, policies, procedures and budgets
» the monitoring of operating and financial performance

+ the priontisation and allocation of resources

« the oversight of group wide initiatives and investments.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference which are available on our website
http://www.homeserveplc.com/about-us/corporate-governance/committees

Short biographies of the members of the Executive Committee who are not on the Board, are set out on pages 66 to 67
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Composition, succession and evaluation
Board of Directors and Executive Team

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
P

noda sbxens

JdM Barry Gibson (68) Richard Harpin (55} David Bower (48)

Chairman Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board: April 2004 Appointed to the Board: May 2001 Appeinted to the Board: February 2017

Appointed as Chairman: April 2010 Committee memberships: Executive, Committee memberships: Executive,

Committee memberships: Nomination Peaple Pecple

(Chair), Remuneration, People Richard 1s the Founder and Chief Executive David was appointed as Chief Financial

Barry was previously Group Retailing of HomeServe, which was set up n 1993 as a Officer in Fepruary 2017 He joined

Director at BAA plc, Group Chief Executive of Jjoint venture with South Staffordshire Group HomeServe in 2005 and has undertaken

Littlewoods plc and Non-Executive Director Also the founder and Non-Executive Director a number of senior dwisicnal and group

of Sormerfield plc. National Express plc, of Growth Partner LLP, invesung in and finance roles including spending six years as

Wilhlam Hill plc, SSP Group Lid, bwin party helping smali consumer businesses to step Group Finance Director Before HomeServe,

digtai entertainment plc and Non-Executive change their growth and the Enterprise Trust, he spent 12 years at Arthur Andersen, where

Chairman of Harding Brothers Holdings Ltd. a charity that encourages young enterprise, he qualified as a Chartered Accountant, and
apprenticeships and SME’s Previously a then later Delcitte LLP

Hey areas of prior experience: Retaling,

brand manager with Procter & Gamble,
travel, leisure

followed by management consultancy with
Principal current external appointments: Delotte and his own company

Key areas of prior experience: Accountancy,
audit, investor relations, mergers and

on ¢ GVC Holdi l acquisitions
airman o olaings plc : i .
9P Key areas of prior experience: Consumer Principal current external appointments: o
marketing, management consultancy, Nane 4
n
entrepreneurship 3
i
Principal current externat appointments: F
Founder and Director of Growth Partner LL2 »
.~ . |
Tom Rusin (51) Katrina Cliffe (53) Stella David (56)
Globat CEQ, Membership Senior Independent Director Non-Executive Directer {(Not Independent)
Appointed to the Board: May 2017 (Independent) Appointed to the Board: November 2010
Committee memberships: Executive, Appointed to the Board: May 201/ Committee memberships: Peopls (Chair),
People Committee memberships. Remuneration Remuneration, Nomination
Tom was appointed as Global CEO, (Chain, Audit& Risk. Nomination, People Stella was previously Chief Executive Officer
HomeServe Membership in Apnt 2018 Katrina was previously Genera!l Manager at of William Grant & Sons following more -
following nearly seven years as Chief American Express Global Business Travel, than 15 years with Bacardi Ltd where she =
Executrve Officer, HomeServe USA EMEA, having been Genreral Manager, Global undertook a number of roles culminating In g
Previously at Atfinion Group where he Corporate Payments, UK Prior to American five years as Global Chief Marketing Cfficer. %
undertock a numper of roles culminating in Express she held senior roles at Lloyds TSB She also spent seven years as a Non- [
three years as President and Chief Executive Group PLC, Goldfish Bank Ltd and MBNA Executive Director at Nationwide Building g
Oftficer of Affinion Group's North Amerncan International Bank Society. °
Division. Before joining Affinion, he owned Key areas of prior experience: Financial Key areas of prior experience: Marketing, v
Just for Travel Inc. He was previcusly 8 Non- services, membership services drinks Industry, International
Executive Director of The Ambassador's — - — -
Group. Principal current external appointments: Principal current external appointments:
- . - Non-Executive Director of Cembra Money Chairman of C&J Clark Ltd, Non-Execulive
Key areas of prior experience: Affinity Bank AG, London and Country Mortgages Director of Bacardi Ltd and Norwegian
rharketing Limited, Naked Wines plc Cruise Line Holdings

Principal current external appointments:
None
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Composition, succession and evaluation
Board of Directors and Executive team continued

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Edward Fitzmaurice (57}
Non-Executive Director (Independent)

——

Olivier Grémillon (40)
Non-Executive Director {Independent)

Ren McMillan (67)
Non-Executive Director (Independent)

Appointed to the Board: May 2017

Appointed to the Board: March 2019

Appointed to the Board: October 2017

Committee memberships: Audit & Risk,
Nomination, Remuneration

Edward was previously Chief Executive

of the MBO team of that business in 2009
He served as the Non-Executive Chairman
of Hasuings Insurance Services Ltd until
October 2015 and a Non- Executive Director
of Hasungs Group Holdings plc until March

years at HomeServe as Chief Executive of
HomeServe Warranties His earlier career
was spent at Dixons plc and Anglo Amencan

Officer of Hastings Insurance Group and part

2017, Prior to joining Hastings, he spent three

Key areas of prior experience: Retailing.
insurance

Principal current external appointments:

Committee memberships: Rermuneration

Committee memberships: Audit & Risk

Olvier is currently Vice President, Global
Segments, at Booking.com. He was

the Middle East and Africa at Airbnb, having
Joined them as the Country Manager for

France He started his career in strategy

McKinsey & Company.

previously the Managing Director for Europe, Pw(C's assurance business for 38 years and

consulting and worked for both Deloitte and

{Chair). Remuneration. Nominatien, People

A Chartered Accountant, Ron worked in

has extensive knowledge and experience In
auditing, financial reportng and governance
During his time at PwC, his roles included
Global Finance Partner, Chairman of the
North of England and Deputy Chairman and

Key areas of pricr experience: Marketing,
international development, product

development, strategy, platforrm businesses

Head of Assurance for the Middle East

Key areas of prior experience; Accountancy,
audrt

Principal current external appointments:
Vice President, Global Segments. Bocking
TOM

Principal current external appeintments:
Senior Independent Director and Chairman
of the Audit Commiites of N Brown PLC, SCS
PLC and B&EM Furopean Value Retasl 5A

None
EXECUTIVE TEAM
. N
Anna Maughan (50) H Stephen Phillips {53) Guillaume Huser (53)
Company Secretary CEQ, Global Partnerships CEQ. HomeServe France

Appointed as Secretary: July 2008

Committee memberships: Executive

Anna started her career at Severn Trent

ple and joined South Staffordshire ple as
Assistant Company Secretary in 1996
Foliowing the demerger of HomeServe
ple and Scuth Staftardshire plc in 2004 she
continued as Assistant Company Secretary
of HomeServe ple, becoming Company
Secretary in 2008

Key areas of prior experience: Company
secretarial, pensions

Principal current external appointments:
Trustee of, and Secretary to, the industry
wide Water Companies Pension Scheme

Stephen was appointed as CEQ, Global
Partnerstups in January 2018 having

{ed HoemeServe Spain since 2005. He

15 a licensed insurance broker Priorto
Jjoining HomeServe, he spent 12 years in
senior business development, sales and
marketing retes in Diversified Business
Commurications SA and EJ Krause de
Meéxico, working across the US and Latin
America

Committee memberships: Exccutive

Guillaurne was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer, HomeServe France in Apnil 2015
Previously at Affimion Group where he
undertook a number of roles culminating In
four years as President of Affinion Group's
Imternational Dwision. Betere joining Affinion
in December 2002, he spent 13 years at
Amernican Express firstly In finance, sales and
business development roles and later in the
Corporate Services Division where he was VP

Key areas of prior experience: Business
development, marketing, internaticnal

Commercral Card, Western Europe

Key areas of prior experience: Financial

Principal current external appointments:
Non-Executive Director of Assured
Enterpnses Inc

services, business development, affinity
rarketing, international

Principal current external appointments:
Nene
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John Kitzie (66)
CEO, HomeServe North America

Fernando Prieto (54)
CEQ, HomeServe Spain

Committee memberships: Executive

Committee memberships: Executive

Committee memberships: Executive

Greg was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer, HomeServe UK, in June 2017 after
joining as UK Chief Marketing Officer in
2012, Prior to HomeServe, Greg was Head of
Credit Cards & Overdrafts at RBS Group and
before that, spent 13 years at MBNA/Bank

of Amenca where, after leadership roles in
finance and marketing, he became President
of UK Card Services Previously, Greg was

a board member of both West Cheshire &
North Wales Chamber of Commerce and
Chester Renaissance

John was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer, HomeServe North America in Aprii
2018 having served as Chief Operating
Cfficer since October 2012 Prior to joining
HomeServe, he served as Executive Vice
President of Global Qperations for Affinion
Group where he was responsible for
contact centres, fulfilment, merchandising,
supply chain, procurement and
telecommunications. Before joiring Affinion
Group, he served as President of Savemart
and Senior Vice President of Ycommerce

Key areas of prior experience: Consumer &
affinity marketing, finance, banking

Principal current external appointments:
Non-Executive Director of Clanon Housing
Group, Trustee of Talent Rise

Key areas of prior experience: Retall,
merchandise, service delivery, partner
management

Principal current external appointments:
None

Fernando was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer, HomeServe Spain in February 2018
having joined the Spanish claims business in
2008, undertaking a number of senior roles
ncluding Managing Birector. Before joiming
HomeServe he undertook a number of
roles in the insurance sector for CASER and
MAPRFRE including Chief Actuary, Business
Development Director and Chief Marketing
Officer

Key areas of prior experience: insurance,
marketing, business development

Principal current external appointments:
Trustee of Fundacion Area XXl

Mike Fairman {53}
CEQ, Checkatrade

Deb Dulsky (49)
Global CEQ, HVAC

Committee memberships: Executive

Committee memberships: Executive

Mike was appointed as Chief Executive
Qfficer, Checkatrade in Qctober 2018
Before joirmng HomeServe he was CEO of
mgchile phone network giffgaff noted for

its pioneenng online, community powered
business model, Prior to gffgatf, Mike
undertook a number of roles in O2 including
starting and running O2's home broadband
business, His early career was focused on
rmarketing 1n the soft dnnks and pet focd
sectors.

Deb was appointed as Global CEC, HVAC
in November 2018 following nearly 8 years
in leadership positions at HomeServe USA,
most recently as Chief Strategy Officer
Prior to joining HomeServe, Deb led the
Marketing Solutions division n the Americas
of Williarms Lea and served in a number of
roles in M&A ang business development at
Affimion Group She was previcusly a Non-
Executive Director of The Ambassadors
Group.

Key areas of prior experience: Marketing,
digital transformation, entrepreneurial
start-ups

Principal current externai appointments:
None

Key areas of prior experience: Business
development, MEA, marketing, international

Principal current external appointments:
None
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Composition, succession and evaluation
Continued

Board composition

The Board is comprised of six Non-Executive Directors {including the Chairman) and three Executive Directors. The Non-
Executive Directors have a diverse range of skills and experience which enables therm to oversee business performance and
provide constructive challenge. The Executive Directors have extensive commercial, financial and operational experience
both within HomeServe and beyond.

Short plographies of each of the Directors, Including their membership of Committees, are set out on pages 65 to 66.

Board development
New members of the Board receive a tailored induction organised by the Company Secretary which includes visits to the
different territories and operations. Where required, training on legal and requlatary responsibilities is also provided.

On an ongoing basis, Directors are encouraged to highlight specific areas where they feel their skills or knowledge would
benefit from further development.

Succession

We recognise the importance of ensuring that there is an appropriate pool of talented and capable individuals to fill senior
roles and a succession planning process has been established across the Group to facilitate this. The process identifies
emergency, short-term and long-term successors for each role and therefore allows any training and developrnent
requirements or recruitment issues to be highlighted. Each business and corperate function prepares and maintains
succession plans with the support of local and Group Pecple functions and with input from the Group Chief Executive,

The Executive Committee regularly discusses the plans and the Board as a whole reviews the high level plan at least annually.

Board evaluation

The Board has implemented a formal process for reviewing its own effectiveness, that of its Committees and its individual
members. The Board evaluation is facilitated by Lintstock Limited. Lintstock Limited has no other connection with the
Company or to individual Directors.

Online guestionnaires are completed by all Directors on an annual basis and responses are collated into a report which is
discussed ata Board meeting. Every third year, Lintstock interview all of the Directors so that any themes can be developed
and feedback investigated in more depth. interviews were last conducted in FY18. The questionnaires cover topics such as
board composition and dynamics, strategic and operaticnal oversight, risk management and internal control, succession
planning and human resources as well as priorities for change.

Length of tenure of Chairman
and Non-Executive Directors Board Independence Board Gender Diversity

(] L]
L) L]

@ Executive Director

@ Chairman
0-3 3-6 6-10 10+ @ Non-Executive (independertt MoF Mo MoF
years years years years @ Non-Executive INon Independent) Total board Executive Non-Executive
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in FY20, Directors completed online evaluation guestionnaires in January 2020 and Lintstock compiled a formal written
report surnmarising the Directors’ views. This report was discussed by the Board in March 2020. Key findings included:

« 2 high cverall level of satisfaction with the functioning of the Board, the competence and capabilities of the Directors and
the guality of relationships between members of the Board

= the level of support and challenge provided by the Board to management was viewed positively

- the performance of the Commuittees was rated positively including the nature of the work undertaken on behalf of the
Board.

The main areas identified by the Board for continued focus during FY21 were:

= the process to identify a successor to the Chairman and implement a more formal succession plan for the Non-Executives
= the monitoring and challenge of technological and digital programmes

« ongoing, in-depth monitoring of the competitive environment and the changing needs of customers.

As a result, discussions on customer needs, competition and technology and change have been added to the Board's

forward agenda. In addition, the Company Secretary has been asked to develop a formal succession plan for the Non-
Executives for discussion during the year.
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Composition, succession and evaluation
Nomination Committee report

Members

J M Barry Gibson {Chairman}
Katrina Cliffe

Stella David

Edward Fitzmaurice

Ron McMillan

Responsibilities
The primary responsibilities of the Committee are to:

« rnake recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors
« review the size, structure and compaosition of the Board
»  consider succession planning arangements for Directors and other senior managers.

The Committee has adaopted formal terms of reference which are available on our website
http:/fwww.homeserveplc.com/about-us/corporate-governance/committees

Key issues considered during the year

A specific sub-committee of the Board was appointed during the year to commence a search for a new Chairman. The
process is being led by Katrina Cliffe, our Senior Independent Director and the other members of the sub-committee are
Ron McMillan, Stella David, Edward Fitzmaurice and Richard Harpin. The relationship between Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer is of paramount importance and it was therefore agreed that 1t was vital to ensure that Richard's views could be
considered early in the process.

Three leading consultants were interviewed and Spencer Stuart were selected to assist in the search. Spencer Stuart has
undertaken both non-executive and executive searches for the Group with one executive search currently ongoing. It has
no other current connection to HomeServe or to individual Directors. Spencer Stuart 1s a signatory to the Voluntary Code of
Conduct for Executive Search Firms.

Spencer Stuart spoke to all members of the Board in arder to inform the candidate specification. They then presented a long
list of candidates for consideration. The sub-committee met to consider the iong list and agree which potential candidates
should be approached. Active discussions are underway with a number of individuals and interviews are being arranged. We
currently expect to announce a successor for the Chairman during FY21.

Succession planning
Board succession plans are considered by the Board as a whole and the plan for the wider senior management population is
considered by the People Committee. Further details are set out on page 68.
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Diversity

We are committed to ensuring that our Board is appropriately diverse and that it reflects diversity in its broadest sense. A
combination of demographics, skills, experience, race, age, gender, educational and professional background and other
relevant personal attributes will ensure our Board is effective. We believe that diversity of experience and personal strengths
are as Important as diversity of gender and social and ethnic backgrounds.

All relevant factors are taken into consideration when evaluating the skills, knowledge and experience needed to fill each
Board vacancy. When recruiting, we require diversity on our long and shert lists and in particular, ensure that appropriately
qualfied women are inciuded on all short lists.

22% of the Board Is currently female. We recognise the target for FTSE companies to move towards 33% female
representation and wilt use our best endeavours to increase the number of female Board members over time.

We have made significant improvement in respect of cur global senior leadership team which now has 33% female
representation but there is more to do at Executive Committee and Board level. We are committed to accelerating our
focus on this and have agreed tc work towards 33% female representation on a combined basis across our Board, Executive
Committee and their direct reports by March 2021, moving us towards the targets set out in the Hampton Alexander report

More Information on talent and diversity is provided in the Strategic report on page 21.

JM Barry Gibson
Chairman
19 May 2020
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Composition, succession and evaluation
People Committee report

Members

Stella David (Chairrman)

Katrina Cliffe

J M Barry Gibscn

Ron McMillan (appointed 27 March 2020)
David Bower

Richard Harpin

Tom Rusin

Responsibilities

The primary responsibilities of the Committee are to;

= determine, agree and oversee the people strategy for the Group

= review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the people strategy

= review and make recommendations in respect of the resourcing of the geopie strategy
= review and oversee the employee engagement strategy.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference which are available on our website http://www.homeserveplc.com/
about-us/corporate-governance/committees

Key issues considered during the year
The People Committee met three times during the year. In addition to the members of the Committee, the Group People
Director and the Company Secretary attend all Committes meetings.

Discussicns during the year have been focused on talent and diversity. The global talent strategy aims to drive the attraction,
growth and retention of a deep pool of talented employees with the right capabilities to deliver our growth strategy. We are
particularty focused on developing internal talent and are committed to achieving a target of 70% internal hires for senior
leadership roles.

Ensuring that our future senior leadership team better reflects the diversity of the markets we serve and the people we
employ is a key cbjective of our global talent strategy. In common with many organisations, we are starting this jourmey by
focusing on a plan to drive gender diversity within our current senior leadership team and in the succession pipeline. We
recognise that diversity 1s much broader than gender but believe that achieving sustainable traction in this critical area of
talent will help us develop strategies that can be applied more widely.

The Committee has been closely involved in the UK team's plans to establish an apprenticeship acadermy. Skilled and
expenenced tradespecple are central to cur purpose and there is currently a shortage of such people in all of our territories.
Offering apprenticeships directly and in partnership wath cur trades and sub-contractors allows us to invest in the future and
ensure that we can keep delivering the needs of cur customers.

Workforce engagement
I'am the nominated Non-Executive Director in respect of workforce engagement and to support me in that role, we have
established an International People Forum. The Forum is made up of representatives from each of our businesses and it
met for the first time during the year. Our inttial discussions focused on the local plans devised in response to the employee
engagement survey and provided a useful cpportunity to share best practice. The intention is that the Forum
will meet twice a year and | fully expect that as the agenda develops it will provide a unique Insight INto the
views and concerns of cur workforce across the world

The Committee also monitors progress with overall employee engagernent, and | would like to
congratulate our businesses in France and North America for achieving Great Place to Work status.

Stella David
Chairman
19 May 2020
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Audit, risk and internal control

Board assessment of risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of risk management and internal control including the setting
of risk appetite. The Audit & Risk Committee has a key role to play in overseeing risk management and internat controls and
advising the Board thereon. More detail In respect of the role of the Audit & Risk Committee is provided in the report of that
Committee on pages 76 to 8L

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systerns and specifically that:
« Thereis an ongoing, systermised process for identifying, evaluating and managing the principal risks faced by the Group.

« This system has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of this Annual Report.

= The system is regularly reviewed by the Board.

» The system accords with the Financial Reporting Council (FRC'} guidance on risk management, internal control and related
financial and business reporting.

Dunng the year, the Board has directly, or through the Audit & Risk Committee, overseen and reviewed the development
and perfermance of risk management activities and practices and the systermns of internal control in place across the Group.
As a result, the Board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control systerns that are in place remain robust and
effective.

The Board delegated the responsibility for conducting the work required for it to provide the "farr, balanced and
understandable’, ‘going concern’ and 'viability' statements to the Audit & Risk Committee. In conducting this work, the Audit &
Risk Committee acts on behalf of the Board and its activities remain the responsibility of the Board.

The relevant Board statements on these matters are set out on pages 47 to 48 and page 79. The principal risks and
uncertainties are set out on pages 26 to 31.

System of risk management and control

The systermn of internal control (s designed to manage and mitigate rather than elimmate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management of the Group to the Group Chief Executive and the other Executive Directors.

The risk governance model is based on the ‘three lines of defence’ as follows:

1st line of defence

A risk management framework is in place which includes the agreed risk appetite, policies and procedures. The Group's
rmanagement operates a formal process for identifying, managing and reporting on the operational and financial risks
faced by each of the Group's businesses. Risks are reviewed in detail at local risk committees and, on an overall basis, by the
Executive Committee and the Audit & Risk Committee. Support is provided by the 2nd line of defence oversight functions.

2nd line of defence

Oversight is provided by the various control functions including risk, compliance and specialist functions such as health and
safety and information security. The 2nd lne provides advice to the Board and the Audit & Risk Committee on risk appetites,
review of risk ratings and action plans and reports on risk management.

3rd line of defence

The Group has a dedicated internal audit function and a formal audit plan is in place to address the key risks across the
Group and the operation and effectiveness of internal controls. The function reports to the Board through the Audit & Risk
Committee.
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Audit, risk and internal control
Continued

Risk management cycle

Risk appetite

Risk appetite is defined as the amount and type of risk we are willing to pursue or retain in order to meet our strategic
objectives. Our assessment of risk appetite is guided by our vision and mission and informed by our strategic objectives. Itis
used as a measure against which all of our current and proposed activities are tested.

Risk appetite is reviewed bi-annually to ensure that 1t is aligned with strategy.

Risk framework

A risk framework is in place across the Group which includes risk appeétite, materiality scoring matrices and key risk indicators.
Each business is expected to adhere to the Group risk framework and to report regularly on its risk reqisters and key risk
indicators but, if appropriate, the Group framework rmay be customised to local requirements as long as minimurm standards
are met. A mechanism exists to extend the Group's risk framewaork to any significant new business that is acquired or
established immediately upon acquisition or start-up.

Risk assessment and risk registers

All businesses assess risks for likelhood and impact based on the materiality matrix included in the Group nisk framework.
Controls are then implermented to rmanage the nsks. Risks are scored on a gross and net basis and rated as red, amber or
green. Risk registers capture key risks and these are reviewed at local risk committees with the principal risks being reviewed
by the Executive Committee and the Audit & Risk Committee.

Censideration is given to whether risks are within or cutside appetite and particular attention 1s given to actions being taken to
mitigate risks. Incidents are recorded and reported on at the various committees

Risk oversight
Oversight of the risk management process is provided by the Assurance & Risk Director, local risk and compliance teams, the
Audit & Risk Committee and, ultimately, the Board.

Internal control
Internal audit acts as the 3rd line of defence. In order to ensure the independence of the internal audit function, the
Assurance & Risk Director's primary reporting ine is to the Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee.

The internal audit function fulfils its role and responsibilites by delivery of the annual, risk based audit plan. There are no
restrictions on the scope of intermnal audit's work.

A report is issued after each audit which provides an opinion on the control environment and details any issues found.
Internal audit then work with the businesses to agree remedial actions which are tracked to completion.

The Assurance & Risk Director submits reports to local boards and committees and attends those meetings as reguired. He
attends and reports to every Audit & Risk Committee meeting.

Financial reporting
Three year business plans, annual budgets and investment proposals for each business are formally prepared, reviewed and
approved by the Board.

A clearly defined organisation structure is in place with clear lines of accountability and appropriate division of duties The
Group's financial regulations specify authonsation timits for individual managers and for locat boards, with all material
transactions being approved by the Board,

Consolidated financial results, including a comparison with budgets and forecasts, are reported to the Board on a monthly
basis, with varances being 1dentified and understood s that mitigating actions can be implemented, where appropriate.
Ahead of the financial results being presented to the Board, monthly business review calls are held, attended by Executives,
representatives from the Group finance function and lecal senior management. These calls provide an opportunity for a
detailed review of performance and to identify any issues or trends.
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Half year and annual consolidated accounts are prepared and verified by the finance team and reviewed by the Executive
Directors. The accounts are then considered by the Audit & Risk Committee which makes a recommendation in respect of
their approval to the Board. The Board then reviews and approves the accounts prior to the announcement of the half year
and annual results.

yoda) 263jens

The Board considers that the processes undertaken by the Audit & Risk Committee are appropriately robust, effective and
in compliance with the guidelines issued by the FRC. During the year, the Board has not been advised by the Audit & Risk
Committee on, or identified itself, any failings, fraud or weaknesses in internal control which have been determined to be
matenal in the context of the financial statements.

Viability statement
The approach to the viability statement and the statement itself are set out on pages 4710 48.
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Audit & Risk Committee report

Dear Shareholder
I am pleased to present the Committee’s report for the year.

The Committee is an Impottant element of the Group's governance structure. Qur role is to review and advise the Beard on
financial reporting including the various statements made in the Annual Report on viability, going concern, risk and controls
and whether, when read as a whole, the Arnual Report is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy.

Members

Ron McMillan (Chairman)
Katrina Cliffe

Edward Fitzmaurice

All members of the Committee are independent Non-Executive Directors and the Committee as a whole has competence
relevant to our sector. | am a chartered accountant and waorked in PwC's assurance busimess for 38 years, with 28 years as

an audit partner, and have axtensive knowledge and expenence in auditing, financial reporting and governance. During my
time at PwC, my roles included Global Finance Partner, Chairman of the North of England and Deputy Chairman and Head
of Assurance for the Middle East. | alsc charr the Audit Committees of N Brown PLC, SCS PLC and B&M European Value Retail
SA.

All members of the Committee have an understanding of financial reporting, relevant corporate legislation, the functions of
internal and external audit and the regulatory and compliance framework of the Group. Katrina Cliffe brings experience in
financial services and has served on risk and audit committees elsewhere. Edward Fitzmaurice has extensive expenence of
retail and insurance having served as Chief Executive Officer of Hastings Insurance Group.

The internal and external auditors, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman are inmvited, but
are not entitled, to attend ali meetings. Where appropriate, other Exccutive Directors and managers also attend meetings

at the Chairman's invitation. The external and internal auditors are provided with the opportunity to raise any matters or
concerns that they may have, in the absence of the Executive Directors, whether at Committee meetings or, more informally,
outside of them.

Board reporting
I provide an update to the Board after each Committee meeting and the minutes of meetings are circulated to the
whole Board.

Committee Effectiveness
The effectiveness of the Committee is reviewed as part of the annual Board review process facilitated by Lintstock. The FY20
review conciuded that the Committee was operating effectively and benefited from a high quatity cycle of work.
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Responsibilities
The primary responsibilities of the Committee are to:

+ monitor, on behalf of the Board, compliance with and the effectiveness of, the Group's accounting and internal control
systems

+ review the iIndependence of the external auditcr and agree their terms of engagement and remuneration
= review the scope of and outputs from the external audit

+ approve the scope of the work undertaken by and the outputs from the work done by internal audit

*» make recommendations to the Board on accounting policies and their application

= review the annual and Interim financial statements before they are presented to the Board

» review the Group's overall risk appetite, tolerance and strategy

* monitor, on behalf of the Board, current and emerging risk exposures

« receive reports from compliance functions and review and approve the means by which the Group seeks to comply with
its regulatory obligations.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference which are available on cur website http://www.homeserveplc.com/
about-us/corporate-governance/committees

Summary of meetings in the year

The Committee usually meets three times in the year and did s¢ In FY20. Details of meeting attendance are set out on page
63. The timing of Committee meetings is arranged to accommodate the reiease of financial information, the approval of the
external and internal audit plans and the review of the outputs of those plans. In additton to scheduled meetings, | met with
the CFO and members of his team, the Assurance & Risk Director and the external auditors on a number of occasions to
recewve updates on activity.

Items discussed May 2013 _ Movember2019 __ February 2070
Financial reporting

Full year results ®

Interim results ¢

Consideration of new accounting standards (IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and [FRS 16} o ® L
Internal audit

Internal audit plan ®
Internal audit reports ® L ] L
Internal audit effectiveness and independence ®

External audit

External audit plan ®
External audit reports ® ®

External audrt effectiveness and independence L

Risk

Risk registers ® ® ®
Other matters

Requlatory compliance activity @ ® L J
IT security ®

Post investment reviews of acquisitions L
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Audit & Risk Commiittee report

Continued

Significant issues related to the financial statements
The Commitiee oversaw the process used by the Board to assess the going concern and viability of the Group, the stress
testing of key trading assumptions and the preparation of the viability staterment which is set out on pages 47 to 48.

The Committee also satisfied itself that the disclosures in relation to accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty were approprate and obtained, from the external auditor, an independent view of the key disclosure issues and
risks. Managerment present reports to the Committee setting out the basis for the assumptions used and these reports are
then discussed and challenged by the Committee. All of the issues were also discussed with the external auditor and therr
views taken into account. The Committee is satisfied that the judgements made are reasonable and appropriate disclosures
have been included in the accounts.

The Cornmittee assessed whether suitable accounting policies had been adopted and whether management had made
appropriate estimates and judgements. The Committee also reviewed reports from the external auditor on the half year and
full year results, which provided an overview of the audit work undertaken and highlighted any issues for discussion.

The significant issues considered in the year were:

Issue

How it was addressed by the Committee

Revenue recognition

As an nsurance intermediary, the Company 1s required to
recognise revenue at the point at which a policy goes on
nsk Some elements of revenue are deferred to cover future
costs and alsa to provide for policies which may cancel mid
term.

The Committee satisfied itself that the accountng polcies for revenue
are compliant with IFRS 15 and considered whether any changes were
needed to take account of COVID-19

Carrying value of goodwill

The total goodwill balance at 31 March 2020 of £510m has
been allocated 10 the relevant cash generating units (CGLUs)
and tested for impairment by companrig the carrying value
of net assets (Includng allocated goodwill and acquisition
ntangibles) with the value in use, defined as the present
value of future cash flows attributable to the CGUs.

The Committee reviewed the 'headroom’ to ensure that the value

in use supported the carrying value of the net assets with particular
regard to the potential impact of COVID-19 and satisfied itself that no
impairment was required.

Business combinations

During the year the Group completed a number of
acquisitions including a 79% shareholding in eLocal Heldings
LLC for £98 8m. The Group also entered into a put and call
option agreement to purchase the remaining 21% equity
interest over a pericd of up to 5 years.

The Cormmittee reviewed the Group's accountng for acguisitions

and satisfied itself that it was appropriate Particular focus was given

to the valuations of the eLocal intangible assets and put and call
options; along with the allocation of the put option payments between
amounts recognised at acguisiton and amounts recognised as post
acquisition employee benefit expenses

Capitalisation of development costs
The Group has incurred significant costs in relation to the
development of new IT systems

The Committee considered the benefits due to be delivered and the
costs, noting that the new CRM system in the UK was now in use for
front bock policies and back book migration had commenced. it
satishied itself that the discounted benefits of the new systems were
significantly higher than the carrying value of the asset

Exceptional items

During the year, the Group acquired the final 30% of
Habtissimo, disposed of Its holding in 1ts ftallan associate
and took the decision to impair the LeakBot asset

The Committee considered the assumptions behind each of these
Judgements and satisfied itself that they were appropriate, and were
indeed, exceptional in nature.

COVID-19 impact
The COVID-19 pandemic has had an impact in all of
HomeServe's territories

The Committee considerad the impact of COVID-19 on the financial
sustainability and operational resilience of the business, taking into
account the additional stress testing completed as part of the going
concern and viability assessments. It satisfied itself that the business is
well placed to face the ongeing challenges of the crisis.

Brexit impact

All of the HomeServe businesses trade exclusively within
their own borders and the Group 15 not exposed to any cross
border transactional currency risk

The Committee considered the potential impact of the UK's decision
to leave the EU and the ongoing implementation delay and concluded
that the impact on the underlying performance of the Group will be
limited.
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Board statements

Going concern

The Committee reviewed whether it was appropriate to adept the going concern basis for the preparation of the Annual
Repaort and considered a report from management. Consideration was given to the Group's three year forecasts, availability
of committed bank facilities, expected headroom under the financial covenants and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Committee ensured that the assumptions underpinning the forecasts were stress tested and that the factors which
impact on risks and uncertainties were properly considered. Additional stress tests had been completed to take account of
COVID-18.

Following the Committee’s review, it recommended to the Board that it was appropriate to adopt the going concern basis.
The going concern statement is set out on page 49,

Viability statement
The Committee reviewed a report from management setting out the basis for the conclusions in the viability statement. The
approach to the viability staterment and the statement itself are set out on pages 47 and 48.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Committee considered whether the Annual Report was farr, balanced and understandable and whether it provided the
necessary information for shareholders to assess the Group's perfermance, business modet and strategy. The Committee
considered management’s assessment of items included i the financial statements and the prominence given ta them.

Having reviewed the Annuat Report and taking into account the verification exercise completed, the Committee and
subseguently, the Board were satisfied that taken as a whole, the Annual Report was far, balanced and understandable and
provided the necessary information for shareholders.

Robust assessment of emerging and principal risks
The Committee completed a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks by reviewing detailed risk registers and
considering the mitigating actions being taken

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systern of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit

& Risk Committee supports the Board by advising on the Group’s overall nsk appetite, tolerance and strategy, current risk
exposures and future risk strategy. The Commitiee reviews risk registers produced by the managerment of each business and
the plc function at each of its meetings. On a pericdic basis, we also review action plans in respect of significant risks.

The Committee also monitors, on behalf of the Board, the effectiveness of the Company's matenal accounting and internal
control systems. In fulfilling this responsibility for FY20, the Committee considered reports from management and the
internal and external auditors.

The Committee considers that appropriate controls are in place across the Group, that the Group has a well defined
organisational structure with clear lines of responsibility and a comprenensive financial reporting systern. The Cormmittee
also considers that the Group complies with the Financial Reporting Council {'FRC') guidance on risk management, internal
control and related financial reporting.

Further details in respect of risk management and internal contrels are set out on pages 73 to 75. Details in respect of the
principal risks and uncertainties are set cut on pages 26 to 31.

Regulation and compliance

The Group operates in a regulated marketplace and is challenged by reguiatory requirements across its different territories.
This cresates risk for the business as non compliance can lead to customer detriment, reputational damage, financial penatties
and potential loss of licence to operate.

The Committee receives regular updates on legat and compliance from management and believes that key compliance
indicators are strong across the Group. All established businesses outside the UK are required to complete Annual
Compliance Reports to confirm that the requirements of the Group Compliance Framewaork have been rmet and that
processes and controls are sufficient to identify breaches in local law and regulations.
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Audit & Risk Committee report

Continued

External auditor

The Committee is responsible for assessing the effectiveness of the external audit process, for monitonng the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor and for making recommeendations to the Board in relation to the appcintment of the
external auditor. The Committee is also responsible for developing and implementing the Group's policy on the provision of
non-audit services by the external auditor.

Delcitte LLP has been the Group's auditor since 2002 and the lead audit partner rotates every five years. The current lead
audit partner, Peter Birch was first apponted for FY20.

Prior to each audit or review, Deloitte presented their plan to the Committee for discussion. The Committee reviewed
the reports prepared by Deloitte on key audit fingings and any significant deficiencies in the control environment, as well

5 the recommendations made to improve processes and controls together with management's responses o those
recormmendations. Deloitte did not highlight any material internal control weaknesses and management has committed to
making approprate changes to controls where these have been highlighted.

The Commiittee also discussed with Deloitte, the results of the FRC's firm wide review of audit quality for the period from
March 2018 to March 2019 and the proposed improvement plans ansing from the report. The Committee noted that no firm
Inspected achieved the quality targets set by the FRC and will monitor progress against the improvement plans.

The Committee reviews the performance of the external auditor annually based on their understanding of the Group, their
approach to key areas of judgement and the extent of challenge, the guality of reporting and the efficiency and conduct of
the audit. Feedback is also scught from Group finance and local finance directors on the external auditor's performance

We also reviewed the external auditor’s transparency report, which is intended to demonstrate the steps it takes to ensure
audit guality with reference to the Audit Quality Framework 1ssued by the Professional Oversight Board of the FRC. In addition,
I meet with the external auditor outside of formal Committee meetings to ensure that there is an ongoing dialogue.

The Committee is satisfied that the audit continues to be effectve and that Deloitte LLP continues to provide constructive
and independent challenge to managerment and consistently demonstrates a realistic and comrnercial view Of the business
On this basis, the Committee concluded that the needs of the Group would not be best served by putting the external audit
aut to tender at this time. The Committee has therefore recommended to the Board that the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP
should be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Committee has noted the changes to EU audit legislation and the UK adoption of this legislaton, which requires
mandatory rotation for guditors of public interest entities at least every 20 years with a mandatory tender process being
undertaken at the 10 year point. The transitional rules for this new legislation mean that the Group would be required to
change its auditor after 2024. The Committee 15 also mindful of the: restrictions which now apply to firms providing non audit
services in the two year penod prior to an audit appointment. A recommended course of action will be proposed to the
Board in 2021. The Company confirms that it has complied with the provisions of the CMA's Statutory Audit Services Order
for the financial year under review.

In accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260 and Ethical Staternent 1 issued by the Accounting
Practices Board, and as a matter of best practice, the external auditor has confirmed s independence as auditor of the
Company.

Non-audit services

The Commiittee has approved a policy in respect of non-audit services which reflects the Ethical Standards. The policy sets
out a list of prohibited services and in particular, prevents Deloitte LLP from providing almost all taxation services. The policy
provides that the total fees payable to the auditor for non-audit related work in any financial year should not normally be
more than 50% of the total fees payable in respect of audit and compliance services. In addition, any proposed spend over a
predeterrmined limit must be approved by the Committee.

The fees payable to the auditor in respect of audit and audit-related assurance services totalled £1,369,000 and there were
no fees incurred for non-audit related work {excluding audit-related assurance services). Further detail on the fees paid is
provided in Note 5.
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Internal audit

The Committee reviews and approves the internal audit plan which is based on an assessment of the risks faced by the
Group. The internal audit team undertakes an initial review of the risks and drafts a plan which addresses those risks while
taking into account the need to review key control processes on & cyclical basis. The draft plan s then discussed with senior
management in each business or territory before being presented to the Committee.

Progress in respect of the plan 1s monitored throughout the year and care is taken to ensure that the internal audit function
has sufficient resource to complete the plan. The audit plan may be reviewed during the year as a result of the ongoing
assessment of the key risks or In response to the needs of the Group.

The Assurance & Risk Director reports ultimately to the Chairman of the Committee although he reports on a day-to-

day basis to the Chief Financial Officer. He attends all meetings of the Committee and reports regularly to the Executive
Committee. A report on completed internal audits is presented to each meeting of the Commiittee and, where appropriate,
action plans are reviewed. In addition, all grade 1 audit reports are circulated to the Cormmittee as soon as they are finalised so
that any issues can be addressed in a timely manner. Reports are graded as 1if the controls currently operated are inadeguate
and expose the business to significant loss or regulatory breach.

Dunng the year, the Committee received 51 reports in respect of the following areas:

Finance Key financial controls and processes including balance sheet control reviews, purchase to pay, order
to cash and record to report cycles.

Operations Key operations processes including fulfilment, contractor management, business continuity
planning and disaster recovery, compliance and risk management.

IT controls Key IT controls including disaster recovery, mobile device management and general controls such
as logical access, back up and restore processes and controts.

Information Security Developments in information and cyber security including penetration testing, firewalls, server
security and crisis management.

In relation to each of the above, internal audit made recommendations for improvements, the vast majority of which have
been, or are being implemented by management. Management’s approach to internal auditis generally positive and there 15
a real desire to work collaboratively to continually improve the control environment. Action trackers are reported on at each
Committee meeting.

The internal audit function continues to benefit from a co-sourced arrangement with PwC which is used to augment the
internal skills and experience available and ensure that the Group can access appropriate technical and specialised rescurce
an a global and flexible basis.

The Committee has discussed the perforrnance of internal audit and | have met with PwC. The Committee believes that
internal audit performs in a very professional manner, provides constructive challenge and demonstrates a realistic and
commercial view of the business.

Conclusion and looking ahead
The Committee considers that it has acted in accordance with its terms of reference and that it has ensured the
independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the external and internal auditors.

Going forward, 1 shall ensure that the Committee continues to acknowledge and embrace its role of protecting the interests
of shareholders as regards the integrity of the published financial information and the effectiveness of audit.

I am available to speak with shareholders at any time. 1 would like to thank my colleagues on the Committee for their hetp
and support during the year.

Ron McMillan
Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee
19 May 2020
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Directors’ remuneration report

Dear Shareholder
I am pleased to present the Remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Performance and reward

Fy20 was another successful year for HomeServe in which we delivered double digit revenue and profit growth and
continued to invast for the future, More detail on performance during the year is set out in the Strategic report on pages &
to 51

The stretching financial targets for the Group have been met but there was only partial achieverment in respect of the non
financiai targets. Despite strong customer growth in Membership, particularly in North America and France, the growth in
the number of trades iIn Home Experts fell short of the stretching target. The continued focus on delivering great customer
service meant that the custorer dissatisfaction target was met in full.

On employee engagement, the annual employee engagement survey was due to be runin March 2020. Given the
COVID-19 crisis, it was agreed that it was not appropriate to run the survey due (o the operational challenges being faced
by the whole workforce. The Remuneration Committee evaluated this element based on the interim survey completed half
way through the year and a COVID Care survey run to assess the impact of the crisis on our people, which reflected the
tremendous efforts made to keep the business running during the crisis. On the basis of this evidence, it was agreed that it
was appropriate to pay the part of the bonus relating to employee engagement in full

In respect of longer-term performance, the LTIP awards granted in 2017 will vest in full in June 2020. The awards were based
25% on TSR performance and 75% on adjusted earmnings per share (EPS) performance. HomeServe's TSR performance to 31
March 2020 was 118.3% [compared tc the FTSE 250 Index TSR of 14.7%) and EPS growth of 15.26% per annurm was achieved,
representing significant growth for snareholders The vested shares, net of tax, are subject to a two year post-vesting holding
requirernent.

A strong record of performance over the past three years and particularly In FY20 has led to commensurate payments to the
Executive Directors, as indeed it has for colleagues across our business,

The Committee’s activities during the year are described in more detail later in this report.

Remuneration policy renewal

The current policy was approved by shareholders at the 2017 AGM and in line with regulatory requirements is subject to a
vote at the forthcoming AGM. Ahead of the policy renewal, the Committee reviewed the current arrangements in the light of
feedback received from shareholders in recent years, developments in remuneration governance and market best practice
and undertook a shareholder consultation.

We acknowledge that some investors were concerned about termination payments made last year to two former directors
and as a result voted against the remuneration report at the AGM n 2019, We have taken this feedback into account and are
recommending a policy going forward that specifically addresses these concemns
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The Committee believes that the current poticy has served the Company and its stakeholders well. The policy includes a
number of features that are already In line with the new UK Corporate Governance Code, including the two year holding
periods for vested LTIP awards and the abillity to apply malus and clawback to bonus and LTIP awards. However, in order
to maintain algnment with changes in market best practice, several changes are proposed to take account of governance
developments and recent investor feedback. An overview of the proposed changes is set out below.

a) Termination Arrangements

The current poticy allowed for flexibility in the declaration of notice periods for departing Executive Directors (which, tast
year, allowed for notice periods to commence for two directors after their redundancies were announced publicly, in effect
extending payrment of salary, pension contributions and benefits continuation beyond 12 months from announcement). tn
response, the Committee 1s proposing that the policy be amended to allow payment of no more than 12 months’ pay from
the date of announcement {i.e. notice would be served concurrently with announcement).

b) Pension

The current policy for Executive Directors allows for pension contributions {or cash in liew) of up to 20% of salary. Our pension
provision for employees in the wider workforce is varied, as summarised below:

= The majority of the UK workforce recewves a defined company contribution of 6% of salary;

» Asmall number of senior managers in the UK receive a 10% defined contribution rate, or cash in lieu, with pensicnable
salary capped at £148k (which increases each year in line with inflation).

Our proposat for the new policy is to align the maximum company contribution for new Executive Directors with the majority
of the wider workforce, up to a maximum of 6% of salary. For existing directors, it was agreed that contributions would be
reduced to the level of the workforce not later than the end of 2022.

c) Post-cessation shareholding requirements

Under our current pelicy, any share awards to Executive Directors retained by good leavers will vest on their normal vesting
date, but there is no formal requirement to maintain a shareholding post cessation. While employed, Executive Directors have
a minimum sharenolding requirement of 300% of salary, which is above market for a company of our size.

We are therefore proposing to implement a guideline for post-cessation shareholding requirements which is in line with
the more usual shareholding level of 200% of base salary; this would apply for two years post cessation and would apply to
shares awarded after the implementation of the new policy.

d) LTIP

No changes are being recommended to the structure of the LTIE since we believe it continues to work well for the company
and it received very strong support from shareholders when we renewed the plan in 2018. We are currently considering the
performance criteria for the awards in FYZ21, taking Inte account the context of the COVID-19 pandemic and wilt announce
the details when awards are granted

The Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the remuneration policy continues to work effectively and supports our
strategy as an entrepreneurnial, customer focused business.

Katrina Cliffe
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
19 May 2020
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Remuneration at a glance

Single Total Remuneration Figure {£000)
A significant proportion of remuneration is delivered through share-based, long-term variable pay.

Fichard Harpin _ 029

David Bower

Tom Rusin 3,238

4 500 1000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3.000 3,500 4000 4500
£000's

Key 35 Salary [ Pe-efts I Ferson I AnnualBonus [N (TP

Annual Bonus Outcome
The information below is based on Group performance, a proportion of Tom Rusin's bonus is based on Membership
performance as set out on page 96

Weighting Target/Stretch Actuai % Payable
Financial measures  Group profit before tax 20% £181.0m £181.0m 100%
Group net debt - yearend 5% £515.8m £449.7m 100%
Group net debt - half year A% f444 5m E415.0m 100%
Non financial Customer growth 20% 8.2m 8.3m 100%
reasures
Trades growth 5% 81k 66k 0%
Customer dissatisfaction 20% 50 46 1007%
Employee engagement 5% 74% n/a 100%
Personal targets 20% 70-100%
LTIP Outcome
Adjusted earnings per share Relative TSR
(752 weighting) (25% weighting)
25% 150%
20%
100% }
15% i
v
10% L
50%
3 n
0% 0% :
Threshold Stretch HormeServe Threshold Stretch HomeServe

84



HormeServe plc Annual Report & Accounts 2020

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Directors’ remuneration policy was approved by shareholders at the 2017 AGM and as required under the regulations, will
be re-subrnitted to sharehclders for approval at the 2020 AGM. An overview of the proposed changes to the policy 1s set out
in the Chairman’s letter.

The Committee’s policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors and other senior Executives 15 based on the following
principles.

« to align rewards with the Group’s financial and operational performance
» to ensure that remuneration, in particular, varable pay, supports the Group’s strategy as a customer focused operation

+ to promote high levels of executive share ownership to encourage a long-term focus and alignment of interest between
executives and shareholders

= to attract, retain and motivate high calibre executives.

To that end, the Committee structures executive remuneration In two distinct parts. fixed remuneration of basic salary,
pension and benefits and variable performance-related remuneration in the form of a cash bonus and long-term incentive
arrangernents. Remuneration for Executive Directors is structured so that the variable pay element forms a significant portion
of each Director's package.

The Committee Is satisfied that neither the structure of the remuneration packages, with the high weighting on variable
pay, nor the performance measures targeted under the annual bonus and long-term incentive arrangements, encourages
inappropriate risk taking.

The rernuneration arrangements are designed so as to provide a strong alignment of interest between the Executives and
shareholders and to support the growth and performance aspirations of the Company. The Committee is satisfied that the
current arrangements meet these objectives. Furthermore, there is a clawback provision in respect of annual bonuses and
long-term incentive awards which helps to guard further against excessive risk-taking.

A risk review of the remuneration policy was completed during the year by Aon plc and considered by the Committee in May
2020. The review identified the potential risks in respect of the policy and assessed the controls and procedures in place to
mitigate those risks. The Committee concluded that overall, the remuneration policy was appropriate and did not encourage
excessive risk taking.

Summary of components of Executive Directors’ remuneration
The table below summarises the Cormmittee’s policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors.

Element Purpose and link to strategy Performance Penod Qperation {including performance measures and maximum himits)
Basic salary To reflect the Usually Individual pay 1s determined by the Committee taking into account

particular skills reviewed the role, responsibilities, performance and experience of the
and experience annually, with individual and market data on comparable roles.
of an individual any changes
and to provide a normally taking  The Committee has not set a cap on the maximum salary level
competitive base effect from that may be offered. However, any salary increases will normally
salary compared 1July each be no higher than the typical level of increase awarded to other
with similarroles in -~ year. employees.

similar companies. ‘ L
Increases above this level may be offered in certain circumstances

such as where an Executive Director has been promoted, has had
a change in responsibility, to reflect increased expetience in the
role, or where there has been a significant change in the size and/
or scope of the business,

When reviewing salary increases, the Committee also takes into
accocunt the impact of any Increase to base salaries on the totai
remuneration package

Details of the current salaries of the Executive Directors are set out
in the Annuai report on remuneration.
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Directors’ remuneration policy

Continued

Element Purpose and link to strategy

Performance The annual

related bonus bonus is designed
to drive and
reward the short-
term cperating
performance of
the Company
and encourage
the delivery of

Performance Period Operation (including performance measures and maximum timits)

Annual Annual bonuses are determined by reference to performance
(determined against a mix of financial, non financial and personal objectives.
after the year Before any bonus is payable a minimum levet of financial

end} performance must be achieved.

Bonuses are based on Group performance. individual
performance accounts for no more than 20% of the overall bonus
opportunity.

The rmaximum potential quanturm is 100% of salary.

consistently

gatociﬁggéomer Bonuses are payable in cash but may be voluntarily invested by the
] ) executive INto shares under the matching elerment of the LTIP.
Long-term To drive long-term Three years Awards of performance and matching shares are granted
incentives detivery of the under the Long Term Incentive Plan (which was approved by

Group's objectives, shareholders in 2008 and renewed at the 2018 AGM).

o atign Directors’
interests with those
of the Company’s
shareholders and
to encourage
exceptional
performance.

The maximum limit s 200% of salary for performance share
awards (currently, awards of 150% of salary are made to the
Executive Directors} and a maximum 2:1 match on voluntary
investrment of bonus into shares.

The maximurm amount of bonus that may be invested is set at 75%
of the maximurn bonus potental (i.e. 75% of satary). If the bonus
earned is less than 25% of salary, then the executive may invest
the equivalent of 25% of salary, from their own money, in shares t©
receive a matching award. In determining the number of matching
awards to be granted, the investment is deemed to be made gross
of tax.

Dividend eguivalents may be awarded on shares vesting under the
Plan.

Performance awards and matching awards are subject to
challenging perfermance conditions. Performance is measured
over a performance period of at least three years and a two year
post vesting helding period applies.

Pension To provide benefits
comparable with
simitar roles in simidar
companies,

N/A Newly appointed UK based Executive Directors may receve a
pension allowance that is aligned with the majority of colleagues
{currently 6% of salary in the UK), to be paid, subject to the scheme
limits, into the HomeServe Money Plan {a money purchase
pension scheme) and/or taken as a cash allowance in lieu.

Current Executive Directors receive a pension allowance of 20% of
satary, which may be taken as a cash allowance in lieu. This benefit
will reduce to the level of the workforce no later than December
2022.

Other Provides a

benefits cormpetitive
package of benefits
to assist with
recruitment and
retention of staff.

N/A Other benefits include a fully expensed car (or cash alternativel,
fuel allowance, private health cover {for the individual, partier and
dependant children), death in service benefits lup to 8 x salary) and
permanent health insurance.

Other tenefits may be provided as sppropriate and Directors can
access HomeServe products and services on the same terms as
offered to employees.

Any reasonable business related expenses (including tax thereon)
may be reimbursed if determined to be a taxable benefit.

There is no maximurmn limit on the value of the benefits provided
but the Committee monitars the total cost of the benefit provision
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Element Purpase and link to strategy Performance Period Gperation{including performance measures and maximum limits)
AllEmployee Toenccurage N/A The Executive Directors may participate in any employee share
Share Plans emplcyee share plans offered by the Company on the same terms as other

ownership. employees.

Chairman To attractand retain - N/A Nen-Executive Director fees are determined by the Board. The
and Non- Non-Executive fees for the Chairman are determined by the Remuneraticn
Executive Directors of the night Committee taking into account the views of the Chief Executive.
Directors’ calibre. The Chairman excludes himself from such discussions.
fees

The fee levels are reviewed periodically and are set to reflect

the responsibilities and time commitment of the role and the
experience of the individual. Fee levels are set by reference to
rates in companies of comparable size and complexity. The
fees for the Non-Executive directors comprise a basic Board
fee, with additional fees paid for chairing a Committee or for the
Senior Independent Directorship. The Chairman receives an all
encompassing fee for his role

In exceptional circumstances, additional fees may be payable to
reflect a substantial increase in time commitment. Fees are paid
maonthly in cash.

Any reasconable business related expenses (including tax thereon}
may be reymbursed if determined to be a taxable benefit.

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors may be eligible to
access HomeServe products and services on the same terms as
offered to employees.

Performance measures

The Remuneration Committee works hard to ensure that the remuneration policy for the Executive Directors supports

the business strategy, and that the level of remuneration received is reflective of the overall business performance and

the returns received by shareholders. A significant proportion of the remuneration package comes from variable pay with
careful consideration given to the choice of performance metrics to ensure that the executives are not encouraged to take
Inappropriate risks.

The choice of measures may change for future award cycles, butis currently based on the following:

Metric Type of Award Link to strategy

Profit Before Tax Bonus Core short-terrn profitabitity metric

Customer/Trades Bonus Core non-financial top line volume metric aligned with our growth
Growth strategy

Reduced Customer Bonus Core non-financial quality metric that contributes to long-term custormer
Dissatisfaction retention and reflects operational improvement

Personal Strategic Bonus One unigue non-financial personal strategic objective reflecting a "must
Objective win" goal for that individual in the year

Earnings per Share LTl This provides an assessment of the profitability of the Group over the
(EPS) longer-term and is strongly aligned to the execution of the business

strategy. Challenging targets are set for each award cycle based on
internal and external forecasts.
Total Sharehalder LTI This measures the total return provided to shareholders through share

Return (TSR} price appreciation and dividends. TSR provides a clear alignment between
the value created for shareholders and the reward earned by executives.

The Committee would consult with shareholders in advance of the introduction of new measures to be applied to future
award cycles.
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Directors’ remuneration policy
Continued

Annual Bonus

The annual bonus 1s designed to drive and reward excellent short-term operating performance of the Company. No annual
bonus is paid unless a very high level of petformance is achieved. The Committee reviews the annual bonus plan measures
annually n order to ensure that they are aligned with the Group's strategy and so that bonus arrangements are consistent
amongst the senior executive team. Performance targets are set at the start of the financial year and are inked 1o the Group's
strategic and operaticnal objectives The custormer focused culture across our business is reflected in the use of nen financial
rmetrics in the annual bonus scheme. These are balanced by the use of financial targets and personal objectives used to
reflect other strategic priorities.

The Committee retains the discretion to alter the choice and weighting of the metrics for future bonus cycles to reflect the
changing needs of the business. The payment of any bonus is at the discretion of the Committee and bonuses will only be
paid once a minimum level of financial performance is achieved.

LTIP

Long-term incentive awards will be granted in accordance with the rules of the shareholder approved HomeServe 2018
Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} {and any subseguent replacement plan} and the discretions contained therein. The
performance measures for the matching and performance awards are set using a sliding scale of targets and no more than
25% of the award will vest for achieving the threshold performance hurdle.

Under the rules of the plan, the Committee has the discretion to adjust the targets applying to existing awards in exceptional
circumstances providing the new targets are no less challenging than originally envisaged. The Committee also has the
power to adjust the number of shares subject to an award in the event of a variation in the capital of the Company

Awards under the LTIP may be granted as conditicnal allocauons or nil [or nominal) cost options with, or as, forfeitable shares
The Committee may also decide to grant cash based awards of an equivaient value to share based awards or to satisfy share
based awards in cash, although it does not currently intend to do so. Awards are satisfied through a mixture of either market
purchase or new issue shares. To the extent new issue shares are used, the LTIP will adhere to a 5% in 10 year dilution imit.

A post vesting holding pericd apples to all awards. There is a minimum period of five years from the date of grant of an award
befcre shares can be sold. To the extent that nil cost options are exercised after the three year vesting point, but before five
years, the net of tax value of the vested shares must continue to be held. The dividend roll up on unexercised nil cost options
will continue until five years from grant. This five year view provides a longer-term perspective to the incentive programme
than the three year performance period.

Clawback

The Committee has the power 1o reclaim some, or all, of a cash bonus and vested LTIF awards (perforrmance and matching)
in exceptional circumstances, such as misstaterment of financial results, an error in assessment of performance, the use of
misleading information and/or gross misconduct on the part of the individual. The Committee's power was strengthened in
2018 as part of the LTIP review process.
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Shareholding guidelines

It is the Board's policy that Directors build up and retain a minimum shareholding in the Company. A formal policy in respect
of the shareholding requirement was adopted during FY19. Each Director is encouraged to hold shares of at least equal value
to three times their annual basic salary or fee. For new Directors, the requirement is expected to be met within five years of
appointment {within five years of the adoption of the new policy for existing Directors).

If the holding guideline has not been fulfilled at the point of exercise of any option or the vesting of any other long-term
incentive award, the Director must retain 50% of the net proceeds in the Company’s shares until the hclding requirement 1s
achieved. Details of the current shareholdings of the Directors are provided on page 101

The policy also refiects the post vesting shareholding requirement in respect of the Long-Term Incentive Plan whereby the
net of tax value of shares that vest must be retained for a period of two years.

We are proposing to implement a guideline for post-cessation shareholding requirements of 200% of base salary; this would
apply for two years post cessation and would apply to shares awarded after the implementation of the new policy.

How employees’ pay is taken into account

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors is designed with regard to the policy for employees across the Group
as a whole. Our ability to meet our growth expectations and compete effectively 1s dependent on the skills, experience and
performance of all of cur employees. Our employment peolicies, remuneration and benefit packages for employees are
regularly reviewed.

There are some differences In the structure of the remuneration policy for the Executive Directors and senior management
team compared to other employees refiecting their differing responsibilities, with the principal difference being the increased
emphasis on performance related pay for the more senior executives within the organisation. However, there are many
commgecn themes, For example, the structure of the annual bonus, with the focus on financial, non financial and personal
performance is the same for employees at management grade and above.

Employee share ownership is encouraged and facilitated through extending participation in the LTIP to other senior leaders
within the business and all eligible employees are able to participate in the HomeServe One Plan, a share incentive plan.

Although the Committee does not consult directly with employees on directors’ pay, the Committee does take into
consideration the pay and employment conditions of all emplcyees when setting the policy for directors’ remuneration. In
terrms of comparison metrics, the Committee takes into account the average level of salary Increase being budgeted for the
UK workforce when reviewing the salary levels of the Executive Directors. The Committee is also mindful of any changes to
the pay and benefit conditions for employees maore generally when considering the policy for directors’ pay.

How shareholders’ views are taken into account

The Committee considers shareholder feedback received regarding the Remuneration report annually and guidance from
shareholder representative bodies more generally. These views are key inputs when shaping remuneration policy. The
Committee consults with shareholders when considering changes to remuneration arrangements and did so during the year
in respect of the renewal of the policy.
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Directors’ remuneration policy
Continued

Remuneration scenarios for Executive Directors

The chart below details the compaosition of each Executive Director's remuneration package and how it varies at different
levels of performance under the policy set out above. It demonstrates the balance between fixed and variable pay at
threshold, on-target and maximum performance levels under the normal remuneration policy for the Executive Directors.

24,500
£4.000 . . . E3.948
$4,333
£3.500
£3,070
£3.000 -
$3.338
_ £2,531
§ 22,5001 57%
2 E2,251
§ 69%
= 57% £1,968
S 2000 B - §2410
®
5 60%
H
& 47% 67%
21500} -EL443 50%
57%
£1.000
£500
0
Mimmur Target Maximam Maxrrnarm Minmmurn Target Maximum Maxirnum pAnimiam Target Maximum Maxirrurr
+50% +50% + 50%
share pnce share price share price
growth growth growth
R Harpin D Bower TRusin®
Key N otz hxed pay W -rual bonus Long-terrm incentives

Torm Rusn 15 pand 1n USD and the USD amounts have been converted to GBP for illustratve purposes

Assumptions

Fixed Fixed pay only (salaty plus beneiits plus pension)

On target Target annual bonus of B0% of salary plus target LTIP awards in FY21 of 30% of salary plus rnatching awards of 30% of salary

Maxzimurn Maxsmurn annuac bonus of 100% of satary plus maximum LTIP awards in FY20 of 150% of salary plus matching awards of 150% of salary

Maximumm plus share price growth  The maximum scenano above but llustrating the impact of a 50% mncrease in the share price on the LTIP awards

Salary levels {on which other elements of the packages are calculateal are based on salaries as at 31 March 2020

The value of taxable benehts 1s based on the actual values paid in FY20

The UK Executives receve a pension allowance of 20% of basic salary The Executive Directors may participate in all-employee share schernes on the same basis as other employeas
The value that may be received under these schemes s subject (o tax approved imits For simplicity, the value that may be receved from participating in these schemes has been
excluded from the above charts The on target and maxamum scenanos exclude the impact of share price growth exceplt as otherwise noted
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Executive Directors’ service agreements and policy on payments for loss of office
Under the Executive Directors’ service contracts up to twelve months’ notice of termination of ermnployment is required by
either party (reduced to six months if following a prolonged period of incapacity).

Dates of current contracts are summarised in the table below.

Name Date of contract
D Bower 3 February 2017
R Harpin 18 January 2002
T Rusin 4 April 2018

Should notice be served, the Executives can continue to receive basic salary, benefits and pension for the duration of their
nctice peried. The Company may require the individual to continue to fulfil their current duties, or may assign a period of
garden leave. The Company applies a general principle of mitigation in relation to termination payments and supports the
use of phased payments. From the date of the announcement of an Executive Director's termination, any payment would be
capped at 12 months’ pay (that is, notice must be served concurrent with the announced departure).

Outplacement services may be provided where appropriate, and any statutory entitlements or sums to settle or compromise
claims in connection with a termination {including, at the discretion of the Committee, reimbursement for legal advice)
would be paid as necessary.

The service contracts also enable the Company to elect to make a payment in lieu of notice equivalent in value to twelve
months’ base salary, benefits and pension.

In the event of cessation cf employment, the executives may still be eligible for a performance related bonus for the period
worked. Different performance measures may be set to reflect changes in the director's responsibilities until the point of
departure.

The rules of the LTIP set out what happens o outstanding share awards if a participant leaves employment before the end
of the vesting period. Generally, any outstanding share awards will lapse when an Executive leaves employment, except in
certain circumstances. If the Executive leaves employment as a result of death, ill-health, injury, disability, retirement, transfer
of employment or any other reason at the discretion of the Committee, then they will be treated as a 'gocd leaver' under the
plan rules.

For a good leaver, any outstanding unvested LTHP awards will vest on the normal vesting date subject to an assessment of
performance, with a pro rata reduction to reflect the proportion of the vesting period served. The Committee may dis-apply
the time pro-rating requirement if it considers it appropriate to do so. In the case of cessation due to death, the Committee
can determine that the awards vest early. Outstanding vested but not exercised awards can be exercised by a good leaver
until the expiry of the normal exercise pericd (or within 12 months in the case of death).

In determining whether an Executive should be treated as a good leaver and the extent to which their award may vest, the
Committee will take into account the circumstances of an individual's departure.

The treatment of share awards on a change of controlis the same as that set out above in relation to a good leaver (albeit
with the vesting period automatically ending on the date of the change in control).

Recruitment Policy

Base salary levels will be set in accordance with HomeServe's remuneration policy, taking account of the executive’s

skills, experience and their current remuneration package. Where it is appropriate to offer a lower salary intially, a series of
increases to the desired salary positicning may be given over subsequent years subject to individual performance. Benefits
will generally be provided in accordance with the approved policy, with relocation expenses and/or an expatriate allowance
paid for if necessary. For an overseas appointment (which may include the relocation of an existing Director), the benefit and
pension arrangements may be tailored to reflect local market practice {subject to the overall maximum limits on pension set
outin the policy table).
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Directors’ remuneration policy
Continued

The structure of the variable pay element will be in accordance with HomeServe's policy as detailed above. The maximum
permitted variable pay opportunity is 450% of salary {100% of salary bonus + 200% of salary LTiP + 150% of salary matching
award). However, the normat award limits are a bonus of 100% of salary, a performance share award of 150% of salary and
up to a 150% of salary matching award. In the case of the matching awards, a new recruit may be invited to invest up to 25%
of salary from their own funds in the first year in order to receive a matching award {in determining the number of matching
awards to be granted, the investment is deemed to be made gross of tax) LTIP awards may be made shortly following an
appointment (@assuming the Company is notin a closed period).

The performance and matching awards would be granted on a consistent basis 1o the other Executive Directors, In the case
of the annual bonus, different performance measures may be set for the first year, taking into account the responsibilities of
the individual and the point in the financial year at which they joined. if it is necessary to buy-out incentive pay (which would
be forfeited on leaving the previous employer) in order to secure the appointment, this would be provided for taking into
account the forrm (cash or shares), timing and expected value {1 e. likelihood of meeting any existing performance criteria)

of the reruneration being forfeited. The LTIP permits the grant of restricted share awards to Executive Directors inthe case
of recruitment to facilitate this, although awards may also be granted outside of this scheme if rnecessary, and as permitted
under .94 2.2 of the Listing Rules.

The service contract for a new appomtment would be in accordance with the policy for the current Executive Directors.

In the case of an internal hire, any outstanding variable pay awarded in relation to the previous role will be allowed tc pay cut
according to its terms of grant.

Fees for a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director will be set in line with the approved policy

Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment
Non-Executive Directors serve under letters of appointment for penods of three years The Non-Executive Directors
{including the Charman} have & nctice period of three months but no liquidated damages are payable.

Fees are determined by the Executive Directors within the limits set by the Articles of Association, and are based on
information on fees paid in similar companies and the skills and the expected time cormmitment of the individual concerned.

Detalls of their current three year appamtments are as follows:

Name Date of contract

K Clffe 23 May 2017

S Dawvid 23 Novermnber 2019
E Fitzmaurice 23 May 2017

J M B Gibson 1 April 2019

O Gremillon 29 March 2019

R McMillan 27 October 2017

Outside Appointments
Executive Directors may hold one outside appoimtment and can retain any fees received
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Annual report on remuneration

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with Part 3 of the revised Schedule B set out in The Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013, and 9.8.6R of the Listing
Rules. The annual report on remuneration will be put tc an advisory shareholder vote at the 2020 Annual General Meeting.

Remuneration Committee Members

Katrina Cliffe {Chairman}

JM Barry Gibson

Stella David

Edward Fitzmaurice (appointed 30 January 2020)
Clvier Grémillen (appointed 30 January 2020}
Ron McMillan

All of the members except Stella David are independent Nen-Executive Directors. The Board determined that the Company
Chairman, Barry Gibson, should remain a member of the Committee taking account of the fact that he was considered to be
independent on appointment and also that, as a former Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee, his knowledge of the
development of the remuneration policy and practices at HomeServe is invaluable. He takes no part in discussions relating to
his own remuneration.

Responsibilities

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to set the framework and pclicy for remuneration of the Board of
Directors, both Executives and Non-Executives, and the Executive Committee. In determining these arrangements, the
Committee takes account of the employment conditions and remuneration arrangements across the Group, seeking to
ensure they align with common objectives and are based on the same principles. Insofar as possible, we ensure they also
follow similar structures, since this is the most reliable way of ensuring transparency. We aim to offer a remuneration package
that is sufficiently attractive to attract and appropriately reward the leadership team required to successfully run a complex
international Group.

The primary responsibiliies of the Committee include
« Determining the Group’s overall remuneration strategy
» Determining the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and other members of the Executive Committee

« Selecting the measures and setting the performance criteria for the annual bonus and LTIP; and, at the end of the
performance periods, evaluating performance aganst these critena and determining if discretion should be applied in
determining the final level of payrment

= Approving the grant and exercise of executive share-based long-term incentive arrangements and overseeing the
operation of other share-based plans across the Group

+ Agreeing the terms and conditions of service agreements with Executive Directors, including termination payments

« Monitoring the pay of the Executive Committee whose pay is set against that of the whaole workforce, in this regard, the
Committee reviews internal relativities and pay ratios, and invites the Group People Director to its meetings to provide a full
picture of pay and conditions across the Group

= Considering the guidance issued by shareholders, their representative bodies and proxy agencies (including the
Investrent Association and Institutional Shareholder Services) on matters related to executive compensation and
corporate governance, further, the Committee encourages an open dialogue with shareholders throughout the
year, soliciting feedback and consulting their views ahead of enacting significant changes to the Policy Report or its
implementation.
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Annual report on remuneration
Continued

The Committee’s terms of reference were reviewed during the year to ensure they were aligned to the new UK Corporate
Governance Code. The full schedule is available on our website.
http://www.homeserveplc.com/about-us/corporate-governance/our-board

In deterrmining remuneration policy, the Committee is free to obtain such professional advice as it sees fit, and it pericdically
moenitors both the policies of comparator compantes and current market practice, in order to ensure that the packages
provided are sufficient to attract and retain Executive Directors of the necessary quality.

The Committee aims to develop and recommend remuneration strategies that drnve performance and reward it
appropriately. In determining its policy, the Committee has paid regard to the principles and provisions of good governance
contained In the Code and the guidelines 1ssued by institutions such as the Investment Association, 1SS and the Pensions and
Lifetime Savings Association (PLSA). The Commitiee operates under the delegated authority of the Board.

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is a matter for the Board. No Director is involved in determining his or her own
remuneration.

The Committee has agreed and implemented & procedure for reviewing and assessing its own effectiveness as part of the
annual effectiveness review of the Board.

Key issues considered during the year
Aside from the usual cycle of discussions in respect of pay and bonuses, the key issue discussed by the Committee during
the year was the renewal of the remuneration policy.

Advisers

During the year, independent advice was received by the Committee from the Executive Compensation practice of Aon

pic. The Commutiee selects its own advisers. Aon also provided technical implementation and accounting advice in relation
to the administration of the Company’s share schemes. Aon is @ member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and is

d signatory © its Code of Conduct. During the year, insurance broking services were also provided to the Group by other
subsidianes of Aon plc, which the Committee considers in no way prejudices Aon's position as the Committee’s independent
advisers.

Fees charged by Aon for advice provided to the Committee for the year ending 31 March 2020 amounted to £80,384
(excluding VAT). Acn also provided additional remuneration advisory services to the Company during the year ending
31 March 2020 which fell outside of its support to the Remuneration Committee. These fees amounted to £23 445
{excluding VAT).

The Committee has also received assistance from Richard Harpin, Group Chief Executive, David Bower, Chief Financiat
Officer, Kate Keyworth, Group People Director and Anna Maughan, Company Secretary, all of whom attended meetings
of the Commuttee as required. No Executive took part in discussions in respect of matters relating directly to their own
remuneration.
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Remuneration for the year under review (Audited)

4
Salary Taxable Total Total é
and fees benefits® Pension ¢ Bonus LTip FY20 Fy1g n
Year £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 g
Executives g
D Bower FY20 375 18 75 356 746 1,570
FY19 328 20 66 246 395 1,055
R Harpin Fyz0 585 28 117 538 2,761 4,029
FY19 574 2G 110 430 4,538 5,681
T Rusin® FYz20 519 ) 9 462 2,239 3,238
FY19 494 10 9 361 3,313 4,187
M Bennett 2 Fyz20 — — — - - —
FY19 129 & 26 98 — 259
JFord ® FYz20 — — - - — -
FY19 309 15 (574 215 — 605
Non-Executives
K Cliffe Fy20 68 - = — - 68
Fr1s 62 — — — - 62
S David Fyz0 70 — — — - 70
FY19 78 — — - - 78
E Fitzmaurice Fy20 55 — - - - 55 o
FY19 55 - — - — 55 2
C Grémillon # FYeo 55 - - — — 55 §
FY19 - - — — — - °
J M B Gibson FY20 263 - - — — 263
FY19 250 - — — — 250
R McMillan FY20 65 - - - - 65
FY19 65 - = - - 65
C Havemann ® Fyz20 — — — — — -
FY19 41 — — — — 41
Total FY20 2,055 55 201 1,356 5,746 9,413
Total FY19 2.385 80 273 1,354 8,246 12,238

- Tom Rusinis paid in LSD and the USD amounts have been converted nto GBP for the purposes of this table using the average exchange rate for FY20

¢ Martin Bennett left the Board on 20 July 2018

 Johnathan Ford left the Board on 31 Decernber 2018

* Ohwvier Grémillon was apponted to the Board on 29 March 201%

~ Chns Havernann retired from the Board on 1 Decermber 2018

© Berefits comprise company car, fuel allowance and medical insurance

Cetalls of pension contributions can be found later i the report

* The figures for FY19 have been updated tc refiect the actual share prce on vesting for the 2016 award The figures for FY20 are based on the average share price over the last three
months of the hnancial year as the awards have not vet vested The value shown for each LTIP award includes an amount n respect of dividend equvalents

SJUBLURIRLS 1RIDURUILY
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Annual report on remuneration
Continued

Details of variable pay earned in the year (Audited)
Annual Bonus

For FY20, the annual bonus was based on the following stretching targets:

Financial and non finanoal bonus targets for David Bower and Richard Harpin

% Payable at

Weighting Threshold Thrashold Target/Stretch Actual % Payable
Financial Group profit before tax 20% 25% £172.0m £181.0m £181.0m 100%
measures Group net debt - year end 5% — - £515.8m £449.7m 100%
Group net debt - half year 5% — — £444 5m £4150m 100%
Non financial Customer growth 20% — — 8.2m 83m 100%
measures Trades growth 5% - — 81k 66k 0%
Customer dissatisfaction
(measured as a weighted
average level of customer
dissatisfaction across the
UK, US, France and Spain) 20% — - 50 46 100%
Employee engagement 5% - - 74% 100%
financial and non financial bonus targets for Tom Rusin
% Payabie at
Weighting Threshold Thrashotd Target/Stretch Actual % Payable
Financial Group profit before tax 20% 25% £172.0m £181.0m £181.0m 100%
easures Mermbership net debt -
vear end 5% - - £392.3m £358.8m 100%
Membership net debt -
half year 5% — — £349.0m £393.3m 100%
Non financial  Customer growth 20% — - 82m 8.3m 100%
measures Trades growth 5% - — 81k 66k 0%
Customer dissatisfaction
{measured as a weighted
average level of
customer dissatisfaction
across the UK, US, France
and Span} 20% - - 50 46 100%
Employee engagement 5% — — 74% 5%

© The annual employee engagement survey was due 1o be run in March 2020 Given the COVID 19 cnsis, itwas agreed that ¢ was not appropriate to run the survey due to the
operatonal challenges being faced by the whole workforce The Remuneration Comrittee considered the tremendous efforts rade to keep the business running dunng the

crisis the results of the intenm survey completed half way through the year and a COVID Care survey run to assess the irnpact of the ¢risis on our people On the basis of the evidence

presented, twas agreed that it was appropriate to pay the part of the bonus relating tc ernployee engagement in full
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Personal bonus targets
Objectives Weighting QOutcome % Payable
D Bower » Establish a framework for HVAC ~ 20% Key achievements included: 100%
MEA. = Implemented a streamlined approvals
+ Deliver a successful Investor Day. process which has increased deal
« Develop additional long-term flow.
incentives for new businesses. » The Investor Day won best
s+ Deliver significant IT cost savings. external event at the Corporate
Communications Awards.
» Special Value Creation Plan
implemented for Home Experts and
Japan.
« Budgeted savings were delivered.
R Harpin » Purchase remaining 30% of 20% Key achievements included: 85%
Habitissimo and appoint a new » Remaining shares purchased and new
management team. CFO appointed.
« Prove out at least three elements « Implemented a new recruitmernt

of the new Checkatrade model. model for Checkatrade and added
*  Accelerate the developrment of shortlist capability and video

LeakBot. quotations.
= Sign first utility partnership in = LeakBotrolled out by one UK insurer

Japan. and trials commenced in the US.

» Signed Chugoku Etectric and
commenced marketing.
T Rusin + Test HomeServe Now. 20% Key achievements included 70%

Prove out Whole Home
Warranty.

Deliver the HVAC operating plan
and progress the M&A pipeline.
Launch a fully digital version of
HomeServe Membership.

HomeServe Now tested in both the
UK and the US.

Purchased two whole hame warranty
businesses and developed winning TV
advertising.

Developed HVAC operating plans in
each territcry and the MEA pipeline.

Completely digital customer journey
launched in the US
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Annual report on remuneration
Continued

The stretching financial targets for the Group have been met but there was only partial achievernent in respect of the non
financial targets. Despite strong custormer growth in Membership, particularly in North America and France the growth in
the numbper of trades in Home Experts fell short of the stretching target. The continued focus on delivering great customer
service meant that the customer dissatisfaction target was met in full.

Having reviewed performance, the following bonuses were payable:

Narne Bonus £ % of salary
D Bower 356,250 S5%
R Harpin 538,366 92%
T Rusin 461,654 89%

Annual bonuses are paid in cash but Executive Directors have the opportunity 1o invest their bonuses (up to 75% of the
maximumy} in HomeServe shares in order to participate in the matching element of the LTIR

Long-term Incentive Plan
The 2017 LTIP performance and matching awards were granted cn 27 June 2017 The performance awards were granted in
two parts with different performance conditions applying to each part.

The performance conditions for the performance and matching awards were as follows

Percentage of award to which

Condition the conditon applies Performance peried Threshotd target Stretch target Actual performance Vesting
TSR 25% 3years to TSR equal to TSR exceeds 118.3% 100%
{underpinned 31 March 2020  the FTSE 250 the index by an
by underlying index average of 15%
financial p.a.
performance)
EPS 75% 3years to Compound Compound 15.26% 100%
31March 2020  annualgrowth  annual growth
of 6% of 16%

Based on the strong performance of HomeServe over the performance penod the stretch performance targets were
exceeded and the awards will vest in fullin June 2020. A two vear post-vesting holding requirement applies to the awards.

The 2017 awards have been valued for the purpose of the remuneration table on page 95 using the average share price over
the last three months of the financial year.
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Summary of outstanding awards {Audited)

LTIP g
Details of the maximum number of shares recevable from awards made under the LTIP are as follows §
3
31March2020  Awardec dunngyear  Lapsed durngyear  Vested durng year 31 March 2019 Date granted  Type of award §,
D Bower - - - 31779 31775 1716 Performance
59,250 - — — 59,250 276.17 Performance
46,247 — - - 46,247 24718 Performance
45117 - — — 45117 24718 Matching
47,468 47468 - - - 26.6.19 Performance
40,789 40,789 — - — 26.6.19 Matching
R Harpin — - 1912 209,426 211,338 1716 Performance
- — - 155,521 155,521 1716 Matching
111,632 — — — 111,632 276.17 Performance
107,547 - — — 107547 276.17 Matching
87,133 - - - 87133 24718 Performance
84,691 — - - 84,691 24718 Matching
74,438 74,438 — — — 26619 Performance
71,453 71,453 - — — 26.6.19 Matching
T Rusin - - 1,408 154,216 155,624 1716 Performance
- - - 112,223 112,223 1716 Matching
93,920 - - - 93,920 27617 Performance
83,823 — — — 83,823 27617 Matching
74,699 - — — 74,69% 24718 Performance
67,192 - - - 67192 24718 Matching
65,926 05,926 - - — 26.6.19 Performance
62,030 62,030 - - - 26619 Matching

The performance conditions for the outstanding awards are as follows.
s 25% comparative TSR (FTSE 250 Index + 15% per annum for maximum vesting)
= 75% compound annual EPS growth {15% CAGR for maximum vesting).
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Annual report on remuneration

Continued

Further details on LTIP awards granted in the year
On 26 June 2019, the following performance and matching share awards were granted to the Executive Directors under the

LTIP:

Performance share awards

Snare price used 1o

Award size Face value at

% that vests at

Date of grant Number of shares determine awards 1% salary) grant £ threshald

D Bower 26619 47468 £11.85 150% 562,455 25%‘
R Harpin 26619 74,438 £11.85 150% 882,090 25%
T Rusin 266.19 65,926 £11.85 150% 781,223 25%

Matching share awards
Nurnber of Number of

nvestment shares shares subject 1o Share price used to % that vests a;

Date of grant purchased Award size matching award deterrmine awards Face vaue £ threshold

D Bower 26619 10,809 2:1match 40,789 £11.85 483,350 25%

R Harpin 266159 18,935 21match 71,453 £1185 846,718 25%

T Rusin 26619 16,438 2:1 match 62,030 F£11.85 735,056 25%

The performance awards and the matching awards are subject to two performance conditions. 25% of the awards are
subject to a relative total shareholder return performance condition that reguires HomeServe's TSR to match that of the FTSE
250 Index over a three year performance period for threshold vesting, increasing on a straight-line basis to index + 15% per
annum for full vesting. The other 75% of the awards are subject to an earnings per share condition that requires compound
annual EPS growth of 9% to 15% per annum. 5% growth would result in threshold vesting, increasing on a straight-line basis to
fuil vesting if growth of 15% per annum 1s achieved.

Vesting is also subject to underlying financial performance and a two year post vesting holding perod applies.

Further details on awards vested in the year
Perfarmance and matching awards granted on 1 July 2016 vested in full during the year.

Share price at Facevalue [hwdend equialents

Date of grant Type of Award Date of exercise No of Shares exercise at exercise £ paid In cash £

D Bower ) 1716 Performance 3718 31,779 £11.95 379,759 15,4?
R Harpin 1716 Performance 3719 209,426 £11.95 2,502,641 101,572
1716 Matching 3719 155,521 £1185 1,858,476 75,428

T Rusin 1716 Performance 3719 154,216 £1195 1,842,881 74,795
1716 Matching 3719 112,223 £1195 1,341,065 54,428

One Plan Matching Shares (Share Incentive Plan)

Sold during the Aggregate face value
vear to pay tax on Acguired durng of shares awarded

31 March 2020 vesting year 31 March 2019 during the year £
R Harpin 382 — 78 304 903
D Bower 182 — 78 304 903
T Rusin 371 53 93 331 1,081

* Based on the acquisibon phce of the associated Partnership Shares The highest share price was £13 38 and the lowest share price was £8 72

Participants receive one Matching Share for every two Partnership Shares they purchase. Shares are purchased on a monthly
basis. Matching Shares are normally kept in trust for a minimum period of three years.
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Shareholding Guidelines (Audited)
It is the Board's policy that Executive Directors build up and retain @ minimum shareholding in the Company. Each Director is
encouraged to hold shares of at least equal value to 300% of their annual basic salary or fee.

Under the Long-Term Incentive Plan, the net of tax value of shares that vest must be retained for a pericd of two years.

The beneficial interests of Directors who served at the end of the year, together with those of their families, in the shares of
the Company are as follows:
Value of sharasg

counting towards
guideline holding

Quistanding LTIP Total (as a % of salary

19 May 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 awards 31 March 2020 or tee) ! Guideline met?
D Bower 124,688 124,648 113,586 238,871 363,519 352% Yes
R Harpin 2 40,553,137 40,553,117 40,146,773 536,894 41,090,011 72,960% Yes
T Rusin 703,886 703,862 544,634 447590 1,151,453 1,429% Yes
K Cliffe 18,276 18,276 12,076 — 18,276 267% No
S David 100,020 100,020 68,945 — 100,020 1,628% Yes
E Fitzmaurnice 786,265 786,265 786,265 - 786,265 15125% Yes
O Grémillon 10,000 10,000 — - 10,000 192% No
JM B Gibson 150,076 150,070 150,070 — 150,070 525% Yes
R McMillan 15,249 15,245 - — 15,249 248% No

* Calculated using the shareholding and share price on 31 March 2020 of £10 58 dwided by the Executive’s salary or Non-Executive’s fee on that date
7 Tatal shareholding includes an indirect Interest of 9.285 shares

Directors’ pensions (Audited)
The following contributions were made:

2020 2018
£000 £060
R Harpin 117 110
D Bower 75 66

Tom Rusin participates in a US 401k pension plan (a defined contribution scheme) to which the Company contributed £8,915
($11,340) in FY20. (FY19. £8,783)
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Annual report on remuneration
Continued

Performance graph

The graph below shows the Company's performance, measured by TSR, compared with the performance of the FTSE-250
index (also measured by TSR) for the ten years ended 31 March 2020. This comparator has been chosen as it is a bread equity
index of which the Company i1s a constituent and it is also the one used in assessing relative TSR perforrnance under the LTIRP

500
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200
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. FTSE-250 index 7 HomeServe plc

This graph shows the valug, by 31 March 2020, ot E100 invested in HorneServe on 31 March 2011 tormpared with that of £100 Invested in the FTSE-250 Index on the same date

Chief Executive’s remuneration

The total remuneration figures for the Chief Executive during each of the last ten years are shown in the table below. The
figures include the annual bonus based on that year's performance and the matching awards plus the LTIP awards based on
the three year performance period ending in the relevant year. The annual bonus and long-term incentive award vesting level
as a percentage of the maximum opportunity are alsc disclosed below:

Frit Friz 13 Fri4 FYis Fr16 Fyi7 Fr18 Fr1g Frz0
Total remuneration (EQ00s) 953 559 953 1212 1200 3355 4256 85632 4749° 4,029
Annual Bonus 87% 0% 75% 100% 96% S8% 100% S6% 75% 92%
LTIP awards vesting 51% - 60% % 0% 0% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Notes
No LTIPs were due to vest in FY11 The ESOP awards granted n 2007 lapsed as the perforrmance conditions were not met Awards made under the Deferred Bonus Plan vestea on the
basis of 2 48 shares out of a maxirmum 3

“ The total mcludes the 2014 and 2015 LTIP awards which were granted and vested a year apart

© Standard LTIPs vested at 100% Aaditional LTIPs vested at 96 38%
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Percentage change in remuneration levels

The table below shows the percentage change in the Chief Executive’s total remuneration {excluding the value of any
pension, matching awards and performance awards receivable in the year} between FY19 and FY20 compared to the average
for all empioyees of HomeServe plc.

% Change from FY19 to FYZ20

_ Salary Benefts Annval Bonus
Chief Executive Officer 2.0% -1.9% 25.1%
Average of other HomeServe plc empioyees -4.4% 0.0% 0.1%

CEOQ pay ratio
The table below compares the Chief Executive's total remuneration against that of all of its UK employees.

Year Methcd Median pay rate 75th percentle pay ration

Y20  Option B 2781 1721 1251

25tn Percentie pay 1ato

In terms of reporting options, the Company chose option B, using the most recent gender pay gap information to determine
the relevant employee at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile to compare to the Chief Executive’s pay, as that data was
considered to be the most accurate and comprehensive data available. It refers to gender pay data as at 1 April 2019.

Relative importance of spend on pay
The following table shows the Company's actual spend on pay (for all employees) relative to dividends, tax and retained
profits.

Fr1G Fr20

_ £m £m _ # change

Pay (Emi) 3069 339.2 11%
Dividends (Emj) 65.0 73.5 13%
Tax (Em) 3i2 321 3%
Retained profits (Em} 108.5 106.0 -2%

£69rmn of the staff costs figures relate to pay for the Executive Directors. This is different to the aggregate of the single figures
for the year under review due to the way in which the share based awards are accounted for.

The dividends figures relate to amounts paid in respect of the relevant financial year.

Application of the remuneration policy for FY21

Basic salary

Basic salary for each Executive Director is determined by the Remuneration Committee taking into account the roles,
responsibilities, perfarmance and experience of the individual. Salary increases are determined taking into account pay and
employment conditions of employees elsewhere in the Company and market data on salary levels for similar positions at
comparable companies in the FTSE 250.

Salaries are normally reviewed in July each year {unless responsibilities change). Given the cpportunity for short-term profit
growth will be more limited as a result of the COVID-19 crisis, the Committee has decided that no inflationary salary increases
will be awarded during FY21L.

The salaries for the Executive Directors will therefore continue to be as follows:

Narme of Director Salary
D Bower £375,000
R Harpin £588,064
T Rusin $663,000
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Annual report on remuneration
Continued

Fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

As detailled in the remuneration policy, the Company aims to set remuneration for Non-Executive Directors at a teve( which
1s sufficient to attract and retain Non-Executive Directors of the right calibre. The fees paid to the Chairman and the Non-
Executive Directors are reviewed periodically. The fees for the Non-Executive Directors were reviewed during FY19 but no
changes were made.

During FY20, as part of the work undertaken in respect of the search for a successor to Barry Gibson, the Chairman, the
fees paid in respect of that role were reviewed. The Chairman's fee had been unchanged since 2016 and having reviewed
the market data, and taking into account the growtn in the size and complexity of the Group, it was agreed that the fee be
increased from £250,000 to £300,000. This increase took effect on 1 January 2020.

Details of the current fees are detailed in the table below.

Chairmans fees £300,000
Senior Independent Director additional fee £7.500
Non-Executive Directors hase fee £55,000
Chair of Remuneration, Audit & Risk or People Committee £10,000

Annual bonus performance targets
The annual banus plan for FY21 will operate on a similar basis to FY20 and 15 consistent with the policy detailed earlier in this
report.

The bonus measures will be as follows:

Financial measures Nor financal measures Personal abjectives

(0% of bonus! (40% of bonus) 12C% of onus)

*  Profit before tax = Customer/trades growth {20%) = One personat strategic
«  Reducuon in Custorner dissdlisfaction {20%) objective

The Committee considers the forward looking performance targets to be commercially sensitive but more detailed
disclosure will be provided in next year's remuneration report.

The Committee has discretion to scale back any bonus payments if it 1s deemed appropriate.

Long-term incentives

The long-term incentive plan will continue to provide a mix of performance (up to 200% of salary) and matching share
awards {2:1 match on up to 75% of salary bonus invested in shares). In line with the policy, the FY20 Performance Share award
for Executive Directors will be at 150% of salary.

Performance criteria
Performance cniteria for the FY21 grant are still under consideration and will be confirmed when awards are granted.

Holding period for vested shares
The net of tax value of any shares vesting under the LTIP must be held for a further two years, providing a longer-term
perspective 10 the iIncentive programme,

Shareholding guidelines
The minimum required sharehiolding for each Executive Director is three tirmes anrnual basic salary. Shareholding guidelines at
three times their fee also applies to Non-Executive Directors.
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Shareholder voting at the 2019 Annual General Meeting
At last year's Annual General Meeting held on 19 July 2019, the following votes from shareholders were received:

Remuneration report

Total number of votes % of votes cast
For 182,688,926 69%
Against 80,889,568 31%
Total votes cast (for and against excluding withheld votes) 263,578,494 100%
Votes withheld 8,772,877
Total votes (including withheld votes) 272,351,371

General
The market price of the Company’s shares at 31 March 2020 was £10.58 (2019 £10.25). During the year the price ranged from

E768t0 £13.40

The shares reguired for share options and awards under any of the long-term incentive schemes described above may be
fulfilled by the purchase of shares in the market by the Company's Employee Benefit Trust {(EBT). Awards may alsc be fulfilled
through newly issued shares, subject to the dilution limits within each scheme (which are fully compliant with investor
guidelines). As beneficiaries under the EBT, the Directors are deemed to be interested in the shares held by the EBT which at
31 March 2020 amounted to 265,204 ordinary shares.

By Order of the Board

Katrina Cliffe
Chairman of the Rermuneration Committee
19 May 2020
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Directors’ report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting ther Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Management report
The Directors’ report, together with the Strategic report set out on pages 2 to 51 form the Management Report for the
purposes of Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (DTR} 4.1.5R.

Statutory information contained etsewhere in the Annual Report
Information required to be part of this Directors’ Report can be found elsewhere in the Annual Report as indicated in the table
below and is incorpeorated into this report by reference.

Information ) Location in Annual Report
Likely future developments in the. business of the Company or its subsidiaries Pages 2 to 51
Employees ([employment of disabled persons, employes engagement and policies) Pages19tc 21
Stakeholder engagement Page 18
Corporate Governance Statement Pages 52 to 81
Directors’ details (including changes made during the year} Pages 65, 66 and 68
Related party transactions Note 49 on page 188
Diversity Page 21
Share Capital Note 28 on page 166
Going Concern and Viability Statement Pages 47 10 49
Employee share schermes (iIncluding long-term incentive schemes) Note 32 on page 169
Financial instruments. Information on the Group’s inancial instruments and risk Notes 27 and 45 on pages
managerment objectives and policies, including our policy for hedging 164 and 183
Statements of responsibilities Page 109
Disclosure of information to auditor i Page 109

Results and Dividends

The Directors are recornmending the payment on 3 August 2020 of a final dividend of 178p per ordinary share to
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 3 July 2020 which, together with the net interim dividend of 5.8p per
ordinary share paid on 7 January 2020, results in a total net dividend for the year of 23.6p per share (FY15: 21.4p}.

Political donations
No political donations were made during the year

Rules on appointment and replacement of Directors
All the Directors will seek re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Company’s Articies of Association and the
recommendations of the Code

A Director may be appointed by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in a general meeting following nomination by the
Board or a member (or members) entitled to vote at such meetings. In addition, the Directors may appoint a Director to fill a
vacancy or as an additional Director, provided that the individual seeks election at the next AGM.

A Director may be removed by the Company in certain circumstances set outin the Articles of Association or by an ordinary
resolution of the Company.

Directors’ indemnities and insurance

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were in place during
the year and remain in force at the date of this report. The Company maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for its
Directors and officers.

Articles of Association
The powers of the Directors are set outin the Company’s Articles of Association which are available on request, The Articles
of Association may be changed by special resolution.
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Capital Structure

Details of the 1ssued share capital, together with details of shares issued during the year, are set out in note 28. There is one
class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at 2 general meeting
of the Company.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of & holding or on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisions of the Articles of Association and prevalling legisiation. The Directors are not aware of any agreements between
holders of the Company’s shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights.

Detalls of employee share schemes are set cut in note 32. No votes are cast in respect of the shares held in the Employee
Benefit Trust and dividends are waived.

No person has any special rights of control over the Company's share capital and all issued shares are fully paid. Subject to
the Companies Act 2006 and any relevant authority of the Company In general meeting, the Company has authority to issue
new shares.

The AGM held in 2015 authorised the Directors to allot shares in the capital of the Company within certain limited
circumstances and as permitted by the Companies Act. A renewal of this authority will be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

Authority to purchase shares

The Company was authorised at the 2019 AGM to purchase its own shares, within certain limits and as permitted by the
Articles of Association. A renewal of this authority will be propcsed at the 2020 AGM. No shares were purchased during the
year and no shares are held in Treasury.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting

Group UK FY20 FY19
Giobal tonnes Global tonnes Global tonnes Global tonnes
of COe of COe of COe of CO.e
FY20 FY19 FY20 Frig UK Other UK Other
Combustion of fuel and 12,022 12,899 8,468 9,324 70% 30% 72% 28%
operation of facilities
Electricity, heat, steam
and cooling purchased 1,574 1697 1,015 1,070 64% 36% 63% 37%
for own use
Totat 13,596 14,586 5,483 10,394
Tonnes of CO e per 16 17 5.4 55
thousand customers
Group UK Frzo FY19
KwH HwH KwH K-
FY20 FY19 FY20 F¥19 UK Other UK Other
f
Combuston of fueland o 116 440 53062709 35,089,025 37986426 70% 30% 72% 28%
operation of facilities
Electricity, heat, steam
and cooling purchased 6,158,729 59893,395 3,971,866 3,780,844 64% 36% 63% 37%
for own use
Total 56,278,169 59,056,104 39,060,891 41767270 69% 31% 71% 29%

Woe have reported on alt of the emission sources reguired under the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulation 2008 as amended in August 2013, The reporting boundary used for collation of the
above data is consistent with that used for consolidation purposes in the financial staterments. We have used the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition), data gathered to fulfil our requirements under the
CRC Energy Efficiency scheme, and emission factors from the UK Government's GHG Conwversion Factors for Company
Reporting 2014 to calculate the above disclosures.

During the year, steps have been taken to reduce energy usage by installing autcmatic light sensors and replacing office and
outside lighting with LED alternatives.
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Directors’ report
Continued

Significant agreements — change of control

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company such as
commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, preperty lease arrangements and employees’ share plans. None of these
are considered to be significant in terms of their ikely impact on the business of the Group as a whole. Furthermore,

the Directors are not aware of any agreements between the Company and its Birectors and employees that provide for

compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid.

Annuat General Meeting
The 2020 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 17 July 2020.

fixed Assets
Capital expenditure on tangible fixed assets amounted to £8.5m {FY19. £2.8m] during the year.

Directors’ interests in shares

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company and the options held as at 31 March and 19 May 2020
are set out in the Remuneration report on page 101. None of the Directors serving at the year end had a beneficial interest in

the share capital of any subsidiary company.

Substantial Shareholdings

As far as the Directors are aware, no person or company had a beneficial interest in 3% or more of the voting share capital at

31 March and 19 May 2020, except for the follewing:

As at 31 March 2020 As at 19 May 2020
E@me i ordinary shares s % ardinary shares
R Harpin * 40,553,117 121 40,553,137
Baillie Gifford & Co 17124224 51 17124224

Total shareholding includes an indirect mterest of 3,285 shares

Taxation status
The Company is not a close company within the meaning of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988,

By Order of the Board

Anna Maughan
Company Secretary
19 May 2020
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Statements of responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annua!l Report and Accounts, Remuneration report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regutations.

Company law requires the Directors o prepare financial staternents for each financial year. Under that law, the Drrectors are
required to prepare the Group financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs') as adopted

by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have also chosen to prepare the parent Company financial
statements under IFRS as adopted by the European Union. Under company law, the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

« propeny select and apply acceunting policies;

» present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and
financial performance; and

« make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them
to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irreqularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial Information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Disclosure of Information to Auditor
Each of the Directors confirms that:

= sofar as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and

» the Director has taken all the steps that he or she cught to have taken as a director in arder to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Resolutions proposing the reappointment of Deloitte LLP as auditor and authorising the Board to fix its remuneration will be
put to the Annual General Meeting.

Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the Annual Report, including the financial statements, 1s made available on a
website Financial statements are published on the Company's website in accordance with legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in other junsdictions.
The maintenance and integrity of the Company's website (http://www.homeserveplc.comi is the responsibility of the
Directers. The Directers’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained therein.
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Statements of responsibilities
Continued

Directors’ responsibility statement
We confirm to the best of our knowledge

= the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

» the Directors' report, together with the Strategic report, which represent the Management Report, include a fair review of
the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

By Order of the Board

Richard Harpin David Bower

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
19 May 2020 19 May 2020
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Independent Auditor’s report
to the members of HomeServe plc

Opinion

In our opinion:

= the financial statements of HomeServe plc (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) give a true and fair view
of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Uniorn;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirerments of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

» the Group income statement;

» the Group and parent company statements of comprehensive income;
» the Group and parent company balance sheets;

+ the Group and parent company statements of changes in eguity;

+ the Group and parent company cash flow statements; and

» therelated notes 1to 49.

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in ther preparation 1s applicable law and IFRSS as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK} (15As {UK)} and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the 'FRC's) Ethical Standard
as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. The non-audit services provided to the Group and parent company for the year are disclosed in note 5 to the
financial staternents. We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to
the Group or the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Summary of cur audit approach
Key audit matters

The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were;

« carrying value of gocodwill;

» carrying value of the new Customer Relationship Management {"CRM"} system;
= elocal acqguisition accounting, and

= revenue deferrals.

Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows

Newly identified @ Increased level of risk @ Similar level of risk @ Decreased level of risk

Materiality
The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £7.3 million which was determined on the basis of 5% of
profit before tax.
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Independent Auditor's report

to the members of HomeServe plc
Continued

Scoping

Consistent with the prior year, we focused our Group audit scope primarily on the following operating segments:
= United Kingdorm;

» North America;

= France; and

» Spain.

These operating segments were subject to a full scope audit. The New Markets and Home Experts operating segments were
subject to specific audit procedures, with the exception of the Checkatrade entity which was subject 1o a fult scope audit.

Significant changes in our approach
As a result of the Group's acquisition of 79% of eLocal, we have identified a new key audit matter in relation to the valuation of
elocal acquisition intangibles and the valuation of the put cption over the remaining 21% eguity interest.

Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

Going concern

We have reviewed the directors’ statement in note 2 to the financial statements about whether they considered 1t appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing therm and their identification of any materal uncertainties to the
Group's and parent company’s ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval
of the financial staterments.

We considered as part of our risk assessment the nature of the Group, its business maodel and related risks including where
relevant the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and Brexit, the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework
and the system of internal control. We evaluated the directors’ assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, including challenging the underlying data and key assumptions used to make the assessment, and evaluated the
directors’ plans for future acticns in relation to their going concern assessment.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to that statement required
by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3} and report if the staterment is matenally inconsistent with our knowledge cobtained in the audit

Going concern is the basis of preparation of the financial staterments that assumes an entity will rernain in operation for a
period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements.

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.

Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ statements and considering whether they were consistent with the knowledge we

obtained in the course of the audit, including the knowiedge obtained in the evaluation of the directors’ assessment of

the Group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, we are required to state whether we have anything

material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

+ the disclosures on pages 28-31 that describe the principal risks, procedures to identify emerging risks, and an explanation
of how these are being managed or mitigated;

+ the directors’ confirmation on page 56 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal and emerging risks
facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity; or

o the directors’ explanation on pages 47-48 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period
they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its babilities as they fall due over
the pericd of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention 1o any necessary qualifications or
assumptions.

We are also reguired to report whether the directors’ statement relating to the prospects of the Group required by Listing Rule
9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Viahility means the ability of the Group to continue over the time horizon considered appropriate by the directors.

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to In respect of these matters.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professicnal judgement, were of most significance in ocur audit of the financial
staterments of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of matenal misstatement {whether or not
due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
therecn, and we do not provide a separate opinicn on these matters.

@ Carrying value of goodwill
Key audit matter description
The carrying value of goodwill is £509.9m (2019: £4579m).

Managerment's goodwill impairment analysis is completed at an individual cash generating unit ({CGU') basis. The Group's

assessment of the carrying value of goodwill is a judgemental process which requires estirmates concerning the future cash

flows of each cash generating unit and associated discount rates. We identified key audit matters in the following areas:

« the accuracy of the most sensitive assumption, which is the weighted average cost of capital {WACC') for each CGU used
to discount the cash flows within the Group's impairment assessment; and

+ the cash flow forecasts used for the Home Experts businesses, Checkatrade, Habitissimo and elocal. All three are highly
sensitive to variations in the snort-term cash flow growth assumptions, and the Home Experts business model is most
heavily affected by the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic

As aresult of COVID-18, the level of headroom has reduced across the Group. As a result, we identified an increased level of
risk in comparison to prior year.

Further detail on the key judgements Involved is set out within the Audit and Risk Committee report on page 78, significant
accounting policies in note 2, the key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 3 and note 13 to the financial statements,

How the scope of cur audit responded to the key audit matter
We first understood the Group's process and key controls around the carrying value of goodwill, specifically the Group's
review process to assess the accuracy and completenass of key assumptions within the impairment assessment.

We assessed the Group's WACC working with cur internal valuations specialists. We benchmarked assurmptions to external
macro-economic and market data and independently recalculated the WACC rate for each CGUL

We challenged the Group’s key assumptions relating to the estimated future cash flows applied to the Home Experts

businesses. Our procedures included:

+ reviewing the Group’s assessment of the potential impact that COVID-19 could have on future cash flows, which assurmes
lockdown will continue across all operating segrments for a period of time, followed by a stow recovery. This included
consideration of the performance of each CGU since the COVID-19 pandemic commenced;

= consideration of the potential impact on headroom if the lockdown period is extended, as well as the impact If the
recovery is slower than currently anticipated,

« challenging the forecast growth rates applied over the next three years through understanding the key drivers of growth
for each CGU; and

+ assessing the Group's ability to accurately forecast business performance with reference to historical trading performance.

We have reviewed the consistency of the key assumptions used in the carrying value of goodwill assessment to the budget
used by the Group to assess longer term-viability and going concern.

We have reviewed management’s carrying value of goodwill disclosures, including the potential impact on headroom under
a range of alternative lockdown scenarios.

Key observations

The WACC used by management for each Home Experts CGU was lower than the WACC derived by our internal valuations
specialists. We assessed the impact of using our own WACC In management's impairment calculation, noting that it reduced
the level of headroom within the Home Experts CGU's, however it did not indicate that an impairment write down was
required.
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Independent Auditor’s report

to the members of HomeServe plc
Continued

We concluded that other key assumptions used within the Group's goodwill impairment assessrment were acceptable.
We consider management’s catrying value of goodwill disclosures to be reasonable.

@ Carrying value of the new CRM system

Key audit matter description

The Group is continuing to progress with its implementation of the new CRM system in the UK. The carrying value of

the system is £81.8m (2019: £81.8m). In September 2019, the systern was classified as available for use and amortisation
commenced over its 10 year useful econcmic life. The system is now being used for front book policies, however the back
book migration 1s scheduled for the next financial year

The key judgement in relation to the new CRM system is the successful migraticn of the back bock, which underpins the
expected future cash flows associated with the benefits case.

In order to support the carrying value of the CRM systern, the Group has performed an impairment assessment, which
compares the expected value in use of the asset to the current carrying value, Including the successful migration of the back
book within the next financial year.

Further detail on the key judgements involved is set out within the Audit and Risk Committee report on page 78, significant
accounting policies in note 2 and note 14 to the financial statements.

How the scope of cur audit respended to the key audit matter

We first understcod management's process and key controls around the carrying value of the new CRM system, specifically
the Group's review process to assess the accuracy and completeness of key assurmptions used to determine the expected
future cash flows.

We have assessed the progress of the back book migration, which included inquiry with management and review of the key
performance indicators being monitored in relation to the data migration. We also reviewed the plausibility of the migration
plan for the back book to the extent that migration is needed in order to support the carrying value of the system.

We challenged management's impairment assessment to determine whether the recoverable armount of the asset supports
its carrying value as at 31 March 2020, by comparnng the consistency of the cash flows and WACC to those used in the
carrying value of goodwill assessment.

Key observations
We are satisfied that the progress made in relation to the back book migration and the impairment assessment performed
supported the carrying value of the systern and therefore no impairment is required.

elocal acquisition accounting

Key audit matter description

On 26 November 2019, the Group acquired a 79% shareholding in eLocal Holdings LLC for £98.8m. In addition, the Group
entered into a put and call option agreement which means they will be required tc purchase the remaining 21% equity
interest over the next five years.

As part of the transaction a number of acquisition irntangibles have been identified in relation to custormer relationships,
technolcgy and domains. A high level of judgement is required in order to determine the fair value of these assets at the point
of acquisition, as well as the fair value of the put option for the remaining 21% eguity interest.

Given this is a technically complex area with high levels of judgement, we identified a new key audit matter in relation to;
+ the valuation of acquisibon intangibles; and
« the valuation of the put and call options over the remaining 21% equity interest.

Further detail on the key judgements involved is set out within the Audit and Risk Committee report on page 78, significant
acceunting policies in note 2, the associated key judgements involved are set out in the critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 3 and a transaction overview is provided in note 16 to the financial staterments.

114



HomeServe plc Annual Report & Accounts 2020

How the scope of our audit respended to the key audit matter
We understood the key controls the Group has in place to manage the risk of inappropriate conctusions being reached within
the acquisition accounting assessment.

We challenged the key accounting assumptions, mast notably whether the presence of the put and call option over the
remaining 21% equity interest consttutes a present ownership interest, as well as the judgement required to identify the split
of potential cash payments under the put aption between those which should be recognised at the transaction date and
those which relate to post combination employee benefit expenses.

We worked with cur valuation specialists in order to:

= challenge the methodology used by management in order to identify and fair value the intangibles including the
appropnrateness of the discount rate used, and

» independently recalculate the fair value ¢f the put and call options

We also assessed the key assumptions within management's forecasts for reasonableness, including assessing whether the
forecasts did not include post-acquisition events such as the COVID-19 pandemic.

Key cbservations
We concurred with the intangible assets identified by management, and the key assumptions used to value the identified
assets were within an acceptable range.

Management's put and call option valuation was matenally consistent with our independently derived valuation

@ Revenue deferrals

Key audit matter description

The recognition of revenue requires significant jJudgement by the Group to determine key assumptions, particularly regarding
the level of revenue to defer in order to satisfy the Group's obligations for future claims handiing and non-recoverable costs
incurred by HomeServe's directly employed operations.

Given the degree of judgement and estimation involved in determining the level of revenue to defer, we also identified that
there is a potential for fraud through possible mampulation of this balance.

The total amount of revenue deferred at 31 March 2020 in respect of the Group's future claim handling obligations is
£19.1m (2019. £19.4m). The total amount of revenue deferred at 31 March 2020 in respect of the Group's directly employed
operations is £18.9m (2019. £20.7m).

The key assumptions used by the Group for claims handling and directly employed operations are the directly employed
engineer rate, claims profiles and the average cost per claim, which are based on recent behavioural experience.

Further detait on the Group's revenue recognition policy is set out within the Audit and Risk Committee report on page 78,
significant accounting policies in ncte 2 and the associated key judgements involved are set out in the critical accounting
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 3 to the financial statements.

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter
We first understood the Group's process ang key controls arouna the revenue deferrals. Specifically, controls that the Group
has in place to manage the risk of inappropriate assumptions being used within the revenue deferrals.

We assessed the Group's policy for deferring revenue, including considering whether the pelicy is in accordance with current
accounting standards

We challenged the key inputs and assumptions used in the revenue deferral calculations. As part of this, we specificatty
considered whether any adjustments were reguired to revenue deferrals in ight of COVID-19 through review of current
behavioural experience dunng the lockdown period, as well as forecast volumes during the recovery period:

» For cost per claim we compared budgeted costs to previous actual behaviour;

» We re-calculated directly employed engineer rates based on previous claims data; and

« For claims profiles we substantively tested policy infermation and agreed underwriter rates to third party information.

We substantively tested the source data to third party information.
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Additionaily we have assessed if the Group are consistent in implementing the calculations across the membership
businesses worldwide and in line with Group policy.

Key observations
We found that the key assumptions used in the revenue deferrals were reasonable.

Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial staternents that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reascnably knowledgeabile person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of cur work.

Based on our professicnal judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements

£7.3m (2019 £6.5m] £2.5m (2019: £4.9m)

5% (2019: 5%} of profit before tax. Parent company materiality equates to 0.6% (2019,
1.2%) of net assets, which is capped at 50% of

Group performance matenality.

The prior year materiality was capped at 75%

of Group materiality. In the current year we
determined 50% of Group performance materiality
to be a more appropriate basis.

We determined matenality using profit before tax
as we considered this to be the most appropnate

measure to assess the performance of the Group.

This is because profit based measures are the
financial measures most relevant to users of the
financial statements.

We deterrmined materiality using the equity
balance The Company is the parent company
for the Group and is net a trading entity, hence
we considered this to be the most appropriate
measure for the Company.

£137.9m

. Group matenality

Group matenality
£732m

Component materiality
range £2 5mto £35m

Audit & Risk Committee
reporting threshold £0.36m
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Performance materiality

We set perfarmance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Group performance materality
was set at 70% of Group matenality for the 2020 audit (2019 70%}. In determining performance materiality, we considered the
following factors:

+ The level of decentralisation and autonomy displayed by the operating segments of the Group;

= The level of growth within the Group including the number of acquisittons completed during the year; and

= The nature, volurme and size of uncorrected misstatements in the previous year.

Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit & Risk Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit gifferences in excess of
£360,000 (2019; £323,000}, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on gualitative
grounds. We also report to the Audit & Risk Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide
controls, and assessing the risks of material misstaterment at the Group level. Based on that assessment, as in the prior year,
we focused our Group audit scope primarily on the following operating segments’

« UK;

= North America;

« France; and

» Spain.

These operating segments were subject to a full scope audit. The New Markets and Home Experts segments were subject to
specific audit procedures, with the exception of Checkatrade which was subject to a full scope audit.

The UK, North America, France and Spain segments and the Checkatrade entity account for 97% (2019: 89%) of the Group's
revenue and 100% (2019 100%) of the Group's profit before tax from profit-making segments (there was a loss for the year in
the New Markets and Home Experts segments). They were also selected to provide an appropriate basis for undertaking audit
work to address the risks of material misstatement identified above Our audit work at the four segments was executed at
levels of materiality ranging from £2.5m to £3.5m {2019: £29m to £4.5mi}.

At the parent entity level we also tested the consclidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our
conclusion that there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the
remaining segments not subject to audit or audit of specified account balances.

Working with other auditors
We have previously followed a programme of planned visits in which at least two senior members of the Group audit team
physically visited the UK, North Amenca, France and Spain at least twice a year.

However as a result of COVID-19, we were unable to complete our fieldwork component visits, nor were we able to
complete our planning visit to France. As a result, we increased the frequency of cur communications with each component
O monitor progress. At least two senicr members attended each compaonent audit close meeting, which was held via

video conference. In the absence of fieldwork component visits, we used video conferencing to review component audit
documentation.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other Information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report therecn.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except te the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Independent Auditor’s report

to the members of HomeServe plc
Continued

if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstaterments, we are required to determine whether there
i5 a matenal misstaternent in the financial statements or a matenial misstatement of the other information. If, based onthe
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materiat misstaterment of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically reguired to report to you as uncorrected matenal misstatements of the other
information include where we conclude that:

«» Fair, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the directors that they consider the annual report and
financial staternents taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business model and strategy, is materizlly inconsistent with
our knowledge cbtained in the audit; or

« Audit & Risk Committee reporting — the section describing the work of the Audit & Risk Committee does not
approprately address matters communicated by us to the audit & risk committee; or

- Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the directors’ staterment
required under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
containing provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8 10R(2} do not propetly disclose
a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibiities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financizl staterments and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obian reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and non-
compliance with laws and regulations are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
then design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, including obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate 1o provide a basis for cur opinion.
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Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregutarities
In identifying and assessing risks of mateniat misstatement in respect of irregulanities, including fraud and non-compliance
with laws and regulations, we considerad the following.
= the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business perforrmance including the design of the Group's
remuneration policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets,
= results of our enguiries of management, internal audit and the Audit & Risk Committee abcut their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities;
« any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures
relating to
- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-
compliance;
- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge cf any actual, suspected or alleged
fraua;
- the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;
» the matters discussed among the audit engagement team including significant compoenent audit teams and involving
relevant internal specialists, including tax, valuations, pensions and !T specialists regarding how and where fraud might
occur in the financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist wathin the organisation for
fraud and identified the greatest potential for fraud in relation to revenue deferrals. In common with all audits under ISAs (UK),
we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framewaorks that the Group operates in, focusing on
provisions of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Companies Act, Listing
Rules, UK Corporate Governance Code and local tax legislation.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.
These included compliance with Financial Conduct Authority regulation for the UK operating segment and compliance with
local legislation for the overseas cperating segments.

Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified revenue deferrals as a key audgit matter related to the potential risk of fraud.
The key audit matters section of our report explains the matter in more detall and also describes the specific procedures we
performed in response to that key audit matter.

Our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following

« reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supparting documentation te assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

+ enqguiring of management, the Audit & Risk Committee in-house and external legal counsel concerning actual and
potential ltigation and clams;

+ performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;

» reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing regulatory
correspondence with the Financial Conduct Authority;

= obtained an understanding of provisions and held discussions with management to understand the basis of recognition or
non-recognition of tax provisions; and

« in addressing the risk of fraud through management overnide of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and
other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential
bias; and evaluating the business rationate of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of
business.

We also communicated relevant identified taws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members
including internal specialists and significant component audit teams, and remained alert to any indicaticns of fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, kased on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= the informaticn given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstaternents in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion.

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent cornpany, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

= the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returmns.

We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters.

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if In our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
have not been made or the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited is not In agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

We have nothing 1o report in respect of these matters.

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committee, we were appointed by the Board of Directors on 1 August
2002 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2003 and subsequent financial periods. The period of
total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 18 years, covering the years
ending 31 March 2003 to 31 March 2020,

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee
Our audit opinion Is consistent with the additional report to the audit & risk committee we are required to provide in
accordance with ISAs (UK).

Use of our report

This report is made sclely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’'s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for ne other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’'s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Peter Birch FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Leeds, UK

19 May 2020
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Mrs S's house
March 17 2020

‘ it was a leak. My husband tried to fix it by himself by placing a bucket under the sink, as [ wasn't
sure HomeServe would corme over. By the time [ was hanging up the phone, an engineer just
called me. He arrived within a half-hour: we couldn’t believe it! He was very professional and
mindful regarding the current sarmtary conditions. We didn't have any contact, but it dian't
prevent him from being very friendly. He made us ventilate our home upon arrival and let us
know we wouldn't shake hands He tatked to my husband from a certain distance and that
Was very reassuring.
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What struck us the most in the end is that the engineer seemed to be delighted to be here, to
do his job and help us. We had the feeling he was a very skilled craftsrman and that we knew
him. We were at ease and that was very vaiuable especially during this period. We wanted to
express our heartfelt thanks to everyone and to your engineer in particular, who did a good
Jjob with great kindness. ,,
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Group income statement
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 20139
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 11323 10036
Operating costs {971.6) {8507)
Share of results of equity accounted investments 18 {2.1) 03
QOperating profit 158.6 1526
Investment income a8 0.5 0.2
Finance costs 9 (21.2) (13.3)
Adjusted profit before tax 181.0 1617
Amortisation of acquisiton intangibles 5 {35.5) 126 8)
Exceptional items 7 (7.6) 46
Profit before tax 1379 1395
Tax 10 (32.1) (312)
Profit for the year 105.8 108.3
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 106.0 1085
Non-controlling interests (0.2) 10.2)
105.8 1083
Dividends per share, paid and proposed 11 23.6p 21.4p
Earnings per share
Basic 12 31.7p 327
Ciluted 12 31.5p 32 3p

' The Group's resutts are being reparted under IFRS 16 for the first irne in 2020 foliowing the mandatory adopticn of the standards from 1 April 2018 In accordance with the transitional

prowisions of IRFS 16, comparatives have not been restated See note 2

122




Group statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2015 e
Notes £m £ E
Profit for the year 105.8 108 3 z
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss: %
Actuanal gainfitoss} on defined berefit pension scheme 33 16 @ 4} B
Deferred tax (charge)/credit relating to actuarial re-measurerments 10 (0.3) 01
Fair value (toss)/gain on "fair value through other comprehensive
income” (FYTOCI) investment in equity instruments 17 3.7 0.7
Deferred tax credit/{charge) relating to farr value gan on FYTQCI
investment in equity instruments 10 08 02}
(1.6) 02
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:
Exchange movements on translation of foreign cperations 141 6.8
14.1 6.8
Total other comprehensive income 12,5 “ 7.0
Total comprehensive income for the year 118.3 1153
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1185 1155
Non-controlling interests 0.2) 0.2
' 118.3 115 3 ;
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Group balance sheet
31 March 2020

2020 2019
Notes £m .EL
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 509.9 4079
Other intangible assets 14 497.1 418.6
Contract costs 4 168 275
Right-of-use assets 26 56.8 —
Property, plant and equipment 15 420 428
Equity accounted investments 18 4.0 106
Other investments 17 5.6 92
Deferred tax assets 10 6.0 74
Retirement benefit assets 33 10.3 64
1,148.5 930.4
Current assets
Inventories 19 79 70
Trade and other recewables 20 495.4 4246
Cash and cash equivalents 21 131.2 726
6345 504.2
Total assets 1.783.0 14346
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (410.6) (382 3)
Bank and other loans 25 (40.3) (397}
Current tax habilities {5.4) 160
Lease habilities 25 (14.1) (0.5
Provisions ) 24 (2.0) 5.7)
i 472.4) (434 2)
Net current assets 162.1 70
Non-current liabilities
Bank and other lcans 25 {540.6) {336.4)
Other financial liabilities 23 (52.3) 123.3)
Deferred tax labilties 10 {26.2) 126 4)
Lease liabilities 25 {45.2) [(elm)}
] (664.3) 386.8)
Total liabilities {1,136.7) (8210}
Net assets 646.3 6136
Equity
Share capital 28 9.0 90
Share prermium account 29 189.3 118G 7
Share incentive reserve 29 219 233
Currency translauon reserve 29 37.0 229
Investment revaluation reserve 29 (0.6) 23
Other reserves 29 79.2 822
Retained earnings 299.9 293.0
Attributabie to equity holders of the parent ) © 635.7 6134
Non-controiling interests 30 106 0.2
Total equity "646.3 6136
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 19 May 2020. They were signed on its benalf by
David Bower
Chief Financial Officer
19 May 2020
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Group statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 March 2020

Attributable
Share Share  Currency Investment to equity Non-
Share  premiurn incentive  translation  revaluation Other  Retained  heldersof  controllng Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve  reserves’ earmings  the parent Interests equity
£rn £m £m Em Em Em £m Em Em £m
Balance at 1 April 2019 9.0 180.7 233 229 23 822 2930 613.4 02 613.6
Profit for the year — — - - — — 106.0 106.0 {0.2) 1058
Gther comprehensive ncome
for the year - — — 14.1 29) — 13 12.5 — 125
Total comprehensive income - - - 141 2.9) — 107.3 118.5 {0.2) 1183
Dividends paid (note 11) — -- - - - - (735) {73.5) - {73.5)
Issue of share capital — 86 - - — — — 86 - 8.6
Purchase of own shares - - - - — (200 - {3.0) - (3.0)
Share-based payments — — 72 - ~ — — 72 - 72
Share options exercised — — 8.6) ~ - — 01 (8.5) — (8.5)
Tax on exercised share options (note 10) — — — - - - 30 3.0 — 3.0
Deferred tax on share options (note 10) - — - - - — 1.2) (1.2) — 1.2)
Changes in non-controlling interests - - - - - — — - 106 10.6
Obligations under put options (note 16) — — — — — - 28 8) {28.8) — (28.8)
Balance at 31 March 2020 9.0 1893 219 37.0 {0.6) - 792 2999 635.7 106 6463
Year ended 31 March 2019
Attributable
Share Share  Cumency Investment to equity Non-
Share  premum incentve translation  revaluation Other  Retained haldersof  cantroling Tatal
captal  account reserve reserue reserve  reserves’  earmings  the parent Interests equity
fm £m £m £m £rn £m £rn Em Em £m
Balan“ce at 1 April 2018 8% 1718 22.1 161 18 822 2481 5510 - 04 5514
Opening adjustment for the impact of
of IFRS 15 - - - - - - 2.1 2.1 - 21
Opening balance under IFRS 15 8% 171.8 221 161 18 822 2460 5489 04 5493
Profit for the year - - — — — — 1085 1085 02) 1083
Other comprehensive Income
for the year - - - 6.8 05 - 0.3) 70 - 70
Total comprehensive income — — — 6.8 05 1082 1155 {0.2) 1153
Dividends paid inote 11) — - - — - — (65.0) 65 0) — 65.0}
Issue of share caprtal a1 89 — - - — — 90 - 90
Share-based payments — - 88 - - — — 88 - a8
Share options exercised - - 17.6) — — — 08 (6 8) - (6.8)
Tax on exercised share options (note 10} — — — - — - 27 27 - 27
Deferred tax on share options (note 10) - - - - - - 03 03 - 03
Balance at 31 March 2019 9.0 7 180.7 23.3 2289 2.3 82.2 2930 6134 o2 61356

* Other reserves comprse the Merger, Own shares and Capital redemption reserves Full details of these reserves are included in Note 29
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Group cash flow statement

Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Notes Em Em

Net cash inflow from operating activities 31 192.0 162.0
Investing activities
interest receved 0.5 0.2
Proceeds on disposat of fixed assets 0.5 03
Purchases of intangible assets (74.3) 981}
Contract costs (3.9) 79)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 8.2) 9.0
Disposal of equity accounted investments 18 84 —
Acquisition of equity accounted investments - (5.4)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 16 (140.6) {37.5)
Net cash used in investing activities (217.6) {158 4)
Financing activities
Dwidends paid 11 (73.5) 65 0)
Repayment of lease principal (12.4) 106)
Acguisiton of non-controlling interests 30 (7.7} -
Purchase of own shares (3.0)
Proceeds on issue of share capital c.1 2.2
New bank and other loans raised - 1742
Costs associated with new bank and other loans raised ©0.8) e
Moverment in bank and other loans 182.6 98.3)
Net cash generated by financing activities 85.3 ) 103
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 59.7 139
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 72.6 578
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes (1.1) 0¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 131.2 726
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

1. General information
HomeServe plc ithe 'Company’) s a public company, Iimited by shares and incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act
The address of the registered office 1s Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 78N,

These financial staterments are presented 1N pounds stering Foreign operations are consclidated in accordance with the policies set out In
note 2

There have been no post balance sheet events identified since the year end except as explained in note 34

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with IFRSs, adopted by the European Uron and therefore comply with Article
4 of the EU IAS Regulation The financial statements have been prepared on the historicat cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in note 27,

Adoption of new or revised standards
The following accounting standards, interpretations and amendments have been adopted in the year.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to IFRS @ Prepayment Features and Negative Compensation
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Nene of the items listed above have had any matenal impact on the amounts reported In this conselidated set of financial statements The
impact of IFRS 16 Leases, 1s discussed under ‘Changes in accounting policies’ and Financial impact of adoption of [FRS 16" below

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 with effect from 1 Apnl 2019. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the standard, comparatives
have not been restated The impacted accounting policies for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2018 are outlined below. All other
accounting polictes of the Group are set cut In the 'Other Accounting Policies’ section of this note.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces |AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangerment contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transachons Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard is effective for annual penods beginning on

or after 1 January 2019. The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach with a date of mitial applicatton of 1 Apnil
2019. Comparative information has not been restated.

Impact on lessee accounting

IFRS 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under |AS 17, With the exception of ow value
assets (below £4Kk) and short-term leases (with a term of 12 months or less), the Group now recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
In the consoldated balance sheet, ntially measured at the present value of the future lease payments The depreciation of the right-of-use
asset and interest charges on the cutstanding lease lability replace the IAS 17 straight-line rental expense previously bocked o operating
costs, Any lease iIncentives are recognised as part of the measurement of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities whereas under |AS 17 they
resulted in the recognition of a lease incentive liability, amortised as a reduction of rental expenses on a straight-une basis

Under IFRS 16 the Group presents repayments of lease principal within financing activities and interest payments on lease liabilities within
operating activities in the consolidated cash flow staterment for leases that are on balance sheet Under |AS 17 all operating lease payments
were presented as operating cash cutflows.

Right-of-use assets will be tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets This replaces the previous regquirement to
recognise a provision for cnerous lease contracts

The Group is not party to any material leases where it acts as a lessor, but does contract as lessee for a significant number of property and
vehicle leases, which aggregate to a material commitment,

Approach to transition and practical expedients adopted

In respect of those leases the Group previously treated as operating leases, the Group has elected to measure night-of-use assets using the
approach set out in IFRS 16.C8{b)i. Under this approach night-of-use assets are calculated at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease that were recognised in the consclidated balance sheet at 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2019 right-of-use assets of £52 8r and lease liabilities of £53.8m, inclusive of grandfathered finance lease assets and liabilities of
£1.7m and £1.2m respectively, were recognised on the balance sheet. The Group’s weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 was 2 5%.
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 16 Leases {continued)
Approach to transition and practical expedients adopted (continued)

The table below presents a reconciliation from IAS 17 operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 March 2019 to IFRS 16 lease liabilities
recognised at 1 April 2019

£m
Operating lease commitrments disclosed under 1AS 17 at 31 March 2019 56.0
Finance lease labilities recognised under IAS 17 at 31 March 2018 12
Discounting (4.4)
Impact of lease term reassessments under IFRS 16 vs 1AS 17 20
Short-term and low value lease commitments expensed through operating costs under IFRS 16 (0.6)
Other movements {04
IFRS 16 lease liabilities recognised at 1 April 2019 . 538

The complete impact on the consoligated income statement dunng the year ended 31 March 2020 is presented under ‘Financial impact of
adoption of IFRS 16" below

The Group has made use of the pracucal expedient avalable on transttion to IFRS 16 not to reassess whether a contract s, or contains, a lease.
Accordingly, the defintion of a lease in accordance with 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 will continue to be applied to those leases entered inte or modified
tefore 1 April 2018,

As part of the Group's adoption of IFRS 16 and application of the modified retrospective approach to transition, the Group also elected to use
the following practical expedients

»  The Group has not made any adjustments on transition for leases for which the underlying asset 1s of low value (as described 1n
paragraphs B3 - B8 of IFRS 16},

»  The Group has adjusted the carrying amount of nght- of-use assets at 1 April 2019 by the carrying amount of enerous lease provisions at 31
March 2019 instead of pertorming impairmeril reviews utider 1AS 30,

Detalls of the Croup’s accounting policies under [FRS 16 are set out below, followed by a presentation of the financial mpact of adopting IFRS
16, Judgements applied 1N the adoption of IFRS 16 included deterrmining the lease term for those leases with termination or extension options
and determining an incremental borrowing rate where the rate implicit in a lease could not be readily determined

Accounting policy for leases (effective 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, at inception of the contract The Group recogrises a right of-use asset and
a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it 1s the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets iwhere the value of the asset1s below £4k} Forthese leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Lease ligblities

Lease hiabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by
using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses a lease specific Incremental borrowing rate. Lease
payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise

« fixed lease payments {including in substance fiked payments), less any lease incéntives;

« fixed service costs associated with the Group's property and vehicle lease portfalios (as the Group has elected to apply the expedient
availabte under paragraph 15 of IFRS 16 not to separate non-lease componerts, and mnstead account for any lease and associated non-
lease components as a single arrangement);

= vanable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, inttially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date,

* the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

= the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee 1s reasonably certain to exercise the options, and

+  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.
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Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability and by reducing the carrying armount 1o reflect the lease payments made. The Group re-measures the lease
liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related nght-of-use asset) whenever

* the lease term has changed cr there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase opton, In which case the tease liability 1s re-
measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

AT VIR P AT

+ thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under & guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the indial discount rate (unless the change In
lease payments is due to a change in a floating interest rate, In which case a revised discount rate 15 used);

+  alease contractis modified and the lease modificatron 1s not accounted for as a separate lease, In which case the lease lability 15 re-
measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate,

The Group did not make any such adjustments dunng the periods presented

Right-of-use assets

Right- of -Use assets compnse the nitial measurement of the corresponding lease liabllity, lease payments made at, or before, the
commencement date and any inttial direct costs They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and imparment
losses Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset Depreciaton
begins at the commencement date of the lease.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision s recognised and measured under I1AS 37
The costs are ncluded in the related nght-of-use asset.

Variable rents

Variable rents that do not depend on an index ¢r rate are not included N the measurerment of the lease lability and the nght-of-use asset. The
related payments are recognised as an expense in the pericd N which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are
Included in the ine “Other operating expenses” IN the Income staternent

e

T

Leasing {applicable up to 31 March 2019)
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value, or, if lower, at the present value of the rmirnmum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease, and depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and a reduction of the lease obligation sc as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-tine basis cver the term of the relevant lease Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Financial impact of adoption of IFRS 16

The application of IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating ieases under I1AS 17 resulted in the recogniion of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilties. Provisions for onerous lease contracts have been derecognised and operating lease incentives previously recognised as
liakribties have been derecognised and factored Into the measurement of the right-of -use assets and lease liabilities

The following abndged statements summarise the impact of adopting IFRS 16 on the Group's Consolidated Income Statement, Balance
Sheet and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial impact of adoption of IFRS 16 (continued)
Impact on the consolidated income statement

As reported
11 March 2020 IFRS 16 adjustments Amounts without adophon
Ref Em Em Em
Continuing operations
Revenue 11323 — 11323
Operating costs D] (971.6) 02) (971.4)
Others 2.3) - 2.1
Operating profit 158.6 {0.2) 158 8
Investment incorme 0.5 05
Finance costs ] (21.2) (1.5) 19.7)
Adjusted profit before tax 181.0 (17) 1827
Others (43.1) - 43 1)
Profit before tax 1379 17 1396
Tax ] (32.1) 04 (32 5
Profit for the year 105.8 (1.3) 1071
Earnings per share
Basic 31.7p (Cd)p 321p
Diluted 31.5p {04)p 39
Impact on the consolidated balance sheet
As reported
31 March 2020 IFRS 16 adustments Amounts without adoption
- Ref £m frn £rm
Non-current assets
Right-of-use assets in 56.8 568 -
Others iv) 1,091.7 1.7 1,093 4
o 1,1485 N 551 1,083.4
Current assets in), v) 634.5 o1 6344
Total assets 1,783.0 552 17278
Current liabilities
Lease liabilties iin (14.1) 13.7) 04
Others iv) {458.3) 17 1460.0)
‘ 472.4) {120) (460 4)
Net current assets 162.1 119] 174.0
Non-~current liabilities
Lease liabilities 0 (45.2) 44.5) 07
Othars i) {619.1) 6191
(664.3) (44.5) 619.8)
Total liabilities (1,136.7) (56.5) {1,080.2)
Net assets 646.3 (1.3 6476
Equity
Retained earrings 299.9 13) 3012
Others 3464 - 3464
- 6463 (1.3 6476
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Impact on the consolidated cash flow staterment

As reported
31 March 2020 IFRS 16 adjustments Amgunts wthout adoption
Ret Em £m £m
Operating profit 1586 ©.2) 158.8 z
Adjustments for i
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment v) 9.3 {0.5) 98 5:
Depreciaticn of nght-of-use assets v) 14.2 142 — )
Others 58.3 = 583
Cash generated by operations ) 2404 135 2269
Income taxes paid (30.2} — (30.2}
Interest paid (inclusive of payments on lease labilities) V) {18.2} 15 (16.7)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 192.0 120 180.0
Net cash used in investing activities (217.6) — (2176)
Financing activities
Repayment of lease principal v (12.4) (12.0) 04
Others 97.7 - 977
Net cash generated by financing activities 853 (120) - 973
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 59.7 - 597

References

i) Histoncaly all rental charges were booked to operating costs on a straight-line basis. Under IFRS 16 rental costs for all leases, other than
those with an inital term of below 12 months and those of assets of approximately below £4k in value, as new, are recorded in the income
staternent as depreciation of right-of-use assets, in operating costs, and interest charges on lease labilities, in financing costs. The impact
of this change in accounting treatment during the period was to Increase operating costs by £0.2m and increase finance costs by £1.5m

RSN

1) Current tax impacts of changes detailed under)) above as well as deferred tax impacts in jurisdictions where the avallable deductions for
tax do not align with the accounting charge in the income statement for the pernod.

i} Under IAS 17 lessees did not record assets and commmitrments associated with aoperating lease contracts on the balance sheet IFRS 16
removes the distinchion between operating and finance leases for lessees and requires that they recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all lease contracts. At 31 March 2020 this resulted in the recognition of right-of - use assets of £56.8m and lease liabilities of
£59 3m.

v} Rent prepayments, deferred rent and 1AS 17 finance lease assets of £0 3m, £1.3m and £1.7m respectively were set against opening right of-
use assets on transition Additionally cnercus lease balances of £0.4m were transferred into the opening value of right-of-use assets at
1 April 2018

v) Historically all cash flows associated with operating leases were presented as operating cash flows Under IFRS 16 repayments of lease
principal are classified as financing cash flows. IAS 7 provides entities with an accounting policy choice as to whether they classify interest
paid as an operating or financing cash flow. HomeServe's policy 15 to classify all mterest paid within operating cash flows and conseguently
Iinterest paid cn lease labilities recorded under IFRS 16 will be classified as such

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1s added back to operating profit as a non-cash movement in the consolidated cash flow statement, In
a similar manner to depreciation on property, plant and equipment or amortisation on intangible assets

.

Standards in issue but not yet effective g

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following Standards and Interpretations, which have not been applied in these o

financial statements, were In issue but not yet effective (nct all of which have been endorsed by the EU): ::
[l

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts ?

Amendments to [FRS 3 Defintion of a Business Z

Arnendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and 1ts Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to IAS 1and IAS 8 Definticon of Material

Conceptual Framework Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards and Interpretations listed above will have a material Impact on the financial
staterents of the Group in future years
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors tikely to affect s future development, including the potential impacts of COVID-19
and Brexit, performance and position are set out in the Strategic report

The Directors have reviewed the Group's budget, forecast and cash flows for 2020 and beyond, and concluded that they are in Iine with their
expectations with regards to the Group’s strategy and future growth plans. In additicn the Directors have reviewed the Group's position in
respect of matenal uncertainties and have concluded that there are ne items that would affect going concern or that should be separately
disclosed

The Directors have concluded that they have a reascnable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial staterments

Other accounting policies
The following accounting policies applied by the Group in these consolidated financial statements are the same as those applied by the
Group in its consolidated financial statements as at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2019

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statemenits of the Company and entities controlled by the Company made
up to 31 March each year Controlis acheved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee
entity, is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involverment with the investee, and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

Non-controlling interests it the net assets of the consolidated subsidianes are identified separately from the Group's equity interest Non-
controlling Interests consist of those interests at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s share of the changes in
equity since the date of the cornbination.

On acquisition, the assets and labilties and contingent liabilites of a subsidiary are measured at their far values at the date of acquisition. The
resuits of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the consalidated Income staternent from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropnate

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used INtO ine with those
used by the Group Allintra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition
The Group records revenue in accordance with the five-step recogniton model outlined in IFRS 15

1) Identify the contract with the customer

2) Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3} Determine the transaction price

4) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

51 Recognise revenue when (or asl each performance obligation 1s satisfied

Revenue 1s recognised, net of discounts, VAT, Insurance Premium Tax and other sales related taxes, either at the point in time a performance
obligation has been satisfied or over time as control of the asset associated with the performance obligation is transferred to the customer

For all contracts identified, the Group determines if the arrangement with the customer creates enforceable nghts and obligations. For
contracts with multiple components to be delivered, such as those with underwriters to sell policies on behalf of the underwniter as well
as deliver claims handling and administration services, management applies judgement to consider whether those promised goods and
services are

i distinct - to be accounted for as separate performarice obligations;
1 not distinct - 1o be combined with other promised goods or services untit a bundle 1§ identified that is distinct; or
) part of a series of distinct goods and services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer

At contract inceplion the total transaction price is estimated, being the amount to which the Group expects to be entitled and has present
enforceable rights to under the contract. Where applicable, this iIncludes management’s best estimate of any variable consideration to be
included in the transaction pnce based on the expected value or most likely amount approach, and only to the extent that it is highly probable
that no significant revenue reversal will occur

Once the total transaction price 1s determined, the Group allocates this to the identified performance obligations in proportion to their relative
standalone selling prices and recogrises reverue when (or as) those performance obligations are satisfied.

Where available, cbservable prices of goods or services are utiised, when that good or service is sold separately, to similar customers in
similar circurnstances Where a standalone selling price 1s not drectly observable the Group applies judgment to determine an appropriate
estimated standalone selling price, typically using an expected cost plus margin, adjusted market assessment or residual approach
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Variable consideration is allocated to an entire contract or a specific part of a contract depending on

1) whether allocating the variable amount entirely to part of the contract depicts the amount of consideration the Group expects to be
entitled to in exchange for transferring the promised good or service te the customer; or
1y the terms of the variable payment relate specfically to the satisfaction of an individual performance obligation

The Group's vanable consideration primarily relates to intermediary commissions receved on contracts with underwriters to sell policies and
provide claims handling and administration services Amounts are typically allecated to the entire contract

nnghg b

Discounts are allocated proportionally across all performance cbligations in the contract unless directly chservable evidence exists that the
discount relates to one or more, but not all, perforrmance obligations

For each performance cbligation, the Group determines if revenue will be recognised over time or at a pomntin time For each performance
obligation to be recognised over time, the Group apples a revenue recognition method that faithfully depicts the Group's performance in
transferring control of the goods or services to the custormer. This decision requires assessment of the nature of the goods or services that
the Group has promised to transfer to the customer. The Group applies the relevant cutput or nput method, typically based on the expected

profile of the deferrat event {for example claims handling cost through the policy term or tme elapsed)

Revenue by category
The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers between Net Policy Income, Repair Income, Home Experts, HVAC and
Other as management believe this best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the Group's revenue and cash flows

are affected by economic factors The following table outlines the principal actities from which the Group derves revenue and how it is

recognised

Revenue stream

Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

Significant payment terms

Membership:
Net poticy
income -~
Intermediary
COMMISSIoNS

Includes commissions received for the obligation to sell poticies, handle claims and
provide admunistration services for underwriters The Group satisfies its obligation to sell
policies over time, recognising revenue as each policyholder is contracted on behalf of
the Group's customers, the underwriters.

The transaction prices of the Group's arrangements with underwriters are entirely
variable and measured based on the commission due to the Group for the number of
policies sold, net of a refund Lability. This refund biability reflects management’s best
estimate of mid-term policy cancellations ensuring that a significant reversal of revenue
will not arise in the future (see note 3)

Claims handling and administration service obligations are satisfied over the term of 2
palicy, which s typically 12 months The portion ¢of the total transaction price allocated
1o these performance obligations is deferred, as a deferred income contract liability, and
recognised as revenue cver the profile of claims throughout the policy term

The deterrmination of the amount of transaction prce to allocate to claims handling

and administration services takes account of the expected numbers of claims and the
estimated cost of handiing those claims, which are validated through historic experience
of actual costs, as well as incorporating an appropriate profit margin for the service
provided to the underwrter (see note 3)

Revenue associated with the commissions received for the obligation to sell policies is
allocated using the residual methed at the point of policy inception or renewal.

Where the Group's role on behalf of the underwnter is only as an intermediary in the
cash collection process, such amounts are not included in revenue, Conseguently, net
policy income consists of only a component of the overall policy price, representing the
commission recevable for the services the Group provides to the underwriter, stated net
of sales related taxes.

Billed and paid over the
term of the contract

Membership: Includes arrangements whereby the Group contracts directly with the end user to Billed and paid over the
Net policy provide home assistance services (such as repair network access, ernergency assistance  terrm of the contract
income - Home and non-urgent engineer visits). Revenue is recognised rateably over the life of the

assistance mempber’s contract.

Membership: Includes repair services provided to third parties, including underwnitérs and nsurance Billed and paid over the

Repair income

companies, subject to separate contractual arrangements. Revenue 1s recogrised over
time as each repair job is completed

term of the contract with
the relevant third party

Home Experts -
Web and directory

Includes website subscriptions and directory advertising fees from contracted members
{trades). For website subscriptions revenue is recognised evenly over the contractual
term, for directory membership fees revenue is recognised as each directory is delivered
throughout the contractual term.

Billed and paid over the
term of the contract
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Other accounting policies (continued)

Revenue stream  Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance obligations Significant payment terms
Home Experts - Includes commissions received for the provision of job leads to trades. Revenue 1s Billed and paid as leads are
Lead generation recognised at the point in tme a lead is transferred. delivered
HVAC Includes the provision of installation services at the point in time the instaliation or Billed and paid Lupon
service 15 complete completion of the
installation
Other Principally includes services provided ta customers who do not hold policies, Revenue s Billed and paid following the
recognised at the point in time the service 1s complete performance of the services
provided

As a result of the contracts which the Group enters into with its customers, the following assets and Liabilties are recognised on the Group's
balance sheet

= Assets generated from the capitalisation of costs to cbtain a contract

» Trade recewvables (see financial nstruments accounting policies below)
»  Accrued income

+  Deferred incorme

Capitalisation of costs to obtain a contract

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with the Group's direct customers are recognised as an asset If the Group expects to recover
them, Primarily, such costs relate to fees payable to Affinity Partners or other third parties authorised to enter into new contracts on behalf of
a Group entity. Only fees which are directly related to acquinng contracts with the Group's direct customers are capitalised as incremental
contract costs under IFRS 15.

Accrued and deferred income

Where payrments made are greater than the revenue recognised at the peniod end date, the Group recogrises a deferred income contract
lighilty for this difference. Where payments made are less than the revenue recognised at the pericd end date, the Group recognises an
accrued income contract asset for this difference

Marketing expenses

Costs incurred in respect of marketing actity, including for exarmple, direct mail and inbonnd/onthound telephone costs. which 1s
undertaken to acquire or renew a policy, are charged to the mcome statementin the penod in which the related marketing campaign is
performed

Marketing expenses also include payments made to Affinity Partners in recognition of their support for the Group's seling and policy renewal
activities, The terms of their support and related payments are included in contractual agreements with each Affinity Partner. Amounts
incurred upon the sale and renewal of an individual policy by the Group, referred to as Affinity Partner Commissions, are recognised as an
operating expense when individual policies incept or renew Commissions are payable to Affinity Partners only when the Group has collected
the premium due on behalf of the underwriter from the policy holder

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than a Group entity's functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies except for those that
are desighated as long-term equity investments, are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date, with changes taken to
the iIncome statement Foreign exchange translation movements or monetary assets that are designated as long-term equity investments
are transferred to the Group's translation reserve Non-monetary items that are measured at hustonical costin a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Borrowings in foreign currencies are treated as maonetary babiliies and are translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date,
Exchange rate movements on foreign currency borrowings are recognised immediately in the income statement Foreign currency
borrowings are not treated as hedges of net investments

On consolidation, the assets and liabilties of the Group’s overseas operations are translated to presentatonal currency at exchange rates
prevaling on the balance sheet date Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly. Exchange movernents, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's translation reserve Such
cumulative exchange maovements are recognised as income or expense in the penod in which the operation is disposed of

Goodwill and farr value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilties of the foreign entity and
transiated at the closing rate.

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging ali operating costs, but before investment income and finance costs.

134



Exceptional items
Exceptional tems are those iterns that, in the jJudgement of the Directors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their nature, size or
incidence.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they falt due.

For defined benefit retirement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuanal
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date Actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding interest) are
recogrised in full in the penod in which they occur. They are recognised outside the iIncome statement and presented in the statement of
comprehensive ncome Re-measurernents recorded in the staterment of comprehensive income are not recycled.

Past service costs are recognised in the iIncome statement in the period of scheme amendment, curtailment or when the retated
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, If earlier Net interest 1s calculated by applying a discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

Any retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced
by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from the calculation s limited to past service costs, plus the present value of avaitable
refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan

Taxation
The tax expense represents the surm of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Any tax currently payable s based on taxable profit for the year along with a small number of provisions In relation to open tax pesitions. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax Is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilives in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liabilty method. Deferred tax kabibities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it s probabie that taxable profits will be availlable against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for taxable termporary differences arising on investments in subsidianes, except where the Group s able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pernod when the liability 1S settled or the asset s realised. Deferred
tax s charged or credited In the Income statement, except when it relates to iterns charged or credited in other comprehensive iIncome or
directly to equity, n which case the deferred tax s alsc dealt with In other comprehensive income or withuin eguity

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable night to set off current tax assets against current tax labiliies and
when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxauon authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and latiites cna
net basis,

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The censideration for each acquisition s
measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed in exchange for control of
the acquiree Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement, as incurred, In operating costs

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liability resulting frorm a contingent or deferred consideration
arrangement, measured at its acquistion-date fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair values that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted against the cost of acquisition All other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified
as an asset or lkability are accounted for in accordance with relevant IFRSs and recognised mmediately in the consolidated income statement.
Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recogmised. Deferred consideration is subsequentty
measured at amertised cost,

If the initial accounting for a business combination s incompiete by the end of the reporting pericd in which the combination accurs, the
Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting 1s incomplete Those provisional amounts are adjusted durng
the measurement period (see below), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The measurement period is the penod from the date of acquisiion to the date the Group obtains complete information about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and is subject to a maximum of one year.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination 1s recognised at cost as an asset at the date control s acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is
measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests In the acquiree and the fair
value of the Group's previously held equity interest In the acquiree, If any, over the net amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date. The interest of the non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree may inttially be measured either at far value
or at the non-controlling shareholtders' proportion of the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent Liabiities
assumed. The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquistion-by-acquisition basis.

Goodwillis not amortised but 1s reviewed for imparrment annually, or more frequently If there s an indication that it may be impaired.

For the purpose of imparment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units (CGUSs) expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination_ If the recoverable amount of the CGU s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit An imparment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subseguent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill ansing on acguisitions before the date of transition to IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being
tested for impairment at that date Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and is not inciuded In
determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Acquisition intangible assets

Acqguired access nghts relate to the contractual agreements entered into with the former owners of businesses acquired as part of a business
combination; or where the former owners previously operated a business and the Group has purchased specific access nghts from the
former owners. These agreements set out the contractual terms of the Affinity Partnership and prowide the contractual framework within
which the Group markets, sells and renews policies with the indwvdual customers of the Affinity Partner Acquired access rights are recorded
at fair value by using the estmated and discounted incremental future cash flows resulting from the relaionship Acquired access rights are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which are in the range of 3-20 years.

Acquired customer databases represent the value attributable to the portfolios of renewable policies that exist at the date of acquisition and
are acquired by the Group as part of a business combination, or where the former owners previcusly cperated a business and the Group has
purchased specific customer databases from the former owners Acquired customer databases are recorded at farr value using the esumated
and discounted incremental future cash flows resulting from the future renewal of the portfolio of acquired policies over therr estimated
residual lives Acquired customer databases are amortised on a straight-line basis over their esumated useful ives, which are in the range of
3-15 years

Other acquired intangibles include acquired brands recorded at farr value using the relief from royalty valuation method and technology
assets recorded at fair value using a replacement cost approach. Other acquired intangibles are amortised over the period over which the
assets are reasonably expected to transfer economic benefits to the Group, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which are
N the range of 8-11 years

Other intangible assets

Access rights arise from the contractual agreements with Affinity Partners which provide the contractual framework within which the Group
markets, sells and renews policies with the individual customers of the Affinity Partner Access rights are valued at the discounted present
value of the contractually committed payments, where such payments are not related to the success or otherwise of activity under the
contractual agreements and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the length of the contractual agreement, up to a maximum of

20 years

Trademarks represent costs Incurred to legally protect the established brand names of the Group Trademarks are stated at cost and
amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives, up to a maximum of 20 years

Customer databases represent the value attributable to the portfolios of renewable pobicies that have been created by our Affinity Partners
through their own sales and marketing activity and subsequently purchased by the Group Such databases are recorded at therr farr value
based oh the amount paid to the Affinity Partner and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected duration of the customer
relationship, which are in the range of 3-10 years

Computer software and the related licences are stated at cost and amartised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
3-10 years
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Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, cther than land, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-ine method,
on the following bases.

Buildings and leasehold improvements  25-50 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-7 years
Computer equipment 37 years
Mator vehicles 3 years (with 25% residual vatue)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and mtangible assets to determine whether there s any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, If any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the assets for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU 15 estimated to be tess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGUI1S
reduced to its recoverable amount Animpairment loss is recogrised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as income
immediately

Interests in equity accounted investments

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are Incorporated Into these financial statements using the eguity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments are initially recognised in the consobdated balance sheet at cost and adjusted thergafter
to recognise the Group's share of the profit and loss and other comprehensive Income of the investee. If the Group’s share of the profit or loss
exceeds the Group's interest in the investee, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Addrtionat losses are recognised
ohly to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee

On acquisition of equity accounted investrent interests, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and labilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which 1s included in the carrying amount of the investment.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with [AS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recogrised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment

The Group discontinues the use of the equity methed of accounting if the investment increases to become & subsidiary LUpon becoming a
subsidiary, the Group accounts for the entity in accordance with the business combinations policy above Any fair value gam or loss on re-
measurement of an equity accounted investee on acguisition of controlis taken to the profit and loss account at the date of acquisition

inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs comprnse direct material cost only. Cost s measured on a first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and Costs to be incurred In
marketing, selling and distribution. Provision 1s made for cbsolete, slow moving or defective iterns where appropriate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, itis probable thatan
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Pravisions
are discounted to present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The amortisation of the discount is recognised as a finance cost

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions An enerous contract is considered to exist
where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under it.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the nstrument The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets or liabilities and is determined at the
time of inttial recognition,
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subseguently measured atamortised cost, Far Value through Other Comprehensive
income (FVTOCI) or Fair Vatue through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The classification is based on two critena

* the Group's business model for managing the assets; and

= whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent “Solely Payments of Principal and Interest” on the principal amount
outstanding the "SPPI criterion’).

Trade receivables

Trade recevables do not carry any interest and are stated at amortised cost, reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverabile
amounts, as the business model of the Group is to collect contractual cash flows and the debt meets the SPPI criterion. They are recognised
when the Group's right to consideration is only conditicnal on the passage of time Allowances incorporate an expectation of life-time credit
losses from inttial recognition and are determined using an expected credit loss approach

Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are held at amortised cost and comprise cashyin hand, dernand deposits and other short-term highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Other investments

At each balance sheet date the Group conducts a farr value assessment of tts investment, the difference between the fair value and carrying
value is charged or credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income accordingly and held in the investrment revaluation reserve, On
transition to iFRS & the Group designated its other investment as held at FVTOCI due to its intention to hold the iInvestment for long -term
strategic purposes.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity
instrument s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after degucting all of its liabilities

Borrowings

Interest- bearing loans and overdrafts are stated at amortised cost and are recorded at the notional amount of the proceeds received, net
of direct 1ssue costs, Interest-bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at amortised cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instrumenits issued by the Company are recorded at the notional amount of the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

'Put’ options over the eguity of subsidiary cormpanies

The potential cash payments related to put options issued by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are accounted for as
financial liabilties. The amounts that may become payable under the option on exercise are initially recognised at the present value of the
expected gross obligation with the corresponding entry being recognised in retained earnings Such options are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, in order to accrete the liability up to the amount payable under the option at the date
at which it first becomes exercisable, The charge ansing is recerded as 2 financing cost The present value of the expected gross obligation is
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and any changes are recorded in the ncome statement at the end of each reporting penod In
the event that the option expires unexercised, the lability will be derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to retained earnings.

Other put’ and call’ options
Cther put and call options are recognised at fair value with any associated benefitt being recognised directly in the Income statement

forward contracts and hedge accounting

The Group enters into derivative transactions with a view to managing currency risks associated with financing acquisitive actwities. Forward
contracts used by the Group are stated at fair value on initial recognition and at subsequent balance sheet dates The fair values of forward
contracts are calculated by discounting all future cash flows by the applicable market yield curves at the balance sheet date

Cash flow hedges mitigate exposure to vanability in cash flows that are either attributable to a parucular nsk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a forecast transaction Hedge accounting is only used where, at the inception of the hedge, there 1s formal designation
and documentation of the hedging relationship, it meets the Group’s risk management objective strategy for undertaking the hedge and it

1s expected to be highly effective. The portion of any gains or losses on cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting
and are determined to be effective, are recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive iIncome. The gams or losses relating to the
ineffective portion are recognised immediately in the income statement, When a firm commitment or highly probable future transaction that
is hedged becomes an asset or a liability recognised on the balance sheet, then, at the time the asset or liability is recogrused, the associated
gains or losses that had previously been recognised in equaity are ncluded in the initial measurement of the acquisition cost or other carrying
amount of the asset or lability

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised or no longer qualfies for hedge
accounting. At that point in time, for cash flow hedges, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is kept n
equity until the forecast transaction cccurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recogrused
in equity is transferred to the income staterment Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of forward contracts that do not qualify
for hedge accounting, are recognised iImmediately in the income statement
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Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at far value
at the date of grant. The farr value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments i1s expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. The Group alse provided employees with the ability
to purchase the Group's ordinary shares at a discount to the current market value through Save As You Earn schemes. In addition, the Group
provides employees with the ability to purchase shares through its One Plan scheme, For every two shares purchased, employees will receive
one free matching share at the end of the vesting period

Fair value is measured by use of the Black-Scholes model or Monte Carlo simulation models depending on the type of scheme

3. Accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates

Where sensitivity analyses have been prepared below, management have determined that 15% increases/decreases to primary inputs are
appropriate thresholds to iliustrate the potential Impact on profit in the year. In FY19 management performed sensitivities with 10% increases/
decreases to primary inputs The increase to 15% in FY20 reflects the potential increased volatility and uncertainty of forward looking
judgements and estimates when operating during the COVID-19 pandemic, particularty in the short-term.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estumates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pencd, or in the period of the rewision and future pericds If the revision affects
both current and future periods. The principal assumptions underlying sources of estimation uncertainty and other areas of focus remain
congistent with the pnor year.

Critical accounting judgements

Present ownership interest

Acquisition transactions are reviewed to determine whether they give the Group a present ownership interest when subsidiaries are acquired
with non-controling mterests subject to put options that are mandatorily exercisable at a final exercise date Factors taken into account
include considenng whether there are any restrictions on voting rights, dividend rights and decision making for the non-controlling interests
Furthermore consideration is given to the extent to which non-controlling interests are able to participate In any increase in value cver the
period to the exercise date. On the basis that there are no restrictions on voting nghts, dividend nghts or decision making and that non-
controlling interests are able to participate in any Increases 1n value over the period to the exercise date the Directors’ judgement is that the
Group dees net have a present ownership interest over the remaning 21% equity interest of eLocal Holdings LLC (see note 16)

Post acquisiion employment services

Potential cash payments relating to put options that relate to post acquisitton employment services of the put option helders are accounted
for as post combination employee benefit expenses in accordance with JAS 18 Judgement is involved in determming the correct allocation
between employment costs and further purchase consideration

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Claims handling obligations

Regarding revenue recognition, a proportion of revenue is deferred to cover the Group's future obligations in respect of handling future
claims arising on those policies that are on nisk at the year end.

The key scurces of estimation uncertainty in determining an appropriate proportion of revenue to defer are the assurmptions made with
regards to claims frequency and the estimated cost of handling a claim. The Group uses historical experience of claim volumes and forecast
activity levels to estimate these assumptions The total ameunt of revenue deferred at 31 March 2020 in respect of the Group's future claim
handing obligations 1s E38.0m (FY19 £40.1m) If either of these assumptions were individually higher or lower than the Group's historical
experience by 15% the impact to the profit in the year would be £5.7m {(FY19- 10%, £4 Om)

Valuation of acquisition intangible assets

Acquired access rights and acquired customer databases are recognised as intangible assets. These are valued using the excess earnings
method taking INnto account a number of key assumptions such as retention and net incorme. In applying this methodology, certain estimates
are required tO be made in respect of future cash flows together with an appropriate discount factor for the purpose of determining the
present value of those cash flows

The key sources of estmation uncertainty with respect to custormer databases are the future retention rate and the income per customer
generated from those customers. The carrying value of acquired customer databases at 31 March 2020 is £124.6m (FY1S £126 7m). If the

retention rate or income per customer was indwidually higher or lower by 15% the impact to profit in the year would be £18./m (FY19 10%,
£127mj)

In respect of intangible assets for acguired access nights, the key sources of estimation uncertainty relate to the assumptions regarding the
number of policy sales and associated penetration of the customer list along with the cost of acquisition, retention rate and costs associated
with servicing those customers, The total value of acquired access nghts at 31 March 2020 is £156.5m {FY19 £90 8m), therefore if the
assumptions used in this valuation were individually higher or lower by 15% the impact to the profit in the year would be £23 5m (FY19: 10%,
£9.1m}.

Valuation of put options over nen-controling interests

On acquisition of a subsidiary the Group records any associated put options over non-contrelling interests at the expected gross present
value of the obligations. Subsequent changes in the present value of the expected gross obligation are recorded inthe income statement at
the end of each reporting pericd. Determining the value of the obligations, both at initial recognition and subsequent reporting dates
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

3. Accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued}

Valuation of put options over non-controlling interests (continued)

requires that management make assurmplions and utlise technigues that are key sources of estimation uncertainties. Key assumptions
include using Monte Carlo simulations to determine the expected performance of the acquired business over a period of up to five years
as well as the probability of a range of actions available to the non-controliing interests regarding the timing of exercise initial estimates of
expected performance are made by the Directors responsible for completing the acquisition and form a key component of the financial
due diligence that takes place pnor to completion, Subseqguent measurement is based on the Directors’ appraisal of the acquired business’
performance in the post-acquisttion period with any required adjustments to the amount payable recognised In the iIncome statement. Due
to the various number of assumptions used in the valuation model, the Directors do not consider it to be meaningful to include estimates
of sensitivities. It is however possible, that within the next financial year changes to assumptions used in the valuation model could require
a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of the put option. At 31 March 2020 the carrying value of obligations under put options

was £31.3m, in association with the option to acquire the outstanding non-controlling interests in eLocal Holdings LLC (FY19 £110m), in
association with the option to acquire the outstaniding non-centrolling interests in Habitissimo S L, see notes 16 and 23

Impairment of goodwitl and acquisition intangible assets

The annual Impairment assessment in respect of goodwill and acquisition intangibles requires estimates of the value in use (or far value less
costs to sell) of the CGU to which goodwill and acquisition intangibles have been allocated. CGUs are aligned to the lines of business within
each geographic territory inwhich the Group operates As a result, estimates of future cash flows are reguired, together with an appropnate
discount factor for the purpose of determining the present value of those cash flows Where significant investment is planned in a CGU during
the typical three year plan period approved by the Directors, a penod of actual cash flows deviating from the standard period may be deemed
more appropriate for purposes of impairment testing Consequently, although all impairment reviews during FY20 were performed based on
three years of plan cash flows, the iImpairment review of Checkatrade in FY19 was performed using four years of plan cash flows approved by
the Directors In both years presented the long-term growth rate applied to the Checkatrade analysis was consistent with all other CGUSs

The carrying value of goodwill is £5099m (FY19 £4079m) The carrying value of acquisiton intangibles 1s £292,.3m (FY19. £229.1m). Following
the annual imparrment review, impairment charges of £0.5m and £0.7m respectively (FY19. Enil and £nil) have been recorded against the
goodwill and acquisiton intangibles associated with the acquisition of Somgas Hogar S L, see notes 13 and 14

As set ocutin note 13, changes in respect of commercial cutcomes around sales volumes, prices, margins and discount rates can rmpact the
recoverable value

All businesses have modelled scenanos with varying levels of severty as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, considering different timelines
for emerging from tockdowns and the resultant impacts on customer, employee and supplier mobility and how this impacts profits and cash
flows. In addition, all businesses have also considered potential upside factors such as ncreased demand as stuations ease. The analyses,
which management believe are based on reascnably plausible assurmptions, does not result in the carrying amount of goodwill exceeding
the recoverable amount

Other areas of focus
Whilst not considered to be critical accounting Judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty, the following are areas of focus for
management

Policy cancellations

Inrespect of those policies that may be cancelled by the policyholder part way through the contractual term, which will affect the economic
benefits that flow to the Group, a liability s recogrised to ensure that the related revenue s appropriately constrained at the point that the
policy incepts.

The sources of estimation uncertainty in calculating refund liabilities in respect of policy cancellations are the expected mid-term cancellation
percentage and the period of cover rermaining on the policy at the point of cancellation The Group uses historical experience to determine
the appropriate assumptions to be used in this calculation. The total amount of revenue deferred at 31 March 2020 in respect of potential
future cancellations s £24.3m (FY19. £17.7m). The most significant estimation uncertainty within this judgement is the mid-term cancellation
percentage. If this assumption was individually higher or lower than the Group's historical expernience by 15% the impact to profit in the year
would be £3 6m (FY19.10%, £1 8m).

4. Segmental information and revenue from contracts with customers

Segment revenues and results

IFRS 8 reguires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about compenents of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decisicn maker, who is considered to be the Chief Executive, to aliocate resources to the segments and to
assess their performance. During FY19 the Group's 'Home Experts’ businesses met the definition of an operating segment under IFRS 8 and
since 31 March 2019 have been presented separately from ‘New Markets” The 'Home Experts’ segment contains the results of Checkatrade,
elocal, Habiussimo and Home Experts France New Markets includes the Group's international development initiatives, including its Japanese
Joint venture and s former Italian associate which was disposed of on 1 August 2019, see notes 7 and 18

Segment operating profit/{loss) represents the result of each segment including allocating costs associated with head office and shared
functions, but without allocating investment income, finance costs and tax. This is the measure reported to the Chief Executive for the
purposes of resource aliccation and assessment of segment performance
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The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in note 2. Group cost allocations are deducted In arrving

at segmental operating profit Inter-segment revenue relates to transactions with other Group companies, removed on consolidation, and

principally comprises royalty and other similar charges charged at prevalling rarket prices Disaggregation of revenue by both ine of business

and geography are disclosed below. Management believes that these are the most relevant categaories that depict how the nature, amount,
tirming and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors The line of business analysss also illustrates the Group's

revenue by major products and services.

North New Home

UK America France Spain Markets Experts Total
2020 £m £m £m £m Em Em £m
Revenue
Net policy income 2494 3549 1045 482 - — 758.0
Reparr ncorme 895 306 04 944 - — 214.9
HVAC 212 424 68 105 — — 80.9
Home Experts — - - — - g 718
Cther 28 16 01 — - — 14.5
Total revenue 3725 4285 1118 1541 - 718 1,140.1
Inter-segment (7.8) - — - — — (7.8)
External revenue 3651 429.5 1118 154.1 - 718 1,132.3
Result
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) - 810 854 338 201 4.7 (13.9) 2017
Exceptional items (15.0} — — — 38 36 {7.6)
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (3.2) (17.8) 69 0.5) - (71) (35.5}
Operatng profit/(loss) 62.8 676 269 126 0.9) {174} 158.6
Investment income T 05
Finance costs (21.2)
Profit before tax 1379
Tax (32.1)
Profit for the year 105.8

Narth New Horre

UK America France Span Markets Experts Total
2019 Em Em £m £m £m Em frm
Revenue o
Net policy income 244.0 303.3 1019 553 — — 045
Repair income 1089 157 04 811 — — 2061
HVAC 25.5 134 15 44 — — 448
Home Experts — — — - 40.4 404
Other 133 10 08 - — - 151
Total revenue 3917 3334 1046 1408 - 404 10109
Inter-segment (7.3} - - - — — (7.3}
External revenue 844 3334 104.6 140.8 — 40.4 10036
Result
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) 660 676 333 17.7 2.4} (7.4) 1748
Exceptional items 4.6 — — — — - 46
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (2.2} 1129) 6.5) {0.2) - 50 26 .8)
Operating profit/lloss) 684 547 268 175 (2.4 {12 4) 1526
Investment Income 0.2
Finance costs (13.3)
Profit before tax 1395
Tax (31.2)
Profit for the year 108 3

- Adjusted operating profitis defined in the Glassary to the Annual Report & Accounts on page 193
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Year ended 31 March 2020

4, Segmental information and revenue from contracts with customers {continued)

Segment information

Depreciation, amorhisanon
Assets Liailities Capital additions and impairment

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Em Em Em £m £m £m Em Em
UK 1,183.3 9538 653.2 4680 211 276 475 169
North America 5571 436.6 683.6 441.3 277 642 35.3 238
France 2473 2254 163.3 1521 14.2 9.8 13.6 10.0
Spain 143.8 1133 1055 786 89 87 17.4 166
New Markets 0.6 69 319 288 — - - —
Home Experts 2101 775 58.4 311 105 47 10.8 66
Inter-segment (559.2) (378.9) (559.2) (378.9) - - - -
Total 1,783.0 14346 1,136.7 8210 824 1150 1246 738

All assets and habilties including inter-segment loans and trading balances are allocated to reportable segments

Figures for depreciation, amortisation and imparrment are shown inclusive of depreciation of IFRS 16 right-of-use assets in FY20. In FY20
these figures alsc include £14.3m (FY18 E£nil) of impairment charges booked in the UK segment in relation to HomeServe Labs (see note 7)
and £1 2m (FY19" £nil) of iImpairment charges booked in the Spain segment in relation to the acguisition of Somgas Hogar S L (see notes 13
& 14).

Information about major customers
During the perods presented three underwriters were customers of the Group that individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's
revenues’

2020 2019

% %

Customer 1 - UK o 28.9 326
Customer 2 - North Amerca 16.7 167
Customer 3 - North America 12.9 136
Cther customers individually representing below 10% of Group revenue 41.5 371
S 100.0 100.0

Geographical information

The Group operates in three principal geographical areas UK, Continental Europe and North America, as well as Latin Amernca
and Japan

The Group's revenue from external customers {by customer domicile} and information about its segment assets (non-current assets
excluding deferred tax and retirement benefit assets) by geographical location are detailed below

Revenue from external

customers Nan-current assets

2020 2015 2020 2019

e £Em Em £m £m
UK 403.7 414.2 457.2 4619
North America 4516 3334 248.5 2328
Continental Europe 2732 252.4 426.5 2218
Latin America 3.8 36 - —
11323 10036 1,132.2 916.6

Infarmation relating to Continental Europe in the table above includes the Group's businesses in France and Spain
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Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

The tetal transaction price allocated to the rernaining performance obligations {unsatisfied or parbally unsatisfied) on the Group's multi-year
arrangements with underwriters to sell policies, is £51 7m (FY19' £49.3m), related to all ancillary oblgations delivered after any given policy is
sold The obligations associated with the outstanding transaction price are expected to be fulfilled, and revenue fully recognised, within the
next 12 months

All other contracts with customers have an criginal expected duration of one year or less. No consideration from these contracts has been
excluded from the transaction price. Applying the practical expedient of paragraph 121 of I1FRS 15, information about remaining perfarmance
abhgations on these contracts has not been disclosed

Contract balances
An analysis of the Group’s contract balances is as follows

2020 2019
Em Em
Current assets
Armounts recewable for the provision of services {see note 20) 427.3 3698
Accrued income (see note 20) 16.9 151
Current liabilities
Deferred income (see note 22) 51.7 493

All contract balances are classified as current. Accrued mcome contract assets primarily relate to services performed for customers in cur
Home Experts businesses and customers in our Spanish home assistance membership operations in advance of payment being received,
or falling due. Accrued income contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.
Deferred income contract liabilities principally relate to advance consideration received from customers, for which revenue 1s recognised
as the associated performance obligation is satisfied Significant deferred Income contract liabilities are recorded across the Group in the
Membership and Home Experts lines of business,

Significant changes in accrued and deferred income balances during the period were as follows

Accrued Deferred

Incu::: Inco;n’:
At 31 March 2018 96 863
Opening mpact of IFRS 15 23 (37.3)
At 1 Apri 2018 - 119 450
Transfers to receivables (10.0) —
Revenue recognised from the opening balance - (50.2)
Revenue deferred not yet earmed — 461
Revenue earned not yet due 134 —
Business combinations - 32
Foreign exchange (0.2 12
At 1 April 2019 151 493
Transfers to receivables (14 6) -
Revenue recognised from the cpening balance — 501
Revenue deferred not yet earned — 475
Revenue earned not yet due 161 —
Business combinations — 37
Foreign exchange 0.3 13
At 31 March 2020 16.9 51.7

Revenue deferred not yet earned is presented net of amounts created and released within the same reporting period. Revenue recognised in
2020 and 2019 in relation to performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied} in previous periods was imrmatenal.
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4. Segmental information and revenue from contracts with customers {continued)

Contract costs £m
A1 April 2018 -
Transferred from intangible assets on transition to IFRS 15 - 38.5
Additions 4.3
Amortisation (149)
Foreign exchange 04)
At 1 April 2019 275
Additons 23
Disposals (16)
Amortisation (118)
Impairment 01
Foreign exchange 0.5
At 31 March 2020 168

" On1 Apnil 2018 assets with a total net book value of £38 5m were transferred out of custamer databases and reclassified as contract cost assets under IFRS 15 (see note 14)

Contract costs primarily represent the value attributable to the portfolio of renewable customers created by Affinity Partners through their
own sales and marketing activity, subsequently purchased by the Group. Where these capitalised commission costs are incremental to the
cost of obtaining the contract with the Group's direct custorner they are capitalised under IFRS 15 Management anticipate these costs to be
recoverable over the expected bfe of the associated customer retationship, over which they will be amortised.

Applying the practcal expedient in paragraph 94 of IFRS 15, the Group recogrises the ncremental cost of obtaining contracts as an expense
when incurred If the amortisation period of the assets that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.

5. Profit for the year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after (creditingi/charging

2020 2019
£m £m
Included in operating costs:
Staff remuneration 339.2 3069
Cost of Inventones recognised as an expense 24.2 29.8
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets 14.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipmert 9.3 a1
Amortisation of acquisition intangible assets 355 268
Amortisation of other intangible assets 38.3 231
Amortisation of contract costs 11.8 149
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangibles and contract costs {0.8) 06
Net amounts written off on trade recevables and contract assets (see note 20} 41 11
Non-exceptionat impairment of goodwill and acquired intangibles 1.2 -
Exceptional impairment charges (see note 7} 14.3 -
Expenses relating to vanable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease labilities 19 —
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets, excluding short-term leases of low value assets 0.1 —
Expenses relating to short-term leases 09 —
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2020 2010

£'000 £000
The analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's annual financial staterments 153 72
The audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legistation 1,161 878
Total audit fees 1,314 950
Audit-related assurance services (half year review) 55 52
Total non-audit fees 55 52
Total auditor's remuneration 1,369 1,002

Fees payable 1o Delotte LLF and their member firms for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be disclosed because the

consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

A descripton of the work of the Audit and Risk Committee 5 set out in the Corporate Governance repert and includes an explanation of how

auditor objectvity and independence are safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditor.

6. Staff remuneration
The average monthly number of employees (Including Executive Directors) was

2020 2019
number number
UK fincluding Head Cffice) 3,397 3,814
Continental Europe 1,614 1522
North America L 1,821 1112
] 6,832 6,448
2020 2019
Em Em"
Their aggregate remuneration compnsed
Wages and salanes 295.2 266.0
Social secunty Costs 369 341
Other pension costs (see note 33) 71 68
339.2 3068

Included within wages and salaries s £1.0m of post combination employee benefit expenses recorded in relabion to the Group's option to

acquire the non-controlling interest of eLocal Holdings LLC {see note 16),

The Company only staff numbers and remuneration amounts for HomeServe plc are disclosed in note 36 to the parent company financial

statements.

145

SIS T R YRR RITATITY

SAC] e e

I
=1
o
3
[al
=
«n
jal
o
a
2
o
3
=
s




Group financial statements SR A

Notes to financial statements
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7. Exceptionat items
Exceptional items, booked to operating costs, comprised the following

2020 2015
£m Em

Gain on acquisition of subsidiary non-controling interests 36 -
Gain on disposal of investment in associate 3.8 —
Impairment charges associated with HomeServe Labs {14.3) —
Restructunng costs {0.7) (5.5
Fair value movernent on contingent consideration liabilities - 101
Exceptional items included within Group operating profit before tax {7.6) 46
Net taxation on exceptional items 2.0 (0.2
Net exceptional items after tax (5.6) 44
Year ended 31 March 2020
Acquisition of subsidiary non-controlling interest
See note 30.

Disposal of interest in associate
See ncte 18.

Impairment and restructuring charges associated with HomeServe Labs

Consumers and insurance partners have been slower than expected to adopt smart leak detection technology. Following the Group's
annual budgeting process and subsequent updates in ight of COVID-19 HomeServe has completed an impairment review of the Group's
LeakBot assets, concluding that the net assets of the business are impaired, and incurring a £15.0m exceptional charge. This conclusion has
been reached based on a number of factors affecting expected future cash flows including commercial traction, access to investment and
the pace of technology change Of the £15.0m, £12.9m related to the impairment of development assets for the LeakBot device, £1.4m of
inventory and a £0./m restructuring provision.

Year ended 31 March 2019

Fair value moverment on conungent consideration liabilities

At 31 March 2019 the Group reassessed the fair value of cutstanding consideration payments due to the previous owners of Help-Link UK
Limited, conditonal on the number of boiler installatons performad from the point of acquisition untit July 2020, At thes point the Group
determined that the likelihood of the conditions being met that would trigger either of the two outstanding payments (a gross undiscounted
cash outflow totalling £10 5m} was now remote and therefore the fair value of the cutstanding liabilities was £nil At the point the fair value
exercise was performed the balance held on the balance sheet of £10.1m, representing the criginal discounted value of the liabilties and any
associated interest accreted to 31 March 2019, was released to the income statement in accordance with IFRS 3 and treated as exceptional
dueto s size and madence

Restructuring costs

Charges of £5.5m were incurred during FY19 to restructure the UK business along lines that strengthen it to best adapt to evolving customer
needs. Marketing and other support headcount was reduced, as the business moved away from an over relance on direct mail activity and
prepares for the implementation of new systems Costs related to these programmes have been treated as exceptional due to thelr size and
ncidence

8. Investmentincome

2020 2019

£m Em

Interest on bank deposits 0.5 02
9. Finance costs

2020 2019

£m £m

Interest on bank and other lcans 177 115

Interest on lease labilities 15 -

Unwinding of discount on deferred and contingent consideration 1.0 06

Urwinding of discount on obligations under put options 0.5 10

Exchange movernents 0.5 0.2

212 133
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10. Taxation
2020 2019
Em £m
Current tax
Current year charge 337 318
Adjustments in respeact of prior years (1.8) (1.9}
Total current tax charge 319 299
Deferred tax charge 0.2 13
Total tax charge 321 312

The pre-exceptional effective tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2020 was 23%. The post-exceptional effective tax rate for the same penod
was 24%. UK corporation tax is calculated at 19% {FY19. 19%) of the estmated assessable profit for the year. The UK Governmentinits 2020
Budget announced that the main UK corporate rate would be mantained at 19% until 31 March 2022, before being reviewed, and would not
be reduced to 17% We have reflected this change in our UK deferred tax calculations.

Taxation for other junsdictions 15 calculated at the rates prevailing 1n the respective jurisdictions, these being a blended (Federal/State) rate
of 27% inthe US (FY19' 27%), 31% in France (FY19: 33%) as a result of France enacting new tax legislation in December 2018 effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and 25% in Spain {FY19 25%), which explains the ‘Overseas tax rate differences’
below,

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows

2020 2019

Em £m

Profit before tax on continuing operations 1379 1395
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (FY19 19%) 26.2 26.5
Tax effect of iterns that are not taxable in determining taxable profit 11 (06
Adjustments in respect of prior years - current tax (1.8) (1%
Overseas tax rate differences 6.6 72
Tax expense for the year N 321 31.2

Given the UK parented nature of the Group, the majority of financing that the overseas businesses require 1s provided from the UK, and as
such the UK has provided a number of intra-group lcans to its overseas operations in order to fund therr growth plans. Inlight of the different
tax rates applicable in each of the markets in which the Group cperates, as noted above, these loans result In a reduction in the Group's
effective tax rate, which is included in 'Overseas tax rate differences’ in the table above

In April 2015, the European Commission {the Commission) of the European Union {the EU) published its official decision in relation to certain
aspects of the UK's Controlled Foreign Company rules. In particular, the Commission has decided that the ‘Group Financing Exemption’ 1s

in breach of the EU's State Aid rules. The UK Government and a number of taxpayers have appealed this judgment applying for the decision
to be annulled These annulment proceedings are lLikely to take several years before a decision s handed down. In the meantime, HM
Revenue & Customns (HMRC) recently publshed guidance as to how it plans to implement this EU decision. Whilst we await the decision in
the annuiment proceedings it is tikely that certain of HomeServe's financing arrangements will be impacted by this EU decision (and HMRC's
subsequent guidance) We have included the calculation of the potential liability within our analysis, and therefore believe any risk is fully
provided for as part of our uncertain income tax estimation within current tax liabilities in the Group Balance Sheet.

A retirement benefit tax charge of £0.3m (FY1S £0 1m credit) has been recogrised directly in other comprehensive income. In addition to the
amounts credited/(charged) to the iIncome statement and other comprehensive income, the following amounts relating to tax have been
recognised directly in equity

2020 2019
£Em £m

Current tax

Excess tax deductions related to share-based paymenits on exercised options 30 27

Deferred tax

Opening impact of IFRS 15 - 0.5

Change in estimated excess tax deductions related to share-based payments (1.2) 0.3

Total tax recognised directly m equity 18 35
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10. Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilites) recognised by the Group and the movements during the current and prior year:

Elected Retirement Acquired Investrment

difeenies dedocwoms cbigmen  schemessmeelomes | ressiee Totat
Assetflliabinty) £m £mn frm Em £m £m Em- £m
At1 April 2018 {1.2) 0.1) 10.9) 54 (289} 77 Q.7 (18.7}
Impact of IFRS 15 (equity credit) o5 — — - - - — 0.5
{Chargel/credit to Income (36} 01 {04 01 4.0 (15) - (1.3)
Credit to equity - — - 03 - - - 0.3
Credit/icharge) to o1 _ _ _ 0.2 (0.1)
Comprenensive Income — —
Acquisition of subsidiaries — — - — {06) - - (0.6)
Transfers 06 — — - — (053] — -
Exchange movements o4 - - 0.2 104} g6 Q1 0.9
At1Apnl 2019 (33 - 1.2 60 259 62 0.8 {19.0)
Credit/(charge) to Income 4.8 0.8) a.4) ©3) 77 (16) - (0.2)
Charge to eguity — — — 12 - — — 1.2
gz)er?::)/r(;:::w%ie\,]':\)ncome - ) ©3 N N N 08 05
Acquisition of subsidianes -- - — 0.1) — — (0.1)
Exchange movements 01 — - 0t 0e) 02 — (0.2)
At 31 March 2020 !8.0) (0.8) 1.9) 46 (18.9) 7 4.8 - 20.2)

' The avallable for sale reserve was renamed the investment revaluation reserve upen adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 Apnl 2018

Ihe majorty ot unutilised losses are expected to be ublsed within five years,

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the table above. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances fafter

offset) for financial reporting purposes;

Morth
UK France Span Amenca 2020 2018
£Em £m fm £m £m fm
Deferred tax assets — — ig 2.4 6.0 74
Deferred tax liabilties 118} (14.4) — - (26.2) (26.4)
Net deferred tax (labitityl/asset 11.8} (14.4) 3.6 2.4 (20.2) 19.0)

Deferred tax has not been recognised on £13.2m{FY1S. £9.7m} of unused losses due 1o the uncertainty over the tming of future recovery.

There are no expiry dates in respect of the unrecognised tax losses in either year.
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11 Dividends
2020 2019
£m im
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year.
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 of 16 2p (2018 14 4p} per share 54.1 478
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 5 8p {2019 5 2p} per share 194 172
735 65.0

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 15 17.8p per share amounting to £5%.6m (FY19 16.2p per share amounting to
£54.1m) The proposed final dvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a
lability in these financial statements The payment of this dividend will not have any tax conseguences for the Group

12. Earnings per share

2020 2019

pence pence
Basic 37 32.7
Ciluted 315 323
Adjusted basic 41.3 375
Adjusted diluted 41.0 370
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data
Number of shares 202: mr?
Weighted average number of shares
Basic 3342 3317
Dilutive impact of share options 2.8 39
Diluted 1370 3356

2020 2019
Earnings £m £m
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent i 106.0 108 5
Amortisation of acquisiwon intangibles 35.5 26.8
Exceptional items incte 7} 76 46)
Tax impact ansing on amaortusation of acquisition intangibles and exceptional items 11.0) 64
Adjusted profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 138.1 124.3

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share have been calculated in accordance with IAS 33 Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share
15 calculated by dividing the profit or loss in the financial year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
Adjusted earnings per share is calculated excluding the amortisaticn of acquisition intangibles, exceptional items and the associated tax
impacts

The Group uses adjusted cperating profit, adjusted operating margin, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted profit before tax and adjusted earnings per
share as its primary performance measures. These are non-1FRS measures which exclude the impact of exceptional items, the amortisation

of acquisition Intangibles and the associated tax impacts. For further details refer to the ‘Profitability’ section of the Glossary

Diluted earnings per share includes the impact of dilutive share options In issue throughout the year.
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Group financial statements T I S P

Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

13. Goodwill

£m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2018 3866
Recognised on acquisition of subsidianes 210
Adjustment related to prior year acquisition o7
Exchange movements 10
At April 2016 ' " 4079
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries 92.8
Impairment {05)
Adjustment related to orior year acquisition 03
Exchange movements 94
At 31 March 2020 ) 509.9
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 509.9
At 31 March 2019 4079

Adjustments to provisional balances

During FY20 the provisional fair values for the acquisiion of Cropp Metcalfe Air Condiioning and Heating Company Inc. disclosed as part

of the Group's FY13 Annual Report have been updated, resulting in a £0.3m increase to goodwill at 31 March 2020. In November 2018 the
provisional fair values recorded for the FY18 acquisition of Energy Insurance Services Limited were finalised resulting in a decrease to goodwill
of £0.7m at 31 March 2019,

Impairment of goodwill associated with the acquisition of Somgas Hogar S.L.

Curing the period between acquisition on 25 July 2019 and 31 March 2020 a significant revenue generating contract of Somgas Hogar S.L.,

a Group company, ceased. In ight of these circumistances and due to the recent nature of the acquisition, it was considered appropriate to
perform a separate iImpairment review of the Somagas business, resulting in an impairment to goodwill of EQ 5rm The recoverable amount ot
goodwitl associated with Somgas at 31 March 2020 was £2.8m based onits value in use The financial performance and position of Somgas is
reported within the Group's "Spain® segment and in the "HVAC" business line. The discount rate used to perform the impairment assessment
was consistent with that of the "Spain® CGU disclosed below

Impairment testing methodology and goodwill allocation

Goodwill acguired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUSs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination, The Group's CGUs are defined as the lines of business within each gecgraphic territory in which the Group operates, because
they represent the smallest identifiable group of agsets that generate cash flows The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently If there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use
calculations

The key assumptions for the value In use calculations are those regarding growth rates, discount rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct Costs durnng the penod. The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets and plans for the
next three years approved by the Directors and extrapolates the annual cash flows using estimated, long- term growth rates. The financia!
budgets and plans have been updated to reflect the anticipated impact on our business of the COVID-19 pandemic. Our assumption is that
the lockdown period continues for & three month penod untit the end of June 2020 with a gradual return to maore normal levels of demand
thereafter. It has been anticipated that there will be a greater impact on cur Home Experts businesses due to the non-emergency nature of
some of the work, therefore the recovery period is assumed to be more gradual with a phased recovery across the remainder of the financial
year to March 2021

The growth rates are based on detailed business plans and although long-term growth rate forecasts may be higher in certain terntories, the
lowest rate across the Group has been applied to reduce the risk that value in use calculations are overstated. The long-terrm growth rate
utilised is 2% (FY19 2%) Changesin selling prices and direct costs are based on expectations of future changes in the market
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Where significant nvestment is planned in a CGU during the typicai three year plan period approved by the Directors, a period of actual cash
flows deviating from the standard period may be deemed more appropriate for purposes of impairment testing Consequently, although all
Impairment reviews during FY20 were performed based on three years of plan cash flows, the impairment review of Checkatrade in FY19 was
performed using four years of plan cash flows approved by the Directors In both years presented, the long-term growth rate applied to the
Checkatrade analysis was consistent with all other CGlUs

Management estimates the discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money. The pre-tax
cost of capital rates used to discount the forecast pre-tax cash flows are different for each CGU and are as follows

Segment CGUs 2020 2019
UK UK 9.8% 88%
North Amenca North America 10.3% Q7%
France France 9.5% 8.6%
Spain Spain 10.4% 29%
Home Experts Checkatrade 11.6% 8.8%
Home Experts Habitissimo 12.8% S9%
Home Experts elocal 12.2% NiA

Pre-tax cost of capital rates reflect the latest cost of debt and equity for a sample of comparable companies In accordance with the market
participant prermise detaited in 1AS 36. The increase in the discount rates versus FY1S reflects the impact of COVID-19 and the associated cost
of both equity and deht.

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairrment test of each CGU's carrying value, which also reflects the different nsk
profile of each CGU This includes modelling scenarios with varying levels of severity as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic; considering
different timelines for emerging from lockdowns (e.g. 3 and 6 months) and the resultant impacts en customer, employee and supplier
mebility and how this impacts profits and cash flows

Having performed this anatysis, the Group betieves that there are no reasonably possible changes to the key assumptions in the next year
which wolld result in the carrying amount of goodwill exceeding the recoverable amount However, if the lecckdown pertod was sigruficantly
longer than the scenaros noted above and the demand for home improvements remains suppressed after the end of the lockdown,

this could potentially have an impact on the carrying value of our Home Experts CGls. This view is based upon inherently judgemental
assumptions, however, it takes account of the headroom in the value in use calculation versus the current carrying value

The carrying amount of goocdwill has been allocated, by CGU, as follows:

2020 2019

£m Em

UK - 1836 1836
North Amernca 76.8 48.5
France 93.6 88.6
Spam 237 176
Home Experts - Checkatrade 586 586
Home Experts - Habitissimo 11.3 11.0
Home Experts — eLocal 62.3 —
5099 40793

The Group's CGUs do not contain any intangible assets with indefinite usefut economic lives,
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. Other intangible assets

Acquired Otner Total
Acquired customer acquired acquisition  Tradernarks & Custormner Total
access nghts databases ntangibles intangibles access rights databases ' Software intangibles
Em £m £m Em Em £m Em Em
Cost
At 1 April 2018 877 1915 139 293.1 341 941 2117 633.0
IFRS 15 reclasstficaton - — - - - (85.0) -~ {85.0)
Additions 28.2 206 — 48.8 13 88 420 100.9
Acquisition of subsidiaries 124 26 - 15.0 - — ~ 15.0
Disposals - —~ — - - — (¥R (2.1}
Transfers 6.1} 64 — 0.3 06 — {09} -
Exchange movements 43 38 - 8.1 14 (0.3) 19 111
A1 April 2019 1265 2249 139 365.3 374 176 2536 6739
Additions 41 42 — 8.3 4.8 131 454 71.6
Acquisition of subsidiaries 723 67 14 80.4 - - o1 805
Disposals - 02 - (0.2) — - {4.5) (4.7}
Transfers (3.7} 37 - - - - 0.7 0.7
Exchange moverments 87 s3] - 16.3 08 07 3 209
At 31 March 2020 2079 2469 153 4701 430 314 2984 8429
Accumulated amortisation
Atl April 2018 274 86 06 1066 270 491 655 248.2
IFRS 15 reclassification — — - - — {46 5) — (46.5)
Charge for the year 75 176 17 26.8 3.0 23 178 49.9
Disposals - - - - - - 01 01
Transfers 01 — - 01 on - — -
Exchange movements 07 20 - 2.7 0.5 0.1 07 38
At 1 Aprit 2019 " %7 982 23 136.2 304 48 839 255.3
Charge for the year 13.8 199 18 355 41 35 307 73.8
IMpairmerit — 07 — 0.7 10 — 119 136
Disposals — — - - - - 45) {4.5)
Transfers 01 o - - 08 08 a2z 0.2
Exchange movements 18 36 - 54 04 02 14 74
At31 March 2020 T 514 1223 4.1 177.8 35.1 9.3 1236 345.8
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 156.5 124.6 1.2 292.3 7.9 22.1 1748 497.1
At 31 March 2019 908 1267 116 22091 70 128 1697 418.6

T On 1 April 2018 assets with a total net book value of £38 Sm were rransterred out of customer databases and reclassified as contract cost assets under IFRS 15 (see note 4)

Other acquired intangibles include acguired brands and technology assets. Al the balance sheet date there are no contractual commitments
for the purchase of Intangible assets (FY19. £nil)

Software includes assets with a book value of £81 8m (FY19 £81 Bm) in respect of the new Customer Relationship Management (CRM)
systerm which has been rolled out in the UK business during FY20 for front book pelicies. The asset is being amortised over 10 years on a
straight-line basis and over 9 years remains of its useful economic life Acquired access rights include assets with a beok value of £62.1Im in
respect of customer relationships acquired as part of the acquisition of eLocal Holdings LLC (see note 16). The assets are being amortised over
periods ranging between 10 and 11 years on a straight-line basis and have over 9 to 10 years useful econormic life remaining

152



Impairment

At 31 March 2020 the carrying value of ntangible assets associated with HomeServe Labs were reviewed for impairment resulting in charges
being recorded In association with the software assets (£11 8m) and trademarks & access rights (£1 Om) of the business. The totalimpairment
charges of £12.9m associated with HomeServe Labs related intangible assets were treated as exceptional dug to their size and incidence (see
note 7). Post impainment the carrying value of the imparred intangibles was £nil

Additionally, duning the penod between acquisition on 25 July 2019 and 31 March 2020 a significant revenue generating contract of Somgas
Hogar S L, a Group company, ceased, In light of these circumstances and due to the recent nature of the acquisition, it was considered
approprate to perform a separate impairment review of the Somagas business, resulting in an impairment to acquired custormner databases of
£07m For additional detail on the impairment review of the Somgas business see note 13

TS RTINS

15. Property, plant and equipment

Furmiture, hxtures Cormputer Motar
Land & bLildings & equiprnent equipmen: vehicles Total
im £m £m Em £m

Cost
At 1 April 2018 354 121 268 55 79.8
Additions 21 16 49 12 9.8
Disposals on 02} 03) 05 1.1)
Acquisition of subsidiares 0.3 — — 19 2.2
Exchange movements 0.1 02 06 04 1.3
At 1 Aprl 2019 378 137 320 85 92.0
Transfers * G4 05) {0.3) 61) 6.5)
Additions 2.3 16 33 13 85
Disposals (0.4) 0.2) (0 3) (0.5) (1.4)
Acguisition of subsidiaries c4 01 02 12 19 »
Exchange movements 03 0.2 06 03 1.4 %
At 31 March 2020 408 19 355 47 959 £
Accumulated depreciation
At L Apri| 2018 137 78 147 37 19.9
Charge for the year 17 16 50 08 9.1
Disposals — 02 01 0.3) {0.8)
Exchange movements 01 01 04 0.2 0.8
At April 2019 155 93 200 T aa 49.2
Transfers * — {o)e)! 0 3) (3.1 (4.3)
Charge for the year 17 21 51 0.4 93
Disposals 0.2) 0.2) 0.3) (0.4) {1.1)
Exchange moverments 02 o1 04 01 0.8
At 31 March 2020 17.2 104 249 14 53.9
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 236 45 10.6 33 420
At 31 March 2019 223 4.4 120 41 428

*Included within transfers in FY201s a carrying book value of £1 7min respect of assets held under finance leases at 31 March 2019 At 1 April 2019, on transition 1o IFRS 16, these amounts
were transferred to nght of use assets See note 26

At the balance sheet date, there are no contractual commitments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (FY1S Enil)
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

16. Business combinations
The Group has incurred a net cash outflow in respect of business combinations of £14Q 6m in the year (FY19' £37.5m).

There were three material acguistions in the year ended 31 March 2020.

+  On 26 November 2019, HomeServe USA Holdings Corp, a Group company. acquired 79% of the partnership capital and obtained control
of eLocal Holdings LLC (hereafter 'elocal’) elocal operates within the Home Experts business line of the Group The acqursition of eLocal
allows HomeServe to continue 1o progress the Group wide growth strategy in the Home Experts market.

e On 6 December 2016 HomeServe HVAC LLC, a Group compary, acquired 100% of the issued share capital and obtamed cantrol of
Crawford Services, Inc, (hereafter Crawford’) Crawford operates within the HVAC busirness line of the Group The acquistion of Crawford
enhances the scale and scope of the Group's HVAC capabilities in North America

= (On 17 December 2019, HormeServe USA Reparr Management Corp., a Group company, acquired a group of assets constituting a business
under IFRS % from Sunbelt Group LLC (hereafter 'Servling’). Servline operates within the Memibership business line of the Group The
acquisition of ServLine allows HomeServe to expand the range of products available to offer to its North Amerncan water partners

Additionally the following immaterial acquisitions, which have been combined and presented as ‘Other’ for the purpose of provisionat farr
value disclosures, were made during the year ended 31 March 2020

Membership
= On 31 May 2018, HomeServe USA Repair Management Corp, a Group company, acquired 100% of the issued share capitat and obtained
control of American Home Guardian, Inc., (hereafter AHGY.

+  On1November 2018, HomeServe USA Reparr Management Corp, a Group company, acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital and
obtained control of Nations Preferred Home Warranty Inc, (hereafter Nations)

The acquisitions of AHG and Nations enhance the scale and scope of the Group's home warranty offering and increase the opportunity for
future growth in this market.

HVAC
* On1lJuly 2019 HomeServe Spain S.L U, a Group company, acquired 100% of the issued share capital and obtaned control of Linacal S L.
(hereafter ‘Linacal’}

¢ On 11 July 2019 HomeServe Spain $.L.U, a Group company, acquired 1U0% of the issued share capilal atnd ublai ied vontrol of Tecno
Arasat Servicios de Mantenimiento S.L, (hereafter ‘Tecno Arasat’).

+  On 25 July 2019 HomeServe Spain S L U, a Group company, acquired 100% of the issued share capital and obtained control of Somgas
Hogar S.L., (hereafter ‘Somgas’}

*  On 31July 2019 HomeServe HVAC LLC, a Group company, acguired 100% of the 1ssued share capital and obtained control of FAB Electric,
Inc, (hereafter 'FAB")

+  On 17 Septermber 2019 HomeServe HVAC LLC, a Group company, acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital and obtained control of
Newcore, Inc,, also known as Fred's Home Services

= On 31 October 2019 Electro Gaz Service SA, a Group company, acquired a group of assets constituting a business under (FRS 3 from
Michei Vial Services SARL.

*  On 30 December 2019 HomeServe Spain $.L.U.. a Group company, acquired 100% of the issued share capital and obtained control of
Servicios Tecnicos SATE, S L

=  On 31 December 2019 HomeServe Energy Services SAS, a Group company, acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital and obtained
control of Sylvain Brun Froid SAS

= On 31 Cecember 2019 HomeServe Energy Services $SAS, a Group company, acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital and obtained
control of ID Energies EURL {'1D Energies) Subsequent to this transaction, on 31 December 2019, D Energies, a Group company by virtue
of its aforementioned acquisition by HomeServe Energy Services SAS, acguired the outstanding 90% of the issued share capitalof IDS AT
SAS not already owned by |D Energies, thereby obtaining control of ID S AT SAS and bringing the Group's totsl ownership interest to 100%
of the issued share capnal

*  On 2 March 2020 ID Energies, 2 Group company, acquired a group of assets constituting a business under IFRS 3 frorm Enernat SARL

All HVAC acqguisttions made dunng FY20 enhance the scale and scope of the Group's HVAC capabiliies and increase the opportunity for
future growth related to new HVAC system instailations,
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Home Experts
«  On 27 June 2019 HomeServe Home Experts SAS, a Group company, acquired a group of assets constituting a business under IFRS 3 from
Sell Me Up SAS

The provisional fair values of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are set out In the table below

eiocal Crawfora servline Other Total
At fair value £m Em £Em £m £Em
Property, plant and equipment " 0.2 10 — 07 19
Right-of-use assets 15 05 — 14 34
Cash and cash equivalents 30 o4 — 31 6.5
Inventories - 0.2 — 10 1.2
Trade and other receivables 49 11 — 19 79
Trade and other payables (5.4) 10} — (20 {8.4)
Deferred income 0.8 10.5) — 24) (3.7)
Lease abilities (1.5) 0.5 — 1.4 {3.4)
Bank & other loans (116 - - 02 {11.8)
Deferred & contingent consideration 4.4} - - — 4.4)
Intangible assets identified on acquisition 632 36 54 83 805
Deferred tax on acguisition intangibles — — - 0.1 {0.1)
Net assets acquired 491 48 54 10.3 69.6
Less non-contralling interests {10.3) - — — (10.3)
Goodwill 600 69 131 128 92.8
Total ) 98.8 17 185 T 152.1
Satisfied by:
Cash 96.4 109 137 197 140.7
Deferred consideration — 08 — 18 2.6
Contingent consideration at fair value 24 — 48 16 88

98.8 117 T185 231 1521
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 96.4 109 137 197 140.7
Less Cash acquired (30 04 — (31) (6.5)
Total ' 934 105 13.7 16.6 134.2

The information above is provisional with fair value assessment activities ongoing.

The goodwill ansing on the excess of consideration over the fair value of the assets and labilites acquired represents the expectation of future
growth, synergistic benefits and efficiencies, Where elections are made to treat an acquisition that is in scope of US tax legislation as an asset
purchase for tax, goodwill s deemed deductible for tax purposes. No other goodwill balances are expected to be deducted for tax purposes
Deferred tax labilities associated with elected goodwill deductions are disclosed in note 10 The gross contracted amounts due are egual to
the fair value amounts stated above for trade and other recevables.

The post-acquisition revenue, operating profit and acguisition related costs included in operating costs) from these acquisitions in the year
ended 31 March 2020 were as foliows.

elocal Crawford Servlne Other Total

Ern £m Em £mn £m

Revenue 221 41 04 112 378
Operating profit/loss) 28 — — oa) 2.0
Acquisition related costs (17 - 0.2 04 {2.3)

If all acquisitions had been comptleted on the first day of the financial year, Group revenue for the year would have been £1,199.2m and Group
adjusted profit before tax would have been £192 2m.

In addition to the net cash outflow on the acquisitions above of £134.2m, deferred and contingent consideration was paid relating to previous
business combinations of £6.4m (FY19: £10.4m),
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

16. Business combinations {continued)

Options in relation to the future acquisition of the non-controlling interests in eLocal

The non-controlling shareholders of eLocal hold a series of put options exercisable between 1 July 2021 and 1 July 2023 which oblgate
HomeServe USA Holdings Corp to acguire the remaining 21% of eLocal's cutstanding partnership capital not already owned by the Group.
Option pricing is based on certain future non-market performance metrics and Is subject 1o a ficor, being the implied value of eLocal at the
time it was acquired by HomeServe USA Holdings Corp.

To the extent that the potential cash payments relating to the put options issued by the Group over the equity of eLocal do not relate to
post-acquisttion employment services of the option holder, they have been accounted for as financial lizbilihes These Labilities have been
recognised at the present value of the expected gross obligation with the corresponding entry being recognised in retained earnings. A
finance charge will be recorded in order to accrete the liability up to the expected amount payable under the options. All subseguent changes
In the carrying amount of the financial liability that resutt from the re-measurement of the present value of the amount payatile upon exercise
of the NCI puts will be recognised in the income staterment as part of the profit or loss attnibutable to the parent, and not impact the NCls'
share of the profit or loss of the subsidiary. The carrying values of the put options are provisional with measurement penod assessment
actvities ongaing

The propartion of the potential cash payrments relating to the put options which relate to post-acquisition employment services of the aption
holder are accounted for as post combination employee benefit expenses In accordance with 1AS 19. The expenses are not considered within
the scope of IFRS 2 as the associated liabilities are determined based on a fixed multiple which does not reflect the market price of the equity
on an ongeing basis.

Additionally, HomeServe USA Holdings Corp holds a call option which, if exercised, requires certain non-controlling shareholders to sell
their remaining interests This option is only exercisable if in scope shareholders leave the company and are not considered 'Good Leavers'
as defined in the option agreements. HomeServe currently assess the likelinood that any in scope shareholder would tngger this clause to be
remocte and as such have determined that the fair value of this cali option 1s £ril

17. Other investments

Equity Investrments carned at fair value through other comprehensive ncome £
At 1 Aprl 2018 - ) 87
Fair value gain on FYTOC! investment a7
Exchange movements ) ] 02
At 1 Apnl 2019 9.2
Fair value loss on FVTOCI investment 5.7}
Exchange movements 01
At 31 March 2020 ' 56

" Upon adoption of IFRS G the Group made the irmevocable election to measure its existing .nvestrment currently held in a manufacturer of smart thermostat connected Home
technolegy as far value through other comprehensive INCorme as the Investment 1s @ non-trading equ ty instrument acquired for strategic purposes rather than capital gain

At 31 March 2020 the fair value of the Group's investment held in a manufacturer of smart thermaostat connected home technology has been
reassessed In hght of the current market conditions and uncertainty associated with the COVID-19 pandemic the Group has reduced the

fair value of its investment by £3.7m. This moverment, net of a £0 8m reduction in the associated deferred tax liability, (see note 10} has been
recorded in the iInvestrment revaluation reserve.

18. Equity accounted investments
Alist of equity accounted investments, including the name, address, country of ncorporation, and proportion of ownership is given in note
49 to the Company’s separate financial statements

The Group made no additional investments during the year ended 31 March 2020

Disposal of interest in associate

On 1 August 2019 HomeServe International, a Group company, disposed of its 49% equity accounted investrment in Assistenza Casa Srl, by
way of sale for cash consideration of €94m (E8 4m) At the paint of disposal the carrying value of the Group's investment was £4.6m resulting
N the recogniton of a £3 8Bm gainn the consolidated income statement The gain has been classified as exceptional due to its size, nature
and incidence
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The following amounts relate to the combined results of the Group's associate interests in Assistenza Casa Srl (untl date of disposal) and
Centrig as well as its joint venture interest in homeServe Japan Corporation’

Summary Financial information zofrﬂ 22}3
Loss after tax (5.9) (0.9
Total comprehensive expense {5.9) 09
Amounts recognisable (2.1 (0.3}

The proportion of the Group's ownership interest In equity accounted investments is equal to their carrying amounts in the consolidated
balance sheet

19. Inventories

2020 2019

Em £m

Consumables 79 70
20. Trade and other receivables

2020 2019

Em £m

Amocunts receivable for the provision of services - 4273 3699

Other receivables 336 270

Accrued income 16.9 151

Prepayments 176 126

’ ) ‘ 4954 4246

Credit risk

Where the Group contracts directly with the consumer of its services, the counterparty to the financial asset in question (the tradesperson

or policyholder) is the primary drniver of the Group's credit exposure. Where the Group acts as an Insurance intermediary, the counterparty

o the financial asset In question {the underwriter) 1s not the primary driver of the Group's credit exposure, rather the risk derives from the
creditworthiness of the underlying policyholder In both instances the relevant credit risk pools are numerous and diverse, thereby mitigating
the significance of the Group's exposure to any singte pool of risk Of the at nsk balance at the end of the year there 1s no significant
concentration of credit risk within an individuat pool, with nsk exposure spread across a large number of policyholders and tradespersons
There are no risk exposures that represent more than 5% of the total balance at risk Note 3 contains further detail regarding the potential risk (f
policy cancellations were to be 15% higher than expected

Risks associated with the environments in which customers and policyholders aperate may alse influence the credit risk Credit quality of
customers Is assessed by taking INto account the current financial posttion of the counterparty, past experience and forward locking factors,
including economic outlook. In determining the recoverabllity of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit guality
from the date credit was intially grantec up to the reporting date. The Group's exposures are further reduced by its ability, in the event of
default, to cease providing member services or to take policyholders "off nsk”. A default on a trade receivable is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual paynents within the stated payment terms Balances are written off when there 1s no reasonable expectation of recovery
and carrying amounts represent the maximum potential credit exposure,

Trade recewables and accrued Nncome are subject 1o impairment using the expected credit loss model The Group applies the 1FRS S
simplified approach to measurng expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets Consequently the IFRS 9 concept of a significant increase in credit nsk is not applicable to the Group's expected credit loss
calculations To assess expected credit losses, balances are etther assessed individually or grouped based on similar credit risk characteristics
{e.g. type of customer or days past due) Expected losses are then measured using a provisioning matrix approach adjusted, where applicable,
1o take into account current macro-economic factors or counterparty specific considerations

The Group trades only with creditworthy third parties and maintains a policy that, with the exception of our membership policyholders,
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are reviewed for financial stability. The Group has provided fully for those balances that it does
not expect to recover. This assessment has been undertaken by reviewing the status of all at risk balances in ine with the process descnbed
above The Directors believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the expected credit loss provision.

Included in the Group's exposure are kalances with a carrying amount of £26 8m (FY19. £176m) which are past due at the reporting date but
for which the Group has not provided for as there has not been a significant change in credit guality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

20. Trade and other receivables {continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Ageing of balances past due but notimpaired'

2020 2019
Em Em

1- 30 days 125 96
31- 60 days 6.5 35
61 - G0 days 47 21
G1 clays + ) 31 24
Balance at 31 March past due but notimpaired 26.8 176
Current 400.5 3523
At 31 March 4273 3699
Movement In expected credit losses'

2020 2019

£m £m

At 1 April . 16 15
Impairment losses recognised 4.9 18
Reclassification to refund liabilties 2.3) 1o
Armiounts recovered during the year {0.8) 07
Acquisition of subsidiaries 0.3
Exchange movernents 7 0.1 -
At 31 March ) 38 16
Of the provision total £nil relates to accrued income (FY19 £nil}
Ageing of impared balances'

2020 2019

_ Em Em

1-30days 03 -
31- 60 days 0.6
61 - 90 days 0.1 01
91 days + 0.6 05
Current/not yet due 2.2 10
At31 March ) 3B 16

Other receivables

Other recevables principally comprise deposits, tax balances due to the Group and other non-trading items. No expected credit loss
allowance was recognised at 31 March 2020 or 31 March 2019 as there has been no expenence of significant hustonc losses and no charge
was reported in the income statement No other receivable balances were considered past due but not impaired.

21. Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019
) £m £m
Cash and cash eguivalents 131.2 726

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original matunty of three months or
less Of the total cash and cash eguivalents balance held £14.5m (FY19 £11 8miis not available for use by the Group due to the restrictions
stipulated within the Group's contractual relationships with underwnters These balances principally relate to advances from underwriters
received (o fund claims payments No client monies as defined under CASS 5 of the FCA Handbook are held

With respect to credit nisk arising from cash and cash equivalents, the Group's exposure arises from the probatility of default of the
counterparty The Group manages the risk associated with ¢ash and cash equivalents through depositing funds only with reputable and
creditworthy banking institutions
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22. Trade and other payables

2020 2019

£m £m

Trade payables and accruals 1555 148.8
Contingent consideration 0.9 —
Deferred consideration 4.7 59
Deferred income 51.7 493
Refund lhabilities 243 177
Taxes and social secunty, excluding current tax 143 145
Amounts related to policyholders to be remitted to underwriters 927 76.8
Gther payables 66.5 69.3
410.6 3823

Trade payables, other payables and accruals principally comprise amounts cutstanding for trade purchases and other ongong costs

Deferred and contingent consideration relate to future amounts payable, or potentially payable, on business combinations and asset
purchases

Deferred income represents revenue where an obligation exists to provide future services An appropriate proportion of monies receved in
advance are treated as deferred income and recognised over the relevant pencd

Refund liabilities are made in respect of those policies that may be cancelled by the policyhelder part way through the contractual term,
which will affect the economic benefits that flow to the Group. The liabilty 1s made to ensure that the related revenue is not recognised at the
point that the policy incepts.

Amounts related to policyholders to be remitted to underwriters principally relate to the cost of underwriting and Insurance Prermium Tax for
cash collected from policyholders and not yet transmitted.

23. Other financial liabilities

2020 2019

£m £rm

Contingent consideration 10.5 -
Deferred consideration 8.8 89
Obligations under put options 313 10
Trade and other payables 17 34
52.3 233

Deferred and contingent consideration relate to future amounts payable, or potentially payable, on business combinations and asset
purchases

On 18 June 2019 HomeServe International Limited, a Group company, exercised its call option to acquire the remainmg 30% of the shares in
Habitissimo S.L, resulting in the de-recognition of the Group's obligation under put option to the non-controlling sharehclders of Habitissme
5.L. {see note 30).

On 26 November 2019 HomeServe USA Holdings Corp., a Group company, entered inte a series of put options in relation to the option to
acquire the remaining 21% non-controlling interest i eLocal Holdings LLC, following HomeServe USA Holdings Corp'sinitial 79% acquisition
{see note 16} The carrying values of the put options are provisional with measurement period assessment activities ongoing
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24 Provisions
Movements in provisions during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are disclosed below

Restructunng

costs Other Total

Ern £m Em

AtlApnl 2018 - — -
Created 49 18 6.7
Uulised 10 — (1.0}
At 1 April 2019 29 18 57
Created 16 08 24
Utiised 45) 12 (5.7)
Transferred — 0.4} (0.4)
At 31 March 2020 10 1.0 2.0

Where materal, provisions are discounted based on an approximation for the tme value of money The amount and timing of the cash
outflows are subject to variation. Provisions are principally expected to be utilised over the next twelve months.

Restructuring costs
Provisions for restructunng principally relate to the costs associated with programs in the Group's UK and HomeServe Labs businesses as
discussed in note 7

Other

Other provisions principally relate to the expected cast of resigual value guarantees inherent within certain vehicle leases as well as certain
warranty and legal provisions. Onerous contract provisions relating to lease agreements were fransferred into the opening value of nght-of-
use assets at 1 April 2019 upon adoption of IFRS 16 (see note 26)

25. Borrowings
Bank and other loans

2020 2019
£m £m

Sterling denomﬁated 27.5 272 7
Euro denominated 11.2 108
US dollar denominated 16 17
Due within one year 40.3 397
US dollar dencminated 2679 1164
Euro denominated 275 109
Sterling denominated 245.2 2091
Due after one vear 540.6 3364
Total bank and other loans 580.9 3761

The US Dollar and Euro denominated borrowings are used to provide debt funding to the North America and Continental Europe operations
respectively Foreign currency borrowings are drawn in the UK and passed to the overseas subsidiaries of the Group by way of intercompany
loans, denominated in the same currencies. These external borrowings and the equivalent intercompany receivable loans are treated as
monetary liabilities and assets respectively and, as such, the Group's foreign Currency éxposure risk is minimised

The weighted average interest rates paid on bank and other loans were as follows

2020 2me
£ € $ £ € S
% % % % % %
Fixed 3.2 - 5.0 21 — 49
Floating 17 1.0 29 16 09 33

All of the Group's borrowings are Lunsecured. The currencies in which the Group's borrowings are denominated reflect the geographical
segments for which they have been used.

160



On 25 October 2018 the Group completed a financing transact:on in the United States Private Placement market with issued notes
amounting to §125.0m and £80 Om as detailled below

Title Principal Maturity Coupon
7yr GBP Senior Notes £330m 13 December 2025 3.34%
7yr USD Senior Notes $290m 13 December 2025 4 83%
10yr GBP Senior Notes F230m 13 December 2028 350%
10yr USD Senicr Notes $450m 13 December 2028 492%
12yr GBP Senior Notes £24 0m 13 Decernber 2030 361%
12yr USD Senior Notes $47.0m 13 December 2030 502%

Counterparties provided funding for each Sterling and US Dcllar note series on 13 December 2018 This provided the Group wath £174.2m
using the exchange rate of the deal price fiing of 0.7538 GBP' 1 USD on 20 September 2018. Ongoing foreign exchange risk on the US dollar
denominated notes is naturally hedged against movements in US dollar denominated monetary assets on the balance sheet date.

The counterparties of the GBP lcan notes issued in the pnor year have taken out foreign exchange swap instruments to manage their market
risk exposure to fluctuations in GBP USD exchange rates. in the event that the Group defaults, or chooses to repay the loan notes prior to their
maturity, it would be responsible for the gain or loss arising. Early repayment and default events are both currently considered by the Group to
be remote and consequently the fair value of the Group’s exposure is considered to be £nil.

The principal features of the Group's other borrowings are as follows

« The Group has a £400m revolving credit facility with seven banks This facility was taken out on 1 August 2017 and has an initial term of
five years with the option to extend the term twice, by cne year, up to @ maximum of seven years On 1 August 2019 the second one year
option was exercised to extend the facility to 2024 The financial covenants asscciated with the facility are ‘net debt to EBITDA of less
than 3.0 tmes’ {FY19 3 0 times) and ‘interest cover greater than 4.0 times EBITDA' (FY19 4.0 times) Interest is charged at floating rates at
margins of between 1.05% and 1.15% (FY19: 1 05% and 1.15%) above the relevant reference rate, thus exposing the Group to cash flow and
interest rate risk. At 31 March 2020, the Group had avaiable £146.6m (FY19 £357.8m) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect
of which all conditions precedent had been met

* InFY20 the Group has secured @ £50m revolving credt facility with one bank. This facility was taken out on 30 March 2020 with a
termination date of 15 July 2024, The financial covenants associated with the facilty are the same as the £400m revolving credit facility
Interest will intially be charged at a floating margin of 1 15% above the relevant reference rate, thus exposing the Group to cash flow and
interest rate risk. At 31 March 2020, the Group had available £50.0m of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all
conditions precedent had been met,

= The Group has £110m of US Private Placements (FY12 £110m} consisting of 2 E60m placement taken out on & March 2017 at a fixed
Interest rate of 2.58% and a £50m placement taken cut on 7 October 2015 at a fixed interest rate of 3 44% Both facilities have a term of
seven years and the financial covenants asscociated with both are the same as the £E400m revolving credit facility.

*  The Group mamtains additional funding through a €12.5m/£11 1m (FY19 €25.0m/£21.5m) amortising term loan which was taken cut on
13 September 2016 and has a terrm of 4 years. The financial covenants associated with this facility are the same as the £400m revolving
credit facility and interest is charged at floating rates at margins of 0.9% above the relevant reference rate, thus exposing the Group to cash
flow and interest rate risk,

*  The Group renewed a £25m (FY19 £25m) short-term loan on 31 January 2020 which has a term of six months. The financial covenants
associated with the facility are net debt to EBITDA of less than 2.0 times' (FY12: 2.0 tmes) and 'interest cover greater than 4 O times EBITDA
(FY19 4.0 times). Interest is charged at floating rates at margins of G.67% (FY19 0.58%) above the relevant reference rate, thus exposing the
Group to cash flow and interest rate risk

= The Group has a $5m facility in the USA, of which $0.2m/£0.2m (FY19 $1.8m / E1 5m) was drawn at 31 March 2020, The weighted average
interest rate was 1.5% (FY19. 1.5%}.

The Group has complied with alt covenant requirements in the current and prior year. Information about hquidity risk s presented in note 27
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25. Borrowings (continued)
Reconciliation of movements in liabilities arising from financing

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Lease Bank and Lease Bank and
labiines ather loans lablives other loans Total
fra £m £ Em Em
At1 Aprit 2018 i a5 380 04 2567 2956
Proceeds from new loans and Dorrowings - - - 1/4.2 1742
Repayment of borrowings 111 - {87.8) (98.9)
Repayment of lease principal 10.6) - — — (0.6)
Interest paid - (2.1) - 64 (8,5)
Costs associated with new bank and other loans raised - - - (16 {1.6)
Total changes from cash flows s 132) — /84 646
Other changes
Foreign exchange - 0.2) 01 48 47
Interest expense — 43 — 72 115
Additions - - 08 01 0.9
Transfers to/(from) 06 108 (G 6} (10.8) -
At1April 2019 as 397 07 3364 3773
Proceeds from additional borrowings on existing facilities — — — 206.6 206.6
Repayment of borowings - 111 - 129) (24.0)
Repayment of lease pnincipal (12 4) - - - (12.4)
Interest paid (15 {4 4) - 123) (18.2)
Costs asscaiated with new bank and other loans raised — — ©08) (0.8)
Total changes from cash flows (13.9) (15.5) - 1806 151.2
Other changes
Transition on adoption of IFRS 16 115 - 411 — 526
Foreign exchange 0.5 03 06 99 113
Interest expense 05 46 10 131 19.2
Additions 32 — 115 - 14.7
Disposals 03 - (1o - (1.3)
Acquisition of subsidianes 08 - 26 118 152
Transfers to/{from} 113 11.2 {11 3) (11.2) -
At 31 March 2020 ) i4.1 403 452 540.6 640.2
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26. Leasing
Year ended 31 March 2020 (presented under IFRS 16)
Information about leases for which the Group 1s a lessee Is presented below.

Right of use assets ;

Propertes Motor vehicles Other Total f
£m fm £m £m Z

Cost *

Additions cn transition to IFRS 16 433 7.6 0.2 51.1

Transfers from property, plant and equipment on transition to IFRS 16 — 49 — 4.9

Additions 67 8.0 - 147

Disposals 13 a7 — 1.7

Acquisition of subsidiaries 32 Q2 - 34

Exchange movements 14 0.3 — 17

At 31 March 2020 53.6 203 0.2 741

Accumulated depreciation

At LAprl 2019 — — — —

Transfers from property, plant and equipment on transition to IFRS 16 — 32 — 32

Charge for the year 85 56 01 14.2

Disposals - (0.4 — (0.4)

Exchange movements 01 02 — 0.3

At 31 March 2020 - 8.6 86 0.1 173 L

Carrying amount ;

At 31 March 2020 45.0 117 0.1 56.8 "

Amaounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are disclosed in notes 5 and 9 respectively. A maturity analysis of the contractual
undiscounted cash flows assocated with lease liabilities is provided In note 27. The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March
2020 was £13.9m, representing £12 4m of principal repayments and £1 5m of interest charges on outstanding lease liabiliies.

Year ended 31 March 2019 (presented under I1AS 17)
Operating lease commitments

2019

Em

Within 12 months 126
In the second to fifth years inclusive 334
After five years 100
56.0

Operating lease payments principally represent rentals payable by the Group for certan of its land and buildings, motor vehicles and office
equipment The leases have varying terms and some have renewal options.
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26. Leasing (continued)
Obligations under finance leases

2019
Em
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Amourts due for settlement within 12 months 05
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months in the second to fifth years inclusve o7
Present value of lease obligations 12
Minimum lease payments
Within 12 months 05
in the second to fifth years inclusive Q7
12

During FY19 certain motor vehicles were held under finance leases as classified by 1AS 17 The average lease term was 4.5 years and the
average effective borrowing rate was 3 8%. interest rates were fixed at the contract date All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered Into for contingent rental payments

All lease obligations are denominated in US dollars. The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ rights over the

leased assets.

27. Financial instruments

Classification

Aside from the financial instruments discussed under ‘financial Instruments subseqguently measured at fair value’ below, all other financial
assets and Labilities t© which the Group is party are held at ameorused cost and their carrying values approximate their farr values

Financial instruments subsequently measured at fair value

financial instruments that are measured subsequerit to initial recogrtion at fair value are grouped mto levels 1 to 3 based on the degree ©

which the fair value is observable

Level 1 fair value measurements are those egual to quoted and unadjusted market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities

Level 2 farr value measurernents are those derived from inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1that are observable for the
asset or Labilty either directly or indirectly

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derved from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable markel data.

The Group has ne financial instruments with fair values that are determined by reference to Level 1 and there were no transfers of assets or
lisbilities between levels during the period There are no non-recurnng fair value measurements The Group held the following Level 2 and 3
financial instruments at fair value’

2020 2019
£m £rn

Level 2
Assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
Other investments {note 17) 56 92
Level3
Contingent consideration at fair value through profit and loss
Current liabilties (0.9} —
Non-current liabilities {10.5) -

- Upan adoption of IFRS 9 certain financial assets of the Group were reclassihed from avalable far sale, under 1AS 38, 1o fair value through other comprehensive Income

The fair value of other investments has been determined by analysing the future outlook of the Investee as well as reviewing valuations
assaciated with recent comparable market transactions. The fair value of contingent consideration liabities has been determined using
forecasts of future performance of acquisitions discounted to present value. The movement in other investments versus the prior year
primarily relates to the fair value moverment recorded on the Group's investment in a smart thermostat manufacturer (see note 17)
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The table below presents a reconciliation of recurnng Level 3 fair value measurements

2020 2019

£m £m

Opening balance - 206
Additions (note 16) 13.2 01
Payments 1.1 (107
Unwinding of discount rate through the ncome staterment 0.2 02
Exceptional far value re-measurement gain inote 7) - (10.1)
Other fair value re-measurement gain (1.5} -
Extinguishment - a1

Foreign exchange 0.6 -
114 -

During the penod between acquisition on 25 July 2019 and 31 March 2020 a significant revenue generating contract of Sormgas Hogar S,
a Group company, ceased. In light of these circumstances the fair value of the contingent consideration associated with the acquisition of
Somgas was reduced by £1.5m.

If discount rates on contingent consideration were higher/lower than the Group's historical experience by 10%, the carrying amount woutd
decrease/increase by £0.3m (FY19. £nil). The undiscounted range of outcomes associated with the contingent consideration payments has
a fioor of £1.8m (FY19 £nil). Payments above the floor vary based on a range of conditional performance metrics, for exarnple a percentage
commmission based on the future revenues associated with certain products of an acquired business over a defined penod.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group are able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the appropnate balance of debt and equity. The caprtal structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in note 25, cash and cash equivalents in note 21 and equity attnbutable o equity holders of the parent, comprising
issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in notes 28, 29 and the Group Statement of Changes in Equity

The table below presents guantitative data for the components the Group manages as capital

2020 2019

£m £m

Attributable to equity holders of the parent 6357 6134
Cash and cash equivalents 131.2 726
Bank and other loans 5809 3761

Certain of the entities in the Group are subject to externally imposed capital requirements from the Financial Conduct Authority Where such
requirements exist, the Group manages the risk through the close monitoring of performance and distributable caprital within the entities
impacted by the regulations The Group has complied with all such arrangements throughout the current and preceding year.

Financial risk management objectives
The Group principally utilises cash and cash equivalents and bank and other loans for the purpose of raising finance for its operations. The
Group also has various other financial Instrurments such as trade receivables and trade payables which arise directly from its operations

Financial risk management 1s overseen by the Board according to chjectives, targets and policies set by the Board. Treasury nsk management,

ncluding management of currency risk, interest rate nsk and liquidity nisk is carried out by a central Group Treasury function in accordance
with objectives, targets and policies set by the Board Treasury 1s not a profit centre and does not enter into speculative transactions.

Classification of financial instruments

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are disclosed n nates 20-23 and note 25. The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liguidity risk Foreign currency risk is minimised by the treasury borrowing approach setoutin
note 25.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the nsk of changes in market interest rates prirnarily relates to the Group’s long-term debt requirements with floating
interest rates. The Group's policy is to manage its interest rate risk Lsing a mix of fixed and vanable rate debts

It 15, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.
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27. Financial instruments {continued}

Interest rate risk (continued}

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible increase of 10% in the cost of borrowing, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax ithrough the impact on floating rate borrowings).

. } 2020 2019
increase in cost of borrowing 10% 10%
Reductionin profit betore tax (Em) 0.2 01

Credit risk
Credit nsk associated with trade receivables and accrued income contract assets 1s discussed in note 20, Credit sk related to cash and cash
equivalents 1s discussed in note 21

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for iquidity risk management rests with the Group’s Board which sets the framework for the management of the
Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements The Group manages liquidity nsk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facilities and continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows Included in note 25 are details of the
undrawn facilites that are avalable to the Group to reduce liguidity nsk further, along with the weighted average interest rates paid on bank
and cther loans.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual maturities is provided In the table below. Interest is payable on all
bank and other loans. All cash flows are presented on an undiscounted basis.

Deterred and Obhgations

Bank and Trade Other contingent Lease under put
other loans payables payables consideration habilibes opluons Total
Ern £rm Em Em £m Em Em

2020

Under 2 months 2.5 980 275 08 20 - 130.8
Between 2 and 12 months 497 575 130 2 58 129 — 256.1
Between 1and 2 years 161 - 06 6.4 12.4 238 59.3
Between 2 and 5 years 404.2 — 01 83 262 189 4577
After 5 years 2154 — 1.0 9.0 98 - 2332
Total 685.9 155.5 159.4 30.3 63.3 427 11371

Deferred and Obhgations

Bank and Trade Other contingent Lease under put
athier 1pans payables pavables consideration labiities oplons Tatal
£rm £m £m £ £m Em £

2019

Under 2 months 21 810 421 50 01 - 130.3
Between 2 and 12 months 46.2 678 934 17 04 — 2095
Between 1 and 2 years 230 16 10 16 05 121 398
Between 2 and 5 years 1262 - ~ 45 02 - 1309
After 5 years 276 2 08 - 6.0 — — 2830
Total 4737 1512 1365 18.8 12 121 7935

The revoling credit facility 1s drawn down and associated interest is settled on a monthly basis. The principal is included in the above matunty
profile tables when the facility is due to expire

28. Share capital

2020 2019
I EEEE—— __  Em 0 Em
Issued and futly pard 334,634,278 ordinary shares of 2 9/13p each (FY19 332,490,377} 9.0 9.0

The Cornpany has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Share capital represents consideration received or
amounts, based on fair value, aliocated to LTIP and One Flan participants on exercise, or armounts, based on farr value of the consideration for
acquired entities. The nominal value was 2 9/13p per share on all issued and fully paid shares.
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During the penod from 1 April 2018 1o 31 March 2020 the Company issued 2,143,901 shares with a neminal value of 2 9/13p creating share
capital and share premium with a combined value of £E8 6m

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 the Company issued 2,713,611 shares with a nominal value of 2 9/13p creating share
capital and share premivm with a combined value of £9 0m,

29. Reserves

Share premium

The share premium account represents consideration receved or amounts, based on far value, allocated to LTIP and Cne Plan participants
on exercise for authorised and issued shares in excess of the nominal value of 2 9/13p (FY19: 2 9/13p)

Share incentive reserve
The share ncentive reserve represents the cumulative charges to income under IFRS 2 "Share-based payments’ on all share options and
schemes granted, net of share option exercises,

Currency translation reserve
The currency translation reserve represents the cumulative foreign currency translation movement on the assets and labilities of the Group's
international operations at year end exchange rates.

Investment revatuation reserve
The investmeant revaluation reserve represents the moverment on revaluation of the Group's far value through other comprehensive income
investment disclosed in note 17,

Other reserves
The movement on other reserves during the current and preceding years is set out in the table below

Capital redernption Merger Cwmi shares Total other

reserve reserve reserve reserves

£m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2018 and 1 April 2019 iz 810 - B2.2
Purchase of own shares - - (3.0 (3.00
At 31 March 2020 1.2 B81.0 (3.0 79.2

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of 1 2m £1 redeemable preference shares on 1 July 2002

The merger reserve represents

s thessue on 6 April 2004 of 11.6m new shares relating to the acquisition of the minority interest held in the Group at that date The reserve
reflects the difference between the nominal value of shares at the date of 1ssue of 12 5p and the share pnce immediately preceding the
1ssue of 624 5p per sharg; and

* theissue on 17 Novernber 2017 of 1 2m new shares relating to the acquisition of Checkatrade. The reserve reflects the difference between
the nominal value of shares at the date of 1ssue of 2 9/13p and the share price immediately preceding the issue of 838p per share The
shares 1ssued formed part of the consideration for the acguisttion of the rernaining 60% of the equity of Checkatrade (taking the Group's
overall holding to 100%) and therefore qualify for merger relief

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares n HomeServe plc purchased in the market and held by the HomeServe plc Employee
Benefit Trust The shares are held to satisfy obligations under the Group’s share option schemes and are recegrused at cost. During the year
249975 (FY19. nil) shares were repurchased at a cost of £3.0m (FY19: £nil} to fulfil awards made under share incentive schemes No shares
were transferred to individuals to satisfy awards (FY19. nil)

30. Non-controlling interests

Acquisition of subsidiary non-controlling interests — Habitissimo S.L.

On 18 June 2019 HomeServe Intermational Limited, a Group company, executed its call option (written on 27 January 2017, the point at which
t acquired a 70% controlling interest in Habitissimo $.L.), to acguire the outstanding 30% non-controlling interests in Habitissimo S.L for cash
consideration of €8.6m (E77m). The transaction increased HomeServe International Limited's interest in Habitissimo 5 L. to 100% of the issued
share capital and did not give nse to a change in control,

The transaction resulted in a gain in the consclidated iIncome statement of £3.6m. This represents the difference between the consideration
paid and the value of the option labllity, being the potential cash payment of the non-contreliing interests’ corresponding put option to

sell the remaining 30% of their shareholding, held on the balance sheet immediately prior to the transaction, net of directly attributable
transaction costs The gain has been classified as exceptional in the consolidated iIncome statement due to its size, nature and incidence.
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30. Non-controlling interests (continued)

Acquisition of el.ocal USA Holdings LLC

On 26 November 2019, HomeServe USA Holdings Corp, a Group company, acquired 79% of the share capital and obtained control of eLocal
USA Holdings LLC isee note 16). eLocal is based in Philadelphia and operates across North America in the Group’s Home Experts segment
The proportion of ownership interests held by hon-controlling interests is 21%,

Summarised financial information inrespect of the Group's non-controlling interests is set out below. In FY20 this relates to the 21% non-
controlling interest in eLocal USA Holdings LLC and in FY13 to the 30% non-controlling interest in Habitissimo S L. The summansed financial
information below represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

2020 2019
£m £m
Current assets l 8.6 14
Non-current assets 64.9 48
Current liabilities (18.5) 5.7
Non-current habitities 4.6) -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 50.4 05
Non-controlling interests 106 0.2
31. Notes to the cash flow statement
2020 2019
Em Em
Operating profit 158.6 1526
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9.3 91
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets 14.2 —
Arnortisation of acquisition intangible assets 355 268
Amortisation of other intangible assets 383 231
Amortisation of contract costs 1.8 149
{Gainkfioss on disposal of property, plant and equiprent, intangibles assets and contract costs (0.8} 06
Non-exceptional impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 1.2 —
Fair value movement on contingent consideration (1.5) -
Share-based payments expense 72 98
Employee expenses associated with put options over non-controliing interests 1.0 -
Share of equity accounted investees results 2.1 0z
Exceptional impairment charges 143 -
Other exceptional iterms (6.7) 46)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 284.5 2326
Increase ininventories {1.0) ©7
{increase)/decrease in recevables 46.3) 104.0
Increase/(decrease) In payables and provisions 3.2 (1337}
Net movement in working capital 44.1) (30.4)
Cash generated by operations 2404 2022
Income taxes pagd {30.2) (317
Interest paid (inclusive of payments on lease liabilives) (18.2) (85)
Net cash inflow from operating activities - 7 192.0 162.0
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32. Share-based payments
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had four (FY19. three} share-based payment schemes, which are described below

i) Long-Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP")

The LTIP provides for the grant of perfermance, matching and restricted awards. The vesting pencd 1s normally three years. Restricted awards
are not subject to performance conditions. 75% of each performance and matching award is subject to an Earnings Per Share performance
condition and the remaining 25% is subject to comparative Total Shareholder Return perfermance. In 2016, certain members of the Executive
Committee recelved an additional perfermance award which was subject to a more stretching Earnings Per Share performance conditton

oy mfee g

ii) Special Value Creation Plan ('SVCP’)

During the year a number of awards have been granted under the SYCP. This Plan provides for the grant of performance awards with
performance conditions related to particular business units The performance conditions include metrics such as EBIT, EBITDA, or household
and custormer targets. The vesting periods range from three and five years from the date of grant.

iii) Save As You Earn Scheme ('SAYE')

The SAYE scheme was open to all UK employees and provides for an exercise price egual to the closing quoted market price on the day
before the date of grant, less a discretionary discount The options can be exercised during a six month period following the complaetion of
either a three or five year savings perod There were no awards made in the year (FY19 ril) as the scheme s now closed

iv) One Plan
One Plan is a share incentive scheme which is available to all employees. For every two partnership shares purchased, participants will receive
{or have the right to receive) one free matching share. Matching shares are held in trust for a period of up to three years.

TP SVCP SAYE One Plan
2020
Number
Qutstanding at 1 Apnil 2019 4,822,728 — 27338 105,756
Granted 956,713 1,246,661 - 40,/80 .
Lapsed (7,526) - (1,879) -
Forfeled {309.596) - - {14,432) z
Exercised (2.091,726) - 25,459) (27913) :
Qutstanding at 31 March 2020 ) 3,370,593 1,246,661 - 104,191
Exercisable at 31 March 2020 7967 — — —
Weighted average exercise price (£)
Outstanding at 1 April 2019 - - 335 —
Granted — — — -
Lapsed — - 3.35 -
Forferted - - — —
Exercised - — 3.35 —
Outstanding at 31 March 2020 - - - -
Exercisable at 31 March 2020 - - — —
Exercise price of options cutstanding at 31 March 2020 EQ.O0 £Q00 n/a £0 00
Weighted average remaining contractual life 2 4 — 2
Weighted average fair value of options granted £10.59 £1199 n/a £1199
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32. Share-based payments {continued)

LTIP SAYE One Plan
2019

Number

Outstanding at 1 April 2018 5713831 729,194 75,117
Granted 1,215,709 - 45,487
Lapsed ~ — -
Forferted (87,557} (30,659) (10,800
Exercised (2,019,255) (671,197) 14,048)
Qutstanding at 31 March 2019 4,822,728 27338 105,756
Exercisable at 31 March 2013 4,995 27338 —
Weighted average exercise price (£)

Outstanding at1 Apnl 2018 — 318 -
Granted — -

Lapsed - - -
Forfeited - 3.27 -
Exercised - 317

Cutstanding at 31 March 2019 - 3.35 -
Exercisable at 31 March 2019 3.35 -
Range of exercise prices of options outstanding at 31 March 2019

£0 00 4,822,728 — 105,756
E3.00t0 £399 - 27338 nfa
Weighted average remaining contractual life 2 1 2
Weighted average fair value of options granted £912 —

92

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was £11 72 (FY19 £913)

The estimated fair values are calculated by applying a Black-Scholes option pricing model for SVCP, SAYE and One Plan and Monte Carlo
simulations for the LTIP The assumptions used iri the models (which are cormparable to the prior year) are as follows

Input Assumption

Share price ) Price at date of grant

Exercise price Per schieme rules

Expected volatility 22% - 24%

Option life Per scheme rules

Expected dividends Based on historic dividend vield
Risk free interest rate 012% -1.0%

Levels of early exercises and lapses are estimated using historical averages Volatlity is caiculated by looking at the historical share price

movements prior to the date of grant over a period of ime commensurate with the remaining term for each award In FY20 the Group

recognised an IFRS 2 charge of £7.2m (FY19 £9.8m) related to equity-settied share-based payment transactions.
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33. Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all UK employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees In addition to the scheme in the UK, the Group operates a defined
contribution retirerment benefit scheme for North Amencan employees

The total cost charged to iIncome of £6 9m (FY18 £6.7m) represents contributions payable to the schemes by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes At 31 March 2020, contributions of £0.8m (FY19 £0.8m) due in respect of the current reporting penod had not been
paid over to the schemes

[ RN TIRR TR

Defined benefit scheme

The Group participates in a defined benefit scheme, the Water Companies Pension Scheme, which 1s closed to new members Thisisa
sectionalised scheme and the Group participates in the HomeServe plc Section of the Scheme. The Section is administered by a Trustee and
ts independent of the Group's finances Contributions are paid to the Section in accordance with the recommendations of an independent
actuary

GMP equalisation

On 26 October 2018 a High Court case in the UK confirmmed that Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP) need to be equalised between male
and female pensicn scheme members. The Court did not specify the method to use to equalise GMP but did set out a number of possible
approaches. Pnor to this date the Group had excluded GMP equalisation from the valuation of scheme labilities. In FY13 an allowance was
made resulting in a past service cost of £0 1m being recorded. In FY20 there have been no updated assessments receved regarding the
potential cost of the judgement and therefare the allowance included within the IAS 19 obligation remains unchanged

The results of the actuanal valuation as at 31 March 2017 were updated to the accounting date by a qualified independent actuary in
accordance with IAS 19 Re-measurements are recognised immediately through other comprehenswve income

Valuation at

2020 2019
Key assumptions used. :
Discount rate at 31 March 2.5% 24% ;
Consumer price inflation 1.9% 25% E
Retail price inflation 2.9% 3.5%
Expected rate of salary increases 1.9% 2.5%
Future pension increases 19% 25%
Life expectancy of fermale aged 60 at balance sheet date 29.0yrs 28 Oyrs
Life expectancy of mate aged 60 at balance sheet date 27.6yrs 275yrs

Pensions accounting entries are subject to judgement and volatility, as the majonty of the assets are held withirn instruments with quoted
market prices in an active market, whereas the present value of the abligation is linked to yields on AA-rated corporate bonds

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the defined benefit cbligation to some of the significant assumptions as at 31 March 2020, all
other things being equal

£m
Price inflation -0.5% 2.4)
Price inflation +0 5% 2.8
Discount rate -G.5% 3.0
Discount rate +C 5% (2.6) s
a
Life expectancy -1 year (0.9) 4
Life expectancy +1 year 0.9 g
- 3
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33.Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
Amounts recogrised in the income statement in respect of the defined benefit scheme are as follows.

2020 2019
£m £m
Current service cost 0.1 02
Past service cost - 01
interest Income {0.2) 02
Recognised in operating costs {0.1) 01

The actual return on scheme assets was a loss of £2 6m (FY19 gain of £0.8m). The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the

Group's obligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement scherme is as follows'

2020 2019
Em £m
Present value of defined benefit obligations (27.1) (311)
Fair value of scheme assets 374 375
Surplus in scheme recogrised in the balance sheet in non-current assets 10.3 6.4
The net asset recagnised in the balance sheet has not been imited as the Group believes that a refund of the surplus assets would be
available to it following the final payment to the last beneficiary of the pension scheme
Maovements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows.
2020 2019
£m fm
Al April 311 333
Employer's part of the current service ¢ost 0.1 02
Interest cost 0.7 08
Actuanal (gains)/ losses due to
Changes in financial assumptions {3.7) 22
Changes in demographic assumptions - {0 B}
Experience adjustments on benefit obligations (0.5) 02
Benefits paid (0.6) 45)
Past service cost - 01
At 31 March ) 271 311
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows
2020 2019
Em tm
mApr\l T 375 380
Interest on Section assets 09 10
Actual return less interest on Section assets (2.6) 08
Contnbutions from the employer 2.2 22
Benefits paid (0.6) 4 5)
At 31 March 374 - 375

The amount recognised outside the iIncome statement in the statement of comprehensive income for FY20 1s a gan of E1.6m (FY19 loss of

£0.4m). The cumutative amount recognised outside the income statement at 31 March 2020 1s a loss of £4 Om (FY19: loss of £56m).
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The analysis of the fair value of scheme assets at the balance sheet date was as follows

2020 2010

£m £m

Equity instruments 13.0 152
Diversified growth fund 4.0 4.4
Lability driven investment funds 20.4 177
Other - 02
374 375

The majonty of the assets are held within mstruments with quoted market pnces in an active market.

The estmated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme dunng the forthcoming financial yearis £2.2m (FY20 actual
£2.2m) plus any Pension Protection Fund levy payable

34. Related party transactions

The Group consists of a parent Company, HomeServe plc, incorporated in England and Wales, and a nurnber of subsidiaries and associates
heid directly and indirectly by HomeServe plc, which operate and are incorporated internationally. There is no ultimate contrelling party of
HomeServe ple. Note 49 to the Company's separate financial statements lists details of the interests in subsidianes and related undertakings.
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consotidation and are not
disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company's separate financial statements
{note 48),

Transactions with equity accounted investees

2020 2019
e Em £m

Sales to associates 0.1 Q.3 g

Purchases from associates 0.3 - :
Sales to joint ventures 0.4 -
Purchases from joint ventures 0.3 —
Amounts owed to joint venturas 0.1 -

Transactions and balances principally relate to salaries, consultancy, contractor costs and marketing services.

Other related party transactions

During the year Group companies purchased services amounting to £0.3m (FY19. £0.5m) from companies that are not members of the
Group but that are related parties as they are controlled by or connected to Richard Harpin, Chief Executive of the Group and a Director of
the parent company of the Group. These services related to the use by the Group of private aircraft, including the provision of pilcts and atl
related operating costs that are controlled by the related parties The provision of such services were made at arm's length pnces, which were
approved by the Remuneration Committee

The specific companies that were subject to the transactions were Harpin Limited (FY20. £0.2m, FY19 £0.2m), Pilot Services (GB) Limited
{(FY20. Enil, FY19: £0.1m) and Centreline AV Limited (formerly Siro Limited) (FY20. £0.1m, FY19 £0.2m). Amounts cutstanding to all these
comparmes on 31 March 2020 amounted to £nil (FY19: £0.1m). The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No
guarantees have been given or received

In May 2020 HomeServe entered INtc a new structure to scale the French Home Experts business The management team will now own 80%
with HomeServe taking a 20% stake with an option to increase this in the future, once the business has achieved nattonal scale.

Remuneration of key management personnel

o

The remuneration of the Directors and members of the Executive Committee, who are the key managerment personnel of the Group, is set 2

out below In aggregate for each of the categories specified in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Further informaticn about the remuneration of a

indvidual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Rermuneration report =

5

2020 2019 3

£m £rm £

Short-term employee benefits 8.4 52 “
Post-employment benefits 0.3 a3
Share-based payments expense 5.6 €6
Termination benefits — g2
14.3 12.3

Except as noted above, there were no cther transactions with Directors requinng disctosure.
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Company statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019

Notes £m £m

Profit for the year 80.0 760
Rerns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension scheme 33 16 104)

Deferred tax (charge)/credit relating to actuarial re-measurements 42 (0.3) 01

Total other comprehensive income/(expense) 13 10.3)

Total comprehensive income for the year 813 757
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Company balance sheet
31 March 2020

2020 2018
Notes £m Em
Non-current assets
Other intangible assets 37 27 36 ¥
Property, plant and equipment 8 0.6 02 i
Right of use assels 44 16 — f
Investment In subsidiaries 39 909.6 194.6 ;
Deferred tax assets 42 - 10
Retirement benefit assets 33 10.3 64
924.8 205.8
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 40 38.1 480.3
Cash and cash eguivalents 40 60.9 1174
99.0 5977
Total assets 10238 8035
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 41 {11.0) {12 9]
Current tax labilties (3.3) 4.3
Bank and other loang 43 {40.1) (397}
Lease liabilities 44 (0.4}
(54.8) (56 9)
Net current assets 44,2 540 8
Non-current liabilities ;J
Bank and other loans 43 {540.3) {3349 —
Lease labilites 44 a1 - g
Deferred Tax liabilities 42 (0.1} -
(541.5) (3349)
Total liabilities (596.3) {391.8)
Net assets 4275 4117
Equity
Share capital 28 9.0 90
Share premium account 29 189.3 180.7
Merger reserve 29 81.0 81.0
Share incentive reserye 46 19.8 212
Capital redemption reserve 29 1.2 12
Retained earnings 127.2 1186
Total equity ' 427.5 17

As provided by s408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own income staterment. The Company’s profit for the
year was £80 0m (FY19: £76 Om).

The financial statements of HomeServe plc were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 18 May 2020. They were
signed on its behalf by

David Bower
Chief Financial Officer
19 May 2020
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Registered in England No. 2648257
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Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 March 2020

Share Share Capnal
Share prermium Merger InCéntive redernption Retained Total
captal account reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
£m Em Em Em Em £m £m
Balance at 1 Apnl 2019 a 9.0 1807 810 212 12 _118 6 4117
Profit for the year - - - - - 800 80.0
Other comprehensive income - - — — - 13 13
Total comprehensive income - — — - — — 813 813
Diwvidends paid (note 11) - - - — — (73 5) (73.5)
Issue of share capital - 86 - — — 8.6
Share-based payments - - - 72 - — 72
Share options exercised - - - (8.6 — 01 (8.5)
Tax on exercised share options - — - - - 10 1.0
Deferred tax on share options - - - - 0.3) (0.3}
Balance at 31 March 2020 ) 9.0 189.3 81.0 19.8 1.2 127.2 4275
Year ended 31 March 2019
Share Share Capital
Share prerruium Merger nceatve  redemption Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve €armings equity
Em Lrn £m £m £m jilgy] Em
Balance at 1 April 2018 8.9 1718 81 O- 200 12 1061 289 ;
Profit for the year — — — - — 76.0 76.0
Other comprehensive expense -~ - - - - 03 035
Total comprehensive income — — - — — 757 757
Dividends paid (note 11} - — - - - 65 0) 650)
Issue of share capital 01 B9 — — — — 9.0
Share-based payments - — — 88 — — 88
Share options exercised - - - (7.6) — 08 (6.8)
Tax on exercised share options - - - - - 09 09
Deferred tax on share options - - - - - 01 01
Balance at 31 March 2019 90 1807 810 21,_2 12 1186 117
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Company cash flow statement
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2018

Notes £m £m
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 47 419.2 559
Investing activities H
Interest recewved 14.1 19 ,L;
Dividends received from subsidiary undertakings 114.0 850
Purchases of intangible assets (2.2} on
Purchases of tangible assets (0.6) (€2}
Investment in subsidiary undertaking (715.0) -
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from investing activities {589.7) 86.6
Financing activities
Dvidends paid (73.5) 165.0)
Proceeds on issue of share capital 0.1 2.2
Repayment of lease principal {0.3) —
Purchase of own shares (3.0 -
New bank and other loans raised - 174.2
Costs associated with new bank and other loans raised (0.8) (16
Movermnent in bank and other loans 193.3 98 6)
Net cash generated by financing activities 115.8 112
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (54.7) 419 é
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1174 756 B
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes (1.8 o
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 40 60.9 1174
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Year ended 31 March 2020

Company only
The following notes 35 to 49 relate to the Company only position and performance for the year ended 31 March 2020

35. Significant accounting policies
As provided by s408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own income statement. The Company's profit for the
vear was £80 Om (F¥19 £76 Orm).

The separate financial staternents of the Compariy are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. As permitted by that Act, the
separate financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) adopted by the
European Union

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basts. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those set
out In nNote 2 to the consolidated financial statements except that investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment Furthermore,
included within amounts recevable from Group companies are amounts advanced to the HomeServe plc Employee Benefit Trust for the
purchase of shares. The shares are held in trust to satisfy obligations under share options schemes and are recognised at cost.

None of the critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertamty disclosed in note 3 apply to the Company. There are
no critical accounting judgernents or key sources of estimation uncertainty

36. Other information
Staff remuneration
The average monthly nurnber of employees (including Executive Directorsh was

2020 2019
- number L umber
UK (ali administrative roles) 81 75
2020 2019
. i Em Em
Their aggregate remuneration compnsed:
Wages and salaries 107 110
Social securty costs 13 13
Other pension costs (note 33) 04 0.2
124 125
Audit fees
2020 2013
E0O0 £000
Fees payable to the Cormpany's auditor for the audit of the Company’s
financial statements 153 72
Total audit fees 153 72
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37. Other intangible assets

Trademarks & Total
access rights Software intangibles
Em Ern £m
Cost
At1 April 2018 18 73 91 =
Additicns — 01 01 ;
Transfer 07 07 - 5;
At1April 2019 25 67 9.2 E
Additions o4 18 2.2
Disposals — (32 (3.2)
Transfers - 01 0.1
At 31 March 2020 29 54 8.3
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 April 2018 08 40 4.8
Charge for the year — 0.8 0.8
AtlApni2018 08 48 5.6
Charge for the year 03 18 2.2
Imparment 10 - 1.0
Disposals - (32 (3.2)
At 31 March 2020 21 35 5.6
Carrying amount
At31 March 2020 08 19 27
AUSL March 2019 17 19 36
38. Property, plant and equipment
Leasenold Computer Motor Total
improvements equipment vemcles tangible assets
£m £rn £m £m
Cost T
At 1Apnl 2018 0.3 0.2 — 0.5
Additions — o2 - 0.2
At 1 Aprt 2019 03 02 - 07
Additions 04 01 01 0.6
Disposals (0.1) 2 - {0.3)
Transfers — 0.1 — {0.1)
At31March2020 0.6 0.2 0.1 09
Accumulated depreciation
At1 Apr 2018 02 02 - 0.4 £
Charge for the year — 01 — 0.1 g
At1April 2019 02 03 - 05 g
Charge for the year 01 - - 0.1 ,E
Disposals (01} ©.2) - {0.3) #
At 31 March 2020 0.2 0.1 — 03
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 0.4 0.1 01 06
At 31 March 2019 01 01 - 0.2
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39. Subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2020, including the name, address, country of Incorporation and proportion of ownership
interest s given in note 49

£Em
Cost and net book value
At 1 April 2018 and 1 Aprit 2019 1946
Additions 7150
At 31 March 2020 i 909.6

The addition in the year of £715.0m (FY19. £nil) relates to a recapitalisation exercise that injected £715.0m into HomeServe Enterprses Limited.
At each balance sheet! date the Company reviews the Carrying amount of the investment in HomeServe Enterprises Limited to determine
whether there is any ndication of an impairment loss Given that HormeServe Enterprises Limited owns directly or indirectly all subsidiaries in
the HomeServe plc Group, a companson is made between the carrying value of the investment in HomeServe Enterprises Limited and the
market capitalisation of HomeServe plc

40. Financial assets
Trade and other receivables

2020 2019

£m £m

Amounts receivable from Group companies (note 49) 36.6 4791
Cther receivables 0.8 a9
Prepayments and accrued income 0.7 0.3
3gt 4803

Trade receivables

The Company has a policy for providing fully for those receivable balances that it does not expect to recover. This assessment has been
undertaken in accordance with the IFRS 9 expected credit toss maodel as explained more fully in note 20, The reduction in receivables from
Group companies In the year is due to the recapitalisation exercise carried cut in FY20

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables:

2020 2013

£m £m

Current 36.6 4791
At 31 March 36.6 4791

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Company considers any change in the credit quality of the trade recevable from
the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit nsk is mitigated through the close management and
regular review of performance cf the subsidiary companies

No allowarnce for doubtful debts is considered necessary based on prior experience and the Directors’ assessment of the current econonic
environment,

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

Cash balances and cash equivalents
Cash balances and cash equivaients of £60 9m (FY19 £117.4m) comprise cash held by the Company and short-term bank deposits with an
original matunty of three months or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates to therr fair value
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41. Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

2020 2015

Em £

Trade payables ang accruals 9.1 109
Amounts payable to Group companies 04 01
Taxes and social security, excluding corporation tax 1.5 19
11.0 129

Trade payables and accruals principally compnise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit period

taken for trade purchases is 9 days (FY19' 17 days).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approxmates to their fair value

42. Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax assets/{babiities) recogrised by the Company and movements thereon

Retrement benefit Share Tirreng
obligations schemes differences Total
Em Em £m £m
At L April 2018 109) 19 1934} 0.4
{Charge)/fcredit to income {04 — 08 04
Credit to equity — 01 — 01
Credit to comprehensive Income 01 - — 0.1
At 1April 2019 12 2.0 0.2 1.0
Charge to Income 0.4 01 — (0.5)
Charge to equity - (0.3) — (0.3)
Charge to comprehensive Incorme 3 - - (0.3)
At 31 March 2020 a9 1s 0.2 ©.1)
43. Bank and other loans
2020 2019
£m £m
Bank toans 40.1 297
Due within one year - 40.1 397
Bank and other loans 5403 3349
Due after one year 540.3 3345
Total bank and other loans 580.4 3746

Bank loans due in less than one year of £40.1m {FY19 £39.7m) include the short-term loan of £25m and £11 2m of the €25m amortising lean

The principal features of these loans are set out In note 25.

Bank and other loans due after more than one year comprnise of the drawn loans from the revolving credst facility and the US Private
Placements. The principal features of these loans are set out1n note 25.

The weighted average of interest rates paid are set out in note 25.

181

AL TR T RIS

NIRRT

usl
>
1
3
o
o
2
o/
=
=
3
o
3
&




Company financal statements | - -0 - - - T oy

Notes to Company financial statements

Year ended 31 March 2020

43, Bank and other loans {continued)

Reconciliation of movements in liabilities arising from financing

Currem liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Bank and other loans Bank ang other loans Total
Em £m Em
A1 Aprit 2018 376 26852 2928
Proceeds from new loans and borrowings - 174.2 174.2
Repayment of borrowings (10.7] 1879) (98.5]
Interest paid 21 61 8.2)
Costs associated with new bank and other loans raised - 1.6 (1.6)
Total changes from cash flows (128) 78.6 65.8
Other changes
Foreign exchange 0.2 50 4.8
Interest expense 4.3 09 11.2
Transfers to/{from) 08 (10.8) -
Al Aprit 2019 397 3349 374.6
Proceeds from additionat borrewings on existing facilities — 204 3 204.3
Repayment of borrowings 110 - (11.0)
interest paid (43 116 (15.9)
Costs associated with new bank and other loans raised - 0.8} 0.8)
Total changes from cash flows 244 526.8 551.2
Other changes
Foreign exchange 02 121 12.3
Interest expense 45 124 16.9
Transfers to/{from) 110 1o -
At 31 March 2020 - Y 540.3 580.4
44, Leasing
The following disclosures about leases, for which the Company 1s a lessee, are presented in accordance with IFRS 16 for the year ended 31
March 2020
Right of use assets Properties Maotor vehicles Total
£m £m £m
Cost - T
Additions on transition to IFRS 16 01 - 01
Additions 17 0l 18
At 31 March 2020 T - 18 0.1 19
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2019 - - -
Charge for the year 03 - 03
At 31 March 2020 B - 03 I 03
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 15 01 16
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Lease liabilities

2020 2013

. £m £m

Leases 04 _
Due within one year 0.4 —
Leases 11 -
Due after one year 1.1 -
Total lease liabilities 1.5 _

A matunty analysis of the contractual undiscounted cash flows associated with lease liabilities 1s provided in note 45 The total cash outflow
for leases for the year ended 31 March 2020 was £0.3rm, representing £0.3m of principal repayments and £nil of nterest charges on
cutstanding lease labilites

45, Financial instruments
The tables below set out the classification of financial instruments in the statement of financial position.

. . 2020 2019
Financial assets Em Em
Amortised cost 983 5974

2020 2019
Financial liabilities £m £m
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost 591.4 3856

Principal financial instruments
The principal financial Instruments used by the Company from which risk arises are as follows

cash and cash equivalents

bank loans, revolving credit faciliues and Private Placements
trade receivables

other recewables

trade payables

other payables.

Capital risk management

The Company manages Its capital to ensure that 1t is able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the appropriate balance of debt and equity. The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed
in note 43, cash and cash equivalents disciosed in note 40 and equity comprising ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in
this note and notes 28, 29 and the Company Statement of Changes in Equity.

The table below presents quantitative data for the components the Cormpany manages as capital

2020 2016

Em £

Shareholders’ funds 4275 4117
Cash and cash equivalents 60.9 1174
Bank and other locans 580.4 3746

Financial risk management objectives

The Company's principal financial instruments comprnise bank and other lcans and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpese of these
financial Instruments is to raise finance for the Company’s operations. The Company also has various other financial nstruments such as
trade receivables and trade payables which anse directly from its operations

The main rsks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency nsk and liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates pnimarily relates to the Company’s long-term debt requirernents
with floating interest rates The Company’s policy 15 to manage its nterest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Company’s
exposure to interest rate risk is closely aligned to that of the Group, more details of which can be found In note 25
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Notes to Company financial statements

Year ended 31 March 2020

45. Financial instruments {continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Company has exposure to fluctuations in foreign currencies due to borrowings made to fund investments in its overseas subsidiaries

which are affected by foreign exchange movements.

The carrying amount of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilties at the year end are set out n

the table below

Assets Liatilities

fe 16.8 - 43.3) 282
LS dollar 9.8 186.3 (269.4) 116.5)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possiole change of 10% increase in sterling aganst the retevant foreign
currencies, with alt other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit after tax and equity.

2020 2010
I—rge_ase in £ % exchange rate ’ 10% 10%
Effect on profit after tax (Em) 19.1 (51
Effect on eguity (Em) 191 51
Increase in £ € exchange rate 10% 10%
Effect on profit after tax [Em) 19 21
Effect on equity (Fm) 19 21

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responisibility for iguidity nsk managernent rests wath the Company's Board which sets the framework for the management of
the Company's short, medium and long-terrm funding and Liguidity management reguirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by
rmaintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities and continuously monitonng forecast and actual cash flows, Included in note 25 are
details of the undrawn facilities that are avallable to the Company and the Group to further reduce liquidity risk

The maturity profile of the Company's financial labilities 1s provided in the table below. The revolving credit facility 15 drawn down and
associated interest 1s settied on a moenthly basis. The orincipal 15 included in the table beiow when the facility 1s due to expire. All cash flows are

presented on an undiscounted basis

Bark and Trage, other and group
Lease Labilities ather leans payables Total
Em frn £m Em
2020 - ) o
Under 2 months - 25 35 6.0
Between 2 and 12 months 04 495 58 55.7
Between 1 and 2 years 04 158 — 16.2
Between 2 and 5 years 08 4043 - 4051
Over 5 years — 2134 - 213.4
Total 16 685.5 9.3 696.4
Bank and Trade, other and group
other lgans payabies Total
£rn £m Em
2009 o
Under 2 months 18 35 53
Between 2 and 12 months 461 75 536
Between 1 and 2 years 227 - 227
Between 2 and 5 years 1254 - 1254
Qver 5 years 276.0 - 276.0
Total ) 472.0 11.0 4830
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It 15, and has been throughout the year under review, the Company’s policy that no speculative trading in financial instruments shall be

undertaken

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change of 10% increase in the cost of borrowing, with all other

variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax {through the impact on floating rate borrowings),

2020 201%
Increase in the cost of borrowing 10% 10%
Reduction in profit before tax (Em) 0.2 01
46. Share incentive reserve
£m
At1Apri 2018 200
Share-based payment charges in the year 88
Share options exercised 1IN year (76)
At1April 2018 212
Share-based payment charges in the year 72
Share options exercised in year [8e)
At 31 March 2020 - 198
47. Notes to the cash flow statement
2020 2012
£m £m
Operating loss (24.0) 203
Adjustments for
Amortisation of Intangible assets 2.2 08
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.1 01
Depreciation of right of use assets 0.3 —
Excepticnal impairment charge 1.0 —
Amounts received from subsidiary undertakings for share incentive schemes
and other iterns 6.2 61
Share-based payment expense 2.4 36
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital {11.8) 9.7
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 4416 {39.7}
Decrease in payables (0.7) (18)
Movements in working capital 440.9 (415}
Cash used in operations 429.1 512)
Income taxes received 6.0 35
Interest paid (15.9) 8.2
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 419.2 (559
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Notes to Company financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

48. Share-based payments
Dunng the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had three (FY19 three) share-based payment arrangerments, which are described in
note 32.

e SVCP One Plan

2020

Number

Qutstanding at 1 Aprilt 2012 1,790,863 - 7341
Granted 331,926 233,332 2,146
Transfer — — 1,329
Lapsed (3,216} — —
Forferted (160,880) - (511)
Exercised (740,233) - (3,303)
Outstanding at 31 March 2020 1,218,460 233,332 7.012
Exercisable at 31 March 2020 3,864 — -

Weighted average exercise price (£)

Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2019 — - _

Transfer — — -

Forfeited - - —

Exercised - — —

atstanding at 31 March 2020 - A - - -

Exercisable at 31 March 2020 - - -

Range of exercise price of options outstanding at 31 March 2020

£200t0£299 - — —

£3.00t0£399 — — —

Weighted average remamning contractual bfe 2 4 1
Weighted aven?ge_fairv_alwgranted in 2020 £10 58 £12.47 £1199
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LTIP SAYE One Plan
2019
Number B
Qutstanding at 1 April 2018 2117178 24,249 5,390 _g
Granted 515,865 - 2,619 :
Transfer 4,810 - (207) 5
Forfeited - (418) (237)
Exercised (846,990) (23,831) (224)
Ouistanding at 31 March 2019 1,790,863 — 7.341
Exercisable at 31 March 2019 - N n
Weighted average exercise price (£}
Qutstanding at 1 Aprit 2018 — £3.24 -
Transfer — — =
Forfeited — £3.35 —
Exercised — £3.24 —
Outstanding at 31 March 2019 _ - — —
Exercisable at 31 March 201% - - n
Range of exercise price of options cutstanding at 31 March 2019 o
£200t0£299 - - - A
£300t0£399 - - -
Weighted average remaining contractual lfe 2 - 2 l
Weighted average farr value of options granted in 2019 £9.12 - £9.24

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised durning the year was £1177 (FY18. £201)

The estimated fair values are calculated by applying a Black-Scholes option pricing maodel for One Plan and SAYE and Monte Carlo
simulations for the LTIP The assumptions used In the models are set out in note 32.

In FY20 the Company recognised an IFRS 2 charge of E2.4m (FY19: E3.6m) related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions.
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49. Related party transactions

During the year the Company purchased services amounting to £0.3m (FY19. £0.5m) from companies that are not members of the Group
but that are related parties as they are controlled by or connected to Richard Harpin, Chief Executive of the Group and a Director of the
parent company of the Group. These services related to the use by the Group of private arcraft, including the provision of pilots and all
related operating costs that are controlled by the related parties. The provision of such services were rmade at arm’s length prices, which were
approved by the Remurneration Committee

The specific companies that were subject to the transactions were Harpin Limited (FY20 £0.2m, FY19 £0.2m), Pilot Services (GB) Limited
(FY2C £ni, FY19 £0.1m} and Centreline AV Limited (formerly Siro Limited} (FY20. £0.1m, FY19. £0.2m). Amounts outstanding to all these
companies on 31 March 2020 amounted to £nil (FY19: £0 1m). The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash No
guarantees have been given or receved

In respect of transactions with subsidianes of the Group, the Company provided goods of £ (FY19. £nil), provided services of £6 8m (FY19
£6 2rn), lent monies to of £40.2m (FY19: £43 7m} and borrowed monies from of £nil (FY1S. Enil} Amounts due to subsidiary companies total
£0.4m (FY19 £0.1m). Amounts owed by subsidiary companies total E36 6m (FY1S. £479 1m) which principally relate to intercompany loans
receivable. The Comparny provided services of £0 1m (FY19£0.3m) to associates during the year and £0 4m {FY1 £nil) to joint ventures during
the year The Company purchased services of £0.3m (FY19 Enil} from Joint ventures during the year. There are no amounts outstanding in
either year with associates and £0.1m outstanding {(FY19' Enil with joint ventures.

Provision of services to and the purchase of services from related parties were made at arm'’s length prices. The amounts outstanding are
unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or recerved. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in
respect of the amourits owed by related parties

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Drrectors, who are the key management personnel of the Company, 15 set out below in aggregate for each of the
categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors 1s provided in the
audited part of the Remuneration report,

2020 2019

Em Em

Short-term ermployee benefits - 34 o 36
Post-employment benefits 0.2 03
Share-based payments expense 2.8 36
Termination benefits — 01
R ) 64 76

Except as noted above there were no other transactions with Directors reguinng disclosure.

Interests held in related companies
All interests in the companies listed below are owned by HomeServe plc and all interests held are in the ordinary share capital All cormpanies
operate principally in their country of incorporation

Place of Proporton

INCOFporaton of votng
ownership {or nterest
registration) and
MName of legal entity Activity  and operaticn power % Registered address
Directly held entities of HomeServe ple:
MomeServe Enterprises Limited Trading England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 78N
Indirectly held entities of HomeServe plc: B
Holding Companies
HomeServe Assistance Lirmted Trading England 100 Labie Drive, Walsall, WS2 78BN
HomeServe International Limited Trad:ng England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 7BN
HomeServe GB Limited (No. 5536994 Dormant Englana 100 Cable Drive, Walsali, WS2 7BN
HomeServe France Holding $AS Trading France 100 9, rue Anna Marly, CS 80510, 63007 iyon Cedex 7
HomeServe Energy Services SAS Trading France 100 9, rue Anna Marly, CS 80510, 69007 Lyon Cedex 7
HomeServe USA Holdings Corp Tragding usa 100 601 Merritt 7, Norwalk, CT 06851
HomeServe Beteligungs GmbH Trading Germany 100 Rheinstr 30-32, 65185, Wiesbaden
i H

Sherrington Mews Limited Trading England 100 Building 2000, Lakeside North Harbour, Western Road,

Portsmouth, POB 3EN
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Place of  Proparton
Incarporaton of voting

ownership (or interest
reqistration) and
hame of legal entity Activity  and cperation power % Regrsiered address
UK & Ireland
HomeServe Membership Limied Trading England 100 Catle Drive, Walsall, w52 78N
HomeServe Servowarm Limited (No S60810}: Tr:j(\):é England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 78N
HomeSarve At Home Limited (No. 4186398) Dormant Englandg 100 Cable Drnve, Walsall, Ws2 7BN
Vetted Limited Trading Englana 100 Building 2000, Lakeside North H;;?it;owufsfigg‘;i
247999 Limited {No 7183505} ¢ Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, Ws2 78N
Home Energy Services Limited (No. 8419975) Tr;j?:‘; Englano 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 7BN
HomeServe Manufacturer Warranties Lirnited (No 4079068} Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 7BN
HomeServe Healing Services Limited (No 3468609) * T@N d?:g- England 100 Cable Drive, Walsal, WS2 7BN
HomeServe Trustees Limited (No 3349817) Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 7BN
HomeServe France Limited INo 5463168) ¢ Trading England 100 Cable Drive, Watsall, WS2 7BN
HomeServe USA Limited (No 9468635) < Trading England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 7BN
HomeServe Europe Limited Tr:d?:g_ Ireland 100 25-28 Adelaide Road, Dublin 2
HomeServe Amenca Limited Trgjd?:g; Ireland 100 25-28 Adelaide Road, Dublin 2
HomeServe Gas Limited (No 2248585 Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsail, Ws2 7BN
Home Service [GBE Lmited [Ne. 3546370} Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, W52 7BN :
Fasthx Pluminng and Heating Limited (No. 3120932)° Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 7BN ;
n
HormeServe Care Soluucns Lirmited (No 3228902} ! Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, W52 7BN
HomeServe Warranues Limited (No. 3156861} Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 7BN
Mulimaster Limited [No. 3670180} Dormant England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 7BN
HomeServe Labs Limited * Trading England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, WS2 78BN
Help-Link UK Limited Tradrg  England 100 #310 Cenuury Way, Thorpe ok
Energy insurance Services Limited Trading England 100 Cable Drive, Walsall, W52 7BN
Continental Europe
HomeServe SAS Trading France 100 9, rue Anna Marly, CS 80510, 69007 Lyon Cedex 7
Electro Gaz Service SA Trading France 100 17 rue Bavastro, 06300, Nice
1D Energies SAS " Trading France 100 ZA dArmanville, route de la brque, 50700 Valognes
Sylvain Brun Froid SAS ® Trading France 100 Les Bonnets, 73160 Saint-Cassin
HomeServe On Demand SAS Trading France 100 9. rue Anna Marly, CS BO510 , 69007 Lyon Cedex 7 e
HomeServe Home Experts SAS Trading France 100 9, rue Anna Marly, CS 80510, 69007 Lyon Cedex 7 g
Societe VB Gaz Trading France 100 1 rue George Sand, 34000 Creteil ::J
HomeServe Assistencra Spain SAU 7 Trading Span 100 Camine del Cerro de los Gamoes 1, Parque empresarial - %
Edificios Sy 6, 28224 Pozuelo de Alarcon 3
HameServe Span SLU# Trading Span 100 Camina del Ce’E’ZIS;(‘)0555336”‘“;;21-2Z’f;fg;:j:dpéi:sé; @
Sequregua SAU” Tadng sean 100 e seae hasueto ae Ameon
Habitissirme 5.1 @ Trading Spain 100 </ Rita Levi, Edificio Blue - Parc Bit C;Sﬁéﬁé?@;@::ﬁ
Bit Advanced Marketing S L ¢ Trading Span 160 Passeig Mallorca 17C, 07011 Palma de Mallorca
Oscagas Hogar SLU Trading Spain 100 Rafael Alberti N¢ 8, Zaragoza CP 50018
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49, Related party transactions {continued)
Interests held in related companies {continued)

Place of Proportion
Incorporauon ot vatng

ownership {or nterest
registration) and

Name of legat entity Actmly  and operaton power % Registerad address
Somgas Hogar S L. ° Tracing Spain 100 Paseo Can Feu Numl4, 08205 Sabadell, Barcelena
Linacals.L > Traging Spain 100 Polig Las Labradas, C Estelia S/N. 31500 Tudela, Navarra
Tecno Arasat Servicios de Mantenimiento S L > Tracing Spain 100 Calle Baron de erales num 31, 2400 Monzon, Huesca
Servicios Tecnicos Sate S L.° Trading Spain 100 Calle Anselmo Pie Sopena l‘ﬁgﬁi\gibgsﬁg'gfﬁvfgﬁ:
North America

HomeServe USA Corp Trading LUSA 100 601 Merritt 7 Norwalk, CT 06851
HomeServe UUSA Repair Management Carp Traging USA 100 1232 Premier Drive, Chattanooga, TN 37421
HomeServe USA Repar Management (Flonda) Trading UsA 100 1232 Premier Drive, Chattanooga, TN 37421
Leakguard Inc Dormant USA 100 601 Memitt 7 Norwalk, CT 06851
Leakguard Repair Services Inc Dormant USA 106G 601 Marntt 7 Norwalk, CT 06851
HomeServe USA Repar Management Corp (lowa) Dormant USA 100 601 Merntt 7 Norwalk, CT 06851
HomeServe USA Repair Management Corp (Catifornia) Dormant USA 100 601 Merritt 7. Norwalk, CT 06851
HomeServe USA Repar Management Corp (Virginia) Cormant UsA 100 601 Merntt 7 Norwalk, CT 06851
HomeServe USA Repair Management Corp (Wisconsim) Trading USA 100 6501 Merritt 7. Norwalk, CT 06851
HomeServe USA Energy Services LLC Trading usa 100 500 Bi-County Blvg, Farmingdale, NY 11735
HomeServe USA Energy Services (New England ) LLC Trading USA 100 5 Constitution Way, Woburn, MA 01801
LI PH Enterprises LLC Trading LSA 49 1307 Manatuck Blvd, Bay Shore, NY 11706
NYC PH Enterprises LLC Trading USA 49 4295 Arthur Kill Rg, Staten Island. NY 10309
SJESP Plumbing Services LLC Trading UISA ¢} 420N 2nd Road, Unit 1, Hammaonton NJ 08037
USP Holding 1 LLC Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvd, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
LSP Heldings 2 LLC Trading USA 106G 4000 Towr Center Blvd, Suite 400, Cancnsburg, PA 15317
Utility Service Partners Inc Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvd, Suite 400, Canensburg, PA 15317
Utility Service Partners Private Label, Inc. Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvd, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
USP Water Heater Rentals LLC Tradmg USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvd, Sutte 400, Canensburg, PA 15317
Litlity Service Partners Private Label of Virgima, Inc Tragding usa 100 4000 Town Center Biwg, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
Columbia Service Partners Inc Trading USA 106 4000 Town Center Blvd, Surte 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
Service Line Warranties of America, Inc - Delaware Trading USA 106G 4000 Town Center Bivd, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
Service Line Warranties of America, Inc - Calfornia Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvd, Suite 400, Canansburg, PA 15317
Service Line Warranties of Canada Holdings, Inc Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvd, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
Columbia Service Partners of Pennsylvania, Inc Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvd, Surte 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
Columbia Service Partners of Kentucky, Inc Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Bivd, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
Columbia Service Partners of Onio, inc. Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvd, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
Columbia Service Partners of West Virginig, Inc Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvg, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
Service Line Warranties of Canada Inc Trading USA 100 4000 Town Center Blvg, Suite 400, Canonsburg, PA 15317
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Piace of Proporuen
incorporation of woting

awrnership (or nterest
registration) and &
hame of legal entty Actwmity  and operatian power % Registeres address Z
HormeServe MVAC LLC Trading USA 100 601 Merritt 7, Norwalk, CT 06851
Gregg Mechanical Corp Trading USA 100 198 Pulask: Averue, Staten Island, New York 10303
Gesel Heating and Arr Conditaning Inc Trading USA 100 633 Braad Street, Elyria, Ohio 44035
Cropp-Metcalfe Ar Conationing and Heating Company Tradng USA 100 8421 Hilltop Road. Fairfax, ¥A 22031
Centrig Technology Inc. * Trading USA 20 180 Sutter 5t, San Francisco, CA 94104, USA
Armerican Home Guardiar Inc © Trading USA 100 1839 S Alma School Ra, Mesa, AZ 85210
Nations Preferred Home Warranty tnc * Trading USA, 100 3530 Farest Lane, Dallas, TX 75234
Fab Electric Inc * Trading USA 100 25-B Chesinut St Gaithersburg, MD 20877
Newcore Irc® Trading USA 100 6236 Brynwood D, Medina, OH 44256
Crawford Services, Inc ¥ Trading UsA 100 1405 Averue T Grand Praine, TX 75050
etocal Holdings LLE * Trading USA 79 s e e B o as
elocal USALLC" Trading USA 79 100 Eaé;iiﬁg"_:sgg;t: g:‘tl%;gg
CiyGrd Megia LLZ ° Trading USA 79 1100 Ea(s:lob:gﬁéo":sctleeit: Eiwiegiglg f_
Asla ;
il
HomeServe Japan Corporation ? Trading Japan 50 MH-KIYA BLDG 1271, Mikuracnc Kanda, Chaﬁ%ﬁo}% g:;:g
Australia
Home Service Direct Pty Limited Non-Trading Australia 100 50 Gueen Street, Mebourne, VIC 3000

The Group nas taken advantage of the exemption fram audit of the dormant subsidianes registered in England under s480 of the Companies Act 2006 The registered numpers of the
dormant subsidianes are provided above

These companies have 2 31 December vear end due to the statutory reporting reguirements in Spain

The Group includes equity accounted nvestments, please refer to note 18 for full details

These cormpartes qualfy for an exemption to audit for non-gormant entities under the requirernents of s4794 of the Companies Act 2006 As suen, ne audit has been conducted far
these companies in the current financial year The registered nurmbers of the audit exernpt subsidiaries are provided above

* These companies were acquired during 2020 Please refer to note 16 for full details

This company has a 30 September year end due 1o lecal management requirements
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Company financial statements

Five year summary
Continuing operations
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Unaudited £m £m £m £m £m
External revenue
UK 365.1 3844 3577 3193 286.0
North America 4295 3334 2821 2278 1526
France 1118 1046 1000 911 774
Spain 154.1 1408 141.3 130.2 975
New Markets - - - 166 157
Home Experts 718 404 186 - -
Externat sales 11323 10036 8997 7850 6332
Profit/{loss)
UK 81.0 66.0 611 632 580
North America 85.4 676 486 212 121
France 33.8 333 315 271 232
Spain 201 177 16.6 133 9%
New Markets 4.7 (24 {1g) &0 (59)
Home Experts {13.9} {74y {28) — —

) 2017 1748 1534 118.8 973
Amartisation of acquisition intangibies {35.5) (26.8) (18.4) (14.1) (10 4)
Exceptional items (7.6) 46 - — —
Operating profit T 7 1586 ‘ 152.6 1350 1047 8637
Net interest (20.7) {131 1174 64 {4 3)
Profit before tax 1379 1395 123 3 9B 3 826
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Glossary

HomeServe uses a number of alternative performance measures (APMs) to assess the performance of the Group and its individual segments.
APMs used In this announcement address profitability, leverage and liguidity and together with operational KPls give an indication of the
current health and future prospects of the Group

Defintions of APMs and the rationale for their usage are included below with a reconcibiation, where applicable, back to the equivalent
statutory measure.

T a2 e g

Profitability

The Group uses adjusted operating profit, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted profit before tax and adjusted earnings per share as its prirmary profit
performance measures These are non-1FRS measures which exclude the impact of the amortisation of acguisition intangble assets and
exceptional items

Exceptional items are those items that, in the jJudgement of the Chrectors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size, nature or
Incidence.

Acquisition intangible assets are calculated using the estmated and discounted incremental future cash flows resutting from the affinity
relationship or future policy renewals as approprate, which will include the impact of the past actions of the former owners. These past
actions will include historic marketing and business development activity, including but not imited to, the staff and operational costs of the
business In addiion the specific construct of the policy terms and conditions and the current and expected future profitability to be denved
from the acquired business or asset is also a factor in determining the vaiuation of acguisiticn intangible assets.

The on-going service and operating costs incurred by the Group in managing the acquired businesses or assets, including but not limited
to print, postage, telephony, clams costs and overheads are recognised as operating costs within these adjusted measures in the reporting
penod in which they are incurred

Accordingly, by excluding the amortisation of acquisition intangibles from the adjusted performance measures reported by the Group in each
specific reporung penod ensures that these measures only reflect the revenue attributable to, and costs incurred by, the Group in managng
and operating those businesses and assets at that time in each reporting period and do not nclude the impact of the histonc costs of the
vendor or considerations of the future profits to be dernved from the acquired business or assets

Reconciliations of statutory to adjusted profit measures

Total group

Emillion 2020 2013 :

Operating profit {statutory) o ‘ 158.6 1526 =
Exceptional items 76 (4.6)

Amortisation of acquisihon intangibles 355 268

Adjusted operating profit 201.7 174 8

Operating profit {statutory) 1586 1526

Exceptional items 76 46)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9.3 al

Depreciation of nght-of -use assets 14.2 —

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles i85 268

Amortisation of other intangible assets 38.3 231

Amortisation of contract costs 11.8 149

Adjusted EBITDA 275.3 2219

Profit before tax {statutory) 1379 1395

Exceptional tems 76 14.6) %‘
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 355 268 §
Adjusted profit before tax 181.0 1617 z
Pence per share 2
Earnings per share (statutory) 317 227

Exceptional items {net of tax) 1.8 (1.3)

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles {net of tax} 78 61

Adjusted earnings per share 413 375
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Segmental

2020 North

Emittion UK Arnenca France Spain  NewMarkels Home Experts
Revenue 3729 429.5 111.8 154.1 - 71.8
Statutory operating profit/(loss) 62.8 67.6 26.9 196 0.9 (17.4)
Operating margin % 17% 16% 24% 13% — -
Adjusting items V
Exceptional items 150 - — - (38) 36)
Ameortisation of acquisition intangibles 3.2 178 69 05 — 71
Total adjusting items 18.2 17.8 6.9 0.5 (3.8} 35
Effect on operating margin {ppts) 5% 4% 6% — - -
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) 81.0 85.4 338 201 4.7 (13.9)
Adjusted operating margin % 22% 20% 30% 13% - —
2019 North

£rmillin UK America France Span  NewMarkets  Hame Experts
Revenue 3917 3334 1046 1408 - 404
Statutory operating profit/loss) 684 547 268 175 24) 12.4)
Operating margin % 17% 16% 26% 12% - -
Adjusting iterms

Exceptional items 4.6) — — - - —
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 22 129 65 02 - 50
T—otmhng iterns ' B 2.4 129 65 02 - R
Effect on operating margin (ppts) — 4% 6% 1% — -
Adjusted operating profit/toss) 66.0 676 333 177 24) (7?
Adjusted operating rargin % 17% 20% 32% 13% - -
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2020 UK Ar:leonr:‘: france Span New Markets  Home Experts
Local currency million £ $ € € 4 £
Revenue 372.9 546.1 1284 176.6 - 718
Statutory operating profit/{loss) 62.8 86.1 3.2 22.5 {0.9) (17.4)
Operatng margin % 17% 16% 24% 13% - —
Adjusting items
Exceptional items 15.0 — — - (3.8) (36)
Amortisation of acguisiion intangibles 3.2 225 78 06 — 71
Total adjusting items 18.2 22.5 78 0.6 (3.8) 35
Effect on operating margin {ppts) 5% 4% 6% - - -
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) 81.0 108.6 39.0 231 (4.7} 13.9)
Adjusted operating margin % 22% 20% 30% 13% — —
Narth
2019 UK America France Span New Markets  Home Experts
Local currency milion 3 5 € € £ £
Revenue 2917 436.2 1187 1597 - 40.4
Statutory operating profit/(loss) 684 713 304 196 2.4 12 4)
Operating margin % 17% 16% 26% 12% - -
Adjusting tems
Exceptional items 46} — - — — —
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 22 16.8 7.4 02 — 50
Total adjusting iterms (2.4) 16.8 74 02 - 5.0
Effect on operating margin (ppts) — 4% 6% — - -
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) 660 881 278 198 (2.4) {7.4)
ﬂ;sted operating margin % 17% 20% 32% 12% — —
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Glossary

Leverage

The Group targets net debt in the range of 1 0 1o 2.0x adjusted EBITDA measured at the year end, The range reflects HomeServe's relatively
low risk appetite. Due to the seasonality of the business and depending on M&A opportunities, HomeServe is able to operate outside 1.0 to
2.0x for periods of time but with a highty cash generative business mogel HomeServe will seek to return to its target range The leverage ratio
is also irnportant as it factors into the Group's banking covenants and the roling 12 month rate at each half year penod influences the future

interest rates payable on the Group's Revolving Credit Facility

Certain of the Group’s segmental bonus measures relate to net cash Net cash s defined and calculated In the same way as net debt but

returns a positive closing balance.
Note 25 provides a full reconciliation of the movements in liabilities arising frorn borrowings and lease labilities

The closing balances at 31 March were as follows:

2020 2019
e o . Em Em_
Current liabilities from borrowing and lease liabilities
Lease liabtties 4.1 05
Banks and other loans 40.3 397
T 54.4 402
Non-current liabilities from borrowings and lease liabilities
Lease liabilities 45.2 0.7
Bank and other loans 540.6 336 4
o T T T 585.8 3371
Total iabilities from borrowings and lease habilities 640.2 3773
E;E and cash equivalents T - (131.2) T 72 86)
Netdebt T 509.0 3047
Adjusted EBITDA 275.3 2219
Leverage 1.8x 14x
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Liquidity

Cash conversion % 1s defined as cash generated by operations dwvided by adjusted operating profit The measure demonstrates the cash
generative nature of the ordinary trading operations of HormeServe's business model and the ability to produce positive cash flows that can
be invested for future growth intiatives orin capital projects to maintain customer service ninatives, digital enhancements or efficiencies that
benefit the long-term health of the business

Free cash flow is stated after tax and interest obligations and 1s an indication of the strength of the business to generate funds to meet its
liablliies and repay borrowings It also shows the funds that are used for capital Investment including funds that might be made avalable to
pursue M&A activities and to pay divdends

sersdan W g

2020 2019
Em £m
Adjusted operating profit 2017 174.8
Exceptional tems (7.6) 46
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (35.5) (26 8)
Operating profit 158.6 1526
Impact of exceptional items 76 4.6)
Depreciation and amortisation 109.1 739
Non-cash items 9.2 10.7
Increase in working capital (44.1) (304
Cash generated by operations 240.4 202 2
MNet imterest and borrowing costs {18.5) 99)
Repayment of lease principal (12.49) 06)
Taxation (30.2) (317
Caprtal expenditure - ordimary {79.0) (66.9) .
Capital expenditure - acquisitions of policy books (6.9) (48.8) ;
Free cash flow o 934 443 ;
Ernillion 2020 2019
Adjusted operating profit 7 201.7 1748
Cash generated by operations 240.4 2022
Cash conversion 119% 116%

IFRS 16 — Leases

HomeServe has adopted IFRS 16 using the mod fied retrospective approach with a date of initial application of 1 Aprit 2019 Comparative
infarmation provided in this announcement has not been restated. The effect of IFRS 16 on the mcome statement is to remove operating
lease charges previousty shown within ‘operating costs’, replacing them with depreciation and interest charges that now result from the
capitatisation of "Right of Use Assets” and the recording of "Lease Liabilities” in the consclidated balance sheet (see Note 2 Accounting
Policies)

IFRS 16 — Impact on reported profits
There 15 no material 1/mpact on FY20 PBTA as a result of adopting IFRS 16 The effect on adjusted operating profit at a Group levelis £0.2m
with the segmental breakdown shown m the table below;
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MNorth MNew Home
2020 £millien UK Amenca France Spain Markets Experts Totai
Adjusted operating profit (IAS 17) 81.0 85.5 33.8 20.0 4.7) (13.7) 2019
Operating lease charge (IAS 17) 59 32 16 2.0 - 08 135
Depreciation on nght of Lise assets {IFRS 16) 59 (335 16 19 — 10 (137}
Adjusted operating profit (IFRS 16) 81.0 854 338 20.1 4.7} (13.9} 2017
Interest charge on lease liabilies cutstanding (IFRS 16) 0.5) (0.6) 10.1) 0D — 0.2 1s)
Adjusted operating profit post IFRS 16 interest charges 80.5 84.8 337 20.0 4.7) 14.1) 200.2

IFRS 16 — Impact on net debt and leverage
The additional depreciation and interest charges incurred due to the adoption of IFRS 16 have resulted in an increase to FY20 adjusted EBITDA
of £13 5m. Total lease liabilities outstanding at 31 March have increased net debt by £55 3m.

The overall effect or leverage is an increase of 0 1x.

2020

} £m

Adjusted EBITDA {IAS 17) 261.8
Operating lease rentals (IAS 17) 135
Adjusted EBITDA (IFRS 16) 2753
2020

£m

Net debt (IAS 17) 449.7
IFRS 16 lease liabilities 593
Net debt (post IFRS 16) 509.0

KPls

The Group uses a number of operational key performance indicators that provide insignt into past performance and are an indicator of the
future prospects of the Group as a whole and its individual segments

Affinity partner households tracks the growth in addressable market delivered through existing and new partnerships with utilibes and
municipals.

Customers tracks success in converting addressable market into revenue-generating customers, by delivering great products and service.

Retention rate reflects ability to deliver fit-for-purpose product and great service to customers,

Policies illustrates ability to grow the product ine through customer focus and iInnovation

Income per customer measures ability to design and marketincreasingly valuable products, and sell them efficiently. Due to currency
differences, this measure is tracked at a geographic level Income per customer s calculated as the last 12 months’ net policy income
divided by customers

Trades are custormers in the Home Experts business Growing the network of vetted and reviewed trades will enable HomeServe to meet
consumer needs and grow its business

Adjusted profit before tax is the key profit measure by which business growth, efficiency and sustainability are monitered

Net debt to EBITDA is the key cash ratio, which 1s used to monitor usage of financial resources within agreed risk parameters
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Customers

iFRS15 defines a customer as ‘a party that has contracted with an entity to cbitain goods or services’. In the Membership businesses where
the Group acts as anintermediary sellng contracts and insurance policies to end consumers, the 'IFRS 15 custermaer’ is considered to be the
underwriter with which the Group has contracted to sell policies.

This 1s different, hawever, from how the Group markets and communicates the value of its products and services to end consumers Here,
the businesses strategy and communications {both internally and externally) refer to the end consumer as the customer. As a result, for the
purposes of describing the strategy and operaticnal performance of the business, the Business review and the Group's KPIs refer to the end
consumer as the customer of the Group, rather than the underwriter. However, for the purposes of preparing the financial statements, the
accounting transactions are recorded in accordance with IFRS 15 where the customer is the underwriter

For all other sources of revenue, it 1s the party that has contracted with the Group to obtam goods and services that is classified as the

custormer. The following table surnmanses this pasition

Revenue Stream

Policy Income — insurance intermediary commissions

Customer as referred to in the

IFRS 15 'contracted’ customer Strategic Report

Underwnters End user of the service

Policy Income — repairs

Underwriters or other BZ2B contracted parties

Policy Income - home assistarice

Home Experts

HVAC

Other

End user of the service
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Company financial statements - 5 S e
Shareholder information

Financial calendar

2020

17 duly Annual General Meeting

3 August Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020

17 Novermber Interirn results for the six months ending 30 September 2020
2021

Janwuary Intenm dividend for the year ending 31 March 2021

May Preliminary results for the year ending 31 March 2021

June 2021 Annual Report and Accounts available

Shareholder helpline
HomeServe's shareholder register is mantained by Computershare investor Services PLC who are responsible for making dividend

payments and updating the register, including detalls of changes to shareholders’ addresses. If you have a query about your shareholding in
HomeServe, you shiould contact Computershare

Tel 0370 7071053

Address PO Box 82, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol, B§G8 7NH

Website' www-uk.computershare.com/investor

Website

The HomeServe website at www.homeserveplc.com provides news and details of the Company's activibes plus information for

shareholders The investor section of the website contains real tme and historical share price data as well as the latest results and
anncuncements
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